Name of the Company: S Chand And Company Limited

Arnexuve- 3

(Rs. in Crores)

As per last Audited 1 year pl‘lOl: to the |2 years pr]or to the Financials for half

S Chand And Company Limited Financial Year last Audited fast Audited year ended 30.09.2017
Financial Year Financial Year o
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

|Equity Paid up Capital 14.92 0.20 0.22 17.42
Reserves and surplus 496.19 483.80 267.88 774.61
Carry forward losses - - - {18.01
Net Worth 511.12 434.00 298.09 792.03
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - | - -
Secured Loans 210.92 83.00 | 116.79 51.52
|Unsecured Loans - - - -
[Fixed Assets 24.99 25.64 26.76 23.89
Income {rom Qperations 301.35 279.56 234.83 46.71 |
Total Income 310.80 291.30 243.29 57.22 |
Total Expenditure 267.38 265.64 231.37 85.17
Profit before Tax 43.42 25.66 11.93 {27.95)
Profit after Tax 27.10 16.27 8.02 {18.10)
Cash profit 50.68 33.06 19.97 {26.23)
EPS {in Rs.per sharc) 9.08 5.96 319 (5.35)
Book value {in Rs. per share) 171.26 | 77.46 118.46 234.00




Name of the Company: Safari Digita! Education Initiatives Private Limited

{Rs. in Crores)

As per last Audited

1 year prior to the

2 years prior to the

Financials for half

Safari Digital Education Financial Year last Audited last Audited year ended
Initiatives Pvt, Ltd Financial Year Financial Year 30.09.2017
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Equity Paid up Capital 44.37 44,37 42.82 44.37
Reserves and surplus (6.39) (3.15 {1.17) (10.47)
Carry forward losses (3.24) {1.99) {0.70) (4.08)
Net Worth 37.98 41,22 41.65 33.90
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans 31.80 23.01 0.47 34.9]
Fixed Assets 6.64 2.73 . 6.27
Income from Operations 5.96 2.82 1.35 1.25
Total Income 6.63 3122 1.40 2.14
Total Expenditure 9.87 5.20 2.10 6.22
Profit before Tax (3.24)| (1.99) (0.70) (4.08)
Profit after Tax (3.24) (1.9%) (0.70) (4.08)
Cash profit (2.8 (1.94) (0.70) (3.70)
EPS (in Rs.per share) (0.73) {0.45) (0.21) (0.92)
Bock value (in Rs. per share) 8.56 .29 1235 7 64
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Name of the Company: DS Digital Private Limited

{Rs. in Crores)
. 1 year prior to the 2 years prior to the Financials for half
., As Per Ia§t Audited last Audited last Audited year ended
DS Digital Pvt. Ltd Financial Year R s . R
Financial Year Financial Year 30.09.2017
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Equity Paid up Capital 56.90 40.90 40.90 56.90
Reserves and surplus (31.96) (2537) (22.06) (36.27)
Carry forward losses (6.59) (330 (5.25) (4.31)
Net Worth 24.94 15.53 18.84 20.63
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - . 3
Secured Loans 4.54 5.36 3.57 7.58
Unsecured Loans 6.80 6.50 0.94 0.37
Fixed Assets 25.74 23.77 24.45 23.35
Income from Qperations 29.27 23.40 15.78 8.30
Total Income 29.32 23.43 1578 .80
Tatal Expenditure 35.01 26.74 21.03 13.12
Profit before Tax (6.59) (3.31) (5.25) (4.31)
Prof1t after Tax {6.59) {3.31) (5.25) (4.31)
1Cash profit {1.69) 0.78 (0.48) (1.64)
[EPS (in Rs.per share) (1.90) (0.95) (1.51) (1.24
[Book value {in Rs. per share) 7.18 4.47 5.42 5.94
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Name of the Company: Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited

{Rs. in Crores)

As per last Audited

1 year prior to the

2 years prior to the

Financials for half

Blackie & Son (Calcntta) Pvt. Ltd.|  Financial Year F:;Z'n’:i';‘l";:i i F::Ztnt:?ﬁ(; i gggggleg
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 0,01
Reserves and surplus 6.74 6.62 6.56 6.72
[Carry forward losses - - - -
Nel Worth 6.75 6.64 6.98 6.74
Misceltaneous Expenditure - - - .
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Fixed Assets 0.01 (.05 0.09 0.00
Income from Operations 0.27 0.72 3.70 .
Total Income 0.27 0.83 3.70 0.00
Total Expenditure 0.09 0.74 3.00 0.02
Profit before Tax 0.17 0.08 0.69 {0.02)
Profit after Tax 0.12 0.06 0.44 {0.02)
Cash profit 0.2 0.i2 0.80 {0.02)
EPS (in Rs.per share} 7,746.44 3,962.78 29,265.12 {1,164.95)
Book value {in Rs. per share) 453,207.21 445,460.78 441,498.01 452.042.28
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Name of the Company: Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

{Rs. in Crores)

As per last Audited

1 year prior to the

2 years prior to the

Financials for half

Nirja Publishers and Printers Pvt, Financial Year last Audited last Audited year ended
Lid. Financial Year Financial Year 30.09,2017
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.0] 0.01 0.01
Reserves and surpius 68.59 64.73 52.13 69.20
Carry forward losses - - - .
Net Worth 68.60 64,74 52.15 69.21
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans 3.81 8.57 7.08 0.20
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Fixed Assets 1.9t 2.1 2.05 401
Income from Qperations 25.40 48.77 44.53 1.88
Total Jncame 28.00 50.12 44.38 3.30
Total Expenditure 22.52 33.56 32.11 2.68

' Profit before Tax 5.48 16.57 12.47 0.6]
Profit after Tax 31.86 12.60 646 0.61
Cash profit 5.83 16.96 12.98 1.01
|EPS (in Rs.per share) 1,216.16 10,496.31 7,.884.72 509.67
[Book value (in Rs. per share) 57,167.79 53,951.62 43,455.32 57 ,677.46 |
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: At 5 Chand, we consider this an
exciting time to be a leading
knowledge content provider

n India. We have a sustinable
digital strategy in place, innovating
and testing new products across
the spectrum of digital content
consumption. We have strategically
invested in early stage education
companies, pairing our experience,
i.content library, distributon reach
and brand equity with innovative
techriclogy driven solutions, By
focusing on new media solutions
and hybrid content materials, we
venture to maintain our leading
position in the changing
education market.

Additionally, with growing
disposable incomes and attractive
employment prospects in the
service sector, Indian parents are
.becoming more attuned to the
importance of a quality education.
The number of private and public
chools are on the rise; enrolment
rates in private institutions are
increasing, while drop-out rates are
decreasing. Not only is the literacy
rate increasing, but the quality of
students is also improving.

With the opportunity for growth in
the education sector in mind, we
have made strategic investments to
capture an even larger share of the
market over the next few years. Not
only are we aiming to widen our
pan-india presence in private and
public schools, we also endeavour
to fill any gaps in our market,
ensuring that we are diversified
and ready for the future. Constantly

=
v
HA

»
PUBLISHING

checking that the quality and
relevance of all our offerings are
up to the rmark, we have the best
talent In the industry authoring
and editing our content, while
our expert sales and marketing
team leverage our established
distribution network to reach as
many students and educatars

as possible,

Helping individuals achieve their
education and career goals is

5 Chand’s priority, Leveraging our
experience in the industry, while
embracing changing trends, has
enabled us to empower india's
future for the past eight decades.
We will continue to do so in

the future,

We have already
begun to see the
early shoots from
our strateqic efforts.
Confident for the
future, we aspire

to be an enduring
value producer and
a long term wealth
creator for our
nvestors.
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AT A GLANCE

S Chand

is a leading education content
company, focusing on the
fully integrated creation and dissemination of
educational content and solutions, to all parties
involved in the education industry.

///////,nr//‘/r//////// /// S N FALIS IS AS T S g PSS
//’ i //./-/4 4 ///////‘///'///// ’4/,4'//{/.// s //‘///,/,/,//4////,"/,’// s .“’////,'/// ,’,'/,’ ,/%, {/{///‘ i //

K-12 Content: Our Key Segment

The K-12 Content business constitutes around 80% of our consolidated revenues,
registering organic revenue growth of ~ 20% over the last five years.

5 Chand growth anchored by leadership in K-12 segment Growth Strategy

Figures incrores

Geagraphical
diversificationin s
board schools

+ Higher share of educa__ti'é‘ﬁ
spend with enhanted
content offerings.

s Continuous content
< Moui § Cnand biands provide cpfe__s_gbjec‘r ofterings (mathematics, sclence ete} development
« Mybrid offerings provide mere valie per unft to student compored to pure print content :
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In December 2016, we acquired 74% of Chhaya Prakashani Private
Limited, diversifying our presence into the state board content market.

B A A A O R A A R A LI

Pan-India presence of
sales and
distribution network

IN HOUSE SALES
AND MARKETING TEAM
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AT A GLANCE (contd)}

In Fiscal 2017, our digital business grew in excess of
30% YOY and we successfully launched our curriculum solutions
business, Mylestone

s . . . ’ AR s K . . e / ’ | .

///// / //(/' '////,, .’/”;'("/""/ "/a’/.’/‘ //://{ /////f//f://////// /" / /////

inhouse digital / service platforms Digital investments I
Al
IGNITOR
b -

mylestone Intelta Smartivity A

! A

;
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flipdlnss
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Well recognised consumer facing brands in the education space
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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EBITDA has grown at a CAGR 0f 45% in last five
years, reaching ¥ 1,722 million in FY2017

[75] 51111 65731
a 422.0? % 59915 7
= S 7 /
E 19039 2G7.88 /% % 16772 394385 % %
o 24500 o / / / / /
5 %% 7 7 = % 7 7
g 76.25 / % / % / 90.84 / / / % /
Ly %//f’,/ﬁl/j% 7;,@%&1/'//%
<l 2011412 | 2071213 1 2013-14 | 201415 | 201516 | 2016-17 201112 1 201213 | 201399 | 201415 | 2015416 | 200617
X

~
o
v

0 1660

% ,’Z//j//’//

=
N

-

NN
NN\

n
3
D
tn
o
A

I

NN\

0.5
s

1]

3.56

% 7, Y

AR
NN
NN

v
‘ . Y f S /4
201112 | 2012-13 1+ 2013-14 | 201415 | 2075-16 | 2016-17 200112 1 207213 § 201314 | 201815 | 201516 | 201617

57

F.gures in crores

cach-45.49%

w
Y
>
~
=]

L s % 7
w G D Y

NN
A

201617

K-12 REVENUES

17 11

[ho



empgyvering

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to present S Chand's maiden Annual
Report for FY17 after pur successful (PO this year,
which made it a momentous year for ali of us. Your
company has been in existence for over 70 years and
has now entered the ‘corporate frame' after going
public. This gives greater recognition to our brand,
but also imposes additional responsibility on the
management to keep performing etter all the time.

The brand of $ Chand is very well established in

the education space and a sizeable part of the
populace has been expased directly or indirectly

to the education material published by us, which

has actually made S Chand literally a household
name. Your support in making our IPO successful
gives s more confidence to aim for higher levels of
achievement as this is the only way that we can meet
the expectations of all our shareholders.

in our kind of business the stakeholders are all the
nameless institutions, teachers and students who are
constantly looking for access to education material
which is of high quality which meets the requirements

%% S Chand has made
strategic investments to

meet the challenges of doing
business in a dynamic market.
We believe in continuously
keeping in touch with
changing trends, and
responding with necessary
actions from our side.

D R Dogra
Chairmgn

of the system. Qur line of business is different from
conventional ones which are linked to the ecanomy
or market forces. The universe of students is always
expanding and the demand for education books
always increases. [tis our endeavor to be there
everywhere and provide the right material which
meets this requirement. We are aware that the scope
and quality of education has been changing and it
is in our interest 1o meet these varying demands.
Hence our business becomes dynamic where the
twin challenges are gauging the requirements, both
present and future, and providing for the same so as

to deliver value.

We have made strategic investments to meet
these challenges and in this context believe in
continuously keeping in touch with schools, teachers
and students so as to gauge the changing trends
which necessitate action from our side. We at

$ Chand can assure you that your company is nimble
footed and is constantly on the move and tuneg to

i
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in this field and are suitably equipped to leverage
the same to deliver better results. We are confident
that we will be the preferred choice for our three
major stakeholders which in turn will ensure that we

deliver value for our shareholders.

The clue of our success is to have the best guality
talent working with us and it is here we can say with
pride that we have the best qualified personnel
working with us all through these years which has
ensured we reach the position we are in today.

We do have the right human resources who are
constantly exploring the market to gauge the
requirements, and then ensuring that the demand is
met appropriately, This involves a constant two-way
multi-pronged cormnmunication with the market
which involves taking feedback all the time and fine-

tuning our production and processes to the same.

Needless to say, the success of your company is due % 6::1 Our brand iS ve Well

to the untiring efforts put in by our People, who we i . . Y .
established in the education
space. A sizeable part of the

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all

the members of the Board as well as our bankers market haS _bee_n exposed

and employees for their contribution in taking the dlI'eCﬂy or lndll‘ectly to the

company successfully forward. I would also like to education material pubhshed

thank the sharehaiders for reposing their faith in the b .
y us, making S Chand a

management of this company which will encourage

us to work harder towards fulfilling our promises. househOId name.

consider our higgest asset.

D R Dogra
Chairman

tha
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FROM THE DESK OF MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

I am honoured to present you with the first Annual
Report of § Chand And Company Limited after the
successful listing of our equity shares in the Indian
stock exchanges in May 2017. | record my sincere
thanks and appreciation to afl those who applied

for our IPO and placed their faith in our Company. |
welcome the new share-owners to our family with
warmth and gratitude. At S Chand, we are committed
to be a value producer and an excellent long-term
wealth creator far all our stakeholders.

Over the next few years, the education sector in
[ndia is expected to go through a transformative
phase. With growing disposable incomes and
attractive employment prospects in the service
sector, Indian parents are becoming more attuned
to the importance of a quality education. \n the past
decade, the industry has withessed a shift in student
enrolment from government to private schools. As
this trend strengthens, private schools are expected
to become the dominant providers of education

by the end of the next decade. As the number of
private and public schools are increasing, so are the

66 AtS Chand, we play a
central role in the changing
Indian education sector. We
are committed to helping
the young, future workforce
of India achieve their
education and career goals.

Himanshu Gupta
Managing Director

enrolment rates in private institutions, resulting in
more and more students graduating every year.

Aside from making content more accessible,
technology is playing a larger role in the education
sector. As per industry estimates, India’s online
education market is set to grow to US$ 1.96 bilkion
and around 9.6 million users by 2021. With digital
pontable devices become increasingly common,
the consumption medium of content is changing,
adding value and opportunity to the education
experience. ! believe that this paints a picture of
phenomenal opportunity for § Chand in the years

10 come.

Your Company has a strong market position across
the formal, infarmat and ancillary markets. We are
a leader, catering to the full spectrum of customer
needs - be it print {text books} or digital content,
available in multiple subjects and fanguages. We
believe that there are healthy growth prospects

~,

5
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the mainstreaming of the rural economy; evolving
technology & its rapid adoption; and government
policy initiatives like the Goods & Services Tax.

Our large size, capital base, extensive distribution
network, diversified portfolio, presence across

the education sector and adoption of technclogy,
positions us very well to leverage the growth
opportunities across the economy. 1 look forward to
your continued support in this journey.

Financial Overview

Despite certain big-ticket policy changes like
demonetisation, we have had a successful
operational year in FY2016-17. Total revenue for the
financial year stood at ¥ 685 crores, as compared

to T 541 crores in the previous financial year.
Commensurately, our EBITDA grew by 34% year on
year, from T 128 crores in FY 2015-16 to T 172 crores
in FY 2016-17. Your Company registered a 25%
growth in net profit (after minority interest) from

T 47 crores in FY2015-16 to T 58 crores in
EY2016-17. We attrib ute this growth to the increase

in the numker of students attending private schools,

as well as our strategic expansion plans intoc new
geographies and markets. | am pleased to inform
you that the Board has agreed to declare and paya
final dividend of ¥ 1.25 per equity share,

Your company raised ¥ 325 crores from its PO in
May 2017, of which T 255 crores was utilised to
repay debt and deleverage the balance sheet.

This will help us save substantially on the interest
cost, consequentially impacting our profitability.
Proceeds raised from the IPQ also gives us access to
surplus funds, which we intend to utilise in pursuit
of our growth strategy to become a more relevant
player in the educational content market, while
simultaneously focusing on digital technologies to
supplement our content portfolio.

I

M4

The Way Forward

At S Chand, we believe that we play a central rofe

in the changing Indian education sector. We are
committed to helping the young future workforce
of India achieve their education and career goals.
With this immense growth opportunity in mind, we
have implemented focused strategies to widen and
deepen our presence across India. We also believe
in creating stronger relationships with our students
and teachers, throughout their educational lifecycle.
| strongly believe that our more than 7 decadey’
experience places us in a sweet spot to continue
playing a transformative role in this industry.

Qur digital strategy over the next few years is
innovative and flexible, allowing us to remain
receptive to the market needs, much suited to

our long-term growth plans. We have strategically
invested in early stage education companies, pairing
our expertise, content library, distribution reach and
brand equity, with innovative technology driven
solutions, We aim to be prepared to capitalise on the
digital trend, as and when the marketplace crosses
the tipping point of universal adoption.

Acknowledgement

Finally | would like to thank our employees, whose
hard work at every level of the business has allowed
us to achieve a set of strong annual results amidst

# challenging macro scenario. ] would also like to
thank our stakeholders for their support, and assure
them that we will remain focused on our journey of
growth in the years ahead.

Sincarely,

Rimanshu Gupta
Managing Director
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IN CONVERSATION WITH MR. DINESH KUMAR JHUNJHNUWALA,

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

How was the year under review in
terms of performance? What were the
key factors which contributed to the

FY2017 was a very important year for us. We
scaled our operations and expanded our presence
in the state board content market. Barring our
acquisition of Chhaya in West Bengal, our K-12
business grew by around 21% organically, higher
than our projection of 18 -20%. We are satisfied
with this performance as the segment contributes
about 80% of our total business. This has been
possible due to our strong prormotions and various
sales and marketing initiatives, as well as our
product development team. The products have
managed to achieve a strong brand recall in the
market. All the cormpanies that we acquired in the
past have delivered good performance.

&6 Barring our
acquisition of Chhaya in
West Bengal, our K-12
business grew by around
21% organically, higher

than our projection of 18-20%.

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Executive Director

We acquired 74% ownership of Chhaya Prakashani
Private Limited in December last year, which
helped us expand our establishment in the Eastern
region. Chhaya is the largest player in the West
Bengal state board market and covers over 8,000
schools in the region. 1t is our first acquisition in
the state board content market, very much in
accordance with our strategy to build a presence
in certain identified regicnal markets that cater

to alarge number of schools and students, The
financials of Chhaya were consolidated with our
group financials from December onwards {from the
date of acquisition), contributing around

¥ 75 crores to consclidated revenues.

The Test-Prep segment of Higher Education
witnessed single digit growth over the past year,
and is a segment of great revenue potential for a
company like S Chand. As more students app
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sub-segment is expanding, increasing the demand for online

test preparation solutions, in addition to standard solutions.

Lastly, the professional, technical and coflege content
subsegment of our higher education business witnessed some
challenges owing to industry headwinds. The industry is going
through a consolidation phase and a number of engineering
and management colleges have closed down. However, this
change was needed to phase out low quality institutions that
were unable to equip students for proper job opportunities
and they lacked proper facilities. Nevertheless, the worst seems
to be over now, and going forward, the sector is expected to

witness positive growth.

B4 Can you share the current potential of the Indian
market, specifically the education sector? How will
this affect your Company?

5% The education sector in India is
still at a very nascent stage. We see
real growth happening in the next
5to 10 years.

o]
p

2 The current scenario for the Indian education sector is
very positive. An increased number of students are moving
towards private schools, Parents across the socio-econormic
pyramid of India are (ealising the importance of attending
English mediurm schools, wanting their children to become
doctors or engineers. This has resulted in the mushrooming
of more private schools, which is a good sign for private
companies in the publishing sector, such as curs. More the
number of students entering the sector, higher the purchase
of books. "
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We believe the education sector in India is still at a very
hascent stage, and real growth is seen happening in the next
5-10 years. There is ample room for growth in the Indian
education market, as there a 260 million students going 1o
school, and more than 1.5 million schools In the country.

%% With the consolidation of Chhaya,
we cover around 40,000 institutions,
catering to more than 25 million students,
However, our five-year vision is to touch
100,000 institutions, catering to more
than 70 million students.

There have been companies in the past who have played very
short-lived roles in the education sector. Qurs is an exactly
contrary case. We have been working in the education sector
for close to 8 decades, and are much more stable, We are

going to be around for this growth trend and recognise it as

an immense opportunity for our business. Post consolidation
of Chhaya, we cover around 40,000 institutions, catering to
more than 25 million students. However, our five-year plan is to
cover a total of 100,000 institutions, catering to more than

70 million students.

8] What is the broad business outlook of your
Company for the next three to five years? What is
your business strategy for future growth?

We have an aggressive plan for growth over the next
few years. Our aim is to focus more on the state hoard/
regional school market for inorganic growth opportunities.
We are alse considering to expand in test preparation in the
higher education segment. Obviously, we are also looking to
invest more in the digital education sector through strategic
investments, increasing and upgrading our own portfolio

of products.

Anmual Report 2016.-17 | 17
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IN CONVERSATION WITH MR. DINESH KUMAR JHUNJHNUWALA,

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (contd.)

@% We hope that our expansion plan
will widen our canvas across the Indian
market, while also creating a pipeline
of users for our value-added services,
generating new streams of revenue,

We hope our expansion plan for future growth will widen our
canvas across the indian market, while also creating a fresh
pipetine of users for the value-added services, This will iead to
generation of new streams of revenue. This pipeline will not
only create an increase in purchase of print content (books),
but will aiso help us sell our digital and hybrid offerings
through the year, while strengthening our relationship with
the marketplace.

Can you list out some advantages of being
around in the education industry for almost 80 years?

By virtue of being around in the schoot and college
sector for almost 80 years, we are very well known and
renowned. Children have grown up reading our books and
content, establishing a strong brand recall throughout their
education life-cycle. We also have a huge branding advantage,
as far as authorship is concerned. The books authored by some
of our authors are considered as the bible in their respective
subjects. We have a dominating presence in core subject titles
including science, mathematics, English grammar and Hind),

& The books authored by some of our
authors are considered as the bible for
studying their respective subjects. This is
what has given us the requisite strength.

Could you please elaborate on the digitat
division of § Chand and how it is poised for future
growth?

Ny

B { Qver the past eight decades, S Chand has established
itself as aleader in content and publishing services. However,
in the past decade we have noticed the world is moving
towards different forms of content consumption. As this
happens, the leadership that we have acquired in the past
decades is seen transferring into this new world, This was one
ofthe key motivators to start the digital division.

‘gﬁ@ Meeting the needs of our clients is
extremely important to the health of our
business. As they search for content in
more than one format, our content should
be adaptable as well as easy to access
and use.

A key take-home message is that at 5 Chand we provide
end-to-end services. For example, one of the businesses we
started during the year under review in the digital and services
vertical Is Mylestone, which provides end-10-end curriculum
services. This includes customizing and combining print and
digital content as per the prescribed curriculum, assigning
workbooks, practice tests and exams, and all the other features
of teacher training and support.

‘{;@ The 1dea is not to be entirely digital

or offline, but to see how each division of
S Chand, including digital, can be used to
provide a hetter solution to the customers.
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As the market matures, we expect our end-to-end services to
become the new norm. This is the reason we are utilizing the
strengths of the entire group to provide such services. The
ideais not to be entirely digital or offline, but to see how each
division of S Chand, including digital, can be utilised to provide
a better sojution to our customers. Instead of predicting the
sector’s digital transformation, we are leveraging on the outlet
stage. We are aiming to build on the capability of our content
and digital services to provide better sojutions to

our customers.

@ How is India’s changing technological
[andscape affecting S Chand’s digital strategy?

i In the current environment, there is a huge penetration
of mobhile devices, especially smartphones, The decrease

in prices and increase in connectivity presents a huge
opnortunity for S Chand over the next 5-10 years. Mobile
devices will be central to disseminate our content, enabling us

to create new revenue streams,

% ® We belicve mobile devices will
become central to disseminate our
content, allowing us to create new
streams of revenue.

Mohile apps are also becoming central to our strategy. We
recently launched an app called MyStudyGear. Apart from
being an online content library, the app links our textbooks
torelevant digital content with the help of QR codes. We have
also added digital assessments and assignments to enhance
the learning experience. The entire idea is to integrate the app
with our books, given that we publish around 50 million books
touching over 25 million students. If we are able to connect
with that number of students through the app, it will provide

I

s

B

v

v

S.CHAND

PUBLIEHING

a huge reach in distribution. The network will be used to not
only disseminate the value-added services, but also
for e-commerce.

We also have a significant minority ownership in Ignitor, an
interactive [earning platform that enables mohile devices

to be used to deliver an enhanced learning experience.
lgnitor delivers enriched textbooks from muitiple publishers
embedded with rich media, interactive quizzes and weblinks.
They are the largest player in this sub-segment of digital
education and help extend our digital offering.

%é@ If we are able to connect with
approximately 20 million students
through our app, it will increase our
distribution immensely. This network
will not only be used to disseminate
our value-added services, but also for
g-comumerce.
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IN CONVERSATION WITH MR. DINESH KUMAR JHUNJHNUWALA,

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR fcontd.)

284l In your digital evolution, what is expected to
be the tipping point for S Chand, enabling it to be
classified as a tech company and not just a book
publisher?

Interestingly, our investments in the sector are a part
of our long-term growth strategy. We think that results from
digital products will become more promising over the next five

years o 50.

%% The transition to digital is not a
pan-India phenomenon. It is occurring in
layers, and is varying across different sub
segments of the education industry.

28 Can you share some key highlignts of the past
financial year, apart from the overall performance
and your successful IPO?

e
[l
#fe Over the past year we ticked certain boxes with respect

to some of our goals.

To start with, we successfully [aunched a new product
"Mylestone” which is impressively operational in 68 schools.
We alsa successfully acquired a majority ownership in Chhaya,
which was our foray into the state board content market and
gave us increased access 1o the West Bengal market.

We waere also able to achieve our growth targets in the K-12
business, which is our mainstay and contributes to around 80%
of consolidated revenues. A good product and talented teams

are helping us achieve this.

{44

Our production capacity es tablished two years ago is now
operating at an efficient capacity, and takes care of around
70% of our production needs. While focusing on expanding
our digital offerings, we are also creating additional value-
added material for teacher support, including textbooks,
watksheets, digital plans, digital videos and app support,

i How would you summarise the investment case
for S Chand?

&4 Firstly, investors need to realise that the education
industry is very different from the FMCG or IT sectors. In order
to consider 5 Chand, investors need to have a medium to long-
term investment harizon.

@@9@ The education industry is very
different from the likes of FMCG or IT. It
is a more mid-to-low kind of investment,
for which investors should have a
medium and long-term investment plan.

Secondly, investors should consider the pedigree of this
company as well as its management expertise, $ Chand has
entrenched itself in the education market over the past 78
years, and has always valued its expert leadership team.

Lastly, investors need to believe in the transformational

phase of the education sector. They also need to recognise
S Chand's strategy to play a prominent role in the near and
long-term future,
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Are there any noteworthy board related matters

We are very excited toc have welcomed three Independent
Directors to our board during the year. All these are

extremely respectable names in their respective industries.

Mr. D. R. Dogra, who has joined as the Chairman, was previously
the CMD of Credit Analysis and Research Limited (CARE); Mr.
Sanjay Bhandarkar was the managing director of Rothschild
India and continues to advise them; and Iast but not the least,
Ms. Archana Capoor was the former MD of Tourism Finance

Corporation of India Limited.

‘What would you identify as the key business
risks in each of your divisions? How do you plan to
go about mitigating them?

i

1 When considering the digital sector, we are not sure
about the exact trajectory of this “digital transformation’; It
may happen faster than we think, or our preducts may remain
obsolete for long periods of time, Secondly, the business We will continue to focus on the quality of our offerings and

. - S fosteri i i i ildi
models in the digital sector are emerging in nature, They are ostering good relationships with our customers. Building

not as mature as the book/print business maodel. This requires our rapport with the customers instils confidence and trust.
running the risk of new investments, and fine-tuning the model We now offer more and more teacher training programs and
over a period of time. In order to lessen the risk, we have been workshops in order to send a positive message to the market.
very conservative with our investments and have been growing

this segment effectively, but prudently.

The uncertainty of government regulations is a risk for the
publishing part of our business. Tomaorrow, the government
may limit the consumption of privately published books by

a certain section of schools, which may adversely affect our
sales, Syllabuses keep changing, and we have to keep changing
our products to accommodate. However this is part and parcel

of an ongoing cycle, and we will keep carrying on.

//// // // //// /// /// Anngameoﬂzom-mm
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[N EDUCATIONAL
CONTENT

Leadership

A LEADER IN CONTENT CREATION

We are a leading education content creator with a sustained leadership
position that spans more than 7 decades within the Indian marketplace. Our
philosophy is underpinned on having the most compelling, high-quality
content, and on strong, deep-rooted relationships with the most renowned
authors in the business.

We are using our strong brand presence to build symbiotic relationships
with our authors. Joining hands with us, they are able to further their scale
by leveraging our strong brand recognition and entrenched presence within
the vast majority of central curriculum schools across India.

For the past seven decades, S Chand has we offer four Chhaya brands, including Chhaya and IPP. This
established a pervasive presence across the entire new refationship added B.13 million copies in sales of 478 titles
Indian education market place. Consistently in Fiscal 2017.
working toward adding value to our brand and
increasing consumer recall, we have a content
repositary of over 12,000 titles and managed to sell
over 48 million copies (gross) of our titles in 2077,
As leaders in the K-12 segment of the education

content market, we aim to implement robust

Relationship with Authors. with our highly
established brand in the education sector, S Chand has the
ability to procure and retain some of the best authoring
talentin the industry. As of March 2017, we have contractual
relationships with 2,434 authors {including co-authors).

§ Chand retains and attracts the best authors and talent by

strategies to widen and deepen our pan—lndia elevating their careers. We provide authors with professional
presence. editorial support to assist authors when updating existing

.. <ontent or developing new content, while warking closely with
Chhaya Acquisition. .in order toincrease aur faculty members and experts. We also believe in continuously
presence in the West Bengal market, we acquired 74% of interacting with our authors, giving them constant feedback
Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited in December 2016. Now, and inviting them to participate in workshops. Qur authors are
apart from the 55 established brands associated with S Chand, compensated through royalties linked to content sales.

AN
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Procuring new content. in order to add to
our content library, we leverage our durable relationships

with our vast network of authors. After identifying gaps in

our education content, we approach both existing and new

authors to write content with the support of our editorial team.
We meet new authors through various platforms, including

our sales team, joint forums, workshops, author references and
editorial references, New authors provide us with a manuscript,

Market

whereas existing authors are approached to write content for
particular grades or subjects. The author selection for books in

the K-12 market is an editorial decision, considering input from

our sales and marketing teams.

&% With contracted rights to an enormous bank of
knowledge products under our belt, we are continuously
filling any content gaps that appear in the market.

This has ensured that we enjoy the largest portfolio of
products in the industry. OQur on-going product life-
cycle management ensures that our content remain
current and relevant. We are also ensuring that, as real
demand surfaces for the digital version of our content,
we are ready to deliver such content in the medi
of choice. ) ©
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TO MATCH INDIA'S
DEMOGRAPHIC DIVIDEND

Growth

S.CHAND

PUBLISHING

IN TANDEM WITH INDIA'S GROWTH STORY

India holds an important place in the global education industry. With more
than 1.5 million schools enrolling over 260 million students; and with over
750 universities, and 35,000 colleges, India has one of the largest education

systems in the world.

At S Chand, as a group today, we have access to
approximately 40,000 institutions across country,
allowing us to reach more than 25 million
students, Nevartheless, in the next five years, we
endeavour to expand our reach to over 100,000
institutions, which will cater to approximately

70 million students.

The education sector has also sean a host of reforms

and improved financial outlays inrecent years, possibly
transforming the country into a knowledge haven. With
human resource increasingly gaining significance in the overall
development of the country, development of education
infrastructure is expected to remain the key focus in the
current decade. In this scenarig, infrastructure investment in

the education sector is lTkely to see a considerable increase.

Moreover, the availability of English speaking tech-educated
tatent, democratic governance and a strong legal and
intellectual property protection framework are expected to

enable world class product development.

Entrenched in the Indian education industry for the past seven
decades, 5 Chand is in a position to significantly benefit from
this renewed focus and growth. With forward looking and

pervasive strategies to widen our pan-India presence, as well
as deepen our existing relationships with students and schools,
we plan to further our leadership position and grow as the
Indian education market grows.

Market Size. The education sector in india s poised

to witness major growth in the years to come. By the end of
2029, India is expected to have the world's largest tertiary-age
population and second largest graduate talent pipefine.

Education Sector Market Size 2016-17

28% 5%
Text-books, e-learming,
Ancillary Servic

/

Vocatione! Educetion

Higher Educetion K-12 School
Sagmant Segment

a
o

154



7

51




v
OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -lv-.'

Growth (contd)

More importantly, apart from the increasing total market size, enrolment in the
K-12 sub-segment is shifting its focus, Over the past few years, enrolment in English
medium Private Schools has significantly increased, and government run schools
are becoming less popular. As a leader in the K-12 private school sector, S Chand is
polsed to benefit from this change in the education landscape.

Investment. The total amount of Foreign Direct Investments (FDI) inflow into
the education sector in India stood at US$ 1.42 billion from April 2000 to March
2017, according to data released by Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion
{DIPP). With the government implementing policies to encourage FDLin the Indian
economy, this trend is expected to continue,

Road Ahead. various government initiatives are being adopted to boost
the growth of distance education market, besides focusing on new education
techniques, such as E-learning and M-learning. The Government of India has taken
several additional steps, allocating educational grants for research scholars in most
government institutions, Furthermore, with online modes of education being used
by several educational organisations, the higher education sector in India is set for

some major changes and developments in the years to come.

66 India has become one of the largest
markets for e-learning after the US and China.
The government has also set a goal to raise

the country’s current gross enrolment ratio to
30%. This is likely to further fuel the growth of
education in India, making for an exciting and
vibrant markgtplace. (Source: Technopak Research Report)
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Pl ellne HOST OF PRODUCTS
FOR NEW VALUE STREAMS

INNOVATING ALTERNATIVE VALJE STREAMS

The trend of content consumption in India is changing. The online
education market is set to grow to US$ 1.96 billion and around 9.6 million
users by 2021, from US$ 247 million and around 1.6 million users in 2016.

(Sowncve: KPMG & Google report).

Taking advantage of this digital trend within the education industry,

S Chand is developing new innovative products to capitalise on them.
These products are laying the foundation for new sources of revenue
streams that can be earned throughout the year.

5 Chand has stratagically invasted in multiple early
stage technology compantes, to innovate and be a
nart of this digita! trend. By leveraging the strength
of its brand, its distribution retwaork, its relationship
with authors and the market place, and its vast
content lbrary, the Company has positioned itself
to take these technologies to new |evels.

Mylestone: As an end-to-end curricujum service, I "
RS

this program includes customised print and digital content
including textbooks, workbooks, activity kits, teaching
supplements and practice tests in compliance with the
prescribed curriculum, aswell as, teacher training and support E@ g%@ ﬁ@
resources. As the market matures, we believe that end-to-end i RBusway 18 thi Fewe
services will becotme expected of content providers, and we
are efficiently using the entire spectrum of the S Chand Group's

capabllities to provide them.
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Pipeline (con)

myStudygear: Taking advantage in the growing
number of hand held devices with the student population,
this mobile application links print content in our text books
to specially curated digital supporting content. This includes
supplementary videos, assessments and assignments, ail
available through simply scanning a QR code. As we publish
approximately 50 million books, reaching over 25 million
students, connecting with this network through an app will
provide S Chand with a higher reach in distribution, In the
future, this network could be leveraged to pravide additional
value added services to these students, and may even be used

for e-commerce.

Catering to the Education Lifecycle

At S Chand, we are focused on the consumer, both students
and educators, and we believe in developing and nurturing
our relationships. By doing so, we have realised a more
sustainable source of revenue, ensuring our content solutions
and service address the entire education lifecycle, from early
learning and K-12, to the higher education segments. This has
not only helped us establish a strang brand equity, but also
provides 5 Chand with a strategic advantage over competitors

focused only on individual segments of the education lifecycle.

m?studygear

R R

We believe that our business is a key beneficiary of the
increasing share of discretionary expenditure on education,
and our presence across the student lifecycle allaws us to
generate recurring revenue throughout a student’s life.

Stronger Relationships with the
Education Market

Our dedicated sales and marketing team work hard to create
and maintain relationships with students, authors and schoaols,
By doing so, we aim to create a pipeline of customers, that are
not only going to purchase books, but will also benefit from
other value added services, breaking the cyclical nature of the
K-12 and higher education markets.

& While working towards adding new products

to our digital and hybrid content portfolio, we also
emphasise the importance of building and maintaining
strong relationships with faculties, parents and other
influencers within the market place. We have a

dedicated sales and marketing team that co
works towards achieving this goal.

A
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Himanshu Gupta - A lancging Direcior

Mr. Himanshu Gupta, aged 38 years, is the Managing Director of our Company. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the University of Delhi and has over 15 years of
experience in the knowledge products and the services industry. He is a recipient of the
"Young Publisher Award'by the Federation of Educational Publishers in India for the year
2011.

LY S

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala - Executive Director

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, aged 56 years, is an Executive Director of our Company.
He has been associated with our Company since 2004 and has over 11 years of
experience inthe knowledge products and services industry.
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Mr. Desh Raj Dogra - Independent Direcror and Chairman

Mr. Desh Raj Dogra, aged 62 years, is an Independent Director and Chairman of our
Company. He holds a Bachelors’s and Master's degree in Science and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Unviersity of Delhi. He has over 38 years of experience
in the financial sector and credit administration and previously served as the CEQ and
Managing Director at Credit Analysis and Research Limited (CARE).

VT

Ms. Archana Capoor - Independent Direcior

Ms. Archana Capoor, aged 58 years, is an Independent Director of our Company. She
holds a Bachelor degree in Science, as well as a Masters of Business Administration.
5he has over 34 years of experience across various sectors and previously served as the
Managing Director of Tourism Finance Corporation of India Lirited.
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Mr. Sanjay Vijay Bhandarkar - Independent Director

Mr. Sanjay Vijay Bhandarkar, aged 49 years, is an Independent Director of our Company.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from the University of Pune and a
Post-graduate diploma in Management from XLRI Jamshedpur, He has over 26 years

of experience in the financial sector and js a Senior Advisor at Rothschild India.

Mr, Deep Mishra - Non-Executive and Nominee Director

Mr. Deep Mishra, aged 44 years, is a Non-Executive and norninee Director of our
Company. He holds a degree in Bachelor of Technology in Mechanical Engineering

from the Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur, as well as a Post-graduate Diploma in
Management from the Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta. He has 20 years of
experience in the financial sector and is currently the Managing Director {Private Equity)
at Everstone Capital Advisors Private Limited.

Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, aged 30 years, is a Non-Executive Director of our
Company. He has over 5 years of experience in the knowledge products and services
industry and has been with our Company since 2011,

Ms. Savita Gupta - Non-Executive Director

Ms. Savita Gupta, aged 67 years, is a Non-Executive Director of our Company. She holds a
Bachelors and Masters Degree in English Literature, and is assoclated with our Company
since 1989,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

S Chand is a leading education content
company, with an operating history of
more than seven decades. It leverages

its established presence over multiple
recognized brands, pan India sales network
and strong author relationships.
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prospects of the Indian economy are driven by this young
population, rising affluence, increasing GDP per capita, rising
disposable income levels, healthy savings and investment
rates, and increasing spend in the discretionary income.

India's current consumption expenditure as a percentage
share of the total GDP is 54%. Although currently lower than
industrialised countries, itis estimated that India’s househaold
consumption expenditure will increase from US$1,234 billion
in 2016 to U551,580 billion by 2020 and will surpass the
household consumption expenditure of other comparable
newly industrialised economies such as Brazil (Source:
Technopak Research Report).

INDIAN ECONOMY

OVERVIEW Shift In Household Consumption Expenditure

As one of the fastest growing economies v Food, beverages &

in the warld, India has experienced a tobacco

7.6% real GDP growth rate in FY2016, :: :DDBTEI Ul

and a World Bank real GDP growth = H:::::jld Pr:;:m

forecast of 7.2% for FY2017. B Peisonal Products &
Services

Several factors paint a favourable picture Trans poration

for India’s GDP growth. These include
positive macroeconomic indicators; the
Indian government adoption of reforms
on foreign direct investment in various -
sectors; the passage of the Goods and 1995 | 2005 | 2015 | 2025
Services Tax Bill; the proliferation of

public sector investments coupled with

a low fiscal deficit; low crude prices

Communication
Education

Healthcare

with a reduced import bill; declining India’s increasing GDP growth has aided the rise in income
inflationary pressures; and the gradual levels and spending power. As India's per capita GDP levels
improvement in business confidence. and spending levels have increased, the share of spend in
It is estimated that the Indiar economy discretionary items has alsoincreased from 53% in 2005
will become the world’s 3rd largest ta 59.4% in 2016, Discretionary items include non-basic
economy by the next decade. (Source: goods and services, including education, communication,
Nielsen Research Report) transportation and medical care.

India offers significant market potential The education sector has been a key beneficiary of India's
due 1o its sizeable population, a economic growth and favourable demographic profile,
burgeoning middle class and its young illustrated by the fast growth of education amongst other
population, the [argest in the world, discretionary expenditure items. As shown by the table below,
with a median age of 27.6 years {Source: the share of spend on education has increased from, 4%+

CIA Fact Book), The long-term growth 2005 to 5% in 2015, and is expected to reach 5.59
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS fcontd.)

india - Expenditure as a % of GDP (Source Technopak Research Report)

Particulars (% of GDP) 2005 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2020(P)
Mon-Discretionary

Food, Beverages and Tobacco 41% 34.2% 354% 349% 35% 33.7% 32.3%

a d Footwear 6% 4.9% 5.1% 4.9% 5% 4.8% 4.6%

Discretionary
Housing and Utilities 12% 11.2% 11.8% 11.5% 12% 11.7% 12%,
Household Products B 3%, 28% 5.9% 25% 3% 9% o
Personal Products & Services 8% 8.1% 8.6% 8.5% 9% 89%  95%
Medical Care and Health Services ' 7% 7.8% 8.4% 8.4% 3% % o
Transport - ] 7%  17.1%  182% 18% 19%  188%  20.1%
Communication 2% 2.5% 2.7% 28% 3% 31% 3.7%
3.4%  47%  47% 5% 5%

Education 4%

Private Final Expenditu 100%

o
100%

100% 100% 100

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Education Sector in India

The education sector in India can be broadly classified into 3 categories; the formal
and informal segments, hoth of which are supported by the ancillary segment.

Segmentation and Market Sizing of Indian Education Sector
{Source: Technopak Research Report)
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The Formal Education Segment
comprises of K-12 schools (including
secondary and senior secondary
schools) and higher education
institutions (colleges, higher education
institutes}.

The informal Segment comprises test
preparation, tutoring, early education
and vocational/skill-based training
services,

The Ancillary Segment consists
ofindustries that are related and
supplementary to the formal and
informal education segments. The
ancillary segment includes content/
publishing, digital content and services
such as curriculum management,
facilities management ameng others. [t
is believed that ancillary or peripheral
services are taking on an increasingly
‘central’role in education. The ancillary
segment is expecte; increase the
overal| quatity
in India and
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large-scale growth in the formal and
informal education segments.

The formal, informal and ancillary
segments are collectively estimated to
reach US$188 billion by 2020. India has
a large population in the education age
bracket, consisting of students aged
5.24, which stood at approximately 520
million as of 2016. This is expected to
grow to approximately 534 million in
2020, (Source: Technopack Research
Report}

An increase in household expenditure
on education, the growth of the Indian
population, and a decrease in drop-out-
rates are all factors that will contribute
to the market size, particularly favouring
the formal education segment. As a
result, the ancillary segment catering to
the formal education sectar is expected
10 see a surge in growth, especially in
the content creation and digital sub-
segments.

Formal Education Segment
K-12

The Formal Education segment can

be classified into the K-12 and Higher
Education sub-segments. The K-12
education system in India is one of the
largest in the world, with a market size
of US448.5 billion, comprising 1.1 million
government schools and 0.4 million
private schools.

Most K-12 schools in India are affiliated
to one of three main governing bodies:
the state level hoard of secondary/senior
secondary education; the Central Board
of Secondary Education (“CBSE"); and
the Councif of Indian School Certificate
Examination (“CISCE” or “ICSE").

Canversion Aate = 15=65 [NR
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Market Size (Source: Technopak Research Report)
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Market Opportunity

Regulations

K-12 Market: Fee-wise Distribution of
Schools and Students in India (Source: Technopak Research Report)
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Due to superior quality of curriculum and pedagogy, CBSE and ICSE schools are
increasing in popularity and presence, with a respective 9.4% and 7.2% CAGR growth
from 2010-11 to 2016-17.

Growth in CBSE and ICSE Schools
{Saurce: www.chse.nic.in, www.cisce.org, Nielsen Research Report)
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The main advantages of attending a central curriculum (CBSE/ICSE) school is

the standardised syllabus set by a central board, as opposed to individual state
governments, This sense of uniformity helps students matntain a level, transferable
piaying field throughout K-12. Apart from content, a schooling system using

English as its medium of instruction is Detter suited to the needs of modern-day
India. Additionally. with better teacher to student ratios, comparatively cleaner

and hygienic facilities, and a focus on personal development and extra curricular
activities, the infrastructure of CBSE/ICSE schools are better than state board affiliated
schools.

The K-12 segment is expected to grow due to rising disposable incomes, changing
consumer preferences that favour private schools, and more and more government
initiatives promoting primary education.

Highar Education

The higher education sub-segment includes undergraduate, graduate and post-
graduate studies conducted at degree and diploma institutions in India. Contributing
to approximately 33% of India’s GOP in 20186, the service sector in India has become
more and more attractive to work in, resulting in the setting up of several new higher
education facilities. In addition, rising disposable income of average Indian families
and the incumkbent urbanisation of Indian society has helped expand the size of the
Higher Education segment.

India has one of the largest higher education systemns in the world, with 34,2 million
students enrolled across 777 universities, 38,498 colleges and 12,276 stand-alone
institutions. India‘s higher education segment is currently estimated at around
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US515 billion (notincluding the private
spend of Indian students studying
abroad). This USS15 billion estimate is
indicative of the robust status of the
higher education market both in terms
of the number of students and in terms
of private spend.

The higher education segment in India
is projected to see a buoyant growth
trajectory in coming years. Enrolments,
which grew at a CAGR of 5.6% between
2010 and 2014, is expected to increase
by a CAGR of more than 6% from

2015 to 2020. [n addition, higher
education segment should benefit from
the increased enrolments in senior
secondary which grew at a CAGR of
4.8% between 2010 and 2015 {Source:
Technopak Research Report)

Informal Education Segment
Test Preparation

As India transitions into a knowledge-
based economy, an increasing number
of students are engaging in technical/
professional course entry exams, as well
as employment related exams. Currently,
it is estimated that over 26 million
students take these exams in order 1o
gain admission into professional and
post graduate courses for engineering,
management, medicine, law and/or
accounting, in addition to applying for
public sector jobs.

21,741

NUMBER OF ICSE AND
CBSE SCHOOLS IN INDIA
2016-17

FLUING]
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Over the past few years, a host of
rencwned chains of coaching classes
and digital learning solutions have
transformed this sector. While print
continues to be the main means of
instruction, modern technology has
positively infiltrated the segment.
Students are no longer restricted to
study notes, but can access course
material digitally, through a host

of onfine partals or smartphone
applications. Furthermore, tests
themselves are undergoing a transition,
moving away from the written format to
computer based exams, highlighting the
digital transition of this sector.

With an estimated CAGR of 30% over
2016-2020, growth in the test prep
market is expected to be driven by a
rising share of enrolmentsin private
institutions, as well as an increase in the
number of exams going online. The shift
to online testing has ted students to opt
for digital test preparation and anline
coaching, along with physical books, to
familiarise themselves with the digital
format of the examinations. (Source:
Technopak Research Repart)

Early Learning

The Early Learning sub-segment caters
to the the 5-year-old and under age
group. As literacy is being recognised
asa vital part of a child's future success,
the number of pre-schools and child
care facilities are increasing in India.
With an increase in private investments,
and a rising working parent population,
the revenue from this segment in India
is currently estimated at US$2 billion,
growing at a CAGR of 15%. (Source:
Technopak Research Report)
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Content and technology are key growth
drivers in the Indian education sector.
Content providers with sound digital
offerings are likely to sustain their position
in the marketplace.

Voceational / Skill Based Learning

As the Indian economy changes, the need for skilled and highly trained workers
is increasing, Currently, nearly 26% of the employment eligible population is
unemployed, and 90% of those employed need vocational training to harness the
necessary skills. The employability of India’s population indicates a huge growth
potential for India’s vocationat education and skill development segment. With

a growing working age population, increased job creation by governmental
institutions, and high growth in key econemic sectors, this sub-segment is slated
to grow at an annual CAGR of 1B% from 2015-2020. (Source: Technopak Research
Report)

Ancillary Segment
Content

The content providers'role is central to the education industry, As a part of the
Ancillary Segment, the role of the content provider Is to aid both, the formal and
informal segments of the education industry 10 meet their content requirements.
Content providers often operate with in-house editorial teams working alongside
authors, leveraging their distribution strength to reach out to consumers, including
students, educators and educational institutions. Additionally, the content provider
acts on consumer feedback, allowing the authored content to reach its

maximum value.

%
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The importance of cantent providers is growing due ta a number of factors, including
a growing literacy rate, growth in the number of schools, and improving Grass
Enrolment Ratios (GER). Additionally, a decline in drop-out-ratios is expected to boost
the education industry in general, proving beneficial to content providers. These
factors, along with an increase in spending on education and growing urbanization
has positively contributed to the need for content providers to equip the Indian
education industry with knowledge resources,

Digital

With the increasing use of device based learning; mobile learning applications;
online test platforms; and online marketplaces connecting students with teachers;
the importance of digital education offerings as supplemental learning toals is
irrefutable. As access to technology is on the rise in the Indian economy, this segment
is expected to witness consistent growth in size and importance.

Currently, most content providers are digitising content through hybrid solutions that
include both print content along with content on a CD or through a digital platform.
Content providers are [ooking to leverage their brand and pasition themselves
strongly in the digital education space to capitalise on the rapid growth of these
supplementary innovative digital offerings. Given that cantent and technalogy are
key growth drivers in the Indian education sector, content praviders with sound
digital offerings are likely to sustain their position in the marketplace.

India’s Internet Penetration
(Source: Technopak Research Report}

Other Services

Others services include offerings such
as curriculum management, sports
management, and certain non-core
services including school transpart
and facility management. The core
service offerings are seeing an increased
adoption by schoals, becoming
essential to private sector schoals.

By offering these services, content
providers deepen their relationship with
educators and educational institutes,
thereby increasing their presence and
penetration acrass content, digital and
ather service offerings. Growth in this
segment is supported by the increase
in the number of private institutions,
the rising expenditure by parents on
education, the competitive intensity
between private schools and students,
and the lack of quality teachers

and tutors.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

S Chand And Company Limited is a
leading education content company
within India. The Company focuses
on the fully integrated creation and
dissemination of educational content
and solutions, to all parties involved
in the education industry. [t produces
products suitable for all ages, ranging
from early learning and K-12, to
content for various graduate and
post graduate courses including test
preparation content, thereby covering
the entire education life cycle . As
teadersin the K-12 sub-segment of
the education industry, its content is
used predominantly within CBSE/ICSE
affiliated schools, while becoming
increasingly popular in state board
affiliated schools across India. The
Company's wide range of products
cater to students throughout their
educational lifecycle resulting in

enhanced brand recall and long student

lifetime value.

Today. S Chand represents 59 consumer
brands providing knowledge products
and services, some of which include
Vikas, Madhubun, Saraswati, Chhaya,
Destination Success and Ignitor. All

of these brands benefit from the
Company's management philosophy,
ensuring regular checks on the quality
and relevance of their content. As

the incorporation of technology
becomes synonymous with remaining
relevant, 5 Chand is pioneering the
transformation from print to hybrid and
digital solutions.

The Company’s products are sold pan-
India, with the help of a network of
sales offices, distributors and dealers. In

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FY2017 the Company sold 48.3 miilion
gross copies of 13,033 titles. S Chand
had several top best-selling titles, and
15 of the authors sold over one million
copes of their titles during the last five
fiscal years,

Understanding the importance of
quality of educational content, S Chand
has established strong relationships with
2,434 authors (including co-authors).
Acknowledging the mutual benefit

of high quality content, the Company
encourages advancing the careers of

all the authors, providing them with
hands-on editorial support, helping
them create new productsand solutions
while refreshing existing products.

AN

g8

546.7

croras

K-12 REVENUE FY2017

Furthermore, authors gain access to

5 Chand’s established distribution
platform, accessing aiarger number of
students and schools with the credibility
of the Company's brand. This attracts
and helps 5 Chand retain the best talent
in their respective fields, increasing the
Company’s credibility.

S ¢ 92
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (contd,)

manufacturing, and logistics of
disseminating its content. In fiscal 2017,
over 70% of the Company’s printing
requirements were met by S Chand's
own facilities located in Shahibabad
and Rudrapur. Its print facilitates and
distrihution networks are supported

by its logistics network, comprising

of 42 warehouses located in 19 states,
allowing for pan India coverage.

The Company's paper purchases are
integrated as well, helping it to achieve
economies of scale, improving its
bargaining power with raw

material suppliers.

As of March 31, 2017, S Chand’s
distribution network consisted of 6,557
distributors and dealers, including an
in-house sales team of 905 professionals,

44 | Annual Report 2016 - 17

In order to reach a larger number of schools and
students, S Chand plans to increase its presence
in the state board K-12 market.

marketing from 52 offices across India. During the year, S Chand acquired Chhaya
therehy expanding its presence in Eastern India to cover an additional over 8,000
schools in the West Bengal market. With teachers and students as the Company's
"touch points its sales team is responsible for forging relationships in the K~12,
higher education, and early learning segments of the education industry, keeping
S Chand relevant throughout the education lifecycle of a student.

K-12

5 Chand is the leading education content company in the ¥-12 segment, contributing
to BO% of S Chand'’s consolidated operating revenue, amounting to T 546.7 ¢rares.
From fiscal 2012 t0 2017, the Company’s K-12 revenue grew at a CAGR of 45.5%. The
Company conducts business predominantly with CBSE/ICSE affiliated schools, it is
also working towards building its position with unaffiliated and state board schools.
The recent acquisition of Chhaya Prakashani helped the Company foray into state

7/
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board schools in the Fastern region and
expand its distribution reach.

The Company's K-12 content portfolio
includes titles developed by authors
and by its in-house content team.

S Chand offers core textbooks, reference
materfals, hybrid and digital content
products to schools and students,

Qur Strategy. To complement and
diversify its home-grown product
portfolio and the S Chand brand,

the Company acquired well known
brands Madhubkun and Vikas in Fiscal
2013, pursuant to the acquisition of
Vikas Publishing House, bolstering

its Hindi language titles. In Fiscal

2015, the Company acquired New
Saraswati House for their strength in the
languages and arts & crafts titles. These
acquisitions are a partof the Company's
strategy to increase its share of content
used by CBSE/ICSE schools. Through

the recent acquisition of Chayya, the
Company diversified into the state
board content market and increased its
presence in Eastern India. With the aim
of filling portfolic gaps with respect to
individual subject strengths in mind,

S Chand now has an expansive product
range and strong brands across multiple
subject offerings, allowing the company
to cross-sell their content to schools,
throughout the education lifecycle.

In order to reach alarger number of
schools and students, § Chand also
plans to increase its presence in the
state board K-12 market. By acquiring
leading regional content housesin
attractive markets, S Chand wilf be
able to increase their market share and
acquire distribution networks catering
to state board affillated schools, while

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

simultaneously leveraging its content
capability to enhance the
product offerings.

S Chand’s business strategy in this sector
has compelled the Company to be

more attuned to the needs of the K-12
segment, helping it focus on graduating
from only-print, 1o producing “hybrid
content’, which includes digitally
enabled content alongside print,
increasing its supplemental services in
digitat education domains.

Higher Education

The market for higher education, uniike
K-12, has alarger scope for the range

of content demanded. 5 Chand offers
products to help students with test
preparation as well as their university,
technical & professional coursework,
contributing to 17.8% of its consolidated
operating revenue, amounting to

¥ 122 crores, From Fiscal Years 2012to
2017 this segment registered a revenue
CAGR of 7.9%.

Experiencing lower seasonality in the
higher education segment than in the
K-12 segment, the Company sells its
content directly to the end consumer
through a combination of distributors,
retailers and online sales platforms.

Qur Strategy. With one of the largest
higher education systems in the world
S Chand plans to further its presence
in the higher education business,
particularly the test preparation market.
Although the Company already has a
strong offering of subject based test
preparation content, S Chand plans

to now create content for specific
examinations for civil service and
public sector jobs. Additionally, as

1K
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PUBLISHING

29.3.

DIGITAL & HYBRID CONTENT
CONTRIBUTION TO
CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
(FISCAL 2017).

job applicants and students show an
increasing preference for taking online
tests as a form of test preparation,

S Chand hopes to capture this market
by offering online content and ontine
assessment options. By investing in
education technology companies, and
pairing their innovative technology with
the Company's content and industry
expertence, 5 Chand hopes ta gain an
edge in this sector,

Focusing on Digital

With advances in technology, the use
of digital [earning tools is becoming
increasingly popular in classrooms. This
is true especially in the K-12 segment
and the test preparation sub-segment
for higher education. Digital education
offerings are increasingly seen as an
important supplement to educatian
content in the formal and informal
education segments. Induding device
based learning, learning management
systems, online test platforms, and
online marketplaces connecting
students with tutors, digital education
inIndia is still at a nascent stage when
compared to global markets,

[n Fiscal 2017, S Chand’s hybrid offering
contributed 27.6% of its consolidated
operating revenue from the K-12
segment, and purely digital offerings
contributed 4.6% of our consolidated
operating revenyg:

——
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Destination Success

is a digital iearning
solution with over
8,000 hours of content,
focusing on the K-12
segment. This learning
solution is currently
deployed in more than
650 schools in India
and the Middle East.

Our Strategy. Overjche lafst three years, e e W
S Chand has coupled its print content bt

with digital and interactive methods of
learning, increasing the flexibility with

which students are able to access and DS QIGITAL
use its products. The Company's aim is R Yo
to deliver end-to-end content solutions signin

through existing and innovative digital
technology, allowing their customers to
consider 5 Chand as the single source for
education content.

To achieve this strategy, the Company
provides its customers with the
necessary training tools to effectively
utilise the developed content solutions.
Through digital and interactive learning
in the classroom and portable devices,
the Company engages directly with the

end-user throughout the year. This helps To grow this sector of the business, hopes to leverage thair strong content
5 Chand to strengthen thair relationship apart from focusing on organic growth, offering, as well as their sales and

with schools for the complete 5 Chand has focused on investing in distribution network, as these new
academic year. early stage education companies and technology driven offerings capture

education related technology with

market shafe
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S CHAND'S GROWTH STRATEGY

Consolidate leadership position
in Central Board schoolsasa
preferred content partner.

Introduce new titles, wider range
of subjects, hybrid offerings
and services.

Institutional partnerships.

Increase presente in

large regional markets. Customized content/

hybrid solutions.

Establish touch points
in state board affiliated
schoals. Partner with
regional leaders in
educational content.

Focus on digital to Exam Oriented Content
expand reach and For Test Preparation.
product offering.

I Cater to exam specific
Leverage content to ' content. capture [arger
expand into digital share of the job vacancy
offerings e Inarket.
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

The following table sets forth the principal brands that S Chand represents, and the business segments in which they are present;

ngherEducatton

: Ea‘i:'ly_:l.ea_'fn'ihg.:'

S Chand

Vikas \/

Madhubun

Saraswati

Blackie

Chhaya

\l\\x\

IPP

Brands specializing in e-content and services

Destination Success

Mylestone

mystudygear

NANENEN

Ignitor®

Testbook*

NENEN

Online Tyari®

BPI*

Smartivity®

SIS S

Risekids

Flipclass* \/

* Investee Company

While each sub segment of the Company's business in the formal education sector of the industry includes products to meet
their unique requirements, each of the above brands play a specialised role in providing either print, new media, hybrid or digital
content to their respective sub-markets. This strategy targets the whole spectrum of educational servicesthrat-ean be provided to
the entire formal education sector. ’ Dmﬁ
A
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K12

S Chand’s K-12 content portfolio is
offered to students from ages four
through eighteen years, including
numerous instructional resources across
hundreds of programs, covering nearly
all subjects offered in the K-12 segment,
Through the S Chand’s pan-india sales
teams, the Company markets its brands
and content to scheools, educators and
students, acquiring places on prescribed
and recommended reading lists. It

sells the requested K-12 content to the
Company’s distributors for re-sale to
K-12 institutions and students. S Chand’s
relationships with schools allows it to
work closely with schools and teachers
to customise the content to their
curriculum, and provide these schools
with engaging learning metheds and
teacher support material.

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS ; FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In fiscal 2017, over 70% of the Company’s
printing requirements were met by S Chand’s
own facilities located in Shahibabad and
Rudrapur. Its print facilitates and distribution
networks are supported by its logistics network,
comprising of 42 warehouses located in 19
states, allowing for pan India coverage.

of its consolidated operating revenue
from the K ~12 segment.

Print Content

Print content represents the largest
portion of S Chand’s consolidated
operating revenue in the K-12 segment.
In Fiscal 2017, operating revenue from
print content contributed to 66.7%

of consolidated operation revenues
from the K-12 segment. In Fiscal 2017,
consolidated operating revenue from
the hybrid offerings contributed 27.6%

VAN

S Chand'’s print content portfolio
includes a library of titles that covers
the full spectrum of subjects, written by
some of the top authors and experts in
their respective fieids. The Company's
pre; '|g}'ub angds include some of the
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21,000

students

NOW USING MYLESTONE
THROUGH €8 SCHOOLS.

best-selling and popular print content
in the ¥-12 market, such as S Chand,
Madhubun, Saraswati and Chhaya.

New Media Learning Solutions

The digital platforms and services

that S Chand has developed in-house
include Destination Success, Mylestone,
Intellilab and Mystudygear. They provide
students with rich multimedia content
and assessment solutions, practice
material and tests, and interactive videos
for a variety of subjects,

To expand its digital offerings, the
Company has invested in early

stage education companies. These
investments seek to pair the Company’s
experience, content, distribution reach
and brand equity with innovative
technology driven solutions. For the
K-12 market, 5 Chand has invested in
Ignitor {a mobile learning platform}
and Flipclass (a technology platform
connecting students to tutors),

Hybrid Materials

Hybrid print and digital products
complement the Company’s existing
print content with online applications
and interactive learning. Print content
is being modified and enriched with
digital videos and online applications
to enable interactive learning through
digitally enabled books. Qver 20%

of the K-12 product portfolio today
compnises of hybrid print products,
which contributed to over T 150 crores
in operating revenues for the last
fiscal year.

Educational Services

In addition to the numerous print and
digital products S Chand offers, itis
looking to develop educational services
programmes, such as curriculum
management, to deepen the Company’s
engagement with students, educators
and institutions. Currently, it has
developed a comprehensive curriculum
solution, Mylestone that includes books,
e-content, teacher training content

and assessment tools for the K-8
classes. Having [aunched successfully,

S Chand has implemented Mylestone
in 6B schools {covering around 21,000
students) in the first year of commercial
launch. These additional services help
the Company cement its positioning as
a knowledge partner for the education
industry and focus on improving the
education outcome for students

and schools.

Higher Education Business

S Chand’s higher education segment

is the second largest segment by
consolidated revenue, and comprises
twO components: (1} test preparation
and (2) college and university/technical
and professional.

Test Preparation

The Company is a provider of print
content and digital products required by
students, instructors and institutions for

test preparation in competitive exams,
including entrance examinations

and examinations required for
government positions.

The Company publishes niche test
preparation titles in print for popular
professional and entrance examinations
inIndia, including competitive and
reference books for government and
public sector entrance examinations.

S Chand’s products cover reference
books for several entrance examinations,
including Graduate Aptitude Test In
Engineering, Management Aptitude Test
{for entrance in management colleges),
AIEEE, AMU, Union Public Service
Commission, Bachelors of Business
Administration, Masters of Business
Administration, and Bank Probationary
Officer Exams. The key brand for test
preparation titles in print content is

S Chand. Popular test preparation
subjects catered to by 5 Chand include
Quantitative aptitude, modern approach
of verbal and non-verbal reasoning

and mathematics.

As an increasing number of exams are
moving online, the test preparation
market has an enhanced demand

for online content and assessment
solutions. S Chand has started offering
both online test preparation and
assessment through its investee
platforms — Testbook, a web and

To expand its digital offerings, the Company has
invested in early stage education companies.
These investments seek to pair the Company’s
experience, content, distribution reach and brand

equity with innovative technology .

driven solutions.
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mobile platform that provides online
preparation for competitive exams
and Online Tyari, a mobile based test
preparation platform for compatitive
axams, available in a variety of
languages.

College And University/ Technical
And Professional

The Company provides students,
instructors and institutions with
customised content for their
coursework, as well as books that can ke
used for distance learning. It also offers
technical and engineering content for
professional courses.

S Chand offers content from graduation
level to post graduation in various
subjects such as accounting, business
studies, economics, physics, chemistry,
mathematics, botany. zoology and
medicine. It also offers medical,
technical and engineering content for
students enrclled in these courses. The
Company’s sales teams works directly
with higher education institutions,

from which they receive content
development requests. They develop the
requested content and sell it directly to
the institutions with which the Company
is partnered.

For students enrolled in technical and
professional programs, 5 Chand provides
technical and professional books,
including those specific to Bachelors of
Engineering, Bachelors of Technology,
Bachelors of Architecture, and other
engineering courses such as applied
sciences and computer sciences. The
Company's print content is based on the
recent question Papers and examination
patterns and provide readers with
multiple choice questions to confirm

CVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

their knowledge and understanding of
the provided content.

While the S Chand brand has a strong
presence in biology, chemistry,
commerce, management, physics

and engineering, the Vikas brand has

as strong presence in academic and
refarence books that cover engineering,
management, computer science,
sociology education and humanities,
with an emphasis on content specific to
management and commerce.The Vikas
brand also provides customised print
content for students enrolled in distance
learning {higher education) courses.

Our Early Learning Business

The early learning business caters to
S Chand’s youngest customer market
(0-4 years of age) and exposes them

to the Company’s brands, products
and services at the beginning of their
student career. S Chand has early
learning brands targeted to specific
product and service categories.

The Company’s early learning business
brands are set forth below.

BPT: 8Pl sells children’s books,
educative board games, activity
packs and puzzles.

*  Smartivity: Smartivity offers activity
based ‘experimental’learning,
including ‘do -it-yourself’ kits
and augmented reality enabled
products.

e RiseKids: RiseKids operates seven
pre-school centres in the National
Capital Region,

Smartivity

Achyvities for Srarter Laanting

1§09
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FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

For the year under review, 5 Chand
reported consolidated revenues of

¥ 685 Crores as against T 541 crores in
the comparable period of the previous
year, registering a growth of 26.8%.

¢ Revenue from K-12 segment
increased from ¥ 389 crores in
Fy 2015-16to T 547 crores in
FY 2016-17, a year on year growth
of 40.6%. The K-12 segment is the
largest revenue contributor - over
80% of consolidated revenues.

» Revenues from K-12 include
first time consolidation of
revenues of Chhaya Prakashani
Private Limited from the date
of acquisition (6 December
2016), adding ¥ 75 crores to the
consolidatd revenues of
Fy 2016-17.

»  Qrganically, the K-12 segment
reported a year on year
revenue growth of 21.3%.

N Revenue from digitaf content
and services {K-12) increased
35% year on year to T 31 crores
inFY 2016-17.

@ Hevenue from the Higher Education
segment decreased 5% year on
year to T 122 crores in FY 2016417,
impacted by a challenging industry
environment.

Consolidated EBIDTA for FY 2016-17
stood at ¥ 172 crores as compared to

€ 12B crores in the comparable pericd
of previous year. The Company reported
a consolidated post tax profit {net of
minority interest and share of loss in
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associate companies) of T 58 crores
compared to an amount of ¥ 47 croresin
the comparable period of

previous year.

This growth can be attributed to the
increase in the number of students
attending central curriculum (CBSE/
ICSE) schools, as well as strategic
expansion of the group into new
geographies and markets.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

India's economy is expected to grow
considerably over the next decade.

A young population with rising
disposable income levels, a healthy
savings rate, and an increase in GDP per
capita indicate favourable long-term
economic growth prospects for the
Indian economy. The formal, informal
and ancillary segments of the education
sector are collectively estimated to
reach U5$788 billion by 2020 (Source:
Technopak Research Report). With a rise
in the number of private schools, an
increase in household expenditure on
education, a decrease in drop-out-rates,
the increasing use of technology, and a
new wave of policy reform, the Indian
education sector is expected to undergo
a transformative phase, helping India
position itself for the future, S Chand,

as an established and |leading content
creator and publisher, recognises

that the Indian education segment is
dynamic and evolving, and plans to
leverage its expertise to adapt to the
new-age students’ and teachers’ needs.

Over the past eight decades, the
Company has established a strong brand
in the indian education market, known
for preducing quatity authored content

(&1

with the help of a professional editorial
team, Having built an extensive content
library, sales distribution network,
brand equity and strong relationships
with schools, S Chand has strategised

to expand its leadership position in the
K-12 and Test Preparation markets, while
focusing on being a comprehensive
education content provider through all
media channels, including digital,

As content consumption trends change,
a large part of 5 Chand'’s digital strategy
is 1o take care of its future. By using
technology to innovate methods

of learning and content delivery, it

ende avours to build and deepen the
Company’s relationships with students
and schools across the education
lifecycle. Qver the last three years, the
Company has accentuated its print
content with digital and interactive
methods of learning, increasing the
flexibility with which it delivers content
to students. Hybrid print and digital
products complement existing print
content with online applications and
interactive learning, as well as support
for teachers through training programs
and enline seminars. While the pace and
extent of this transition is uncertain,

S Chand endeavours to position itself to
be prepared for technological change,
giving the Company the chance to
maintain its leadership position, The
Company has also made certain organic

26.8.

GROWTH (YOY) IN CONSOLIDATED
REVENUES FOR FY 2017




and inorganic investments ta fill any
gaps in its product portfolio, helping

it to diversify in terms of subjects
offerings, market segments, geographies
and market share.

S Chand’s philosophy is tightly wound
around giving customers the complete
knowledge platform reguired to develop
and educate themselves, establishing a
sense of trust between 5 Chand and its
customer stakeholders. The Company
aims to remain imaginative, nimble and
adaptive towards new market trends,
continuing to produce and deliver high
quality content. 5 Chand has grown

its consolidated revenues at a CAGR of
31% over the past five years, and has
positioned itself well to tackle the wave
of demand that the Indian education
market is expected to witness in the
near future.

HUMAN RESOURCES

S Chand prides itself on its strong and
motivated workforce, and its ability

to attract and train new tafent with
maximum retention. To facilitate
growth, the company has hired
experienced employees across all
sectors of its business, As of March 2017,
the Company has 2,389 employees,
including a sales and marketing team of
905 employees, and an editorial team of
305 employeas.

ArS Chand, significant resources are
devoted to training employees. A
continuous Jearning program help

the Company's employees to meet

the ever-growing demands of the
education industry. It believes that the
human resources and compensation
practices proactively address the factors

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S Chand's philosophy is based on giving
customers the complete knowledge platform
required to develop and educate themselves,
establishing a sense of trust between S Chand
and its customer stakeholders.

thatimpact retention, A rewards,
recognition program and adequate
growth opportunities help to ensure
that the employees are motivated and
performance oriented. For example,
pursuant to the Employee Stock Option
Scheme, certain of the employees are
eligible for options convertible into
eguity shares of the Company, which
vest based on continued employment

and/or the individual’s job performance.

Additionally, the Company also offer
an incentive program to its sales
employees, pursuant to which sales

LI

executives and managers recelve
additional financial remuneration if they
achieve a defined percentage of their
annual sales targets and budget.

5 Chand has established extensive
requirements relating to workplace
safety. To ensure that the Company
adheres to all statutory laws and
regulations on environment, health
and safety, its has implemented an
environmental, health and safaty
program, Under this program, it has
created a health and safety committee,
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which comprises of both management
and non-management employees, who
meet quarterly to discuss problems
related to these aspects. The Company
has also implemented a system to
conduct paid medical examinations

of all employees, including contract
employees. In addition, 5 Chand has
implemented additional pregrams
including those related to electrical
safety, the handling of equipment and
materials, the handling of hazardous
chemicals, fire safety, monitoring of
the work environment {including air
quality, ambient noise and the guality
of drinking water), first aid, hazardous
waste disposal and housekeeping.

The Company has also implemented

a system of accident reporting and
investigation, pursuant to which all
accidents, both fatal and non fatal

are reportable to health and safety
authorities. Employees are also
encouraged to report on "near miss”
accidents.

To ensure the reduction of energy
consumption, the Company has
implemented an energy efficiency
program. Under this program, the
lighting systems, electrical systems,
power guality and consistency, HVAC,
and water consumption are all kept

in check. Training programs for all
employees encourage greater awareness
of the energy efficiency pregram and
the importance of pericdical menitering
of the Company’s energy consumption
habits.

RISKS & CONCERNS

S Chand is closely linked to the central
curriculum academic cycle, which is
seasonal in nature.The seascnality in
the K-12 market has a direct impact

on the Company’s operating revenue,
margins and cashflows on a quarterly
basis. There are several underlying
strategies undertaken to mitigate

this risk. The Company is focused on
growing its higher education business,
which experiences limited seascnality.
With the help of retailers and an online
sales platform, sales in this sector are
relatively more steady, with slightly
tower sales in the first and third quarters.
The Company has alsc introduced
certain products for schools and
students that make it more relevant
throughout the school year,

A significant portion of the Company's
revenues are de pendent on the titles
of a few top authors. To maintain
on-going harmonious relationships,
the Company ensures that its authors
are compensated well. it believes

in maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships, helping authors advance
their careers while remaining a part of
the strong S Chand brand. In parallel,
the Company continues to widen and
expand its content and author base
on a continuous basis. To protect its
content ownership and dissemination,
5 Chand has a dedicated legal team that
vehemently manages its Intellectual
Property Rights on an ocngoing basis.

The Company views the advent of
disruptive digital technologies and the
development of open-source content,
motre as a business opportunity,

rather than a threat. It has launched
an online content application called
“Mystudygear’, which is a strategic
assertion of S Chand's presence in the
cnline education content space. S Chand
maintains a sustainable and pro-active
strategy toward the digital distribution
and access of its content.

} 83
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INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

S Chand deploys its own servers for

SAP, ERP, and content {text, animation,
videos ect.), as well as other office
data.The e-mail and CRM servers are

on the Cloud, while regular back ups

are conducted on company servers, A
cloud based SAP disaster recovery Is also
in place with the help of a third party
company.

Some key investments that enhanced
S Chand's IT framework include:

* The enhancement of the Adobe
licenses to keep up with technical
enhancements In the field of digital
content creation,

s The enhancement of the Microsoft
Licenses on the Microsoft Exchange
Platform.

*  The company has invested in the
tPR module and GST Upgradation of
SAP and the other ERPs used.

®  An SAP disaster recovery on the
doud {third party).

®  ACRM system was deployed for DS
Digital { Microsoft.Net Application).

®  Ordering APP for customers that
SCOT created.

¢ Qutsourcing the payroll processing,
as well as using a third party human
resources application for employee
claims and reimbursements.

® A new group website was launched:

www.schandgroup.com

SAP ECC 6.0 is deployed across all major
group companies, while a couple of




(upgraded for G5T}. To protect the
servers and data from hacking or data
loss, 5 Chand has firewalls and SAP /

ERP access is largely through VPN for all
company locations. This is in accordance
with the IT Policy guidelines that are

in place.

INTERNAL RISK CONTROL

The following list highlights § Chand's
comprehensive Internal Control
Framework;

Policies are formulated, circulated,
approved and reviewed annually, in
addition to being published online.

The Authorization Matrix is clearly
defined.

internal Control Testing is
conducted by Internal Auditors,
DHC Baker Tilly, with low failures
under the Risk Control Matrix
process.

An Internal Audit Department
independently audits for NCR
Locations for processes, etc.

An Internal Audit is conducted by
DHC Baker Tilly for the material
substdiaries throughout the year,
with External Software from
Compliance Matra to track Statutory
Compliances.

A robust Corporate Governance
approach is followed, with
Independent Directors in Company
and all material subsidiaries.

Related Party Transactions are
approved by Audit Committee and
Board wherever required.

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company is focusing on growing the
higher-education business, which experiences
limited seasonality. It has also introduced
products for schools and students that are
relevant throughout the academic year.

s Anarms lengthapproach is
followed, even between subsidiaries
and the holding company.

CAUTIONARY
STATEMENT

This document contains statements
about expected future events, financial
and operating results of § Chand, which
are forward-looking. By their nature,
forward-looking statements require

the Company to make assumptions

and are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. There is significant risk
that the assumptions, predictions and
other forward-looking statements

will not prove to be accurate. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking staterments
as a number of factors could cause
assumptions, actual futute results and
events to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward-looking
statements. Accordingly, this document
is subject to the disclaimer and qualified
inits entirely by the assumptions,
qualifications and risk factors referred
to inthe management’s discussion and
analysis of 5 Chand’s Annual Report,
FY2017,

(84



empowering

YOUNG MINDS

BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present 46™ Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial

year ended March 31, 2017.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMARNCE

Abridged Profit And Loss Statement

Consolidated

Figures in ¥ Crores
Standalone
FY Ended 31

FY Ended 31

March 2016 March 2016
Revenue from operations B 684.15 537.60 ” 35 279.56
Gther income ) ) 133 306 50 277
Total Revenue 685.48 540.66 302.85 282.32
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 17221 128.09 57.64 ) 38.01
(EBIDTA)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 28.18 2591 7,2}_—; 7.40
Finance cost 3557 3058 4% 1393
tnterest income {0.63) {0.93) {7.95) o (8.38)
Profit before tax, minority interest and sh;re of associate 109.09 72.53 4342 25.66
company
Exceptional items - (0.51) - T
Tax expense 43 .60 o 23.74 16,32 7 8,39
Profit after tax and before minority interest and share of 6549 49.30 27.10 165
associate company
Share in loss of associate company {1.83) (272} - .
Profit for the year 6366 4658 " 27.10 16.27
" Profit for the year attributable to ) o
Owners of the parent 58.20 46,57 - -
Minaority interest . 5.46 0.07) ‘ - -
Balance of profit brought forward from previous years _ 170.08 123.51 55.04 - 4277
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss account ' 228.29 170.08 T 86.14 59.04
Appropriations: -'_ 7 B
Interim equity dividend o o (1.01) ] (1.01) -
Tax on interim equity dividend {0.20) - - (021 _
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 22708 170.08 84.92 55.04

2. OPERATIONS

Your Company delivered a profitable growth performance
during FY 2016-17 and further strengthened its position
in the educational content market. The Company, on a
consolidated basis, earned total revenues of ¥ 685,48 crores
during the year as compared to ¥ 540.66 crores in the
previous year, registering a year-on-year growth of 26.79%.

165

Revenue growth during the year was positively impacted
by the acquisition of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited,
which was consolidated with the group with effect from
06™ December 2016 with a total contribution of T 75 crores
to consolidated revenues of FY 2016-17 (previous year NIL).
Profit (after tax) for the year, on a consolidated basis, for FY
2016-17 was T 63.66 crores as compared to ¥46.58 crores in
the previous year.

7/
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Your Company is amongst the largest education content
company in the country, according to Nielsen, with a strong
presence in the CBSE/ ICSE affiliated schools. We continue to
focus on expanding our reach across schools, teachers and
students using our nation-wide distribution network and
by actively engaging with our customers, Your Company is
the preferred content partner for a large number of schools
and educators, with a comprehensive portfolio of print titles
{(including several subject best-sellers) and digital content.
During the year under review, your Company introduced
over 321 new titles as well as modified and enriched
several existing print titles with digital content and videos.
Currently, over 20% of our total print titles are digitally
enabled, which helps us to provide a more fulfilling learning
experience to students.

In the year under review, your Company successfully
launched its curriculum management business under
the brand "Mylestone’, catering to classes K to 5. During
the year we signed up with 68 schools for the Mylestone
product suite, covering over 21,000 students. For the digital
classroom product, “Destination Success’ your Company
was successful in signing up 1,700 new classrooms during
the year, taking our total coverage to 4,630 classrooms and
covering over 185,000 students.

Your Company has minority investments in five digital
companies, namely, $martivity Labs Private Limited,
Testhook Edusolutions Private Limited, Edutor Technologies
(Indla) Private Limited, Gyankosh Solutions Private Limited
and Next Door Learning Solutions Private Limited. These
companies continue to scale up their business and capture
a larger size of the market. During the year under review,
three of these investee companies raised further equity
capital from financial investors, while your Company
continues to he a minority shareholder in these platformsin
line with our strategy to support digital platforms that are
supplementary to our content offering.

Your Company was also conferred with the “Business
Superbrand” status by Superbrands India, which is valid till
the end of calendar year 2017. This is a recognition of the
strong brand equity and customer recall of the products of
the S Chand group.

DIVIDEND

During the year, your Board declared an interim dividend
of T 25 per share on 403,304 equity shares of face value of
T 5/- each for the financial year 2016-17. The said interim

I 707
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dividend was declared out of the accumulated profits of the
Company. The said interim dividend has been paid to the
members whose name were appearing in the Register of
Members as on April 2B, 2016.

Your Directors have recommended a final dividend of
¥ 1.25/- per share on 34,839,172 equity shares of face value
of T 5/- each (ranking pari-passu to all the members) for
the financial year 2016-17. Total outflow towards dividend
(both interim and final) on equity shares for the year, if
approved and declared by the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, would be ¥ 6.45 crores (including
dividend tax).

The dividend, if approved at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, will be paid to those members whose names
appear in the register of members of the Company as on
September 18, 2017.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH
THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF REPORT

Your Company completed its maiden initial public issue
(Public Offer) of its equity shares after completion of
financial year ending March 31, 2017. The Public Offer
comprised of 4,850,746 fresh equity shares and an offer
for saie of 6,023,236 equity shares by existing members of
the Company. The Public Offer opened for subscription on
26" April, 2017, tfor Anchor Investors, the Offer opened and
closed on 25™ April, 2017} and closed on 28* April, 2017
and was oversubscribed to the extent of 60.0646 times.
Pursuant to the Public Offer, equity shares of the Company
got listed for trading at the BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited on May 09, 2017. Qut of proceeds
of Public Offer your Company and its subsidiaries have
prepaid their term loans equivalent to T 255 crores which
will reduce finance cost of the Company at consolidated
level in coming years.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

Buring the year under review, there has been no change in
the nature of business.

T

/B
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/
COURTS/TRIBUNALS

There are no significant material orders passed by any
Regulator/Court/Tribunal against the Company which
would impact the golng concern status of the Company
and its future operations,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

TheCompany has adequate internal financial control system
and processes. Internal Control policies and procedures
have been adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information. The Internal
Auditorsof the Company M/s DHC Baker Tilly, Chartered
Accountants, audited and reviewed the internal controls,
operating systems and procedures of the Company . The
reports on findings of Internal Auditor have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee periodically.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND ASSQCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has 12 (twelve) subsidiaries as on March
31, 2017. During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed
the affairs of its subsidiaries. The Consolidated Financial
Statements of your Company for the financial year 2016-17
are prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, Accounts Standards and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 {*Listing Regulations”) which shall be
placed before the members in their ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Subsidiaries:

a) Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited
Blackie & Son ({Calcutta) Private Limited reported
total revenues of T 26.68 lakhs In the financial year
2016-17 as compared to the total revenues of ¥ 82,60
lakhs in the previous financial year. The company has
also reported a net profit (after tax) of T 11.54 lakhs
in 2016-17 as compared to a net profit (after tax} of
¥ 5.90 lakhs in the previous financial year.

b) B8Pl {India)} Private Limited
BPI (India) Private Limited reported total revenues of

(817

<)

d)

e}

f)

gl

T 1417 crores in the financial year 2016-17 as
compared to total revenues of T 1669 crores in
the previous financial year. The Company has also
reported a net profit {after tax) of ¥ 61.40 !akhs in
2016-17 as compared to 2 net loss {after tax) of T 0.91
lakhs in the previous financial year.

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited became a
subsidiary of the Company with effect from 05®
December 2016. Itreported total revenues of T 101,68
crores in the financial year 2016-17 as compared
to total revenues of T 127.01 crores in the previous
financial year. The company reported a net profit
(after tax) of T 21.54 crores in 2016-17 as compared to
a net profit (after tax) of T 30,68 crores in the previous
financial year.

DS Digital Private Limited

D5 Digital Private Limited reported total revenues of
T 2332 crores in the financial year 2016-17 as
compared to total revenues of T 23.43 crores in the
previous financial year. The company reported a net
loss (after tax) of ¥ 6.59 crores in 2016-17 as compared
to a net loss (after tax) of Rs 3.31 crores in the previous
finandal year,

Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited

Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited reported
total revenues of ¥ 2,12 crores in the financial year
2016-17 as compared to total revenues of T 2.22
crores in the previous financial year. The company
reported a netloss (after tax) of ¥ 94.33 lakhsin 2076-
17 as compared to a net profit (after tax) of T 13.48
lakhs in the previous financial year.

Publishing Services Private Limited

Publishing Services Private Limited reported total
revenues of T 2.06 crores in the financlal year 2016
17 as compared to total revenues of T 2.04 crores in
the previous financial year. The company reported
a net profit (after tax) of ¥ 15.53 lakhs in 2016-17 as
compared to a net profit (after tax} of T 7.41 lakhs in
the previous financial year.

Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited
Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Umited
reported total revenues of T 1.10 crores in the finandial
year 2016-17 as compared to total revenues of ¥ 2.65
: qancial year, The company

(S0
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reported a net foss (after tax) of ¥ 10.87 lakhs in 2016-
17 as compared to 2 net profit (after tax) of ¥ 34.77
lakhs in the previous financial year.

New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited

MNew Saraswati House ({India) Private Limited reported
total revenues of T 143.26 crores in the financial year
2016-17 as compared to total revenues of ¥ 129.45
crores in the previous financial year. The company
reported a net profit (after tax) of T 7.79 crores in 2016-
17 as compared to a net profit (after tax) of T 10.64
crores in the previous financial year.

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited reported
total revenues of T 25.45 crores in the financial year
2016-17 as compared to total revenues of T 48,79
crores in the previous financial year. The company
reported a net profit (after tax) of T 3.86 crores in
2016-17 as compared to a net profit {after tax} of ¥
12.59 crores in the previous financial year.

5§ Chand Edutech Private Limited

S Chand Edutech Private Limited reported total
revenues of ¥ 13.26 lakhs in the financial year 2016-17
as compared to total revenues of T 60,15 Jakhs in the
previous financial year. The company reported a net
loss (after tax) of T 3.00 lakhs in 2016-17 as compared
toa net profit (after tax) of T 73.49 lakhs in the previous
financial year.

safari Digital Education [nitiative Private Limited
Safari Digital Education Initiative Private Limited
reported total revenues of T 6.63 crores in the financial
year 2016-17 as compared to total revenues of T 3,22
crores in the previous financial year. The company
reported a net loss (after tax) of ¥ 3.24 crores in 2016~
17 as compared to a net loss (after tax) of T 1.99 crores
in the previous financial year.

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited reported total
revenues of T 250.62 crores in the financial year 2016~
17 as compared to total revenues of T 209.35 crores
in the previous financlal year. The company reported
a net profit (after tax} of T 17.96 crores in 2016-17 as
compared to a net profit (after tax) of T 19.86 croresin
the previous financial year.

10
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During the year consequent to acquisition of majority
stake in Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (Chhaya),
two of wholly owned subsidiaries of Chhaya viz.
Publishing Services Private Limited and Indian
Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited have
become subsidiaries of the Company. In accordance
with section 129 {3} a statement containing salient
features of financial statements of each of the
subsidiary in the prescribed Form AQC-1 is annexed
to this report as Annexure-A. In accordance with
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited
financial statements, including the consolidated
financial statements and related information of the
Company and audited financial statements of each
of the subsidiary will be available on the website
of the Company (www.schandgroup.com), These
documents will also be available for inspection
during business hours at the registered office of the
Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has nelther accepted nor renewed any
deposits during the year under review within the purview
of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditor
PursuanttoSection 1390ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the term of
M/s 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants
{Firm Reg. No. 101049W) as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company expires at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The Board of Directors of
the Company at their meeting held on August 09, 2017 on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have made
its recommendation for re-appointment of M/s 5.R. Batliboi
& Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No.
101049W), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the
members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company for another term of 5 (five) years.

The Company has received a written consent and a
certificate from auditors that they satisfy the criteria
provided under Section 141 of the Act and that their
re-appointment, if made by the members, shall be in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, pursuant to Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013, a resolution, proposing the
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appointment of M/s S.R, Batliboi & Associates LLF, Chartered
Accountants {Firm Reg. No. 101049W)] as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years
i.e. from the conclusion of the ensuing 46" Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 51 Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held in 2022 forms part of the Notlce
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The auditor’s report submitted by the Statutory Auditors on
the financial statemenits of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2017 forms part of the Annual Report. There has
been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer in their report. The auditors had not reported any
matter under Section 143 {12) of the Act, therefore no detail
is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3){ca) of the
Act and no comment of Board on audit report is required to
be given.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board had appointed Mr. RS. Bhatia, Company
Secretary in Practice (CP No. 2514} as Secretarial Auditor. The
secretarial audit report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor
for the financial year 2016-17 is annexed as Annexure-B and
forms an integral part of this report.

There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer in their report. During the year under
review, the Secretarial Auditor had not reported any matter
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is
required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the
Act.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review the authorised and paid up
equity share capital of the Company was restructured in
order to increase the capital base of the Company. The
Company, with approval of the members in the general
meeting, sub-divided share capital of the Company from
T 10/- per equity share to ¥ 5/- per equity share and also
increased its authorised share capital to ¥ 20,00,00,000
{Twenty Crores) divided into 4,00,00,000 (Four Crores)
equity shares of T §/- each. During the year, the Company
issued 2,94,41,192 bonus equity shares of ¥ 5/- each. Post
issue of bonus shares, the issued, subscribed and paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2017
was T 149,222,450 divided into 29,844,496 equity shares of
face value of ¥ 5/-each.
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EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extracts of Annual Return
in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration} Rules, 2014 s attached as Annexure- C
which forms part of this report.

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company does not carry any manufacturing activity,
thus, disclosure requirements under Section 134 (3) (m)
of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies Accounts Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
the Company. However, wherever possible and feasible,
continuous efforts have been made for conservation of
enargy and to minimize energy cost and to upgrade the
technology with a view to increase the efficiency and to
reduce cost of operations. The Company has not carried out
any R&D activity during the year.

During the year under review, the Foreign Exchange
earnings and outgo are as follows:

iy  Foreign Exchange earnings: ¥ 28,104,788/-
i)  Foreign Exchange outgo: ¥ 6,568,843/-

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONRNEL

The Company is managed and controlled by the Board
comprising an optimum blend of Executives and Non-
Executive Professional Directors. As on March 31, 2017, the
Board of Directors consists of 8 (eight) Directors consisting
of a Managing Director, Whole time Director and 6 (six} Non-
exacutive Directors, out of which 3 {three) are Independent
Directors (including one Woman Director), The composition
ofthe Board isin conformity with Requlation 17 ofthe Listing
Regulations and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. All the Directors possess requisite qualifications
and experience in general corporate management, finance,
banking and other allled fields which enable them to
contribute effectively to the Company In their capacity as
Directors of the Company.

Appointment

Pursuant to Section 2(47), 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, Mr. Desh Raj
Mr. Sanjay Vijay Bhandarkar and Ms. Archana Capoor
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have been appointed as the Independent Directars on the
Board of the Company with effect from November 10, 2816
for a term of five years.

Resignation

Due to pre-occupation and other commitments, Ms. Nirmala
Gupta, Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala and Ms. Ankita Gupta
resigned from the Board with effect from May 20, 2016 and
Mr. Vishal Sharma resigned with effect from November 23,
2016. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the
services rendered by them during their associatlon with the
Company.

Further, during the year Ms. Savita Gupta and Mr, Gaurav
Kumar Jhunjhnuwala resigned from the position of Whole-
time Directors but continued to act as Non-Executive
Directors.

Retirement by rotation

In terms of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Ms,
Savita Gupta will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") and is eligible for re-appointment.
The Board recommends her re-appointment and the same
is included in the notice of the ensuing AGM forming part of
the Annual Report.

Further, sub-section (13) of Section 149, provides that the
provisions of retirement by rotation as defined in sub-
sections (6) and (7) of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013 shall not apply to the Independent Directors. Hence,
none of the Independent Directors retire at the ensuing
AGM.

Independent Directors’ Declarations
The independent directors have given a declaration that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under
section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Evaluation

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Reguiation
17 (10} of the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out
an evaluation of its own performance, Committees and
performance of individual Directors for the year under
review. The aspects covered in the evaluation included the
contribution to and monitoring of corporate governance
practices, participatian in the long-term strategic planning
and the fulfilment of Directors' obligations and fduciary
responsibilities, including but not limited to, active

participation at the Board and Committee meetings. The- -

evaluation Involves self-evaluation by the 8oard Members
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and subseguent assessment by the Board of Directors, The
Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process,

Board Meetings

During the year under review the Board of Directors met
10 (ten) times, details of which are given in the Corparate
Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report.
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Listing Regulations.

DETAILS CF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under
the provisions of Section 1B6 of the Companies Act, 2013
are given in the Note No. 14, 33 and 12 respectively to the
standaione financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has formutated a policy on related party
transactions which is also avallable on Company's website
at www.schandgroup.com. This policy deals with the review
and approval of related party transactions.

During the year under review, ail related party transactions
entered by the Company were in ordinary course of the
business and on arm’ length basis. No matertal refated
party transactions were entered during the financial year
by the Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of related
party transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in Form ACC 2 is not applicable to
your Company.

INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES
AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The information required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Rermuneration of Managerial Personne!)
Aules, 2014 forms part of this Report and annexed as
Annexure-D.

During the year under review, there are employees drawing
remuneration aggregating to more than T 1,02,00,000
{Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs) per annum, employed for
whole of the financial year or T 8,50,000 {Rupees Fight
Lacs Fifty Thousand) per month, erployed for a part of the
year, The disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 (2} the Companies
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{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report and annexed as
Annexure-E.

Managerial Remuneration

During the year under review, the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on May 20, 2016 restructured
the remuneration of the Directors of the Company in
accordance with section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with applicable rules thereunder details of which are
given in the notes to financial statements of the Company
forming part of this report.

Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has a Policy on “Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women atWorkplace”and matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as
contained under the “The Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act,
2013* During the year under review, there was no sexual
harassment complaint reported to the Board.

Details of ESOPS

The underlying objectives of Employees Stock Option
Scheme 2012 (ESCP 2012} is to attract, motivate, retain and
reward employees for high levels of individual performance
and share the wealth that they have created for the
Company and its members. During the year under review,
the Company had granted 156,954 stock options to the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

However, none of the option holders have exercised the
vested options during the year under review and no shares
were allotted pursuant to the exercise of stock options.
Relevant disclosures pursuant to Rule 12(9) of Companies
{Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the
Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits), Regulation 2014 is given
as Annexure-F.

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, the Company has identified
and evaluated elements of risk. The business risks inter-alia
includes increase in raw material and printing cost, change
in curriculum, higher borrowing cost, competition from
other players and violation of intellectual property rights of
the Company. The risk management framework defines the
risk management approach of the Company which includes
periodic review of such risks, mitigation controls and
reporting mechanism of such risks. The Board of Directors,
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Audit Committee and the senior management evaluates
the operations to identify potential risks and take necessary
actions to mitigate the same. The Company also has in
place a Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee
to ensure implementation of appropriate risk management
framework for the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
("CSR Committee"), which comprises Mr. Desh Raj Dogra-
Chairman and independent Director, Mr. Himanshu Gupta,
Managing Director and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala,
Whola-time Director and Mr. Deep Mishra, Non-Executive
Director. The terms of references of the CSR Committee is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms
part of this report.

The Company has formulated a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which is available on the website of the
Company at www.schandgroup.com. The Annual Report on
the CSR activities is attached as Annexure-~G forming part of
this report.

During the year under review, the Company has
contributed an amount of ¥ 2,719,186/~ as compared to
the recommended amount of T 3,440,000/- by the CSR
Committee. The contributed amount is less than the
aggregate of 2% average net profits of the Company
in the preceding three years. The Company has made
CSR initiatives through registered trusts/societies in the
following programmes/projects:

i)  Promotingeducation, induding spedial education and
employment enhancing vocational skills especially
among children, women, elderly, and the differently
abled and livelihood enhancement projects; and

iy, ~ Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition,
promoting preventive health care and sanitation
including contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-
up by the Central Government for the promotion of
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted the Vigil Mechanism by way of
formulating a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy provides
a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to
report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual
te ayd or violation of the Company's Code

)
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of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy also provides for
adeguate safeguards against victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanjsm and also provides for direct
access to the Head of Human Resources of the Company.
The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the
Company at www.schandgroup.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the
Corporate Governance requirements set out by Securities
and Exchange Board of India. In terms of Regulation 34
of the Listing Regulations, a report on the Corporate
Governance along with a certificate of practicing company
secretary on compliance is attached as Annexure-H and
forms an integral part of the report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management discussion and analysis report, highlighting
the performance of the Company and its business prospects,
is provided in a separate section and forms an integral part
of this annual report.

. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent
Directors and one Non-Executive Director namely Mr.
Desh Raj Dogra (Chairman-Non-Executive, Independent
Director), Ms. Archana Capoor (Member- Non-Executive,
Independent Director) and Mr. Deep Mishra (Member-Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director). The details of the
Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance
Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays
down a framework in relation to remuneration to Directors,
Managerial Personnel and senior management of the
Company. The policy [ays down the criteria for selection and
appointment of Board members, Key Managerial Person

along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

{(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made Judgments
and estimates that are reascnable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

{c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficent
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

(f)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their thanks to members,
bankers, financial institutions, customers, suppliers,
government and other regulatory authorities for their
continued support. Your Directors place on record their
appreciation to the employees at all levels for their
committed services to the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For S Chand And Company Limited

sd/- sd/-

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Whole-time Director

DIN: 00282588

and employees.
mpey Himanshu Gupta

Managing Director

25. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT DIN: 00054015

In accordance with the provisions of Sectlon 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its  plzce: New Delhi
responstbility statement: Date: August 09, 2017

{a} in the preparation of the amnual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed

[4X
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ANNEXURE-A

Form AOC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3} of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014}
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in 3}

Sl.  Particulars

No.
1 Sl. No. 1 2 3
2 Name of the subsidiary S. Chand Edutech Safari Digital DS Digital Pvt. Ltd,
Pyt. Ltd. Education
Initiatives Pvt. Ltd.
3 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 30/03/201 07/02/2011 03/07/2014
4 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different N.A. N.A. N.A.
from the holding company’s reporting period. . .
5 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last NA. N.A. N.A.
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries B -
6 Share capital 212,700 443,692,680 568,993,200
7 Reserves & surplus (28,496,378) _(6;;:,929,859) (319,585,773)
Total assets 226,730 738,080,776 528,208,105
Total Liabilities 36,510,458 358,317,955 278,800,679
10 ‘nvestments Nil 485,662,761 Nil
11 Turnover 1,298,657 59,643,926 292,714,580
12 Profit before taxation {299,775} (32,394,562) {65,921,959)
13 Provision for taxation Nil Nil Nit
14 Profit after taxation i {299,775) (32,294,562) (65,921,959)
15  Proposed Dividend _ Nil Nili il
16 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 73.53% is held 40.08%isheld by  40.75%is held
by Safari Digital Nirja Publishers & by Safari Digital
Education Initiatives  Printers Pvt. Ltd. Education
Pvt. Ltd, (awholly {(wholly owned Initiatives Pvt.Ltd.
owned subsidiary of  subsidiary) and the  {wholly owned
the Company) Company holds subsidiary) and the
59.92% Company holds

59.20%
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Sl.  Particulars
No.
1 5. No. 4 5 6
2 Name of the subsidiary Nirja Publishers & Eurasia Publishing  Blackie & 5on
Printers Pvt. Ltd. House Pvt. Ltd. (Calcutta) Pvt. Ltd.
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 30/03/2010 25/09/2012 25/09/2012
4 Reporting perlod for the subsidiary concerned, if N.A. NA, N.A,
different from the holding company’s reporting
5 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the N.A. N.A. NA,
last date of the refevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
6 Share Capital 1,20,000 1,06,000 149,000
Reserves & Surplus 685,893,464 164,090,140 67,378,875
Total assets 752,724,837 784,667 406 68,491,007
9 Total Liabilities 66,711,373 620,471,266 963,132
10 Investments 20,65,92,165 700,203,978 4,53,34,214
11 Turnover 253,967,411 16,017,521 2,667,468
12 Profit Before Taxation 54,794,634 {8,489,521) 1,738,512
13 Provision for taxation 16,200,668 9,43,357 584,293
14  Profit after taxation 38,593,966 (9.432,878) 1,154,219
15 Proposed Dividend N.A. N.A. N.A.
16  Extent of Shareholding (in percentage) 100% 100% 100%
5l.  Particulars
No.
1. 51.No. 7 8 g
2, Name of the subsidiary BPI{India) Pvt.Ltd. ChhayaPrakashani  New Saraswati House
Pvt. Ltd, {India} Pvt. Ltd.
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25/09/2012 05/12/2016 17/05/2014
4, Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if N.A, N.A. NA.
different from the holding company’s reporting period.
5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the NA, N.A. N.A.
Jast date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
6. Share capital 11,250,000 14,828,400 2,05,000
7. Reserves & surplus 59,375,304 373,026,334 558,932,227
8. Total assets 266,633,559 857,027,299 1,965,853,815
9. Total Liabilities 196,008,255 469,172,565 1.406,716,588
10 Investments NIL 155,111,816 NIL
11 Turnover 140,712,742 1.009,887.896 1,432,579,246
12 Profit before taxation 9,435,506 333,594,142 119,681,290
13 Provision for taxation 3,295457 118,197,948~ 41,732,941
14 Profitafter taxation 6,140,050 21 5,395{,_ Z2100N7,948,349
oy

144

3

New De;i\

i

eport 2016 - |7 | 65



empowering

e -

YOUNG MINDS

BOARD’'S REPORT f(contd.)

8. Particulars
No.
15 Proposed Dividend NiL NIL NIL
16 Extent of shareholding [in percentage) 51%is held by 30.47% with Eurasfa  23.90% is held by
Blackie & Son Publishing House Vikas Publishing
{Calcutta) Pvt. Ltd. Pt Ltd. (wholly House Pvt. Ltd.
{a wholly owned owned subsidiary) {wholly owned
subsidiary ofthe  and the Company subsidiary) and the
Company) holds 43.53% Company holds
76.10%
SI.  Particulars
No.
1. SLNo. 10 1 12
2. Nameofthesu bsidiary Vikas Publishing  Publishing Services Indian Progressive
House Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Publishing Co Pvt.
Ltd.
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 10/10/2012 105/12/2016 05/12/2016
4, Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if NA. N.A. N.A.
different from the holding company's reporting period. o
5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the NA. NA, N.A,
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
~__ foreign subsidiaries . _ -
6, Share capital _40,14,000 5,00,000 1,417,100
7. Reserves & surplus 1,210,683,831 22,96,042 4,66,150
8. Total assets 3,174,399,747 64,26,702 34,29,357
9. Total Liabilities 1,959,701,916 36,30,660 28,46,107
10 Investments 70,001,000 NIL NiL
11 Turnover 2,461,556,493 2,05,81,034 1,06,41,088
12 Profit before taxation 273,940,036 17,59,439 (10,46,921)
13 Provision for taxation 3 94,358,930 2,06,161 40,262
14 Proft after taxation 179,581,106 15,53,278 - (10.87,183)
15 Proposed Dividend . NIL NIL NIL
16  Extentof shareholding (in percentage} 2% is held by 100% is held by 100% is held by
Nirja Publishers & Chhaya Prakashani Chhaya Prakashani
Printers Pvt. Ltd.  Pvt. Ltd. (subsidiary of  Pvt. Ltd. {subsidiary of
{wholly owned the Company) the Company)
subsidiary) and
the Company
holds 98%
On behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5 Chand And Company Limited
sd/- sd/-
Himanshu Gupta Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Place : New Delhi Managing Birector Whole-time Director
Date : August (S, 2017 8054015 DIN: 00282988
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ANNEXURE-B

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014)

The Members,

$ Chand And Company Limited
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar
New Delhi~110055

CIN No.: L22219DL1970PLC0O05400

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit in respect of compliance with specific applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good
corporate practices by”S Chand And Company Limited” formerly known as“S Chand And Company Private Limited” (herginafter called
the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct /statutory compliance and expressing my opinion therecn,

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to me and the representations made by the Management, | hereby report
thatin my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2017 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2017 according to the provisians of;

{7  The Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 (*the Acts’) and the rules made thereunder, as applicable;
(i) The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(il The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Fareign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
{v} The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act’):-
a Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
¢.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 ;
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securitles) Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable as the
Company has not issued any debt securities during the financial year under review;

e

f. Securlties and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Requlations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client - Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agent during the financial year under review;

g.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not applieabls as the Company has
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h.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998- Not applicable as the Company has not
bought back any of its securities during the financial year undar raview.

{vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to the Company:
a.  The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 & Rules
b.  The Child Labour {Prohibition and Regulation Act), 1986

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended March 31, 2017
complied with the aforesaid laws.

Based on the information received and records made available, | further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directars. The changes in the compasition of the Board of Directors that took place during the financial year under
review, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Acts and SEBI(Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Adequate natice was given to all the Directors regarding holding of the 8oard Meetings. Agenda was sent in advance before the
meeting. There exists a systemn for Directars ta seek and obtain fusther informatian and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

Decisians at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously and recorded as part of the Minutes of the Meetings; (No dissent was
there nor any dissent recorded)

In my apinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitar and ensure compliance with appticable Jaws, rules, regulations and guidetines and applicable genaral laws
like labour laws, enviranmental laws and competition laws etc,

Based on the compliance mechanism established by the Campany and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) of the
Managing Directar, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer taken on record by the Board of Directars at its meeting(s),
I am of the opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to
monitor and ensure compliance with the spedifically applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as mentioned in this report
and applicable general laws like labour laws competition laws, environmental laws, etc.

I further repart that:

a}  The Company is converted from Private limited ta Public limited Company and cansequently the name of Campany has
been changed fram S Chand and Campany Private Limited to § Chand And Company Limited.

b}  The Company has altered abject clause of Memarandum of Assaciation af the Company and has deleted other abjects
clause I C of the Memarandum of Assaciation of the Company.

¢}  The Company has sub-divided each Autharized, Issued, subscribed and Paid up equity shares of the Campany of face value
T 10/- each into 1 equity share of face value of T 5/- each.

d) The Campany has increased its authorlzed share capital to ¥ 20,00,00,000 (Twenh gs only) divided into 4,00,00,600
{Four Crares) equity shares of face value of T 5/- each. q\é' 0’77,0‘9 _
A
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e)  TheCompany has allotted 29,441,192 equity shares as Bonus Shares of T 5/- each to the existing shareholders, whose names
appeared in the Register of Members as on record date i.e. April 19,2016,

f)  The Company has granted aggregate of 4800 Employees stock options to the employees of subsidiaries of the Company.

g)  The Company had filed a Draft Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI on December 16, 2016 for issuance of equity shares to
public by way of an Initial Public Offer.

For the said purpose M/s AZB & Partners carried a due diligence and issued 2 certificate dated 16" December, 2016
confirming compliance of the relevant provisions of Companies Act,2013. | have relied on the said certificate.

h}  The Company together with its subsidiary Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited has acquired 74% equity shareholding
of Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Ltd. with effect from 5™ December, 2016. Post this acquisition of equity shares Chhaya Prakashani
Pvt. Ltd. has become a subsidiary of the Company.

i}  The Company has paid an interim dividend of T 25 per share on 403,304 equity shares of T 5/- each for the financial year
2016-17 out of the accumulated profits of the Company.

) The Company took approval from shareholders for compliance under section 180{1)(a) and 180(1}(c} of Companies Act,2013
when it was a Private Limited Company.

sd/-

R.S5.Bhatia

Place: New Delhi Practicing Company Secretary
Dated: August 07,2017 CPNo:2514
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Annexurel

To,

The Members

5 Chand And Company Limited
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar
New Delhi -110055

CINNo: L222190L1970PLC005400

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility
1. ltis the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, device proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate

effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility
2. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Comparny with

respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management Is adequate and appropriate for us
to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Whether reguired, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer
5.  The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveress with

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriatenass of financial records and books of aczounts of the Company,

sd/-

R.5.Bhatia

Place: New Delhi Practicing Company Secretary
Dated: August 07,2017 CP No: 2514
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Annexure - C

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
AS ONTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
(pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN:

L22219DL1970PLCO05400

if)

Registration Date

September 09, 1970

iit)

Name of the Company

S Chand And Company Limited

ivli Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company limited by shares

v)  Address of the Registered Office and Contact Detalls Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New Delhi-110055
Tel +91 11 6667 2000
Fax: +91 171 2367 7446
E-mail- investors@schandgroup.com

vi} Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) Yes

{Yes/No)
vii} Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd
Transfer Agent, if any 44, Community Centre, 2™ Floor,
Near PVR Naraina, Phase-|
Naraina Industrial Area,
New Delhi - 110028,
Phone: +91 11 4141 0592, 93,94
Fax: +91 11 4141 Q591
E-mail: delhi@intime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in
Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:
S.No Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
products/ services service Company
1 Publishing of educational hooks 5811

200
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IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSQCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares  Applicable
No. Subsidiary/  held Section
Assaciate
1. Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Pvt. Ltd. U22190WB1979PTC032281 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
7361
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New
Delhi 110 055
2. BPI {India} Pvt. Ltd. U221900L1999PTC288852 Subsidiary 51 2(87)
First Floor,

Plot No. B-1/ A-26, Mohan Co-
operative Industrial Estate, New Delhi
110044

3. Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Ltd. U22122WB2006PTC111821 Subsidiary 74 2(87)
1, Bidhan Sarani, Collage Street,
Kolkata 700 073, West Bengal

4. DS Digital Pvt. Ltd. 'U72200D1.2008PTC173250 Subsidiary 99.96 2(87)7
7361,
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New
Delhi 110055

5. Eurasia Publishing House Pvt, Ltd. U74899DL1961PTC003552 Subsidiary 100 2{87)
7361, Ram
Nagar, Qutab Road, New Dethi 110 055

6. Indian Progressive Publishing Co Pvt.  U22219WB1961PTC025317 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Ltd.
1, Rajendra Dev Road, Kolkata, West
_Bengal 700 007

7. New Saraswati House {India) Pvt. Ltd.  U22110DL2013PTC262320 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
A-27,
2™ Floor, Mohan Co-operative
Industrial Estate, New Delhi 110 044

8. Nirja Publishers & Printers Pvt. Ltd. U7489901.1971PTCQ05776 Subsidiary 100 2{87)
7361 Ram Nagar, Qutab Road, New
Delhi 110 035

g, Publishing Serviges Pvt, Ltd. U22222WB2004PTC099639 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
BF - 90,

Salt Lake City, Sector - 1, Kolkata, West
Bengal 700 064

10. S. Chand Edutech Pvt. Ltd. U80302DL2010PTC206251 Subsidlary 74 2(87)
7361,
Ram Nagar, Paharganj, New Delhi 110
055
11. Safari Digital Education Inltiatives Pvt.  U80904D1.2010PTC204512 Subsidiary 100 24{87)
Ltd.
7361,
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New
Delhi 110 055
12.  Vikas Publishing House Pvi. Ltd, U74899DL1971PTC005766 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
7361,
Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New
Dethi, 110 055

IV, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Brea

A
72| Annusl Repor: 2016 - 17 /////////////////
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A) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
Shareholders beginning of the year end of the year during
The year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares

A.Promoters

{1) Indian

a} Individualf HUF 84,146 - 84,146 41,73 13,785,608 13,785,608 46.19 4.45
b) Central Govt. - - - - - . - R _

¢) State Govt. (s} - - - - - - - - .

d} Bodies Corp. ) - - - - - - - - -
e) Banks/Fi - - - - - - - - _
f) Any Other - - - - - - - - .

Sub-total 84,146 - 84,146 41.73 13,785,608 - 13,785,608 46.19 4.45
(A1 ):-
(2) Foreign

a) NRls— - - - ] - - - - -
Individuals

b) Other- - - - - - - - - .
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - . -
d) Banks/Fl - - - - - - - - .
e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total - - - - - - - - -
{A) (2}

Total 84,146 - 84,146 41.73 13,785,608
shareholding of

Promoter
(A}=A1+A2

13,785,608 46.19 445

1oL
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B. Public
Shareholding

g

{contd.}

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

¢) Central Govt,

d) State Govt. (s)

elVenture Capital
Funds

fiinsurance
Companies

glFlls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others

{specify)
International Finance
Corporation

18,558

- 18,558

9.40 2,805,784

2,805,784

840 0

Sub-total
(B)1):-

18,958

18,958

%.40 2,805,784

2,805,784

$.40 -

2. Non- Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} indian

ity Overseas

3227 9,629,472

- 9,629,472 32.27 -

b} Individuals

i) individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
up to ¥ 1lakh

iIndividual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs1 lakh

33,484

33,484

16.60 3,623,632

3,623,632

1214 (4.46)

T)O‘thers
(specify)

Sub-total
(B}{2):-

98,548

- 98,543

48.87 13,253,104

13,253,104

44.41 (4.46)

Total Public
Shareholding {B)=(B)
1)+ (B)(2)

117,506

117,506

58.27 16,058,888

16,058,888

5381 (4.46)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
&ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+(C)

201,652

- 201,652

100 29,844,496

X3
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B} Shareholding of Promoters
S. Shareholder’'s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the ~ Shareholding at the end of the year (as on March

No year (as on April 01, 2016) B 31,2017)
No. of % of total % of No.of 9% oftotal % ofShares % changein
Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Pledged/ shareholding
of the Pledged ofthe encumbered during the
Company /encum- Company to total year
bered shares
to total
shares
1 Mr, Himanshu Gupta 36,674 1819 - 6,167,752 20.67 - 248
2. Mr. Dinesh Kumar 23,465 11.64 - 4,064,820 13.62 - 1.98
___ _Jhunjhnuwala .
3. Ms_Neerja 24,007 11.90 - 3,553,036 11.90 - -

Jhunjhnuwala

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)

S. PARTICULARS Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding
No. the year {as on April 01, 2016) during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 36,674 18.19 6,167,752 2067
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 23,465 11.64 4,064,820 13.62
Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 24,007 11.90 3,553,036 11.90

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/Decrease

it Inter se transfer of equity shares amongst the
shareholders of the Company

Transfer of 4000 equity shares by Ms. Nirmala 27,465 13.62 27,465 13.62
Gupta to Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala on April

5,2016

Transfer of 5000 equity shares by Ms, Savita Gupta 41674 2067 41674 2067

to Mr, Himanshu Gupta on April 9, 2016

20.04.2016
ii) Sub-division of equity share capital into 1 equity
share of ¥ 5/- each

Mr. Himanshu Gupta 83,348 20.67 83,348 20.67
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 54,930 13.62 54,930 13.62
Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 48014 11.90 48,014 11.90
29.04.2016

iti} Issue of bonus shares to the equity
shareholders in the ratio of 73:1

Mr. Himanshu Gupta 6,167,752 20.67 6,167,752 2067
{issued 6084404 bonus shares) ,

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 4,064,820 1362 4,064,820 13.62
{issued 4009890 bonus shares)

Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 3,553,036 11.50 3,553,036 11.90

{issued 3505022 bonus shares}

3 Atthe end of the year
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 6,167,752 2067 6,167,752 2067
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 4,064,820 13.62 4,064,820 13.62
Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 3,553,036 1190 7 35540 11.50

T 036
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D) Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs ):

5. For Each of theTop10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Shareholders beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. ofshares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year
Ms. Ankita Gupta 2331 116 984,348 330
Ms. Nirmala Gupta 12,866 6.38 720,168 24
Everstone Capital Partners Il 1LC 65,064 3227 9,629,472 3227
International Finance
Corporation. 18,958 9.40 2,805,784 9.40
2, Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Shareholding during the
year spedfying the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.)
iy Inter se transfer of equity shares amongst the
shareholders of the Company
Transfer of 8000 equity shares by Ms. Nirmala Gupta to Mr.
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala (4000} and Mr, Gaurav Kumar 4,866 241 4,866 2.47
Jhunjhnuwala (4000} on April 5, 2016
Transfer of 4320 equity shares by Ms. Savita Gupta to Ms.
Ankita Gupta on April 9, 2016 and April 11, 2016
6,651 330 6,651 330
20.04.2016
i) Sub-division of equity share capital into 1 equity share
of ¥ 5/-each
Ms. Ankita Gupta 13,302 330 13,302 3.30
Ms. Nirmala Gupta 9,732 241 9,732 241
Everstone Capital Partners Il LLC 130,128 3227 130,128 3227
International Finance Corporation 37,916 9.40 37916 940
29.04.2016
jii} 1ssue of bonus shares to the equity shareholders in the
ratio of 73:1
Ms. Ankita Gupta (issued 971046 bhonus shares) 984,348 3.30 984,348 330
Ms, Nirmala Gupta {issued 710436 bonus shares) 720,168 24 720,168 241
Everstone Capital Partners Il LLC {issued 9459344 bonus 9,629,472 32.27 9,629,472 3227
shares}
International Finance 2,805,784 240 2,805,784 940
Corporation {issued 2767868 bonus shares}
3. At the End of the year(or on the date of separaticn, if
separated during the year}
Ms. Ankita Gupta 984,348 330 984,348
Ms. Nirmala Gupta 720,168 241 720,168
Everstone Capital Partners I} LLC 9,629,472 32.27 9,629,472
International Finance Corporation 2,805,784 940 2,805,784

de5
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E} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
S.  For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year
Directors
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 36,674 18.19 6,167,752 20.67
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 23,465 1164 4,064,820 1362
Ms. Savita Gupta 16,867 8.36 1,312,316 4.40
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 100 0.05 606,800 203
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):
Directors
I} Inter se transfer of equity shares amongst the
shareholders of the Company
Transfer of 4000 equity shares by Ms. Nirmala Gupta to 27,465 13.62 27,465 13.62
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala on April 05,2016
Transfer of 4000 equity shares by Ms. Nirmala Gupta to 4,100 2,03 4,100 203
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala on April 05, 2016
Transfer of 5000 equity shares by Ms. Savita Gupta to Mr, 41,674 2067 41,674 20.67
Himanshu Gupta on April 09, 2016
Transfer of 4,320 equlty shares by Ms. Savita Gupta to Mr. 8,867 4.40 8,867 4.40
Ankita Gupta on April 09, 2016 and April 11, 2016
20.04.2016
iiy Sub-division of equity share capital into 1 equity share
of T 5/- each
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 83,348 20.67 83,348 20.67
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 54,930 13.62 54,930 13,62
Ms. Savita Gupta 17,734 440 17,734 4.40
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhun]hnuwala 8,200 203 8,200 2,03
29.04.2076
iif} Issue of bonus shares to the equity shareholders in the
ratio of 73:1
Mr. Himanshu Gupta (issued 6,084,404 bonus shares) 6,167,752 2067 6,167,752 20.67
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala {issued 4,009,890 bonus 4,064,820 1362 4,064,820 13.62
shares)
Ms. Savita Gupta (issued 1,294,582 bonus shares) 1,312,316 440 1,312,316 4.40
Mr, Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala (issued 598,600 bonus 606,800 2.03 606,300 2.03
shares}
At the end of the year
Directors
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 6,167,752 2067 6,167,752 2067
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 4,064,820 13.62 4064820 13.62
Ms. Savita Gupta 1,312,316 4.40 1,312,316 4.40
Mr, Gauray Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 606,800 203 606,800 2.03
2016-17| 77
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V. [INDEBTEDNESS - Indehtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
{In. T flacs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits  Total Indebtedness
exduding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 33,31,60,870 - 6,20,000 - 33,37,80,870
ii} Interest due but not paid 8,258 . - . 8,298
jii) Interest accrued but not due o 2,64,028 7 - o - 2,64,028
Total (I+i+i} 7 33,34,33,196 . 6,20,000 13,40,53,196
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - -
Addition 1,00,51,50,000 - 1,90,00,000 1,02,41,50,000
Reduction B C ameerse) - : (27963,756)
Net Change 97,786,248 - 1,90,00,000 99,61,86,244
;deb'(ednu: atthe end of the financial year o T
1y Principal Amount 1310347114 - 1,960,000 132,9967,114
ii) Interest due but not paid 11,519 - . 11,519
jiii) Interest accrued bt not due 83,664 - - B3,664
Total {i-+iE+ili) 1,31,04,42,298 - 1,96,20,600 1,33,00,62,298
V1. REMUNERATIONOF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration paid to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager
{Amount in T per annum)
S.  Particulars of Remuneration Mr, Himanshu Mr. Dinesh "Ms. Savits  *Ms, Nirmala  *Mr. Gaurav *Ms.Neerjs  *Ms. Ankita
Ne Gupta Kumar Gupta Gupta Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Gupta
Jhunjhnuwala Jhunjhnuwala
'1-_ Gross salary
T (a) Salary as per provisions 10,192,000 10,192,000 400,000 164,516 200,000 164,516 164,516
contained in Section 17{1) of the
Income-1ax Act, 1961
o (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - - - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961 ind. stock
options
o {c) Profits in lieu of salary under - N - - s . .
Section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1951
r Stock Options e . - - . R —
? ;eat Equity - - s - - - -
4.— Commission - - - . _
T - as % of profit o ) T
o others, specify N B
? Others - - . - .
o Total 10,192,000 ) 10,192,000 400,000 164,516 200,000 164,516 164,516
Ceiling as per the Act (@ 10% of T 4,67 crores

the net profits of the Company
calculated as per Section 198 of
the Companies Act, 2013-in ¥)

"M, Savita GUpta, Ms. Ankita Gupta, Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala and Ms, Nirmala Gupta were pald the aforesald remuneration as Executive-|
May 31, 2016. The Company was a prlvate limited Company during the said period and the ceiling of net profit pursuant to secticl

remuneration.
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B. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors
(Amountin T per annumy}
S.  Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Amount {inT) Total Amount
No.
Mr. Desh Raj Dogra Mr. Sanjay Vijay Ms, Archana Capoor
Bhandarkar
1. Independent Directors
o 250,000 200,000 200,000 650,000
+ Feeforattending Board / Committee
Meeting
« Commission
- Qthers, Please Specify o
Total (1) 250,000 200,000 200,000 6,50,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
+ Fee for attending Board / Committee
Meeting —
- Commission
» Others, Please Specify - ” — ~ -
Total (2) - . _ N
Total (B) =1 +2 250,000 200,000 2,00000 6,50,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 250,000 2,00,000 2,00,000 6,50,000
Overali Ceiling as per the Act 1,00,000 per 1,00,000 per Board 100,000 per Board -
Board Meeting or Meeting or Committee  Meeting or Committee
Committee thereof thereof thereof
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/WTD
{Amountin¥ per annum}
Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
no. CEQ Company CFO Total
Secretary
1. Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in - 6,851,329 9,016,072 15,867,401
section17(T}of the Income-tax Act, 1961
O eamasa e
Act, 1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3}Income-tax
Act, 1961
2. Stock Optlons - 7,400 » 85,618 93,018
3. Sweat Equity - - ;o
4. Commisslon - - - -
- as % of profit
~athers, specify... o
5. Others, please specify - _ - —
Total - 7,413,641 9,432,428 16,846,069

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences under any sections of the Companies Act, 2013 against the Company

or its Directors or other Officers in default, if any, during the year.

Place : New Delhi
Date : August09, 2017

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For § Chand And Company Limited

sd/- sd/-

Himanshu Gupta Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Managing Director Whole-time Director

DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00282988
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Annexure-D

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rute 5{1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the

financial year 2016-17:

Name of the Director

Designation

Ratio to median remuneration
of the employees

Mr. Himanshu Gupta Managing Director 29,12
7Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director 29,12
Ms. Nirmala Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20*, 2016} 343
Ms, Savita Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20, 2016} 8.34
Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director (TM May 20™, 2016) EB
Ms. Ankita Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20%, 2016} 343
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director (Till May 20, 2016) 417

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secaetary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2016-17:

Name of the Employee

Designation

% intrease in remuneration

Mr. Himanshu Gupta

_Managing Director

183%

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director 183%

Ms. Nirmala Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20%, 2016) 0% o
Ms. Savita Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20%, 2016} 22%

Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director (Till May 20%, 2016) 0%

Ms. Ankita Gupta Executive Director (Till May 20%, 2016) 0% -

Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala _Executive Director (Till May 20, 2016) 22%

M. Saurabh Mittal Chief Financial Officer 19%

Mr. Jagdeep Singh Company Secretary 97%

3. The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in financial year 2016-17:

9.50%

4, Thenumber of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:

695

5. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance:
The average increase in remuneration for financial year 2016-17 was 15.21 %. The average increase in remuneration is closely
linked to and driven by achlevement of annual budgets and overall business, financial and operational performance of the

Company.

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnef against the performance of the Company:

The total remuneration of paid to Key Managerial Personne] constituted approximately 7.93 % of the nefprof

for year as computed under section 1597.

7. a} Variationsinthe market capitalization of the Company:
The Company was notlisted during the Financial Year 2016-17

2of

of the company

Com
e 2
2
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b} Price earnings ratio of the Company: {comparison between the closing date of financial year 2016-17 and financia!
year 2015-16)
The Company was not listed during the Financiaf Year 2016-17

¢) Percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate
at which the Company came out with the last public offer:
The Company was not listed during the Financial Year 2016-17

8. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last

financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel was 10.20%. Average increase in the
managerial remuneration of managerial personnel is 73.19 %. The increase is due to restructuring of remuneration of managerial
personnel as earlier they were being partly paid through subsidiaries and post restructuring are being paid only from the
Company.

9. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company:

Name of the Employee Designation % of Profits Computed u/s 197
Mr. Himanshu Gupta Managing Director To2N%
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Executlve Director C2N%
Ms. Nirmala Gupta _Executive Director {Till May 20", 2016) 0.03%
Ms. Savita Gupta Executive Director {Till May 20", 2016} 0.08%
Ms. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director (Till May 20", 2076) 0.03%
Ms. Ankita Gupta Executive Director (Til May 20™, 2016) 0.03%
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala Executive Director (Till May 20", 2016) 0.04%
Mr. Saurabh Mittal Chief Financial Officer 1.95%
Mr. Jagdeep 5ingh Company Secretary 1.53%

10. The key parameter for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:
Executive directors are entitled to a variable component in the form of commission to be calculated on the basts of net profit of
the Company. In the financial year 2016-17 both the executive directors of the Company have waived this variable component.

11. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the financial year 2016-17;
0.82

12, Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel

and other employees, adopted by the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5 Chand And Company Limited

sd/- sd/-

Himanshu Gupta Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Place : New Delhi Aanaging Director Whole-time Director
Date : August 08, 2017 % 80054015 DIN: 00282988
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Annexure-F

Statement as at March 31, 2017 pursuant to Rule 12 (9} of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures} Rules, 2014 and the
Regulations 14 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014:

The position of the existing scheme is surmmarized as under:-

S.No. Particulars Remarks
1. Details of ESOP 2012
1. Drate of Shareholder’s Approval 30-June-2012
2. Total number of options approved under ESOP 2012 *367,928 equity shares of face value T 5 each
Vesting Requirements Options vest over a maximurn period of 5 years based on
continued service and certain performance parameters.
4, The Pricing formula Fair market value as determined by an independent valuer as on
the date of grant.
Maximum term of Options granted (years) 5 years from the date of grant.
Source of shares Primary
Variation in terms of ESOP S5cheme The ESOP Scheme was amended in line with the provisions of

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI ESOF Regulations.

I. Option Movement during the year ended Mar 2017

Sr.No Particulars No. of Options  Weighted Average

Exercise Price (T)
1 No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year *223,480 223.72
2 Options Granted during the year *156,954 311.06
3 Options Forfeited / Surrendered during the year *12,506 256.60
4 Options Exercised during the year Nil N.A
5 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options Nil N.A
[ Money realised by exercise of options (%) Nil N.A
7 Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year *367,928 259.86
8 Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year *133,718 204.80
*ﬁ\djusteccli to reflect the split in face value of the equity shares and bonus issue of the shares of the company which oceurred during
the period.

Option Movement during the year ended Mar 2016

Sr.No Particulars No.of Options  Weighted average

Exercise Price (3}
1 No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,548 13,683
2 Options Granted during the year M4 41,077
3 Options Forfeited / Surrendered during the year 952 9,110
4 Options Exercised during the year Nil N.A
5 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options Nil N.A
6 Money realised by exercise of options (%) Nil N.A
7 Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year 1,510 33,016
8 Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year 229 17,353

e
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. Weighted Average remaining contractual life

As on 31 March 2017
Range of Exercise Prices Weighted average contractual life (years)

Range of Exercise prices isT 6210 T 392 Tne weighted avg. remaining contractual life for options
outstanding is 2.97 years.

As on 31 March 2016
Range of Exercise Prices Weighted average contractual life {years)

Range of Exercise prices is 9,110 to T 45,000 The weighted avg. remaining contractual life for options
outstanding is 3.44 years.

IV Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during the year ended March 2017 whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price F37
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price ¥ 134 o
() Exercise price is less than market price ¥ 37
Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during the year ended March 2016 whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price Nil
{b) Exercise price is greater than market price B Nil
(c) Exercise price is less than market price 22,449
V  Theweighted average market price of options exercised during the year ended March 2017 NA
The weighted average market price of options exercised during the year ended March 2016 NA
Vl Employee wise details of options granted during the financial year 2016-17 to:
(i} Seniormanagerial personnel
Name of employee No. of Options granted
Mr. Samir Khurana 46,694
M. Saurabh Mittal 46,694 o

(i) Employees who were granted, during any one year, options amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during

the year
Name of employee No. of Options granted
Mr. Samnir Khurana 46,694
Mr, Saurabh Mittal 46,694
M. Ashish Gupta 51,060 o

(iii) ldentified employees who were granted option, during any one year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital
{excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

Name of employee No. of Options granted
NONE

"
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Vil Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of aptions granted during the year ended March 2017;
The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model
The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Variables Weighted Average
1.Risk Free Interest Rate 6.69%
2. Expected Life {in years) 220
3. Expected Volatility 0%
4. Dividend Yield 0%
5. Exercise Price 311
6. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant ) 376

Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year ended March 2016:
The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model
The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Variahles Waigrht_eg Average
Variables Weighted Average
1. Risk Free Interest Rate 7.61%
2, Expected Life{in years) 283
3. Expected Volatility 0%
4. Dividend Yield 0% o
5. Exercise Price a7
6. Price of the underlying share In market at the time of the option grant.[¥) 58,785
Assumptions:-

a)  Fair MarketValue: The falr market value considered is based on an independent valuation received from an (ndependent
professional;

b) Volatility: Since the Company was unlisted as on the date of grant, the volatility has been considered to be zerg;

¢}  Risk-free rate of return: Zero coupon yield curve as on the date of the grant has been used to calculate the risk-free rate.
The risk-free rate for the period equal to the expected life has been considered; and

d) Dividendyield:Since the Company was a private limited company and the average market price data was not available,
the dividend yield has been considered to be zero.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5 Chand And Company Limited

sd/- sd/-

Himanshu Gupta Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Place : New Deihi Managing Director Whole-time Director
Date : August 09,2017 DIN: 00054015
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Annexure-G

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overvlew of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

Policy Statement

The Corporate Social Responsihility Policy (“C5R Policy™} of 5 Chand And Company Ltd. ("5 Chand”) is framed to enhance value
creation in the society and in the comrunity in which it operates, through its services, conduct and initiatives, so as to promote
sustained growth for the society and community in fulfilment of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate.

Organization setup
The CSR projects in 5 Chand are implemented under the guidance of the (SR Committee which presently comprises three
directors, The terms of reference of the Committee is given below:

{ii  Formulate and recommend CSR policy to the Board for approval;

{i) Recommend for approval of the Board the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities in a financial year along
with projects to be undertaken earmarking funds for broad area wise projects; and

{iii) Monitor from time to time the implementation of the C5R projects undertaken by the Company.

The CSR activities of 5 Chand are as per Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013. Two major CSR activities carried out during the
year are:

{a} Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational skills especially among children,
women, elderly, and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects; and

{b) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitatlon including contribution
to the Swach Bharat Kosh set-up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available safe
drinking water;

The Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee comprises of the following members:
i) Mr. Desh Raj Dogra, Chairman, Independent Director
ii  mr. Himanshu Gupta, Member

iy~ Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Member

iv}  Mr. Deep Mishra. Member

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: INR 171,881,698/-

Prescribed CSR Expenditure {Two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 3,437,634/
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a)  Total amount to be spent for the financial year; INR 3,440,000 through a registered trust or society.

b)  Amountunspent, if any; INR 720,814
¢)  Mannerin which the amount spent durlng the finandal year is detailed below.

ol S
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S. C5Rproject Sectorin Projects or Amount Amcuntspenton Cumulative Amount
No. or activity which the pregrams outlay the projects or expenditure spent: Direct
identified project is {(1)Lecal area (budget) programs upte the er through
covered or other preject or {in%) reporting imple-
(2) Specify programs Sub-heads: period menting
the Stateand  wise {7} Direct agency
projects or (in%) expenditure
programs was on projects
undertaken or programs-
(2) Overheads:
1 Contribution Promoting Allahabad 3,440,000 2,719,186 2,719,186 Indirect
to the corpus Educationand Chandigarh
of a registered Eradicating Meghalaya
society ar trust Poverty Guwahatj
for promoting Kolkata
education and Varanasi
eradicating Bilaspur
poverty Bangalore
New Delhi
Total 3,440,000 2,715,186 2,719,186

6. Reasons for not spending the 2% average net profit of [ast three financial years:
During the year under review the Company has reviewed various CSR projects but only few projects complied the criteria under
the CSR Policy of the Company. Therefore, due to non-availability of adequate projects, the Company could not spend the

recommended amount of C5R,

7. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee:
The implementaticn and monitoring of § Chand’s CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Place : New Delhi
Date : August09, 2017

. 2

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5 Chand And Company Limited

sd/f-
Himanshu Gupta

Managing Director
DIN: 0005401

sd/-

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Whole-time Director

DIN: 00282988
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

On 2 September 2015, SEBI notified the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) to be effective from
1 December 2015, repealing the listing agreement with stock
exchanges. These Listing Regulations have been structured
to provide ease of reference by consolidating existing fisting
agreements across various types of securities listed on the stock
exchanges into one single document.

This report is in compliance with Regulation 34 (3) read with
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

As will be seen, the Company’s corporate governance practices
and disclosures have gone well beyond complying with the
statutory and regulatory requirements in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Regulations.

Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable
relationship and trust with all stakeholders. We consider
stakeholders as partnersin our success, and we remain committed
to maxImizing stakeholders'value, be it sharehclders, employees,
suppliers, customers, investors, communities or policy makers.
This approach to value creation emanates from our belief that
sound governance system, based on relationship and trust, is
integral to create enduring value forail.

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance Is creation and enhancing long-
term sustainable value for alf stakeholders of the Company
through ethically driven business process. At 5 Chandg, it
is imperative that our Company is managed in a fair and
transparent manner. As a corporate citizen, our business
fosters a cufture of ethical hehaviour and disclosures aimed
at building trust of our stakeholders.

a)

b)

R1F

ANNEXURE-H

AtS5 Chand, we strive to conduct ourbusiness and strengthen
our relationships in a manner that is dignified, distinctive
and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to ensure
integrity, transparency, independence and accountabiiity in
dealing with all stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility
of the management, directions and performance of the
Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the
Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective
and independent view to the Company's Management
while discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that
the management adheres to ethics, transparency and
disclosure.

Composition:

As on March 31, 2017, the Board of Directors consists of 8
(eight) Directors consisting of a Managing Diractor, Whole
time Director and 6 (six) Non-executive Directors, out of
which 3 (three) are Independent Directors, The Company
has two women directors. The compaosition of the Board is
in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Attendance of Directors:

The composition of the Board and category of Directors
along with Attendance Status at the Board meeting and
AGM are as under:
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Name of the Category Relationship Mo. of No. of MNo. of Attendance Shareholding
Director with other Board Board Board of each of Directors
directors Meetings Meeting Meetings director as on March
held during entitted to attended atlast 31,2017
the financial  attend during AGM
year during the the financial
2016-17  financial year year
2016-17 2016-17
*Mr. Desh Raj Dogra  Chairman- NA 10 4 4 No NIL
{DIN:00226775} Non-Executive,
Independent
_Director _
Mr. Himanshu Gupta Managing Son of Ms. 10 10 9 Yes 6,167,752
(DIN: 00054015) Director Savita Gupta &
Husband of Ms.
Ankita Gupta o
Mr.Dinesh Kumar ~ Whole-time Father of Mr. 10 10 9 Yes 4,064,820
Jhunjhnuwala Director Gayrav Kumar
(DIN:; 00282988) Jhunjhnuwala
& Hushand
of Ms, Neerja
. Jhunthnuwala
**Ms. Archana Non-Executive, NA 10 4 3 No NIL
Capoor Independent
{DIN: 01204170} Director o .
***0Mr. Sanjay Vijlay  Non-Executive, NA 10 4 3 No NIL
Bhandarkar Independent
Director
Mr. Deep Mishra Non-Executive, NA 10 10 3 No NIL
(DIN: 02249582) Nominee
Director L o
Ms, Savita Gupta Non-Executive, Mother of Mr. 10 10 4 Yes 1,312,316
{DIN: 00053988) Non- Himanshu Gupta
Independent
Director . -
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Non-Executive, Son of Mr. 10 10 10 Yes 606,800
Shunjhnuwala Non- Dinesh Kumar
(DIN: 03518763} independent  Shunjhnuwala
Director &Ms. Neerja
Jhunjhnuwala
# Ms. Nirmala Gupta Managing Mother of 10 1 1 No 720,168
(DYN: 00053972) Director Ms. Neerja
Jhunjhnuwala
## Ms, Neerja Whale-time Daughter of Ms. 10 1 1 No 3,553,036
Jhunjhnuwala (DIN:  Director Nirmala Gupta,
00054038) Wife of Mr.
Dinesh Kumar
Jhunjhnuwala
and Mother
of Mr. Gauray
Kumar
Jhunjhnuwala
##4 Ms. Ankita Whole-time Wife of Mr. 10 1 1 No 984,348
Gupta Director Himanshu Gupta
_(21N: 00054030) B
#4444 Mr, Vishal Non-Executive, NA 10 6 0 No NIL
Sharma Nominee
_{DIN: 01599024) Director

*  Appolnted as an Independent Directar with effect from November 10, 2018;

**  appointed as an Independent Director with effect from November 10, 2016;
w# Anpointed as an Independent Director with effect from November 10, 2016;
#  Resigned from the position of Director with effect from May 20, 2016;
## Resigned from the position of Director with effect from May 20, 2016;
#it4 Resigned from the position of Director with effect fram May 20, 2016;
##44 Resigned from the position of Director with effect from November 23, 2016;

218
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¢}  Directorship in other Public Limited Companies as on March 31, 2017:

$.  Name of the Director No. of No. of Committee No. of Committees
No. Directorships* Pozitions held** Chaired**
1. Mr. Desh Raj Dogra 9 1 1
2. Mr Himanshu Gupta 1 o 1 )
T Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala B 0 Q
T Mﬁrchaﬂa Capoaor . 8 2 0
5. Mr. 5anjay Vijay Bhandarkar 4 0 0 o
6. Mr. DeepMishra - 13 2 0
Z E\rlta Gupta 7 ) 1 1
B. M Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 3 0 ¢

* The Directorship held by Directors as mentioned above includes all Companies excapt foreign company and Section & com pany.
*+* Committee of Directors indudes Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee

MNone of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than
ten Committees and Chairman of more than five Committees
across all companies In which they are Directors,

d)

e}

f)

Number cf Board Meetings and date of Board Meetings:
During the financlal year 2016-17 ten (10} board meetings
were held on April 29, 2016, May 20, 2016, August 05, 2016,
August 23, 2016, September 15, 2016, November 03, 2016,
November 30, 2016, Decernber 08, 2016, March 02, 2017
and March 27, 2017. The maximum gap between any two
Board meetings was less than 120 days.

Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfil the
conditions of independence speclfied in Section 149(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under
and meet with requirement of Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations. A formal letter of appointment to Independent
Director as provided in Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25 of the Listing Regulations were issued.

Board’s Procedures:

It has always been the Company's policy and practice that
apart from rmatters requiring Board’s approval by statute, all
major decisions Including quarteriy results of the Company,
fnancial restructuring, capital expenditure proposals,
matefial investment proposals, safe and acquisition
of material nature of assets, mortgages, guarantees,
donations, etc. are regularly placed before the Board.This is
in addition to information with regard to actual operations;
major litigation feedback reports, information on senior
leve! appointments just below the Board level and minutes
of all Committee Meetings. In addition 1o the information

gl

h)

4

required under Part A of 5chedule Il of Sub-Regulation 7 of
Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the Board is also
kept informed of major events/items and approvals taken
wherever necessary.

Number of equity shares held by Non-Executive Director
Ms. Savita Gupta and Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
hoid 1,312,316 and 606,800 equity shares of the Company
respectively. No other non-executive director helds any
share in the company.

Board Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Carmpanies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17(10) of the Listing Requlations, the Board, in
accordance with evaluation framework laid down by the
Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance
of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of
its Committees.

The performance evaluation of the Board was carried out
by the Independent Directors. The Board’s functioning
was evaluated on various aspects, including inter-alia
degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board structure
and composition, establishment and delineation of
responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of
Board processes, information and functioning, long term
strategic planning etc.
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Evaluation of Directors was done keeping in view the criteria
laid down in the Board Performance Evaluation Framewark

of the Company.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directars
was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director
being evaluated.

Maximum tenure of Independent Directors:

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in
accordance with the Campanies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations,

Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors:
The Company has a familiarisation programme for the
Independent Directors with regard to their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of industry in
which the Company operates, the business models of the
Company etc., and the same is available on the website of
the Company at www.schandgroup.com.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has constituted Board committees
to deal with specific areas and activities which concern the
Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees
are formed with approval of the Board and function under
their respective Charters. These Board Committees play an
important role jn overall management of day-to-day affairs
and governance of the Company. The Board Committees
meet atregular intervats, takes necessary stepsto performits
duries entrusted by the Board. To ensure good governance,
rthe Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed before
the Board for their nating.

Audit Committee

Constitution and composition:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 1B of the Listing Regulations, an
Audit Committee comprising of three Directors has been
constituted to perform all such powers and functions as are
required to be performed under the said provisions. There
are three members of the Committee.

The Company has complied with the requirements of
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, as regard to the

compaosition of the Audit Committee,

Meetings & Attendance:

The Audit Committee met three (3) times during the

financial year 2016-17 on August 23, 2016, December 08,

2016 and March 27, 2017, The intervening period between
two meetings was well within the maximum time gap
of 120 days as prescribed under Listing Regulations. The
constitution of Audit Committee and attendance of each
mermnber is as given below:

Name of the Category No. of meetings
Member attended
* Mr. Desh Ra) Chairman - 2
Dogra Non-Executive,

_ Independent Director
** Ms, Archana Non-Executive, 2
Capoor Independent Director
Mr, Deep Mishra Non-Executive, Nan- 2

L Independent Director

*** Mr. Himanshu Managing Director 1
Gupta
=% Mr. Dinesh Whole-time Director 1
Kumnar Jhunjhnuwala

*

A

2 owoN

T I
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Mr. Desh Raj Dogra was appainted as Chairman of the
Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Ms. Archana Capoor was appointed as Member of the
Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Mr.Himanshu Gupta ceased to be member of the Committee
with effect from November 30, 2016; and

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala ceased ta be member of
the Committee with effect from November 30, 2016.

The Audit Committee invites such executives, as it considers
appropriate, representatives of Statutory Auditors and
representatives of Internal Auditors to attend the meetings.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee.

Terms of References:
Powaers of Audit Committee

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
To seek information from any employee.
To abtain outside legal or other professional advice,

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if
itconsiders necessar
756
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Role of Audit Committee
The Role of Audit Committee shall inter-alia include the

following:

To consider internal audit reports, reviews internal control
and systems and provide guidance and direction to internal
audit function. To review the corporate accounting and
reporting practices and also consider changes in accounting
policy, if any. Review, with the management, the quarterly/
half yearly financial statements before submission to the
Board of Directors for approval.

To have an oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information so as
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible.

To review with the management, the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board of Directors for
approval, with particular reference to:

a.  Matters to be Included in the Director’s Responsibility
Statement in the Board's Report;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

¢.  Major accounting entries involving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to financial statements;

f.  Qualifications in the draft audit report, if any; and

g. Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions

To review, with the management, performance of statutory
and internal auditers, and adequacy of the internal control
systems.

To review the adequacy of internat audit function, if any,
including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and senlority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal
audit. It can have discussion with internal auditors regarding
any significant findings and follow up there on.

To review the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected

10
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fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board
of Directors.

To have discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

The Committee may alsolook into the reasons for substantial
defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders and sharehelders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends),

The Committee shall mandatorily review the following
infermation:

a. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial
condition and results of operations.

b.  Statement of significant related party 1ransactions (as
defined by the audit committee) submitted by the
management;

c.  Management Lletters / Letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

d. Intermal Audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses;

e.  Theappeintment, removal and terms of remuneration
of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to the
review by the audit committee; and

f. Statement of deviations:

i Quarterly statement of deviation(s} including
report of monitoring agency, if applicable, shall
be submitted to the relevant stock exchanges
in terms of Regulation 32(1} of the Listing
Regulations; and

i An annual statement of funds utllized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice, in terms of
Regulation 32(7) of the Listing Regulations.

Review and monitor the auditors independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditor’s
report thereon;

the Company with related parties;
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Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,
wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial control and risk management
systemns;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public
offers and related matters;

Overseeing of the vigil mechanism along with making
provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered hy the statutory auditors.

Carry out additional functions as is contained in the listing
agreement or other regulatory requirements applicable
to the Company or in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and
terms of appointment of Auditors of the company.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors,

Review, with the management, the statement of uses /

"application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,

rights Issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for the purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board of Directors to take up steps
in this matter.

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the
whole-time finance director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) after
assessing the qualifications, experience and background,
etc, of the candidate,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Constitution and composition:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of

Name of the Member

o¥

v

v-
+CHAN

PUBLISHING

three Directors has been constituted to perform all such
power and functions as are required to be performed
under the said provisions. There are three members of the
Committee.

The Company has complied with the requirements of
Regulation 19 of the Llisting Regulations as regard to
the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Meetings & Attendance:

No meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was convened during the financial 2016-17.The
constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is as given below:

Category

*  Ms. Archana Capoor

Chairperson -
Non-Executive,
Independent Director

** Mr. Desh Raj Dogra

Non-Executive,
Independent Director

Mr. Deep Mishra

*=* Mr. Himanshu Gupta

Non-Executive, Non-
_Independent Director

Managing Director

**xehdr. Dinesh Kumar

Whole-time Director

Jhunjhnuwala

bad

-

AR

Ms. Archana Capoor was appointed as Chairperson of the
Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Mr. Desh Raj Dogra was appointed as member of the
Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Mr.Himanshu Gupta ceased to be member of the Committee
with effect from November 30, 2016; and

Mr. Dinesh Kumar thunjhnuwala ceased to be member of
the Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Terms of References:
The terms of references of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as under:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend
to the Board of Directors thelr appaintment and/or removal;

To carry out evaluation of every Director’s petformance;
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10.

To formulate the criteria for determining gqualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to our Board of Directors a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees such that its policies ensure that -

a. the level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the
company successfully;

b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

¢. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel
and senior management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of
the company and its goals

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board of Directors;

To recommend to the Board of Directors whether to extend
or continue the term of appointment of the independent
director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of independent directors;

To devise a policy on the diversity of the Board of Directors;

To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing
Director{s) and Whole-time Director(s)} based on their
performance and defined assessment criteria;

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board
of Directors from time to time and / or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may
be applicable;

To administration and superintendence the employee stock
option scheme or employees benefit schemes as approved
by Board of Directors of the Company; and

To formulate the detailed terms and conditions of such
schernes, frame suitable policies and procedures to ensure
that there is no violation of applicable laws.

Performance Ewvaluation criteria for Independent
Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee of the
Board has laid down the evaluation criteria for performance

243

q

Name of the Member

evaluation of the Independent Directors. The detail
pertaining to the evaluation of the performance of the
Independent Directors is available on the website of the
Company www.schandgroup.com,

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Constitution and compaosition:

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of
the Listing Regulations, the Company has a Stakeholders
Relationship Committee. The Committee looks into the
grievances of equity shareholders of the Company.

The Committee oversees performance of the Registrar
and Transfer Agents of the Company and recommends
measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor”
services,

Category

Ms, Savita Gupta

Chairperson - Non-Executive,
Non-Independent Director

Mr. Himanshu Gupta

Managing Director

Mr. Deep Mishra

Non-Executive, Non-
Independent Director

d)

Meetings & Attendance:

The equity shares of the Company got listed on the Stock
Exchanges on May 09, 2017. Hence, the Company did not
meet during the financial year 2016-17.

Investor Grievances/Complaints:
There was no investor compiaint during the financial year
2016-17.

Mr. Jagdeep Singh, Company Secretary is designated as
Compliance Officer of the Company.

The Company has set up an email-id investors@
schandgroup.com for the investors to send their grievances.

Carporate Social Respansibility Committee
Constitution and compaosition:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sectlon 135 of the Companles
Act, 2013, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(“CSR Committee”) comprising of four Directors has been
constituted to perform all such powers and functions as are
required to be performed under the said provisions. There
are four members of the Committee.

CSR Committee.
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Meetings & Attendance:

The C5R Committee met two (2) times during the financial
2016-17 on April 293, 2016 and March 31, 2017. The
constitution of the CSR Committee is as given below:

Mame of the Member

Category

Mr. Desh Raj Dogra

Chairman - Non-Executive,
Independent Director

Mr. Deep Mishra

Non-Executive, Non-

Name of the Category No. of meetings .

Member attended Independent Director

1. Mr. Desh Raj Chairman - 0 Mr. Himanshu Gupta Managing Director

Dogra Non-Executive, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Whole-time Director
Independent Director Jhunjhnuwala

2Mr. Deep Mishra  Non-Executive, Non- 1
Independent Director Terms of References:

érp;:“mansm Managing Director 1 The terms of references of the Subsidiaries and Joint

4 Mr, Dinesh Kumar Whole-time Director i Ventures Governance Committee are as under:

Jhunihnuwala

d)

Mr. Desh Raj Dogra was appointed as Chairman of the
Committee with effect from November 30, 2016;

Terms of References:
The terms of references of the CSR Committee are as under:

1. Toformulate and recommend tothe Board, a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013;

2. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred onthe activities undertaken by the Company;

3.  To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
of the Company from time to time; and;

4.  To undertake any other acts, deeds and things as
may be delegated by the Board from time to time In
relation to the Corporate Social Responsibility of the
Company.

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures Governance Committee
Constitution and composition:

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Subsidiaries and loint Ventures Governance Committee
comprising of four Directors has been constituted to
perform all such power and functions as per its terms of
reference as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company, There are four members of the Committee,

Meetings & Attendance:
No meeting of the Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
Governance Committee was convened during the financial
2016-17.The constitution of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
Governance Comrnittee is as given below:

;
-

1. Approval and adoption of annual business plan or
annual budget {containing the total planned annua!
capital expenditure, borrowing limits, limits on
lending or providing any credit, guarantee, indermnity
or security) of the Company for a financial year;

2. Anydeviation from the annual business plan or annual
budget exceeding 10% from the approved figures;

3. Any change, commencement, cessation of operation,
or diversification by the Company of any of its
businesses or that of its subsidiaries, incorporatlon
of any new subsidiary or entry into any joint venture,
consortium, partnership or similar arrangement;

4. Anylicensing, sub-icensing, franchising or assignment
of 'S Chand’s’ or Company’s brands or intellectual
properties by the Company or its subsidiaries;

5. Any acquisition, purchase, sale, transfer, divestment of
or investment in the share capital or other securities
of any entity {or entering into an agreement to do
s0), incuding the terms, timing and pricing of such
acquisition, transfer or divestrment;

6.  Any acquisition, sale or disposal of any asset or
property by the Company for an amount exceeding
INR 5,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Five Crores Only);

7. Appointment of any director, consultant or employee
whose remuneration / compensation exceeds INR
40,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Lakhs) per annum; and

8.  Any increase in remuneration / compensation of any
of the directors, consultants or employees such that
the total remuneration / compensation exceeds INR
40,00,000 {Indian Rupees Forty Lakhs} per annum.

.



empowering

YOUNG MINDS

1 L S 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (contd.)

4. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
a}  Pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company:
The Company has entered into pecuniary transactlons with Ms, Savita Gupta and Ms, Neerja Jhunjhnuwala, Non-Executive
Directors of the Company vis-a-vis the Cormnpany. The details of the same are mentioned in the Note No, 40 to financial staterments
for the year ended March 31, 2017 forming part of the Annual Report,
b} Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors:
The role of Non-Executive/Independent Director of the Cormpany is not just restricted to Corporate Governance or outlook of
the Company but they also bring with them significant professional experience and expertise across the whole spectrum of the
functional area such as publishing, marketing, corporate strategy, legal, finance and other corporate functions. The Company
seeks their expert advice on various matters relating to the business of the Company.
¢}  The details of remuneration and sitting fees paid to each Director during the financial year 2016-17 are as under:
$. Name ofthe Category Salary Other Benefits Bonuses Stock Sitting Fees Total
No. Director {inT) (inT) (inT} Options (in%) {(in%)
1. Mr. Himanshu Gupta  Managing Director 9,100,000 1,092,000 10,192,000
2, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Whole-time Director 9,100,000 1,092,000 - - - 10,192,000
Jhunjhnuwala -
3. Ms. Savita Gupta Non-Executive, Non- 400,000 - - - - 400,000
Independent Director _
4. Mr. Gaurav Kumar Non-Executive, Non- 200,000 - - - - 200,000
Jhunjhnuwala Independent Director .
5. Mr Deep Mishra Non-Executive, - - - - - -
Nominee Director
6. Mr, Desh Raj Dogra Non-Executive, - - - - 250,000 250,000
. independent Director
7. Ms. Archana Capoor  Non-Executive, - - - - 200,000 200,000
Independent Director -
B. Mr. Sanjay Vilay Non-Executive, - - - - 200,000 200,000
Bhandarkar Independent Director
9. *Ms. Neerja Executive Director 164,516 164,516
Jhunjhnuwala
10, *Ms. Ankita Gupta Executive Director 164,516 164,516
11.  *Ms. Nirmala Gupta Executive Director 164,516 - - - - 164,516
* Ms, NeerjaJhunjhnuwala, Ms. Ankita Gupta and Ms, Nirmala Gupta resigned from the position of Executive Directors with effect
from pMay 20, 2016;
The Executive Directors of the Company have been appointed, in terms of the resolutions passed by the Board and shareholders.
The Executive Directors are required to give 180 days notice to the Company for termination of service agreement. There is
no separate provision for payment of severance fees. The Non-Executive Directors are not subject to any notice period and ro
severance fees is to be paid to them.
5. GENERAL MEETINGS
a) The details of Jast three Annual General Meetings held are given below:
Financial Year & Day & Date Time Venue
Meeting No,
45"/2015-16 Friday, September 30, 2016 3:00 PM.  A-27, 2™ Floor, Mohan Co-operative industrial Estate,
New Delhi-110044
441/2014-15 Wednesday, Septermnber 30, 2015 500 PM.  A-27, 2 Floor, Mohan Co-operative industrial Estate,
_ New Delhi-110044
43¥/2013-14 Tuesday, September 30, 2014 1:30 M. Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New Delhi-1 7505

S5
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Special Resolutions passed at last three Annual General
Meetings:

No special resolutions were passed at the aforesaid Annual
General Meetings.

Special Resolution passed through postal ballot:

The equity shares of the Company got listed on the Stock
Exchanges on May 09, 2017, Thus, no resolution was passed
through postal ballot during the financial year 2016-17.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company publishes its audited quarterly financial
results and audited financial results for the entire Financlal
Year in ‘The Financial Express’ and ‘Jansatta’ The said
financial results, quarterly/half-yearly/annual compliances,
other statutory filings made to the Stock Exchanges and
other official news releases, if any, are also disclosed
on the website of the Company at www.schandgroup.
com after submission to the stock exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed. The Company also hosts
any presentation shared/ made to analysts/ institutional
investars on website of the Company at www.schandgroup.
com. The said presentation is also submitted to the stock
exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

46™ Annual General Meeting:

Day: Monday

Date: September 25, 2017

Time: 11:30 AM.

Venue: Executive Club Resort, 439, Village 5ahacorpur, Post
office Fatehpur Beri,

New Delhi 110074

Financlal Year: : The Company follows the financial year
from 1% April to 31" March

Dividend payment during the year under review:

The Board of Directors have declared an interim dividend
of T 25 per share of T 5/- each out of the accumulated
profits of the Company approved in its Board Meeting
held on April 29, 2016. The said dividend has been paid
to the shareholders whose name appear in the Register of
Members as on April 28, 2016,

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of
T 1.25/- per equity share for the financial year 2016-17. The
dividend recommended, if approved by the members at the
Annual General Meeting shall be pald within 30 days from
the date of Annual General Meeting to those members
whose names appear in Company’s beneficiary list as on
September 18, 2017.

d}

e)

f)
S.

No. Stock Exchange

Financial Calendar for financial 2017-18 (tentative and

subject to change):

i} Quarterly results: within 45 days from the date of
closure of the respective quarter or such extended
time as maybe applicable to the Company;

it} Annual Audited Results for the financial year ending
March 31, 2018: within 60 days of close of the financial
year; and

fiil  AGM for the financial year ending March 31, 2018:
within 180 days of close of financial year

Dates of Book Closures:

The register of Members and share transfer books of the
Company shall remain closed from -Tuesday, September 19,
2017 to Monday, September 25, 2017 (both days inclusive).

Listing of Shares and Stock Code:

Address of Stock
Exchange

Stock
Code

Name of the

1.

BSE Limited Phiroze Jesjeebhay 540497
Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai, Maharashtra

400001

2.

National Stock
Exchange of
India Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1,
Block G, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai, Maharashtra
400051

SCHAND

Listing Fees for FY 2017-18 has been paid to N5E and BSE

9l

h}

Volume of shares traded and Stock Price Movement on a
month to month basis:

The equity shares of the Company got listed on the stock
exchanges on May 09, 2017, Thus, the aforesaid provision is
not applicable to the Company in the financial year 2016-17,

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

All the waork relating to the shares held in the physical form
as well as shares held in demat form is being handled by
SE8I registered category | Registrar and Transfer Agents
whose details are given below:

Link Intime Indla Pvt. Ltd,

44, Community Centre, 2™ Floor,
Near PVR Naraina, Phase-|
Naraina Industrial Area,

New Delhi-110028.

Phone:+91 11 4141 0592, 93,94
Fax: +91 114141 0591

E-mail: delhi@intime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in
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i}  Share Transfer System:
The share transfer In physical form can be lodged with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent namely Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
at the address mentioned herein above or at their branch offices mentioned in its website, The transfers are normally processed
within 15 days If the documents are complete in all respect and thereafter the share certificates duly transferred are dispatched.

i) Reconciliation of share capital audit:
The equity shares of the Company got listed on the stock exchanges on May 09, 2017, Thus, the aforesaid provision is not

applicable to the Company in the financial year 2016-17.

k} Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2017:

Shareholding pattern as on 317 March 2017:-CATEGORY No. of shares % of
held Shareholding

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group -~
1 _Indian _
(@) Individuals/Hindu Undivided Family _ N 17409240 5333

{p} Bodies Corporate - *

Sub Total (A){1) _ ~ 17,409,240 5833

2 Foreign 7
Sub Total (A){2) [
_Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group (A}=(A){1}+(A}2) 17.409,240 58.33
{B) Public Shareholding ) |
1 Institutions o
{a) Mutual Funds/UTI __ Z R
{(b) Financial Institutions / Banks - . - N

{c} Others 2805784 9.40

Sub Total (B)(1} _ 2,805,784 9.40
2 fNon-Institutions _

(a) Bodies Corporate {Overseas) 9,629,472 32.27

(b) Individuals - -
i. 'ndividual shareholders holding nominal share capital up to ¥ 2 Lakh o . -
Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in excess of ¥ 2 Lakh _ - T T
{c} Other _ - -
i. Non Resident Indians o _
i Clearing Members L B
i Hindu Undivided Family -
Sub Tota! (8)(2) 9629472 _ 32327

Total Public Shareholding {B)= (B{1)+(B}{2) 12,435,256 41.67

{C) Shares held by Custodians and against which depository Receipts have been - -
issued _

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B}+{C} 29,844,486 100

I) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:
The shares of the Companyare in compulsory dematerialization segment and are available for trading system of both the depositoriesin

India viz. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Secufities (India} Ltd. {CDSL). The status of dematerialization
of shares as on 31* March, 2017 is as under:

Particulars No. of shares % of total share capital

Held in dematerialization form in NSDL 29,844,496 100

The equity shares of the Company got listed on May 09, 2017 and are regularly traded on BSE Limited and National Stock
India Limited in electronic form.

m) Outstanding GORs/ ADRs/Warrants: NIL /\(B

& & 0°

L
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Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities:

The Company does not have any commodity risk. Risk
assessment and its minimization procedures have been laid
down by the Company and the same have been informed  b)
to the Board Members. These procedures are periodically
reviewed to ensure that the management controls risk
through means of a properly defined framework.

Plant locations:NIL

Address for correspondence:

Reglstered Office:

Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar,

New Delhi-110044 ]
Tel: +91 11 6667 2000

Fax: 491 11 2367 7446

Email: investors@schandgroup.corn

Compliance Officer:
Mr, Jagdeep Singh
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Email: jsingh.del@schandgroup.com
d}
OTHER DISCLOSURES

Disdosure on materially significant related party
transactions:

All transactions entered into with related party as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013during the financial year
2016-17 were in the ordinary course of business and on
arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant
transactions which were in conflict with the interest of the
Company. The said policy is put on website of the Company
www.schandgroup.com.

Remarks

0

v‘

v
S.CHAND

! PUBLISHING

The suitable disclosures as required by Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind-AS 24) has been made in the notes forming
part of the annual accounts.

Disclosure of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company
by the stock exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years:

The equity shares of the Company got listed on the stock
exchanges on May 09, 2017. Thus, the provisions of the
Listing Regulations were not applicable to the Company in
the financial year 2016-17,

Whistle Blower Policy: "
As required under the provisions of Section 177(9) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regufation 4 of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has formed Whistle Blower
Policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. The same
is hosted on the wehsite of the Company. None of the
employees of the Company have been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

The status of compliance with non-mandatory
requirements is as under:

The equity shares of the Company got listed on the stock
exchanges on May 09, 2017. Thus, the provisions of the
Listing Regulations were not applicable to the Company
in the financial year 2016-17. However, since the Company
was in the process of getting listed and to ensure better
corporate governance the Company adopted the following
requirements: ‘

i
i
i
|
!
i
1

1.

Non-Executive Chairman's Office

The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman and he maintains his own separate

office. The Company does not bear expense of maintaining his office, The
Company pays him sitting fees and reimburse travel expenses for attending the
Board and Committee meetings.

Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year 2016-17 does not
contain any qualification/ modified opinion

Separate Post of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer (Managing Director)

The Company has separate post far Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Audits submitsits report to the Audit Committee on quarterly basis

e}

f)

q}

Mg,

Policy for determining material subsidiary:

The policy for determining material subsidiary has been disclosed on the website of the Company www.schandgroup.com.

Details of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report;
The equity shares of the Company got listed on the stock exchanges on May 09, 2017. Thus, the provisions of the Listing
Regulations were not applicable to the Company in the financial year 2016-17.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:
The Cornpany does not have any shares in the demat suspense/unclaimed suspense account,

A28
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h} Code of Conduct Declaration;
In accordance with Regulation 34{3) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby confirm that all the Members of the Board and Senjor
Management Persunnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct guideline as applicable to them for
the Financial Year ended 31* March, 2017.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For 5 Chand And Company Limited

sd/- sd/-

! Himanshu Gupta Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Place : New Delhi : Managing Director Whole-time Director
Date : August 09, 2017 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00282988

i
]
i
!
f

CERTIFICATE O'lF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

To The Members of

S Chand And Company Limited

Ravindra Mansion,

Rarn Nagar,

New Delhi-110055

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by § Chand And Company Limited {“the Company”) for the
year ended 315t Mafch, 2017, as stipulated in Regulations 17-27 and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D, E and F of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of india {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5{Listing
Regulations’} pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock exchanges.

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with
the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My examination was limited to procedures and implemnentation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
terms and canditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the working of the Company.
| have examined the Statutory Records and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of
providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion
In my opinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to me, | certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

sd/-

CS R S Bhatia
Place : New Delhi Company Secretary in Practicer
Date : August 09,2017 CPNo.2514

5
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Declaration on Compliance of the Company’s Code of Conduct

Ta
The Board of Directars,
5 Chand And Company Limited

The Company has framed a specific Code of Canduct for the members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel
of the Company pursuant to Regulation 17 and 26{3} and Para D of Schedule ¥ of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 with Stock Exchangeto further strengthen corporate governance practices in the Company.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed due observance of the said Code of
Conduct in so far as it is applicable to them and there is no nancompliance thereof during the year ended 31 March, 2017.

Himanshu Gupta

Managing Director

DIN: 00054015

Address: A-27, 2™ Foar,
Place : New Delhi Maohan Co-aperative Industrial
Date : August09, 2017 Estate, New Delhi-110044

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

To,
The Board of Directors
S Chand And Company Limited

We, (Mr. Himanshu Gupta) Managing Directar and {Mr. Saurabh Mittal) Chief Financial Officer of 5 Chand And Company Limited hereby
certify:
{a}l We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended an March 31, 2017 and based on our
knowledge and belief, we state that:
(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statement that
might be misleading;
(il These statements together present a true and fair view of the Campany’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws, and regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are na transactions entered into by the Company during the
year, which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(¢} We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal cantrols far financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design ar aperation of such internal contrals, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps we have taken or propase ta take to rectify these deficiencies.

{d) We have indicated, based on our mast recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
{i}  Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;
(i)  Significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and
(il Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Himanshu Gupta Saurabh Mittal
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of S Chand and Company Limited (Formetly S
Chand and Company Private Limited)

Report on the Financial 5Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand
and Company Private Limited} (“the Company"}, which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’'s Responsihility for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016. This responsibility also includes malntenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the finandal statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
controi relevant to the Company's preparation of the financia
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the standalone finandial statements, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the standalone financial statements
give the information reguired by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017, its profit and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. Asrequired bythe Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 20146
{(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

{b) In our opinion proper beoks of account as required
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The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our oplnion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016;

On the basis of written representations received
from the directors as on 31 March 2017, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31 March 2017, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2} of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

For 5. R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

23 &

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigation on its financial position in its
standalone financial statement. Refer note 33 to
the standalone financial statements.

il. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures
in Note 4B to these standalone financial
statements as to the holding of Specified Bank
Notes on November 8, 2016 and December
30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes during the period from November B,
2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on our audit
procedures and relying on the management
representation regarding the holding and
nature of cash transactions, including Specified
Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures
are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Company and as produced to
us by the Management.

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094947
Place of signature: New Delhi
Date: 12 June 2017

¥
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INDEPENTDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT fcontd)

under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which
are outstanding for more than ninety days.

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH
[1] OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

(W} In our opinion and according to the information and
(il (@) The Company has maintained properrecords showing explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and 186
full particulars, including quantitative details and of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to entitles in
situation of fixed assets. which directors are interested and in respect of loans and
advances given, investments made and guarantees given
(b} Fixed assets have been physically verified by the have been complied with by the Cornpany.
management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification. (v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public,
(¢} According to the information and explanations
given by the management, there are no Immovable (i) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central
properties, includedin property, plant and equipment/ Government has not specified the maintenance of cost
fixed assets of the Company and accordingly the records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for
requirements under paragraph 3{i)(c) of the Order are the products/services of the Company.
not applicable to the Company.
(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident
(i The management has conducted physical verification fund, employees” state insurance, sales-tax, service
of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. tax, value added tax, custom duty, cess and other
Discrepancies noted on physical verification of material statutory dues have generally been regularly
inventories were not material and have been properly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
dealt with in the books of accounts. there has been a slight delay in case of income tax, The
provisions relating duty of excise is not appiicable to
(i) (@) The Company has granted loan to two companies the Company.
covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. in our opinion and (b)  According to the information and explanations given
according to the information and exptanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
to us, the terms and conditlons of the loan are not of income-tax, provident fund, empioyees’ state
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. insurance, sales-tax, service tax, value added tax,
custom duty, cess and other undisputed statutory
(b} In respect of loan granted to companies covered dues were outstanding, at the period end, for a period
in the register maintained under section 189 of the of more than six menths from the date they became
Companies Act, 2013, repayment of the principal payable. The provisions relating to duty of excise is not
amount and receipt of interest is as stipulated. applicabie to the Company.
{c)  There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, {¢}  According to the records of the Company, the dues
firms or othér parties [isted in the register maintained outstanding of income-tax on account of any dispute
are as follows:
Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount (I} Period to which the Forum where dispute
amount relates is pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Incometax 30,267,622 AY 200405 Delhi High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax _ 4459354 AY 2005-06 Delhi High Court
_Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax _ 1,456,060 A 2006-07 __ DelhiHighCourt
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax _ 3,424,588 AY 2007-08 ___ _DelhiHigh Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 15,198,906 AY 200708 ITAT
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax o 4,163,128 AY 200809 Delhi High Count
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 5338597 AY 2009-10 Delhi High Count
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 6,628,820 AY 2010-11 AT B
Income Tax Act 1961 Income tax 8,184,960 AY 201112 ITAT
IncomeTax Act 1961 ~ incometax 9,997,850 AY 2012-13 ITAT
Jncome Tax Act 1961 Income tax o 3,339,530 AY2013-14
_Income Tax Act 1961 income tax 3,093,320 AY 201415
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{viii) In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given by the management, the Company has
not defauvited in repayment of dues to a bank and financial
institution. The Company does not have any dues to in
respect of debenture holders or government.

{ix} In our opinicn and according to information and
explanations given by the management, the Company
has utifized the monies raised by way of term loans for the
purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer or debt instruments.

{x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and
explanaticns given by the management, we report that no
fraud on or by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

{xi} According to the information and explanations given by
the management, the managerial remuneration has been
paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

(xii} In our opinion and according toc information and
explanations given by the management, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

For S. R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAIFrm Registration Number: 107049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

fxiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

3(xli) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by
the management, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv} are not
applicable to the Company and, not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
hirn.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company,

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number; 094841
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 12 June 2017
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INDEPENTDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT feontd.)

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

S CHAND AND COMPANY LIMTED (FORMERLY
S CHAND AND COMPANY PRIVATE LIMTED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"}

To the Members of S Chand and Company Limited [Formerly S
Chand and Company Private Limited)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of 5 Chand and Company Limited (Formerly S Chand
and Company Private Limited) ("the Company”} as of 31 March
2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilitiesinclude the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
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ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial repor ting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal fnancial
contrals over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal cantrol based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal inancial controls systemn over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of Ainancial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generaliy
accepted accounting principles. A company's interpal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policles and
procedures that (1) pertain to the mainterance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assyrance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assats that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financiai
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over finandial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and

'_‘t
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financial controls over finandal reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinian

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based
onthe internal contro over financial reporting criteria established
by the Comnpany considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP per Yogesh Midha
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101045W/E300004 Partner
Chartered Accountants Membership Number: 094941

Place of Signature: New Deihi
Date: 12 June 2017
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BALANCE SHEET

as at March 31, 2017

{Amountin ¥}

Notes 31 March 2016
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds o
Share capital 3 149,222,4B0 2,016,520
Reserves and surplus 4 4,061,931,088 4,837,856,518
5,111,153,568 4,839,573,038
MNon-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 B,052756 7_ 308,362,933
Trade payables 6 4,916,592 2,556,628
Long-term provisions 7 8,464,521 7,681,097
_ 21,433,869 318,600,658
Current liabilities Aop o
Short-term borrowings 8 798,830,366 496,817,235
Trade payables 9 Bege?
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,490:479 1,184,986
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 898,065,323 1,072,187 831
enterprises |
QOther current llabillties 10 1,382,580,985 76,909,336
Short-term provisions 7 110,231,288 49,188,723
3,192,198,141 1,696,288,111
Total . 8,324,785,578 6,854,861,807
Assets _ R
Non-current assets T
Fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment 11a 111,700,380 140,318,074
intangible assets 11b 138235358 115,938,960
Capltal work-in-progress - 103,851
Non-current investments 12 4,700,458,091 3.530,406,824
Deferred tax assets (net) 13 20,163,114 10,890,321
Loans and advances 14 185,989,828 96,445,564
Qther non-current assets 15 4,763,014 7,930,044
5,161,309,786 3,502,033,638
Current assets
Current investments 12 42,715,722 162,309,593
_Inventories 16 527,552,122 596,249,716
Trade receivables 17 2,286,254,155 1,913,809.036
Cash and bank balances 18 146,428,224 99,529,311
Loans and advances 14 155,347,139 177,921,019
Other current assets 15 5,178,430 3,008,494
3,163,475,792 2,952,828,169
Total B8,324,785,578 6,854,861,807
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accempanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements.
As per our report of even date
For S R Batliboi & Assaciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
{CAI Firm reglstration number :101049W/E300004 5 Chand and Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
sd/- sd/-
per Yogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership no: 094941 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988
sd/- sd/-
Place: New Delhi Saurabh Mittal atdeep Singh

Dare: 12 June 2017

Chlef Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2017

'
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{Amount in T}
Notes 31 March 2016
Income '
Revenue from operatlons (net) 19 3,013.,494,442 2,795,564,657
Other income 200 15026689 27,656,117
Total revenue (1) 3,028,521,131 2,823,220,774
Expenses . ;
Cost of published goods/materials consumed 21 935,876,667 1,162,229,782
Publication expenses 22 316.:%997,061 326,752,056
Purchases of traded goods 130050421 252,282,344
Decrease/(increase) in inventories of finlshed goods and traded goods 23 72,819,086 (143,953,634}
Selling and distribution expenses 24 244,1325,454 199,253,821
Employee benefits expenses 25 478,091,349 375,107,937
Other expenses 28 273,:985,056 271,419,606
Total expense () 2,452, 45,095 2,443,091,913
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) {1-11) 576,376,036 380,128,861
Deprectation and amortization expense o 26 72,3}618,773 74,026,094
Finance costs 27 149,047,209 139,275,611
Iterest income 202 (79,503,924) (89,774,760)
Profit before tax 434,213,978 256,601,916
Tax expenses l
Current tax t
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years o 1,496,732 _
Pertaining to profit for the current year 171,{:'}04,394 101,470,213
Deferred tax credit (9,272,793} (7,524,438)
Total tax expenses 163,228,333 93,945,775
Profit for the year 270,985,645 162,656,141
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share T 5] ) 29 5
(a) Basic B | 9.08 5.96
(b Diluted 906 5.95
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year
21

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For 5 R Batliboi & Associates LLP

ICA! Firm reglstration number ;101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha

Partner
Membership no: 09494}

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 June 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
5 Chand and Company Limited

!
sd/- ‘
Himanshu Gupta
Managing Director
DIN; 00054015

) . sd/-
Q\z:} abb Mittal

Financial Officer

sd/-

Savita Gupta
Director

DIN: 00053988

50/-
Jagdeep Singh
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended March 37, 2017

|

H

Notes

A. Cash flow from operating:activities

(Amount in )
31 March 2016

Profit before tax o 434,213,978 256,601,915
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortizatiohn expense . 72,618,773 74,026,004
Profit on sale of fixed assets (riat) . (1.656,216) (2,171,362)
Interest income (78,254,010) (89,774,760)

Evidend income on current investments (18,568) (25,597)
Write back of provision for dir;ninution in value of investments (388,406) -
Net gain on sale of current 3m§re5tments - {6,201,593) {16,422,842)
Provision for doubtful recelvables 24,997,235 15,454,604
Advances written off 7’ - 95,368
Emplayee stock option exper se 12,330,405 5122,242
Interest expense ] - 136,156,101 131,665,926

“Unrealized foreign exchange igain (1,568,393} (2,365,061}
Amortization of ancillary borfowing cost 1,573,044 4,269,680
Operating profit before working capital changes 593,801,950 376,472,298
Movement in working capitat:
Decrease/(increase} in inventorias 68,697,594 (111,111,286}
Increase in trade receivables a {395,890,519) (444,306,693)
Increase in loans and advances B {14,505,291) (10,892,049}
Increase/(decrease) in provisions ) 783,424 (1,185,885)
Decrease in trade payables (170,457,351} (29,015,405)
Increase/{decrease} in currerit liabilities - 28,067,619 (3,303,504}
Cash generated from operations o 110,497,426 (223,342,529)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (94,7568,760) (52,284,790)
Net cash from operating activities (A} 15,728,666 (275,627,314}
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets including capital advances, capital creditors and (66,7655,812} (89,418,709)
capital work-in-progress

7Purchase of non-current investments (1,170,051,267) (813,078,501)
Purchase of current investments {17,716} o (1,059,957,457)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 126,201,593 ) 956,422,842
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 11,421,384 22,733,058
Redemption /maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more 3,258,005 (225,446)
than three months)
Dividend received 18,568 25,597
Interest received 77,613,472 89,616,642

Net cash used in investing activities

<3q

(B} (1,018,21 1;37M3,881,974}

P
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C. Cash flows from financing activities

(Amountin
31 March 2016

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital including securities premium

1,691,269,723

Dividend paid on equity shares (10,082,600} -
Tax on equity dividend paid {2,052,920) -
Payments made for fresh issuance of equity share capital (78,457,887) (10,995,832)
Interest paid on borrowings {136,048,491) (132,393,308)
Repayment of borrowings {1,510,950,626) (552,293,483)
Proceed from borrowings 2,790,150,000 214,408,405
Net cash used in financing activities (€) 1,052,557,476 1,209,995,505
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 50,074,769 40,486,217
Effects of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in [A+B+C) 16,558 {7,275)
foreign currency
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 93,759,050 53,280,108
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 143,850,377 93,759,050
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 3,504,132 9,641,843
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts 134,945,921 B2,222.882
- deposits with original maturity of less than three months 5,400,324 1,894,325
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 18) 143,850,377 93,759,050
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For S R Batliboi & Associntes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ICAI Firm registration number :101045W/E300004 S Chand and Company Limited

Chartered Accountants

sd/- sdr-

perYogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership no: 0954341 DIN: 00054015 DIM: 00053988

sdf- sd/-

Saurabh Mittal
Chief Financial Officer

Jagdeep Singh
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 June 2017

Tz "

ol 10



empowering

YOUNG MINDS

RO A T R R A AT A A P P

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.1
(a}

Corporate information

5 Chand and Company Limited (Formerly known as §
Chand and Company Private Limited) {“the company"}
was a private company incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company has become
a Public Limited Company w.e.f. 8" September 2016 and
consequently the name of the Company has changed from
5 Chand and Company Private Limited to § Chand and
Company Limited. The Company's operations comprises
of publishing of educational books with products ranging
from School Books, Higher Academic Books, Competition
& Reference Books, Technical & professional books and
Children Books.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company
has prepared these financial statements to comply in all
material respects with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016. The finandal statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Change in accounting policy

Disclasure of EBITDA

Till the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had opted
not to disclose EBITDA. from current year onwards, the
Company has elected to present earnings hefore interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITD'A) as a separate
line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/
(loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the
company does not indude depreciation and amortization
expense, finance costs, interest income and tax expense.
The same has been elected by the Company to enable
better presentation of financial statements and enhance
decision making of top management.

b

(c}

{d)

ol 4|

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of cument events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated fmpairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
costsif capitalization criteriaare metand directlyattributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use and inftial estimate of decommissioning,
restoring and similar Jiabilities. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Such costincludesthe cost of replacing part of the property,
plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection s
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in the staterent of profit and loss as
incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant
and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the statement of profit and Joss when
the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment fosses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight {ine basis over
the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a
rebuttable presumption that the ysgf ﬁit’é@f intangible
=
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asset will not exceed tenyears from the date when the asset
is available for use. If the persuasive evidence exists ta the
affect that useful life of an intangible asset exceeds ten
years, the Compary amortizes the intangible asset over the
best estimate of its useful Ife.

The amortization period and the amortization method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortizaticn period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized
asan intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate
all the following:

(e) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

L

v

v
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e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale

¢ {tsintention to complete the asset
¢ ts ability to use or sell the asset
&  how the asset will generate future economic benefits

e the availability of adequate resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset

e the ability to measure relilably the expenditure
attributable totheintangible assetduring development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure
as an asset, the cost model js applied requiring the asset to
be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losse s. Amortization of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use,
Itis amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected
future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful
life of ten seasons. Amortization is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impalrment annually,

Depreciation Is provided using the written down value method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management,
The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

fixed assets

Usefullivesas per  Useful lives estimated by

schedule I the mapagement
Plant and equipment 15years 15-25 years
Office equlpment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 8 years 10 years
Cthers-Computer 3 years 6 years

Leasehold improvementis amortized over economic useful life or
period of lease whichever is ess,

Based on the expected useful life of these assets for the company,
the Company has considered below usefuf lives for different
classes of assets,

The useful lives of vehicles, certain plant and machinery and
computers are estimated as 10, 25 and 6 years respectively. These
lives are higher than those indicated in schedule Il

{f) Leases
Where the Company is lessee
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company islessor

Leases in which Company does not transfer substantially all
* the risk and benefit of ownership of the assets are dassified

as operating leases, Assets subject to operating leases are

induded in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized on
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(g}

{h)

a straight line basis over the lease term. Costs, including
depreciation are recognized as expenses. Initial direct costs
such as legal cost such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc are
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of
ancitlary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they occur.

impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net
selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the assets does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabie
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling
price, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the company’s cash-generating units
to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period
of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.

o? 43

{i)

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including
impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss, except for previously revalued plant,
property and equipment, where the revaluation was taken
to revaluation reserve. In this case, the impairment s also
recognized jn the revaluation reserve up to the amount of
any previous revaluation.

After impairment, deprediation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount,
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptlons used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment lass been recognized for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset s carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended
to be held for not more than one year from the date on
which such investments are made, are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long-
term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost.
The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties

Current investments are carried in the financial statements
at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at
cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.
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Inventories

Raw tnaterials, components, stores and spares are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials
and other items held for use in the production of inventories
are not written down below cost if the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost. Cost of raw materials, components and stores
and spares is determined on a First In First Qut {FIFO} basis,

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on
a First In First out (FIFQ) basis.

Traded goads are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and caondition. Caost is determined on a First In First
out (FIFO) basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred i.e. at the time of handing over goods
to the carrier for transportation. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue s
recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred i.e. at the time of handing over goods
to the carrier for transportation. Sales are net of turnover
discounts and sales returns.

[nterest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under
the head “other income”in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recagnized when thé company's right
to receive dividend Is established by the reparting date.

]

(m)

LhY

Segmentreporting

Identification of segments

The Company's operating businesses are arganized and
managed separately according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing
a strategic business unit that offers different products
and serves different markets. The analysis of geographicat
segments is based on the areas in which majer operating
divisions of the Company operate.

Inter-segment transfers
The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales
and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment
according to the relative cantribution of each segment to
the total common costs. :

Unallocated items

Unallocated items indude general corporate income and
expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company as a whaole.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

{) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

(i)  Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reparting
date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction, Non-monetary items, which
are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, ate translated
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(m)

using the exchange rate at the date when such value
was determined.
(i Exchange differences
The Company accounts for exchange differences
arising on transiation/ settlement of foreign currency
monetary items as below:

1. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign
currency monetary items related to acquisition of a
fixed asset are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset.

2. All other exchange differences are recognized as
income or as expenses in the period in which they
arise.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefitin the form of pravident fund is a defined
contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a Vability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as
an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its
employees, viz, gratuity, The cost of providing benefits
under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried
at using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gain
and loss for defined benefit plan is recognized in full in the
period in which they accur in the statement of profit and
loss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utillzed within
the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
henefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the reporting date.

(o}

(-]

Employee stock compensation cost

Employees (including senior executives} of the Company
receive remuneration in the form of share based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments [equity-settled
transactions).

in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-
based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is
measured using the intrinsic value method. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting perfod has expired and the company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in
the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in
employee benefits expense.

Where the terms of an equity-settied transaction award are
modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. An additiona! expense is recognized
for any modification that increases the total intrinsic value
of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing
differences between taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal
of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date

a5
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it
is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which deferred tax asset can be realized.
Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it
becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharehoclders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present
cobligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
reguired to settle the obligaticn and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

(s)

(t)

(u}

(v}

X 4b

Contingent liabllities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a Hability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liabifity but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule
VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the company has elected
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face
of the statement of profit and loss. The company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profitv (loss} from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the company does not
include depreciation and amortization expense, interest
income, finance costs and tax expense.

Accounting or dividend

The final dividend on shares is recorded as liabifity on the
date of approval by the shareholders, and interim dividends
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the
Company's Board of Directors,

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months
or less.

Annual Report 2016 - 17 | 117
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3  Share capita!

(Armountin %)

31 March 2016
Authorised shares* ) 22,100,000
40,000,000 equity shares of T 5 each {31 March 2016: 2,210,000
equity shares of ¥ 10 each )
Issued share capital* 149,222,480 2,016,520
29,844,496 equity shares of T 5 each (31 March 2016; 201,652
equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Subscribed and paid up share capital* _ 149,222,480 2,016,520

29,844,496 equity shares of T 5 each (31 March 2016: 201,652
equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

a.  Reconciliation of the equity shares cutstanding at the begi d of the reporting year:

31 March 2016

No. of shares {(Amount in T} No. of shares (Amountin¥)
At the beginning of the year 201,652 -2,01-6,52"0 172,353 1,723,530
Issued during the year ~ Share split* B 201 /652 ' - - -
Issued during the year - Bonus issue* - 29,441,192 147,205,960 - .
Issued during the year - Fresh issue - - 29,299 252,990
Outstanding at the end of the year 29,844,496 149,222,480 201,652 2,016,520

b,  Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 5 per share (31 March 2016: ¥ 10 per share). Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the amount of per share interim dividend recognized as distributions to equity
sharehoiders at record date of 28 April 2016 was T 25 per share (31 March 2016: Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the heolders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

¢ Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years irnmediately preceding the reporting date:

31 March 2016

N.of shares No. of shares

) Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of securities premium 2940392 e -

L4}
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d.  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

31 March 2016

No. of % of No. of % of
shares held helding shares held holding

Equity shares of T 5 ( 31 March 2016: T10) each fully

paid-up*

Mrs. Nirmala Gupta _ 720,168 241% 12,866 6.38%
Mrs. Savita Gupta 1312316 440% 16867 8.36%
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 4,064,820 1362% 23,465 11.64%
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 6,167,752 20.67% 36,674 18.19%
Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 3,553,036 11.91% 24,007 1191%
Everstone Capital Partners [l LLC 9,629,472 32.27% 65,064 3227%
_International Finance Corporation 2,805,784 9.40% 18,958 9.40%

As perrecords of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ me mbers and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

e.  Sharesreserved for issue under opticns
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option {(ESGP) plan of the company, please refer note 41.

f. Proposed dividend on equity shares:

(Amountin T)
31 March 2016

The board proposed dividend on equity shares after the balance sheet date:

"Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31 March 2017:3 1.25 per share 317,305,620 -
{31 March 2016: Nil)"
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend 7,806,139 -

g.  The Company has filed Prospectus with the Registrar of the Companies, National Capital Territory of Dethi and Haryana on
2 May 2017 in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as amended. Pursuant to the offer, the Company has allotted 4,850,746 equity
shares of T 5 each at an offer price of T 670 per share induding share premium of T 665 per share on 5 May 2017 under the
fresh issue portion of the Offer. Further, 6,023,236 equity shares offered under the offer for sale by the selling shareholders
are transferred at an offer price of T 670 per share including share premium of T 665 per share. Allotrment has been made to
applicants in various categories as below:

Particulars

Qualified Institutional 8idders 2,174,796
Non-Institutional Investors ) 1,631,098
Retail Individual Investors 3,805,894
Anchor Investors o 3,262,194
Total 10,873,982

*The Company had split its equity shares of face value of T 10 each into face value of T 5 each and further issued bonus shares to the
shareholders in the ratio of 73:1 as per the resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) dated 20 April 2016.
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4. Reserves and surplus

Capital reserve

{Amount in %)
31 March 2016

Balance as per last financial statements 513,000 63,300
Add: on cancellation of forfeited shares*® - 448,700
Closing balance - (A) 513,000 513,000
Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statements 3,638,930,203 1,947,953,470
Add ; premium on issue of equity shares - N - 1,699,634,950
Less: utilization towards share issue expenses - {8,658,257)
Less: utilization towards issue of fully paid bonus shares - n (142,205,960)7 _ -
Closing balance B 3,491,724,243  3,638,930,203
General reserve .
Balance as per last financial statements 603,017,675 603,017,675
Cilosing balance {C) 603,017,675 603,017,675
—Employee stock options outstanding o
Balance as per the last financial statements 5,122,242 -
Add: Compensation options grant:l during the year Ii,BBOAOS 51 22,2427
Closing balance (D) 17,452,647 5,122,242
" Surplus in the statement of profit and lass '
Balance as per ast financlal statements o 590,373,398 427,717,257
Profit for the year o - o 270,985,645 162,656,141
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 861,359,043 590,373,398
Less: appropriations: ~
Interim equity dividend (10,082,600) -
Tax on interim equity dividend 20529200 R
Closing balance (E) 849,223,523 590,373,398
Total reserves and surplus {A+B+C+D+E) 4,961,931,088 4,837,956,518

120 | Annual Report 2016 - 17
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5. Llong term borrowings

{Amount in®)

Non Current portion Current maturities
31 March 2016 rehi ; 31 March 2016

Secured
Term loans
From financial institutions {refer note 'a, 'b, 'c, - 297,128,964 1,297,194,639 20,597,942
'd' and 'e’ below) ]
Vehicle loans o __ __—
From banks (refer note 'f' below) 6,473,932 11,233,969 378,393 4,199,995
From others {refer note 'y’ below} 1,578,824 - ?1_8-,336 -

8,052,756 308,362,933 1,302,294,358 24,797,937
The above amount includes: o
Amount disclosed under the head “other - - (1,36“2,294,3:_":2-3')_ (24,797,937)
current liabilities” (note 10) e e

8,052,756 308,362,933 s -
Netamount 8,052,756 308,362,933 B - ;

Note:- The loan is secured by hypothecation of assets being

a.  Term loan from Siemens Financial Limited taken during
the financial year 2Q13-14, carries interest @ 13.75%.
The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments
beginning from June’ 2013 onwards. The installment
amount ranges from ¥ 182,542 to of T 323,535. The
loan is secured by hypothecation of machine being
purchased, currently valued at ¥ 14,455,375, Further
the loan has been guaranteed by joint & several
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company &
demand promissory note issued in favor of lender. The
loan has been repaid during the current year.

b. Term loan from Siemens Financial Limited taken
during the financial 2014-15, carries interest @ 13.50%
to 13.75%. The loan is repayable In 36 equal monthly
installments beginning from August’ 2014 onwards.
The installment amount ranges from T 335,009 to
of T 542,279 The loan is secured by hypothecation
of assets being purchased, currently valued at
T 14,455,375. Further the loan has been guaranteed
by joint & several personal guarantee of Directors of
the Company & demand promissory note issued in
favor of lender.

¢. Term loan from Siemens Financial Limited taken
during the financial year 2015-16, carries interest
@13.50% . The loan is repayable in 36 egual monthly
instaliments of ¥ 75,879 beginning from April’ 2015.

8o

purchased, currently valuing ¥ 14,455,375,

d.  Term loan from Indo Star Capital Finance has been
taken during the 2014-15 financial year, carries
interest @ 12.50% p.a. to 12.95% p.a. (31 March 2016:
12.85% p.a. to 13.00% p.a.). The loan is repayable in
18 quarterly installments beginning from December’
2014 onwards. Till September 2015, installment
amount ranging from 14,000,000 to T48,461,532
per quarter. On December 2015, Company had
made early repayment of loan facifity amounting to
T35 crore, consequent to that repayment schedule
has been revised. The remaining loan amount is
repayable in 7 quarterly installment beginning from
September 2017 onwards. The installment amount is
ranging from 3,230,773 to T48,461,539 per quarter,
The loan is secured by (i) First and exc|usive charge
on optionally convertible redeemable debentures
of New Saraswati House (india) Private Limited by
way of pledge (i} First and exclusive charge on 98%
equity of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited by
way of pledge (i) Second pari passu charge on the
entire fixed assets of the Company (iv} Second pari
passu charge on all current assets of the Company.
Further the loan facility has been secured demand
promissory note issued in favor of lender. The loan has
been repafd subsequent to balance sheet date on 12
May 2017 and hence has been shown under current
portion.
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Term loan from Axis Finance Limited has been taken
during the nine months period ended 31 December
2016 and carries interest @ 11.25 % p.a. The facility
has been taken for a period of 5 years and is repayable
in 14 equal quarterly installments of ¥ 71,428,571
beginning from June 2018. The facility has been
secured against; (i) second pari passu charge on both
present and future current and fixed assets of the
Company, (ii} pledge on entire stake to be purchased
by the Company i.e, 43.54% of Chhaya Prakashani
Private Limited, {jii} pledge on 20% equity shares of the
Company, (iv) pledge on 100% equity shares of New
Saraswati House (India) Private Limited, subsidiary
Company (v) pledge on 100% equity shares of Eurasia
Publishing House Private Limited, wholly owned
subsidiary company ({vi) charge over publishing
license/ IPRs as well as brand of New Saraswati and
{vii) PDCs for the interest and principal amount. The
above securities are to be shared pari-passu with
respect to both the facilities of Axis Finance Limited
in borrower i.e, the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary Cornpany, Eurasia Publishing House Private
Limited. Furthermore, on acquisition of balance
shares of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited, the
balance shares and the publishing license as well as
the brand is to be charges to Axis Finance Limited.

Moreover, the sanction letter also contains the

mandatory prepayment terms as follows:

- Any change in ownership structure and / or
management control of borrower companies
i.e., the Company and Eurasia Publishing House
Private Limited and security providers i.e, New
Saraswati House (India) Private Limited and
Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited;

6. Trade payables

- Proceeds from any third party by way of further
equity/debt infusion into borrower companies
ie, the Company and Eurasia Publishing House
Private Limited;

- Rating d owngrade

- Merger events

- Interest reset event, in case borrower is not
agreeahle with the revised interest rates,

As the Company has already completed Initial Public
Offering ("IPO") on May 9, 2017, The Company has
disclosed this borrowing as *short term” under
current maturities of long term borrowings. The loan
has been repaid subsequent to balance sheet date on
12 May 20177

Vehicle loans have been taken from HDFC Bank, ICICI
Bank and Vijaya Bank and carry interest @ 10.00%
to 12.00%. The loan is repayable in 36 to 60 equal
monthlyinstallments ranging from ¥ 4,348 to T 99,400.
The loan is secured by hypothecation of respective
vehicles.

Vehicle loan taken during the current year from
Daimler Financial, carry interest @ 9.81% p.a. The
loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly installments
of T128,710. The foan is secured by hypothecation of

respective vehicle,

{Amount in %)
311 March 2016

Trade payables (refer note 31 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

4,916,592 2,556,628

Total

2,556,628

ol5
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7. Provisions

Long-term
31 March 2016

Provision for employee benefits

{Amountin %)
Short-term

«. 31 March 2017 I TP I

Provision for gratuity (refer note 30} 8,464,521 7,681,097 - -
Other provisions -
Provision for income tax {net of advance tax - - 110,231,288 49,188,723
of T 60,773,176 (31 March 2016: ¥ 52,283,192}
Total 8,464,521 7,681,097 110,231,288 49,188,723
8. Shortterm borrowings
{Amountin %)

31 March 2016

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

From banks

Working capital demand loan [vefer note ‘a) ‘b; 'c; 'd" and 'e’ below) 565,000,000 220,000,000
Cash credit {refer note‘f; g, ’h’and ‘' below} 233,830,356 276,817,235
Total 798,830,366 496,817,235

‘[’J’ote Working capital demand loan from HDFC Bank Limited
{under Multiple Banking Arrangement with Indusind
Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank, Standard Chartered Bank
} is secured by way of fist pari passu charge on the
entire existing and future current assets and movable
fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee
of Directors of the Company & Corporate Guarantee
of Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited. This loan
carries interest rate ranging from 9.25% to 10.25% p.a.
(31 March 2016:11.50% t0 12.00% pa}

b.  Working capital demand loan from Kotak Mahindra
Bank taken during the financial year 2015-16. The
facility is secured by way of first pari passu charge
on the entire existing and future current assets and
movable fixed assets {other than those exclusively
charged to other lender, if any) of the Company and
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company.
This loan carries interest rate ranging from 9.35% to
11.39% p.a. {31 March 2016: 10.25% to 10.75% p.a.).

c.  Working capifal demand toan from Standard
Chartered Bank taken during the financial year 2015-
16. The facility is secured by way of first pari passu

REL

charge on the entire existing and future current assets
and movable fixed assets {other than those exclusively
charged to other lender, if any) of the Company and
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company.
This loan carries interest rate ranging from 9.15% to
10.75% p.a. (31 March 2016: 10.25% to 10.50% p.a.).

Working capital demand loan from D8S Bank Limited
taken during the current year is secured by way of first
pari passu charge on the entire existing and future
current assets and movable fixed assets (other than
those exclusively charged to other lender, if any) of
the Company and personal guarantee of Directors of
the Company., This loan carries interest rate ranging
from 9.15% to 9.50% p.a.

Working capital demand loan from DCB Bank Limited
taken during the current year is secured by way of first
pari passu charge on the entire existing and future
current assets and movable fixed assets {(other than
those exclusively charged to other lender, if any) of
the Comparny and personal guarantee of Directors of
the Company. This loan carries interest rate of 535%

pa.
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f. Cash credit from Indusind Bank Limited is secured by
way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing
and future current assets and movable fixed assets
of the Company and parsonal guarantee of Directors
of the Company. It carries interest rate ranging from
12,10% to 12.35% p.a. (31 March 2016: 12.35% to
12,75% p.a.).

g. Cash credit from Kotak Mahindra Bank taken during
the financial year 2015-16, The facility is secured by
way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing
and future current assets and movable fixed assets
(other than those exclusively charged to other lender,
if any} of the Company and personal guarantee of
Directors of the Company. This loan carries interest
rate ranging from 11.08% to 11.22% pa. {31 March
2016:11.22%to 11.30% pa.).

9. Trade payables

Cash credit from Standard Chartered Bank taken
during the financial year 2015-16. The facility is
secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire
existing and future current assets and movable fixed
assets {other than those exclusively charged to other
lender, if any) of the Company and personal guarantee
of Directors of the Company. This loan carries interest
rate ranging from 10.75% to 11.00% p.a. {31 March
2016:10.72% p.a.).

Cash credit from DBS Bank Limited taken during the
current year is secured by way of first pari passu
charge on the entire existing and future current assets
and movable fixed assets {other than those exclusively
charged to other lender, if any) of the Company and
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company. This
loan carries interest rate of 10.85% p.a. to 10.90% p.a.

(Amountin )
31 March 2016

Trade payables

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 31 for 2,490,179 1,184,986

details of dues to micro and small enterprises}

~total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 410,765,696 382,948,171

-total outstanding dues to related entities

487,299,627 689,239,660

Total

900,555,502 1,073,372,817

10. Other current liabilities

(Amountin )

31 March 2016

Current maturities of long term borrowings {refer note 5) 1,302;294,358 24,797,937
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 83,664 264,028
Interest accrued on security deposits _28;1,752 -
Interest on outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 71,519 8,298
Security deposits/earnest money received 19,620,000 620,000
Advance from customers 17,067,355 5,416,012
Statutory dues payable _43,=2__1 9,337 45,803,061
Total 76,909,336

53
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Investments

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(No. of
shares/unit)

[RIERNSTIbd 31 March 2016

Quoted / 31Ma

Unquoted

{No. of
shares/unit)

(Amount in T}
P13F] 31 March 2016

Non-current investments

Trade investments (valued at cost
unless stated otherwise)

Investments in subsidiaries

Unquoted equity instruments

)

100% equity shares of M/s Blackie &

Son (Calcutta) Private Limited of
¥ 1,000 each fully pald up

149

149

Unquoted

60,792,890 60,792,890

(i

100% equity shares of M/s Nirja
Publishers & Printers Private Limited
of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

12,000

12,000

Unquoted

. G

100% equity shares of M/s Safari
Digital Education Initiatives Private
Limited of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

26,584,168

26,584,168

Unquoted

15,600,000 15,600,000

265,841,680 265,841,680

(i)

100% equity shares of Eurasia
Publishing House Private Limited of
¥ 1,000 each fully paid up#

106

106

. Unquoted

116,051,874 116,051,874

(v}

98% equity shares of Vikas Publishing

House Private Limited of ¥ 100 each
fully paid up (refer note 43)*

39,339

39,339

Unguoted

1,502,685,231 1,502,685,231

(vi)

76.05% Equity Shares of New
Saraswati House {India} Private
Limited of ¥ 10 each fully paid up**

15,600

15,600

7Unquoted

(wii}

50.93% Equity Shares of DS Digital

Private Limited of X 10 each fully paid

up

17,686,750

17,686,750

Unquoted

900,782,848 900,782,848

142,506,526

142,506,526

(wiii)

43.53% Equity Shares of Chhaya
Prakashani Private Limited of ¥ 100
each fully paid up***

64,548

Unquoted

1.000,042,164 -

Total'a’

44,402,660

44,338,112

4,004,303,213  3,004,261,049

#100% of equity shares is pledge in favor of Axis Finance Limited {refer note 5(e})
*98% of equity shares is pledge in favor of Indo Star Capital Finance (refer note 5(d))
*£76.10% of equity shares is pledge in favor of Axis Finance Limited (refer note 5(e))

#*243 539 of equity shares is pledge in favor of Axis Finance Limited (refer note 5(e))

b
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31 March 2016

Quoted /
Unquoted

{No. of (No. of
shares/unit) shares/unit)

BPIAFd 31 March 2016

(Amount in )

b. Unquoted preference shares

t

(i)  72.17% Preferance Shares of DS 16,000,000
Digital Private Limited of ¥ 10
each fully paid up (1% optionally
convertible non-curnulative, non-
participating preference shares.}

Unguoted

160,000,000

Total'b' 16,000,000 ~

160,000,000

II. Non-tradeinvestments {(valued at
cost unless stated otherwise)

¢. Investments in preference shares

{iy  Essar Gujrat Limited (shares of ¥ 1,600 1,600
37.14 each} {At cost less provision for
other than temporary diminution of
¥59,425)

Unquoted

(i) Zee Entertainment Enterprises 4,200 4,200
Limited 6% preference shares (bonus)

Unquoted

(i)  Smartivity Labs Private Limited 5,064 4164
{0.001% compulsorily convertible
cumulative prefarence shares of T10
each)

Unquoted

15,630,741

6,138,441

Total 'c' 10,864 9,964

15,630,741

6,138,411

d. Investments indebentures

() 12% Secured redeemable non- ) 100 100
convertible debenturas of T 60 aach
fully paid-up in MGF

Unquoted

6,000

6,000

(i)  13.25% optionally convertible 5,200 5,200
redeemable debentures of ¥100,000
each fully paid up in New Saraswati
House {India) Private Limited
(pledged in favor of Indo Star Capital
Finance {refer note 5{d))

Ungquoted

520,000,000

520,000,000

Total 'd’ 5,300 5,300

520,006,000

e. Investments in equity instrument

! 520,006,000

(i)  Smartivity Labs Private Limited 50 1
(equity share)

Unquoted

518137

1.334

Total ‘e’ 50 1

518,137

1,334

Total non-current investments 60,418,874 44,353,377
{a+b+c+d+e)

4,700,458,091

3,530,406,824

Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments

4,700,458,091

3,530,406,824

Aggregate provision for diminution in
value of investments

RS F
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{Amountin T)
31 March 2016

IRIPCORTEPE 31 March2016  Quoted/
B, L Unquoted

B. Currentinvestments (valued at
lower of cost and fair value, unless

stated otherwise)

a. Investments in equity instruments
(Quoted)

{)  Freshtop Fruits Limited (equity shares 1,000 1,000 Quoted 26,500 16,800
of T10 each)

(i)  Kitply Industries Limited {(equity < 100 100 Quoted - -
shares of ¥10 each) _

{iii) Mahaan Foods Limited (equity shares 42,564 42,564 Quoted 679.804 393,717
of T10 each)

{iv) ORG Informatics Limited (equity 100 100 Quoted - -
shares of ¥10 each}

{v) Pentamedia Graphics Limited (equity 10,457 10,457 Quoted 6,274 5,438
shares of ¥1 each)

{vi) Vardhman Concrete Limited {equity 2,000 2,000 Quoted 22,800 25,05
shares of T10 each)

{vii) Zee Entertainment Limited (equity 100 100 Quoted 20,990 20,950
shares of 1 each)

{viil} Zee Entertainment Limited {bonus 100 100 Quoted - -
shares)

(i) Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited 15,880 15,880 Quoted 93,990 -
{equity shares of ¥10 each)

() DSQ Software Limited (equity shares 2,000 2,000 Quoted - -
of T10 each)

{xi} Nextgen Animation Media Limited 40 40 Quoted - -
(equity shares of 10 each})

(xii) Silverline Tech EQ (equity shares of 100 100 Quoted - -
10 each}
Total 'a’ 74,441 74,441 850,358 461,945

b. Investmentsin equity instruments
(Unquoted)

(i)  Bharat Glass Tubes Limited {equity 1,000 1,000  Ungquoted - .
shares of T 100 each}
Totsl'b’ 1,000 1,000 - e

¢.  Investments in mutual funds
{Quoted) o

(i)  Principal Monthly Income Plan - 83,834 82,212 Quoted 865,364 847,648
Dividend Reinvestment Monthly

(i) HDFC LIQUID FUND Direct Plan - 40,359 Quoted - 120,000,000
Growth option ’
Total ¢’ 83,834 122,571 865,364 120,847,648

07
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(Amountin¥)
31 March 2016

31 March 2016  Quoted /
Unquoted §

d. Investments in preference shares
{Unquotaed)
(it  Walldorf integration Solutions 512,500 512,500 Unguoted 41,000,000 41,0070,@
Limited {Formerly Citixsys
Technologies Limited) (redeemable
preference shares of ¥ 10 each fully
paid up} {refer note 44)

Total'd' 512,500 512,500 41,000,000 41,000,000
Total current investments 671,775 710,512 42,715,722 162,309,593
(a+b+c+d) L

Aggregate book value of quoted 1715722 121,309,593
investments

Aggregate market value of quoted 2,315,771 121,761,673
investments )

Aggregate amount of unguoted 41,000,000 41,000,000
investments

13. Deferred tax assets (net)

{Amount inT)
31 March 2016

Deferred tax assets
“Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in 4,_2i3,s35 5,293,530

the current year
but allowed for tax purposes on payment basls in subseguent years”

Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and 1,491,511 -

depreciation/amortization charged in the financial statements

Provision for doubtful debts 14,452,767 8,288,971

Gross deferred tax assets A 20,163,114 13,582,501

Deferred tax liability -

Fixed asset;: impact of differences between tax depreciation and ' - 2,692,180

depreciation/amortization charged in the financial statements

Gross deferred tax liability (B} - 2,692,1 80
' Net deferred tax assets -  (a-B) 20,163,114 10,890,321

26 4
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Capital advances
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Non-current

31 March 2016

(Amountin)

Current

31 March 2016

Unsecured, considered good 10,124 9,313,107 - -
10,124 9,313,107 - -
Security deposit - e
Unsecured, considered good 34,324,694 33963973 2,952,130 2,952,130
34,324,694 33,963,973 2,952,130 2,952,130
Loans and advances to related parties
(refer note 40)
Unsacured, considered good 132,728,151 17,432,815 23,100,683 141,728,051
132,728,1 51 17,432,815 23,100,683 141,728,051
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - o
Unsecured, considered good - “ 115,673,919 20,530,875
- - 115,673,919 20,530,875
Other loans and advances T
Unsecured, considered good B B
“Advance income tax (net of provision for 18,876,551 35,566,360 - -
taxation of ¥427,986,219
(31 March 2016:3587,169,790))"
Prepaid expenses 50,309 169,309 10,379,586 9,937,775
Balances with statutory/ government - - 3,240,821 2,772,188
authaorities
18,926,860 35,735,669 13,620,407 12,709,963
Total 185,989,829 96,445,564 155,347,139 177,921,019
15. Other assets
Amountin ¥)
Current

Unsecured, considered good unless stated

Non-current

31 March 2016

31 March 2016

otherwise
Non-current bank balances (refer note 18) 4,461,124 4,526,716 - .
4,461,124 4,526,716 - -
Unamortized expenditure i
Ancillary cost of arranging the borrowings - 3,146,080 3,146,080 1,573,040
- 3,146,080 3,146,080 1,573,040
Others o
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 301,890 257,248 2,032,350 1,436,454
301,890 257,248 2,032,350 1,436,454
Total \ 4,763,014 7,930,044 5,178,430 .. 3,009,494

b 0
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16. Inventories {valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

(Amountin®
31 March 2016

Raw materials (refer note 21) _ 6,283,642 2,162,150
Finished goods .
Finished goods trefer note 23) _ 511,427,173 575,691,590
Traded goods {refer note 23) 9,841,307 18,395,976
Total 527,552,122 596,249,716
17. Trade receivables
(Amountin %}

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are
due for payment

31 March 2016

Unsecured, considered good 146,275,673 208,577,256
Doubtful 41,761,347 23,951,027
188,037,020 232,528,283
Less: provision for doubtful receivables {41,761,347) (23,951,027}
. 146,275,673 208,577,256
Other receivables ] '
Unsecured, considered good 2,139,978,482 1,705,231,780
- 2,139,978,482 1,705,231,780
Total 2,286,254,155 1,913,809,036
Trade receivableincludes
(Amountin T}
‘Marcn-2( 31 March 2016
Due from DS Digital Private Limited in which the Company’s director is a director 18,036,746 76,253,312
Due from New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited in which the Company’s director 5,776,240 5,693,109
is a director
18. Cash and bank balances
(Amountin T}

Cash and cash equivalents

Current

| March 2017

31 March 2016

Balances with banks:

-On current accounts - - 134,945,921 82,222,882
-Deposits with original maturity of less than - - 5,400,324 1,894,325
three months _

Cash on hand - - 3,504,132 9,641,843
Total _ - - 143,850,377 93,759,050
Other bank balances

Deposits with remaining maturlty for more 4,356,124 4,421,716 - .
than 12 months ~

Depasits with remaining maturity for more - - 2,577,8? 5,770,261

than 3 months but less than 12 months
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Non-current
31 March 2016 8

(Amount in T}

31 March 2016

105,000 105,000 .

-Margin money deposit - sales tax -
o 4,461,124 4,526,716 2,577,847 5,770,261
" Amount disclosed under non- current assets {4,461,124) (4,526,718) - -

(refer note 15) -

- - 2,577,847 5,770,261

Total - - 146,428,224 99,529,311
19. Revenue from operations (net}

(Amountin T}
31 March 2016

Sale of products

Finished goods (published titles) 2,871,808,007 251 l),_471.670

Traded goods (titles not published) 166,538,226 266,312,657

3,038,3456,233 2,776,784,327

Lass: turnover discount (44,304,188) (34,430,283)

2,994,042,045 2,742,354,044
_Qther operating revenue o

Sale of paper - 28,888,509

Lease income 17,156,703 21,760,479

Scrap sale 2,301,694 2,296,475

Training income - 265,150

Revenue from operations (net) 3,013,494,442 2,795,564,657
_Detalls of products sold '

Finished goods sold
Sale - books (export) 28,104,788 31,909,702

Sale - books 2,843,703,219 2,478,561,968

2,871,808,007 2,510,471,670

Traded goods sold

Sale - 8Books B 166,538,226 266,312,657

166,538,226 266,312,657

20. Other income
(AmountinT)
31 March 2016

Dividend income on current investments 25,597

Net gain on sale of current investments 6,201,593 16,422,842

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 1656216 217,362

Duty drawback ‘ 1,727.821 1,154,809

Miscellaneous income 5033,685 5,231,674

Reversal of temporary diminution in value of investments ___ 388,406 ) -

Exchange differences {net} - 2,649,833
Total 15,026,689 27,656,117
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 fcantd.)

20.1. Interest income

Interest income on

{Amount in )
31 March 2016

-from bank deposits 888,532 7,3._03,903
- Incorne tax refund 1,245,915 -
-from others . 77,365,477 82,465,852
Total 79,503,924 89,774,760
21. Cost of published goods/materials consumed
{(Amount in T
31 March 2016
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,162,350 15,004,498
Add : purchases of published goods 920,520,791 1.116,426,317
Add : purchases of CDs 19,477,368 12,961,118
942,160,309 1,164,391,932
Less: inventory at the end of the year 6,283,642 2,162,150
Cost of published goods/materials consumed 935,876,667 1,162,229,782
Details of published goods/raw material purchased

Books 920,520,791 1,116,426,317
CDs, tablets and others 19,477,368 12,961,118
939,998,159 1,129,387,435

Details of inventory .
CDs and others 6,283,642 2,162,150
6,283,642 2,162,150

22. Publication expenses

(Amountin®
31 March 2016

283,640,438

Royalty 290,038,179
Processing charges B 40,418 2,886,659
“Block and composing 149,848 463,268
Other publication expenses 33,166,357 33,363,950
Total 316,997,061 326,752,056
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23. Decrease / (increase} in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

(Amountin®)
31 March 2016

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 521,268,480 594,087,566
521,268,480 594,087,566

Inventories at the beginning of the year L

Finished goods 594,087,566 450,133,932
594,087,566 450,133,932

Decrease / (increase) in inventories 72,819,086 {143,953,634)

Details of inventory:

Finished goods

Manufactured goods

Books i 511,427,173 575,691,590

Traded goods o

Books 9841307 18,395,976

Tablets - -

" 521,268,480 594,087,566

24. Selling and distribution expenses

{AmountinT)

31 March 2016

Advertisement, publicity and exhibition 60,038,441 42,782,353
Freight and cartage outward 66,562,067 58,111,058
Packing and dispatch expenses . 8,453,508 7,141,786
Vehicle running & maintenance 19,008,533 16,778,388
Travelling and conveyance 50,504,004 43,306,534
Leases rent - vehicles 1,82— 1,996 2,053,772
Rebate and discount 37,936,905 29,079,930
Total 244,325,454 199,253,821

25. Employee benefits expense

(Amountin?)

31 March 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus 403,920,293 . 318,420,507
Contribution to provident and other funds 26,927,295 23,504,352
Gratuity expense (refer note 30} v 6,203,968 4,413,771
Employee stock option expense (refer nate 41) 12,330,405 5,122,242
Staff welfare expenses 28,709,388 23,647,065
Total M1,349 375,107,937
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for the year ended March 31, 2017 fcontd.}

26. Depreciation and amortization expense

43,037,746

{Amountin®)
31 March 2016

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 55,648,970
Amartization of intangible assets 29,581,027 18,377,124
72,618,773 74,026,094

27. Finance costs
(Amount in %)

Intere st expense

311 March 2016

-pn term loan _ 77, 997 365 80,535,965
- on others B 58,158,235 ‘ 51,129,961
Bank charges 110409 1,727,546
Loan processing fees L 11,787,019 5,882,139
149,047,209 139,275,611
28. Dther expenses
(Amount in T)
31 March 2016
Rent 98,797, 735_ B 90,074,223
Repairs and maintenance o
- Plant and machinery 164,964 56,4?
~8uilding 144,360 299603
-0Others 17,649,225 15,450,182
Insurance 3884240 ] 3,187478
Rates and taxes 315,552 o 412,H
Communication cost 14,522,798 . 13931773
Printing and stationery 2176,541 1,772,030
Legal and professional fee (includes prior period of ¥ Nil 26,550,784 59,060,347
(31 March 2016: T 2,608,122) _
Donations o 5433 93,400
Payment to auditor {refer details below) _ _ 3,450,000 3,112,500
Water and electricity charges 11,006,421 T 121724%
Bad debt written off 7,186,914 7030314
Less: bad debts written off against opening provision {7,186,914) - (7,030,314 -
Provision for doubtful receivables o 24,997,235 ) 15,454,694
Recruitment expenses 925,763 ) 1,047,615
Outsourced employee cost 43,235,612 32,235,579
Office expenses - 4,768,015 B 5,418,434
T 12296480

Security charges

d45
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{Amount in T}

31 March 2016

2719186

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 47) 2,147,000
Director sitting fees 645478 -
Exchange differences (net) 733,747 -
Miscellaneous expenses 4,995,128 6,286,943
o 273,985,056 271,419,606
Payment to auditor® -
As auditor
Audit fee o 3,450,000 3,112,500
Total 3,450,000 3,112,500
29. Earnings per share {EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
{(Amount in T)

Total operations for the year

31 March 2016

Profit after tax 270,985,645 162,656,141
Less: dividends and dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS . B ' 270,9B5,645 162,656,141
Net profit as above 270,985,645 162,656,141
Add :dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS 270,985,645 162,656,141
Welghted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS* 29,844,496 27,273,549
Effect of dilution: '

Stock options granted under ESOP 52,911 53,872
_W’eighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 2?,397,407 27,327,421
?amings per equity share (EPS) [nominal value of share ¥5) o

(a) Basic 9.08 5.96

{b) Diluted 9.06 595

*The Company had split its equity shares of face value of T 10 each into face value of T 5 each and further issued bonus shares
to the shareholders in the ratio of 73:1 as per the resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) dated 20 April 2016.

Consequently, earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 has been restated.

30. Gratuity benefits plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity
on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, The

scheme is funded with Kotak Life Insurance and LIC.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the

funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

RS
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Statement of profit and loss

T March 2017

tAmount In %)
31 March 2016

Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

Current service cost 5,295,698 4,716,795
Interest cost on benefir obligation 2,421,030 2,929,7?
?m:ected return on plan assets (2,31 1,175)_ ) (2,668,921)
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture 1,218,922 —7—991,41 9
Net actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the year 7 {420,503) (1,555,243)
Net henefit expense 6,203,968 4,413,771
Actual return on plan assets o
Expected return on plan assets 2311179 2,668?3?
Actuarial galn / (loss) on plan assets 903,314 (1,845,624)
Actual return on plan assets 3,2 14,.4:93" 823,297
Balance sheet
Benefit Liability .
Present value of defined benefit obligation 4(},387 6:37 36,751,947
Fair value of plan assets o 31,923,116 29,070,850
Plan liability o 8,464,521 7,681,097
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Opening defined benefit obiigation 6,751,947 41,623,341
Interest cost 42703 2,929,721
arrent service cost ) 4,716,795
 Benefits paid {5,782,771) (10,108,461}
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture 71,218,922 991,419
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation - 482,811 (3,400,868)
Closing defined benefit obligation 40,387,637 316,751,947
Changes in fair value of plan assets e
Opening fair value of plan assets 29,070,850 32,756,359
Expected return 2,311,179 2,668,921
Contributions by employer 5,420,544 533,386
Benefit paid (5,782,771) (9,892,692)
Actuarial gain / {loss) 903,314 {1,845,624)
Closing fair value of plan assets 11,923,116 29,070,850
The Company expects to contribute T 756,610 to gratuity in the next year (31 March 2016:%2,273,900)
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
(Amountin ¥)
31 March 2016
Kotak Life Insurance and LIC 1% 100%
oD
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratutty obligation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

(Amountin®)

31 March 2016

Discount rate 7.35% B8.05%
_Rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.75%
Salary escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Employee turnover Service upto 5 Sarvice upto 5
years: 5% years: 5%

Service above 5 Service above 5

year: 1% ___yeart1%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period
over which the obligation is to be settled, There has been significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the

market scenario.

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

{Amount in®)

€ 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Defined benefit obligation 40,387,637 36,751,947 41,623,341 36,380,597 32,052,760
Plan assets 31,923,116 29,070,850 32,756,359 31,266,056 28,375,118
{Surplus)/ deficit 8,464,521 7,681,097 8,866,582 5,114,541 3,677,642
Experience adjustments on plan assets 903,314 {1,845,624) 3275435  {402,237) (88,664}
Experience adjustments on plan liability (2,660,704) (2,376,221) 3,173,625 1,908,157 3,305,914

31. Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

(Amountin 3)
31 March 2016
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year )
Principal amount dug to micro and small enterprises 2490179 1,184_1,986
Interest due on above _ 11,519 B 8,298

2,501,698 1,193,284
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 - -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year .

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delayin making payment {which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. o
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 11,519 8,298
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act 2006

32. Capital and other commitments
(Amountin ¥)
31 March 2015

_a. Capital commitments {net of advances) 85341 16,697,310
b. for commitrments relating to lease arrangements, please refer note 34

268 z
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33. Contingent liabilities

{Amountin®)
31 March 2016

Corporate guarantee (refer note 'a’ below} 1,748,817,642 1,051,182,615
Stamp duty {refer note 'b’ below} 95,013,220 —95,01 3,220
Registration fee {refer note b’ below) _ _E;,‘[ 54,800 - -
Incorme Tax demand {refer note 'c’ below)_ | 671,657 563,433T

a. Corporate guarantee incdudes guarantees given by
the Company to banks and financial institutions
against loans taken by the subsidiaries.

b.  Duringthe year 2015-16, the Company received notice
under Indian Stamp Act, 1899 for non-payment of
stamp duty on transfer of property on amalgamation
and demerger held in the financial year 2011-12.
The district registrar contented that order of Hon'ble
High Court for amalgamation and demerger does not
grants exemption inrespect of payment of stamp duty.

During the year, the Company has also received
a demand notice from the Sub-Registrar under
section 80A of the Registration Act, 1908 wherein
the authority has directed the Company to
pay additional registration fee of ¥ 9,154,800,

As per the legal opinion obtained, management is of
the view thatnoliabllity would accrueon the Company
an account of such case. Accordingly, no pravision has
been made In these financial statements.

¢.  Inrespectof AssessmentYear 2006-2007, demand was
raised due to disallowance of certain expenses under
section 14A of the Income Tax Act and also certain
penalty proceedings on the above issue. The matter
is pending with the Assessing officer. The amount
involved is T 568,483 (31 March 2016: ¥ 568,483).

In respect of Assessment Year 2014-2015, demand was
raised due to disallowance of certain expenses under
section 36(1){va} of the income Tax Act. The matter is
pending with CIT(A). The amount involved is¥ 103,174
(31 March 2076: Nil}.
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The Company is contesting the demands and the
management, including its tax advisors, believe that
its position will likely be upheld in the appellate
process. No tax expense has been accrued in the
financial statements for the tax demand raised. The
management believes that the ultimate outcome
of this proceeding will not have any impact on the
Company’s financial pasition.

d.  There are several legal cases initiated against the
Company by the employees for farceful termination,
payment of arrears etc. These cases are pending at
different labour and civil courts. However, as per
the legal opinions obtained, the management of
the Company is of the view that no liability would
accrue on the Company on account of any such cases.
Accordingly, no provision has been made inthe books
of account for the same.

34. Leases

Operating lease: Company as lessee

a.  The Campany has taken premises for office use under
cancellable operating lease agreements. The tatal
lease rentals recognized as an expense during the year
under the above lease agreements aggregates to ¥
98,797,734 (31 March 2016:% 90,074,223). These lease
have average life of between one to nine years. There
are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreements,
There are no sub [eases.

b.  The Company has taken vehicle for office use under
cancellable operating lease agreements, The total
lease rentals recognized as an expense during the
year under the above lease agreements aggregates to
T 1,821,996 (31 March 2016: 2,053,772). There are no
restrictions imposed by the lease agreements. There
are no sub leases,

-
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Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
{Amount in T}
31 March 2016

Minimum lease payment

Within one year 13,303,964 13,303,964
After one year but not more than five years B 53,215,857 53,215,857
More than five years 16,629,955 29,933,819

83,149,776 96,453,740

Operating lease: Company as lessor

a.  The Companyhas given plant and equipment, and Computer under cancellable operating lease agreements. The total lease
rentals recognized as an income during the year under the above lease agreements (excluding interest) aggreqgates to T
17,150,703 (31 March 2016: ¥ 21,760,479).

35. Unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company does not use derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts or options to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations or for trading/speculation purpose,

The amount of foreign currency exposure not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise is as under:

(Amount in T)
31 March 2016
Trade receivable USD 462,584 @ USD 581,000 @
364.84 per USD 66.33 per USD
¥29,993,947) (¥38,539,428)
Cash on hand USD 180 @ T64.84 Uso1,133@7
per USD 66.33 per USD
) 11,671} ®75,152)
Cash on hand EURO 100 @ EURC 300 @
¥65.25 per USD 75.12 per USD
6,925} (X22,536)
36. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

{Amount in T)
31 March 2016
Epital goods - 1,455,379
- 1,455,379

37. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(Amount in T}
31 March 2016
Exhibition expenses 565,660 651,590
Travelling and conveyance 5,899,128 2,678,860
Legal and professional fee 104,054 -
6,568,843 3,330,450
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38. Imported and indigenous raw materials consumed

3 : 31 March 2016
Percentage (30) {AmountinT) Percentage (%) {Amountin )

Raw materials

Imported - - - -

Indigenously obtained o 100% 935,876,667 100% 1162229782
100% 935,876,667 100%  1,162,229.782

39. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

{Amount in %)

_ 31 March 2076

Sale of products 28,104,788 31,909,702
28,104,788 31,909,702

40. Related party disciosure

Related parties and their relationship

Related parties where control exists;
Subsidiary companies 1 Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Lirited

: Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

: Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited

: Blackie & Son {Calcutta) Private Limited

: BPI (India) Private Limited
i\rch Papier Mache Private Limited (till 8 Dec 2016)
- Vikas Publishing House Private Limited o
. DS Digital Private Limited N

1 New Saraswati (India) Private Limited

: 5 Chand Edutech Private Limited
:7Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited {(w.e.f 5 December 2016)

: Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited {w.e.f 5 December
2016)

: Publishing Services Private Lim;c-ed {w.ef5 December 2016)

Refated parties under AS 18 with whom transactions

have taken place during the year:

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel : Hotel Tourist (Partnership firm)
or their relatives exercise significant influence

: Raasha Entertainment & Leisure LLP
: 5 Chand Hotels Private Limited
: SC Hotal Tourist Deluxe Private Umited

: Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited
. 5 Chand Properties Private Limited
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: Shyam Lal Charitable Trust

: Shyamlal Nursing Home & Medical Research Centre Private Limited

: RKG Hospitalities Private Limited

: Smartivity Labs Private Limited (w.e.F. 05 August 2015)

Associate

: Edutor Technologies India Private Limited

Key Management Personnel {(KMP) & their relatives

- Mrs. Nirmala Gupta

: Chair Person and Managing Director (till 20 May 2016}

- Mrs, Savita Gupta

: Whole-time Director {till May 20, 2016)

Director (wef. 20 May 2016)

- Mr. Himanshu Gupta

: Joint Managing Director {till 20 May 2016)

Managing Director {w.ef. 20 May 2016}

- Mrs, Ankita Gupta

: Whole-time Director (till 20 May 2016)

- Mr, Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

: Vice Chair Person and Director Finance (till 20 May 2016)

Whole-time Director (w.e.f. 20 May 2016)

- Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala

: Whole time Director (till May 20, 2016)

- Mr. Gaurav Jhunjhnuwala

: Director

- Mr. Saurabh Mittal

: Chief Financial Officer

- Mr. Jagdeep 5ingh

: Company Secretary {w.e.f. 30 December 2015)

Relatives of KMP

: Mr. Ravindra Kumar Gupta

: Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala (w.e.f, 20 May 2016)

{Amountin®)
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significantinfluence their relatives
Purchase of books, CDs and toys
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 206,297,499 - - 206,297,499
468,220,876.73) - - (468,220877)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 824,452,750 - - 824,452,750
(890,382,620} - - (890,382,620)
BPI {India) Private Limited 4,647,917 - - 4,647,917
(610,781) - - {610,781)
New Saraswati (India) Private Limited - - - -
(7167) - - {7,167)
Smartivity Labs Private Limited - 384,670 - 384,670
Royslty expense
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 18,420,149 - - 18,420,149
{19,691,245) - - {19,691,245)
Blackie & Son {Calcutta) Private Limited 2,667,468 - - 2,667,468
{4,035,634)

{4,035,634) - -
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(Amount in T}
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significant influence their relatives
BPI {India) Private Limlited 590,883 - - 590,883
(674,57} - - (674,5'W
Purchase- {Other] from
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited - 1,190,347 - 1,190,347
- (1,271,276) - 27,278
S Chand Hotels Private Limited - - - -
- {849,343) - (849,343)
Hotel Tourist - 4158213 - 4,158,213
- {4,409,839) - {4,409,839)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 1,826,720 - - 1,826,720
(4,782,387) - - {4,782,387)
BPI (India) Private Limited - o ; -
(2,263,239) - . (2263239
DS Digital Private Limited - - - -
{92,625) - - {52,625)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 672,240 - - 672,240
(1,497,174) - T (49774
Purchase of fixed asset -
DS Digital Private Limited - - -
(22,658,070) - - (22,658,070)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited - - i -
(276,266) - - {276,266)
Sales of books, fixed assets and paper -
BPI (India} Private Limited 2,703 - - 2,703
(339,735) ) - (339,733)
New Saraswati House Private_Limited 83,131 - - 83,131
(317,221} - - {317,220
DS Digital Private Limited 66,278 - - 66,278
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 2,380,172 - - 2,380,172
{425,564) - - (425,564}
ﬁ%s Publishing House Private Limited (Paper{ - - - -
(30,314,334) . - (30,314,334)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (fixed - - . .
assets)
(15,588,123} - - (15,588,123)

T s
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{Amount in T
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significantinfluence their relatives
Other expenses paid {reimbursement)
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 506,517 - - 506,517
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 901,993 - - 901,993
S Chand Edutech Private Limited 4,474,378 - - 4,474,378
BPI (India) Private Limited 159,105 - - 159,105
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 1,096,154 - - 1,096,154
(2,235,475) - - (2,235,475)
Safarl Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 665,253 - - 665,253
{297,308) - - (297,308)
DS Digital Private Limited 219,533 - - 219,533
(1,781,161) - - (1,781,161)
Shyam Lal Charitable Trust - 24,205 - 24,205
- (6,035) - (6,035)
S Chand Properties Private Limited - - - -
- {15,545) - (15,545)
S Chand Hotels Private Limited - . N R
- (614) - {614
New Saraswati House Private Limited 476,521 - 476,521
{2,214,737) - (2,214,737)
Rentals paid
Arch Papier Mache Private Limited 14,415,326 - - 14,415,326
{20,767,554) o - - (20,767,554}
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 11,032,000 - - 11,032,000
(10,933,760} - - (10,933,760)
S Chand Properties Private Limited - 28,836,802 - 28,836,802
- (28,596,136) - (28,596,136)
Mrs.Savita Gupta - - 3,140,176 3,140,176
- - (2,188,272) (2,188,272)
Mrs.Neerja Jhunjhnuwala - - 2,284,660 2,284,660
- - {2,266,426) (2,266,426)
Ravindra Kumar Gupta - - 1,189,392 1,189,392
. - (1,178,794) (1,178,794)
Com,
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(Amountin®)
Mature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises aver Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significantinfluence their relatives
Corporate social responsilbility (CSR)
Shyam Lal Charitable Trust - - i . .
- (1,% - {1,500,000)
Lease rent received from .
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 300,000 - - 300,000
(1,800‘000l o - (1,800,000}
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
DS Digital Private Limited - 15,350,703 - 15,350,703
] (19,960,479) - - (19960479)
Interest income B ) T
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 3,541,485 - 3,541,485
New Saraswati House Private Limited 68,900,004 = 68,900,004
‘ (68,900,004) - (68,900,004)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited - - -
(1,406,025) - (1,406,025)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 2,087,789 - - 2,087,789
(1,590,905) - (1,590,905)
DS Digital Private Limited 2,836,199 T - 2,836,199
(10,568,918) - (10,568,918)
Miscellaneous income N -
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 3,566,322 - 3,566,322
Loans given
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 110,229,989 - 110,229,989
Safarl Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited - R T
 (16000000) e - (16,000,000)
Remuneration to KMP - o
Mrs, Nirmala Gupta o 164,516 164,516
- (1,200,000} (1,200,000
M. Gaurav Jhunjhunwala - 200,000 200,000
] "~ (1,200,000) (1,200,000)
Mrs.5avita Gupta - 400,000 400,000
- {2,400,000) (2,400,000)
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala - 10,192,0_60_ 10,191,—030_
- (3,600,000  (3,600,000)
_Mr. Himanshu Gupta - 10,192,000 10,192,000
- - {3,600,000) {3,600,000)
& Comy
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(Armount in ¥)
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significant influence  their relatives
MrsNeerja Jhunjhnuwala - - 164,516 164,516
- - (1,200,000 (1,200,000}
Mrs. Ankita Gupta - - 164,516 164,516
- - (1,200,000} (1,200,000)
Saurabh Mittal - - 9,432,428 9,432,428
- - (79506200  (7,950,620)
- Jagdeep 5ingh - - 7,413,641 B 7,413,641
- _ - (956,468) (956,468)
Investment made during the period
DS Digital Private Limited (Preference shares) 160,000,000 - - 160,000,000
Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited (Equity shares) 1,000,042,164 - ~ 1,000,042,164
New Saraswati House Private Limited {equity - - - -
share) -
(809,546,848) - - (809,546,848)
Srnartivity Labs Private Limited {Equity shares) - 516,803 - 516,803
- {1.,334) - (1,334)
;artivity Labs Private Limited (Preference shares) - 9,492,300 - _79,492,300
- (6,138,441} - (6,138,441}
Balances outstanding as at 31 March 2017 i )
Security deposit receivable
Arch Papier Mache Frivate Limited - - - -
{9,117,108) - - (9.117,108)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 4,800,000 - - 4,800,000
{4,800,000) - - (4,800,000)
S Chand Properties Private Limited “ 12,546,828 - 12,545,31;
- (12,546,828) - {12,546,828)
Mrs. Savita Gupta - - 535,080 535,080
- - (390,000} {390,000)
Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala - - 118,422 118,422
- - (118,422) (118,422)
Ravindra Kumar Gupta - - 408,750 408,750
- - (408,750) {408,750)
Loans and advances
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 112,910,810 - - 112,910,810
Safari Digital Education Initlatives Private Limited 20,847,662 - j “ 20,847,662
' (18,534,036) - - {18534,036)
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{Amounmtin®)
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total
which KMP or their Managerial
relatives exercise Personnel &
significantinfluence their relatives
DS Digital Private Limited - - - -
{85,860,748) - - (86,860,748)
S Chand Edutech Private Lirnited 12,416,786 - - 12,416,786
(7,942,408) - - (7.542,408)
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited - 142,590 - 142,590
- (127,597) - 2789
New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited 2,313,472 - - 2,313,472
(33,155,347} - - {33,159,247)
Raasha Entertainment & Lelsure LLP - 224,389 - 224,389
- (224,389) - (224,389}
Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited - 13,804 B - 13,804
- (13,804) - (13,804)
BPI (India) Private Lirnited 6,506,413 - - 6,506,413
(11,845,230) - ~ {11,845,230)
Shyarnlal Nursing Home & Medical Research Centre - 110,768 - 110,768
Private Limited
- {110,768} - {110,768)
RKG Hospitalities Private Limited - 342,139 . 342,139
- (342,139) - (342,139)
Trade payables B
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 152,672,544 - - 152,672,544
(247,309,615} - - (247,309,615)
Vikas Publishing House Private Limnited 300,220,252 - - 300,220,252
o (242,515,530) . - {242,515530)
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 16,818,397 - - 16,818,397
(170,224,326) - - (170,224,326)
Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited 16,502,425 - - 16,502,425
(14,987,100) - - (14,987,100)
Ds Digital Private Limjted - - - -
{13,990,945) - - (13,990,945)
Smartivity Labs Private Limited - 35,343 - 35,343
Hotel Tourist - 1,050,666 - 1,050,666
- {212,144) - {212,144)
Directors remuneration payable
Nirmala Gupta - - " -
- - (1 (100,000}
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{(Amountin %)
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Enterprises over Key Total

which KMP or their Managerial

relatives exercise Personnel &

significant influence their relatives
Gaurav Jhunjhunwala - - - -
- - (100,000) {100,000)
Savita Gupta - - . -
T - - (200,000) {200,000)
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala - - 443,040 443,040
- - (3000000 (300,000)
Himanshu Gupta - - 420,284 420,284
- - (300,000) (300,000)
Neerja Jhunjhnuwala - - - -
- - {100,000) {100,000}
Ankita Gupta - - - -
- - (100,000} (100,000)
Saurabh Mittal - - 474,852 474,852
- - {973,270} (973,270}
Jagdeep Singh - - 1,007,959 1,007,959
- - {432,626) {432,626}

Trade receivable

BPI (India) Private Limited 15,989,068 - - 15,989,068
(15,986,365} - - {15,986,365)
—New Saraswati House Private Limited 5,776,240 - - 5,776,240
(5,693,109) - - (5693,109)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 2,747,896 - - 2,747,896
[}S Digital Private Limited 18,036,746 - - 18,036,746
{76,253,312) - - (76,253,312}

(Figures in brackets represents previous year figures.)

41, Employee stock option plans

The Company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an employee
stock option plan {ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On 30 June 2012, the board of directors approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2012 (Scheme 2012} for issue of stock options
to the eligible employees. According to the Scheme 2012, two types of options are granted by the Company to the eligible
employees viz Growth and Thankyou option and will be entitled to 2,194 and 292 options respectively. The options are subject
to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz, continuing employment with the company. However In case of growth
options, in addition to this the board may also specify the certain corporate, individual or a combination performance parameters
subject to which the option would vest, The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

I
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for the year ended March 31, 2017 fcontd.)

Grant]  Grantil Grantlll(a} Grantll(b) Granti¥(a) GrantI¥(b) Granti¥(c) GrantW(d) Grant¥  GrantVi Grant ¥ii
Date of grant 3-jul-12 9-Jul-12 16-lut-14  30-Sep-14  27-Aug-15  Z7-Aug-15 30-5ep-15  28-Mar-16 S-Aug-T6 16-Aug-16 30-Nov-16
Date of Board approval W-lun-12 3-lun-12 - 2814 30Sep-14 F-Aug15 27-AwgS HAug-1S 26-Mar1s SAeg-TE S-Augl6 19-5ep-16&
30-Nov-16
Date of Shareholder's approval 30-Jun-12 30-lun-12 28-Jul-14  30-5ep-14 30-Sep-15 730—52|J-‘IS I¢-5ep-15  2B-Mar-16 5-Aug-16  5-Aug-16  10-Nov-16
Number of aptram grarrted 2194 M 180 5 M1 185 148 40 93338 51,060 12,506
Method of settfement (Casty/Equity} Equity Equity  Equry Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity  Equity Equity [quty
Yesting Period Year 1- 10% 160% Year1-28% Year1-28% ear1-50% Year1-25% Year1-139% Year1-25%  Year1- Year1-25%  Year1-50%
Year2-15% Immediate Year2-32% Year2-32% Year2-50% Year2-35% Year2-15%% Year2-35%  M0% Yearl-25%  Year 2-50%
Year 3-20% vesting  Year3-40%  Year 3-40% Year3-40%"° Year3-409%  Year3- 40% Year - 259
Year 4-25% Year 4- 25%
Year 5-30%
Exercise Pericd Exercise on listing but not later than two years from the listing/on sale
Exercise price 9,110 9,110 36,870 36,870 36,870 45000 45000 45000 304 304 392
Intrinsic value of shares at the 9,110 9110 36870 36,870 55785 55785 55785 55785 376 376 376

time of grant

Equity shares of T 10 each were subdivided into 2 equity shares of ¥ 5 each as per resolution passed by sharehelders at extraordinary
general meeting dated 20 April 2016. Further, bonus shares were issued to the shareholders in the ratio of 73:1 as per resolution passed
at extraordinary general meeting (EGM) dated 20 April 2016.The effect of share split and bonus issue on exercise price, fair value atthe

time of grant and weighted average exercise price on optiens granted till March 31, 2016 is as below:

Exercise Period

Exercise on listing but not later than twa years from the {isting/on sale

Exercise price 62 62 249 249 249 304 304 304 304 304 392
_Intrinsic value of shares at the 62 62 o 249 249 377 377 377 377 376 376 376
time of grant
The details of activities under Growth option (Grant I} are summarized below:
- 31 March 2016
No. of options WAEP (%) No. of options WAEP (%)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 322 9,110 1,003 9,110
’ Granted during the year o - - -
Forfeited during the year . - - 681 -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Effect of share split 322 - - T -
Effect of banus issue 47,012 - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 47656 62 322 9,110
Eercisable at the end of the year 33,152 - 140 -
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The details of activities under Thankyou option {Grant l) are summarized below:

31 May 31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP (T} No. of options WAEP (3)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year _ 21 9,110 290 9,110
Granted during the year - - - i
Faorfeited during the year - - 260 -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Effect of share split B 21 - 2 .
Effect of bonus issue 3,066 - 0 -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3108 62 21 9110
Exercisable at the end of the year | 3,108 s 21 .

The weighted average remaining contractual life for Growth and Thankyou option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years.

The details of activities under Grant lll 2a and |Il b are summarized below:

31 March 2016

No. of aptions WAEP (7) No. of options WAEP (7)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 253 36,870 255 16,870
Granted during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year 10,804 o - 2 -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Effect of share split 253 - - -
Effect of bonus issue 36,938 - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 26,640 249 253 36,870
Exercisable at the end of the year 16,280 - 68 - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years,

The Company had granted 441 option during the financial year ended 31 March 2016. The details of activities under Grant IV a are
summarized below:
31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP (T} No. of options WAEP (%)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 441 36,870 - -
Granted during the year “ - 441 36,870
Forfeited during the year - - - w
Exercised during the year - - - - - -
Effect of share split o 441 I - -
Effect of bonus issue 64,386 Tl - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 65,268 249 441 36,870

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2,91 years,

I
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The Company had granted 472 option during the financial year ended 31 March 2016, The details of activities under Grant IVi, Wc and
IVd are summarized below:

17 31 March 2016
No. of options WAEP (7} No. of options WAEP (T)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 473 45,000 - -
anted during the year - - 473 45,000
Forfeited during the ye:r 1,702 - - .

Exercised during the year - - T T

Effect of share split 73 - - -

Effect of bonus issue — 69,058 - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year e 68,302 30405 473 45,000
_Exercisable at the end of the year 15,910 - - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years.

The Company had granted 93,388 option during the year ended 31 March 2017. The details of activities under Grant V are summarized below
o - ‘ 31 March 2016

WAEP () No. of options WAEP (T)

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - - - _ i

Granted during the year ] 93,385 304 - .

Forfeited during the year o - - - N
Exercised during the year -~ - - . _

__Outstanding at the end of the year 93,388 304 - i

Exercisable at the end of the year . - - .

No. of optons

5 31 March 2016
WAEP (%} No. of options WAEP ()

‘ Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Granted during the year ) 51,060 304 - -
Forfeited during the year e - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year - 51,060 304 - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - R

The Company had granted 12,506 option during the year ended 31 March 201 7. The details of activities under Grant V| are summarized below:
‘ ch2017- 31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP (X} ____No. of options WAEP (1)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - B - - R
Granted during theyear 12,506 392 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - - .
Exercised during the year - -~ - .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 12,506 392 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year - - i B N

L8|

i




v
OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -w'

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding under Grant V, VI and Vil as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years.

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:
GrantVa GrantlVb GrantiVc GrantVd GrantV  GrantV) Grant VIl
31 March 31March 31March 31March (300 R . |

2016 2016 2016 2016
Dividend yield (26) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate 7.67% 7.71% 7.46% 7.63% 6.73% 6.86% 5.99%
Weighted average share price (T) 377 377 377 377 376 376 376
Exercise prica {T) 249 304 304 304 ) 304 204 392
Expected life of options granted in years 243 322 3.20 3.15 200 3.50 2.50
Weighted average fair value of option at 168.74 137.24 135.03 133.56 105.08 117.94 3697

the time of grant (7)

Each vest has been considered as a separate grant with weights assigned to each vesting as per the vesting schedule. The minimum
life of a stock option is the minimum period before which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum Ilfe is the period after
which the options cannot be exercised. The expected life has been calculated as an average of minimum and maximum life, Since the
Company is unlisted, the volatility has been considered to be zerc.

The Company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the Company used the fair value model to determine
compensation, its Joss after tax and earnings per share as reported would have changed to the amounts indicated befow:

.- . 31March 2016
Profit after tax as reported 270,985,645 162,656,141

Impact in the statement of profit of loss as per fair valuation method {6,535,385) (1,794,809)
Proforma profit after tax 264,450,260 160,861,332
Earnings per share

Basic ‘

- As reported 9.08 5.95
- Proforma 8.86 5.90
Diluted o

- As reported 9_Og 595
- Proforma . 8.85 5.89

42. Segment reporting
The Company has only one reportable business segment, whichis publishing of books and operates in a single business segment
based on the nature of the services, the risk and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems,
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company’s single business segmant.

43. During the year 2015-16, the scheme of amalgamation (the scheme)} u/s 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and applicable
provisions of Companles Act 2013 (to the extent applicable) between Vikas Publishing House Private Limited {transferee) and
Rajendra Ravindra Printer Private Limited (transferor), subsidiaries of the Company, was approved by the Hon'ble Delhi High
Courtw.ef. 01 April 2014. The Company pursuant to the amalgamation of the transferor company with the transferee company.
received a lumpsum consideration of T 10,000 (rupees ten thousand only) from the transferee company through the issue of 100

R
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equity shares of £100 each to the Company. Consequent to that effect, investment made by the Company in transferor company
has been merged with the investment made in transfree company.

44, The Company had made an investment in 410 optionally convertible redeemable debentures of 2100,000 each fully
paid in Walldorf Integration Solutions Limited (Formerly Citixsys Technologies Limnited) during the financial year 2007-
08 as per the debenture subscription agreement dated 14 May 2007. The debentures were converted into 512,500
optignally convertible or redeemable preference shares during the financial year 2008-09 as per the debenture conversion
agreement dated 03 March 2009. These preference shares were redeemable or convertible at the option of the shareholder
as per the debenture conversion agreement. The preference shares were due for redemption or conversion during
the financial year 2011-12 and the Company opted for redemption of preference shares which Walldorf Integration
Solutions Limited {Formerly Citixsys Technologies Limited} failed and defaulted in redeeming the preference shares,

The Company had filed a case against Walldorf Integration Solutions Limited (Formerly Citixsys Technol ogies Limited) demanding
redemption of the preference shares held by the Company during the financial year 2014-15, and the matter is pending hefore
the Arbitral Tribunal for adjudication.

The Company after taking appropriate legal advice is reasonably confident wir.t. outcome of the matter in Company's favor,

45, Disclosure required under Sec 186{4) of the Companies Act 2013
Inciuded in loans and advance are certain loans the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of
Companies Act 2013:

{Amountin %)
Name of the loanee Rate of Interest Duedate  Secured/ 31 March 2016
unsecured
Safari Digital Education Initiatives 12% p.a. 2June 2018  Unsecured 19,310,825 17,432,815
Private Limited o - _
Eurasia Publishing House Private 12% p.a. 28 November 2019 Unsecured 113,417,326 -
Limited
The loans have been utilized for meeting their working capital requirements.
46. Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange
(Amountin®

SURERITE] 31 March 2016

Period to which it relates . 1 Aprll 2016 to -
31 March 2017

Number of non-resident shareholders o 1 -
]umber of equity shares held on which avidend was due 130,128 .
Armount remitted (in USD) 48,319 _
Amount remitted {in INR) 3,253,200 -

47. During the year, the Company has contributed ¥ 2,719,186 {31 March 2016: 2,147,000} out of the total contributable amount of
3,440,000 (31 March 2016:2,510,667) in accordance with section 135 read with schedule V! to the Companies Act, 2013 through
various trusts and donation of books. Management has not spent the remaining amount of ¥ 720,814 (31 March 2016: 363,667)
as (SR committee is yet to identify the activity. Unspent amount has not been provided in books. .

<83




Fe
OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS n\—.'

4B, Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 is as
provided in the table below:

(Amountin®)

Particulars S8Ns  Other denomination Total
notes

Closing balance as at 8 November 2016 46,549,500 403,479 46,952,979
Transactions between 9 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 -
Add: withdrawal from bank accounts - 452,500 452,500
Add: receipts for permitted transactions - 5,231,314 7 5231,314
Add: receipts for non-permitted transactions ) - - -
Less: paid for permitted transactions - (432,470) {432,470)
Less: paid for non-permitted transactions - " _
Less: deposited in bank accounts (46,549,500) (4,598,238) (51,148,438}
Closing balance as at 30 December 2016 “ 1,055,885 1,055,885

49. Previous year figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

he accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S R Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAIl Firm: registration number ;101043W/E300004 5 Chand and Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
sd/- sd/-
per Yogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership no; 094941 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988
sd/- sd/-
Place: New Delhl Saurabh Mittal - Jagdeep Singh
Date: 12 June 2017 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of 5 Chand and Company Limited {formerly S
Chand and Company Private Limited)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated finandial
statements of § Chand and Company Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company”)} its subsidiaries {the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”},
and its associate comprising of the consofidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policles and
other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”),

Management’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms
of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financlai position,
consolldated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016. The respective Board of Directors of the
companiesincludedin the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting palicies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are

required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Sectlon 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statemnents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disdosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, induding the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated finandial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial controf relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below,
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinfon and to the best of our information and according
ta the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31
March 2017, their consolidated profit, and their consolidated cash
flows for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and the other financial information of
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

R85




(@

(b)

()

{d)

(e)

{f}

(a)

| LY

OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied
upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other
auditors;

The consolidated 8alance Sheet, consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, and consolidated Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
spedfied under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies
{Accounting Standards) Amendment Ruies, 2016;

On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2017
taken on record by the 8oard of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are
appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group's companies, incorporated in [ndia is disqualified
as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy and the operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure 1"to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us;

i The consolidated finandal statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on its consolidated
finandial position of the Group, — Refer Note 31 to the
consolidated finandal statements;

ii.  TheGroupdid not have any material foreseeable losses
in long-term contracts induding derivative contracts
during the year ended 31 March 2017,

ii. = There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March
2017,

iv.  The Holding Company, subsidiaries and its assocjates
incorporated in India, have provided requisite
disdosures in Note 45 to these consolidated financial
statements as to the holding of Specified Bank Notes
on 8 Novenber 2016 and 30 December 2016 as well
as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period
from & November 2016 to 30 December 2016, 8ased on
our audit procedures and relying on the management
representation of the Holding Company regarding the
holding and nature of cash transactions, induding
Specified Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures
are in accordance with the books of accounts
maintained by the Group induding its associates and
as produced to us by the Management of the Holding
Company.

Other Matter

We did not audit the finandal statements and other financial
information, in respect of 9 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements include total assets of Rs 2,467,885,435 and net assets
of Rs 1,125,011,631 as at 31 March 2017, and total revenues of
Rs 1,235,838,824 and net cash outflows of Rs 8,894,830 for the
year ended on that date. These financial statement and other
finandial information have been audited by other auditors, which
finandal statements, other financial information and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management. The
consolidated financial statements also Include the Company's
share of net loss of T 182,292,437 for the year ended 31 March
2017, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of 1 assodiates, whose financial statements, other
finandial information have been audited by other auditors and
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management.
Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries and assogiqfes, is haded solely on the report
of such other auditors.
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INDEPENTDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT fcontd.)

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements above, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
refiance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors
and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management

For 5. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration Number; 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha

Partrer

Membership Number: 094941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 12 June 2017

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ‘S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF § CHAND AND COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY S

CHAND AND COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"}

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of S Chand and Company Limited as of and for the
year ended 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of S Chand and Cornpany
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company™), its
subsidiary companies and its assoclate company incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies and its associate company incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,

2 &

implernentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuting the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with

¥
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controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evldence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systern over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reparting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matertal
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgrment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
refarred to in the Other Matters paragraph helow, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial contral over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated
financdal statements In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection

o
For . R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration Number; 101045W/E300004

Chartered Accountants

AE8

w
Fu

LISHING

of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

th our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, maintained in all raterial respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria estabiished by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiai Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3} (i) of the Act on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the internal inancial controls over
finandal reporting of the Holding Campany, insofar as it relates
to 1 subsidiaries companies, which is a carnpany incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such
subsidiary incorporated in India.

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number; 094841
Place of Signature: New Delhl
Date: 12 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at March 31, 2017
(Amountin )
31 March 2016

Eguity and liabilities
Shareholders’ fund 2 e
Share capital 3 _ 149,222 480 2,016,520

Reserves and surplus 4 6424059733 5.989,009,824
..B:573,282,213 5,991,026,334

Minority interast = 130,540,822 31475592

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5 313,361,433 679,235,461

Trade payable 7 ] . -~

Total outstanding dues of micrs enterprises and small enterprises -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small 14,269,287 9,389,074

enterprises

Other non- current liabilities 8 - 661,375

Long-temmn provisions 9 .+ 52033719 50,072,167

379,664,439 739,358,077

Current Habilities

Shart-term borrowings 6 1,662,119,823 1,257,527,592
Trade payables 7 ol
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 61,758,487 23,609,927
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and .smalk 1,788,796,389 1,486,938,007
enterprises - i
Other current liabilities 8 o 2:201,799,870 232,110,367
Short-term provisions 9 528,304,379 172,459,438
6,242,778,948 3,172,735,731
TOTAL 13,326,266,422 9,934,595.744
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property, plant and eguipments 10A 077,516,897 1,023.144.890
Intangible assets 10B 3,970,308,970 2,283097 411
Capital work-in-progress ) 2,605,804 31,956,811
Intangible assets under development 31,566,901 35,221,564
Non-current investments 11 247,430,144 253,577478
Deferred tax assets {(net) 12 109,961,306 123,844,120
Loans and advances 13 220,010,732 179,632,185
Other non-current assets 14 ) 9,291,615 33053452
' 5,568,692,369 3,963,527,911
Current assets - P
Current investments 1 #4195:021,259 163,571,070
Inventories 15 ...1335.830809 1,398,233,291
Trade receivables 16 5060809096 3,979,217,765
Cash and bank balances 17 375,411,170 244,350,915
Loans and advances 13 584,986,209 183,884,672
Other current assets 14 5515510 1.910,120
7,757,574,053 5,971,067,833
TOTAL 13,326,266,422 9,934,595,744
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated interim financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S R Batliboi & Assaciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAl Firm registration number :101049W/E300004 S Chand and Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
sd/- sd/-
per Yogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership no: (94941 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988
sd/- sd/-
Place: New Delhi Saurabh Mitcal Jagdeep Singh
Date: 12 June 2017 Chief Financlal Officer e, Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended March 31, 2017

{Amountin )

31 March 2016
Income _
Revenue from operations 18 . 6B41,4B1,118 5,376,044,775
Other income _ 18] 13,297,012 30,584,880
Total revenue {1} _ 6,854,778,130 5,406,629,655
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 20 1,948,750,120 1,755,070,408
Purchase and implementation cost 20,1 120,062,070 49,022,741
Publication expenses 21 _ 565,379,985 503,335,078

_{Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods 22 54,701,694 (278,983 ,235)

_Employee benefits expense 23 1,164,849,539 942,043,270
Selling and distribution expenses 24 638,944,819 525,454,486
Other expenses 25 639,957,927 629,803,346
Total expenses (Il 5,132,646,154 4,125,746,994
Profit before interest, tax depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) {I-1I} 1,722,131,976 1,280,882,661
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 281,805,566 259,067,042
Finance cost o 26 .. __355,708,876 305,832,020
Interest income 19,2 (6,254,660} (5,288,884)
Total interest, tax depreclation and amortization {1li) 631,259,782 555,610,178
Profit before tax, minority interest and share of associate company 1,090,872,194 725,272,483
Exceptional items (depreciation written back) _ - 5,121,240

1,090,872,194 730,393,723
Tax expense -

_Currenttax _ . 411,866,679 245,269,849
MAT credit utilized o 4380244 7,096,611
Adjustment of tax relating to eadier years 4081919 2,234,775

Deferred tax charges/(credit) 15,628,290 il 1,221,716)
Total tax expense 435,957,132 237,379,519

_Profit after tax and before minority interest and share of associate company 654,915,062 493,014,204
Less : Share in loss of associate company _ (18,292,437) (27,241,924)

_Profitfor the year 636,622,625 465,772,280
Profit attributable to o
-Owners of the parent _ 582,060,984 465,727,204
-Minority interest - 54,561,640 {45,076)
Profit for the year . ___ . 636,622,624 465,772,280
Earning per equity share (EPS) [Nominal value of share ¥ 5] 28 _

{a) Basic o . 19.50 B 17.08
{b) Diluted e 1947 17.05
Computed on the basis of profit for the year _

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the cansolidated interim financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For 5 R Batlibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the 8oard of Directors of

ICA1 Firm reglstration number :101049W/E300004 5 Chand and Company Limited

Chartered Accauntants

sdf- sd/-

pear Yogesh Midha N Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta

Partner ' Managing Director Director

Membership no: 094941 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988

sd/- sdf-

Place: New Delhl Saurabh Mittal Jagdeep Singh

Datae: 12 June 2017 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Amount in T)
31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 1,090,872,194 730,393,723
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expenses _ 281,805,566 255,067,042
Loss on sale of fixed assets {net) 1,104,574 1,600,606
Provision for diminution in investment written back _ {388,406) (91,800)
Interest income (6,254,660} (9,287,151)
Dividend income on current investments . (1,404,383) (156,241)
Net gain on sale of current investments ~ (6.129.255) (17,268,502}
Interest paid on borrowings 330,122,430 2§3,323,149
Amortization of ancilliary borrowing cost 18,214,534 o 6,439,771
Employee stock option expense } 12,330,405 5,122,242
7Pr0vision for bad debts and advances 48,251,548 -
Bad debt written off 8234793 5,721,703
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,776,759,340 1,274,924,542
Movement in working capital: )
(Increase} in inventories (137,597,518) {201,296,667) 7
(Increase} in trade receivable {1,138,077,672) (551,069,64%)
(increase) in loans and advances (51,573,427) (45,445,3?3)
Decrease in other assets . o 14,000
{Decrease) In provisions . (40,941,978) (56,018,875)
Increase in trade payable 344797155 160,408,506
Increase in current liabilities 57213742 (17,915572)
Cash generated from operations 810,579,593 563,596,962
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds} (344,614,433} (182,123,566)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 465,965,160 381,473,396
B. Cash flows from investing activities _ L
Purchase of fixed assets including capital advance, capital creditor and capital work In (386,1_37,923) (338,798?55
progress (including assets acquired on acquisition)
Investment in subsidiaries (1,528,879,236) (806,938,723)
Investment in non current investments (including investments acguired on acquisition} {12,145,104) (123,245,481)
Investment in current investments _ {152,500,073}) {99,160,644)
Proceed from sale of current investments _ 126,790,732 _33,067,389
Proceed from sale of subsidiary 46,800,000 ; -
Proceed from sale of fixed assets | ~ 27,741,122 156,241
Dividend received 1,404,383 3,247,767
Interest received i 5,614,122 (15,475,118)
Investment in bank deposit (having original maturity of more than 3 months} 20,404,807
Net cash [used in) investing activities (B)  {1,844,907,171)  (1,341,137,826)

24|
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(Amountin )
31 March 2016

C. Cashflows from financing activities

Proceed from issue of equity shares including securities premium - 1,691,269,723
Interest paid on borrowings (371 010,467) (290,331,436)
Amortization of ancilliary borrowing cost (1 8,214,53;)_ (11,106,531)
Proceed from long term borrowings ___1,546,828,3%4 N -
Repayment of long term borrowings N . - (681,850,856}
Proceed from short term barrowings 404,591,83_1_ 292,476,353
Dividend paid on equity share ) (10,082,600) .
Payments made for fresh issuance of equity share capital (78,457,887) {10,995,832)
Tax an equity dividend paid (2,052,920) -
Net cash from (used in) financing activities {C) 1,511,601,818 988,861,422
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 132,659,806 29,186,992
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 238,480,654 209,293,662
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 371,140,460' 238,480,654
7 Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 7,486,638 13,359,888
With Banks - On current accounts 321,563,753 223,226,441
Depasits with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months 42,708,460 1,894,325
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 17) 371,158,851 238,480,654
Summary of significant accounting pelicies 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated interim financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S R Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAl Firm registration number :101049W/E300004 $§ Chand and Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

sd/- sd/-
per Yogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership no: 094541 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988

sd/- sd/-
Place: New Delhi Saurabh Mittal Jagdeep Singh
Date; 12 lune 2017 Chlef Financlal Officer Company Secretary
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.1

Corporate information

S Chand and Company Limited {the company) is a
public company incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. The Company has become a
Public Limited Company w.ef. 8% September 2016 and
conseguently the name of the Company has changed from
§ Chand and Company Private Limited to 5 Chand and
Company Limited. The Company's operations comprises
of publishing of educational books with products ranging
from School Books, Higher Academic Books, Competition
& Reference Books, Technical & professional books and
Children Books.

Basis of preparation

The consclidated financial statements of the group have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India {Indian GAAP). The group
has prepared this consolidated financial statement to
comply in all material respect with Accounting Standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Account) Rule
2014 and Companies {Accounting Standards} Amendment
Rules, 2016. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical
cost convention except for land and building which has
been revalued.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consistent with those of previous

period.

Principles of Consolidation

~ The consolidated financial statement relates to 5 Chand

and Company Limited (‘the Company’), its subsidiary
companies collectively referred to as 'the Group’ (‘the Group
Companies’), associate company and jointly controlled
entities. The consolidated financia) statements have been
prepared on the following basis:-

(1  The financial statements of the parent and its
subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-ine
basis by adding together the book values of like
items of assets, liabilities, inComes and expenses
after eliminating intra-group balances/ transactions
and resulting profits in full. Unrealized profit / losses
resulting from intra-group transactions have also been
eliminated except to the extent that recoverable value
of related assets is lower than their cost to the group.

(ii)

(iil)

(ivi

%

(Vi)

843

Investment in associates {entity over which the
Company exercises significant influence, which is
neithera subsidiarynorjoint venture) are accounted for
using the equity method as per Acomunting Standard
23 on Accounting for Investment in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements. The consolidated
financial statement includes the share of profitfioss
of associate companies, which are accounted under
the ‘Equity method’ as per which the share of profit/
loss of the associate company has been adjusted to
the carrying amount of investment, Further, for the
Purpose of consolidation, the proportionate share of
profit/loss of associates companies to the extent of
investment in equity shate has been considered.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances
and are presented to the extent possible, in the
same manner as the Company's separate financia
statements, Differences in accounting policies have
been disclosed separately.

The difference between the cost to the Group of
investment in Subsidiaries and the proportionate
share in the equity of the investee company as at the
date of acquisition of stake, if any, is recognized in
the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arising
on consolidation is tested for impairment at the
Balance Sheet date.

Minorities” interest in net profits of consolidated
subsidiaries for the period is identified and adjusted
against the income in order to arrive at the net
income attributable to the shareholders of the Group.
Their share of net assets is identified and presented
in the Consolldated Balance Sheet separately, Where
accumulated losses attributable to the minorities
are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the
contractual obligation on the minorities, the same is
accounted for by the holding company.

The financial statements of the entities used for the
purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the Company i.e. year ended
31 March 2017. '

_-‘."'h b §.
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The entities considered in the consolidated interim financial statements are listed below:

L

v.

v
S.CHAND

PUBLIBHING

5. Name of the Company Countryof  Relationship as at 31 March Percentage of effective ownership
No. Incorporation 2017 interest held (directly or
indirectly)
31 March 20156
1 Nirja Publishers and Printers India Subslidiary of 5 Chand and 100% 100%
Private Limited Company Limited
2 Eurasia Publishing House Private India Subsidiary of S Chand and 100% 100%
Limited Company Limited
3 Blackie & Son {Calcutta) Private India Subsidiary of S Chand and 100% 100%
Limited Company Limited
4 \Vikas Publishing House Private India Subsidiary of 5§ Chand and 100% 100%
Limited® Company Limited
5 Safari Digital Education India Subsidiary of S Chand and 100% 100%
Initiatives Private Limited** Company Limited
&  BPi{india} Private Limited India Subsidiary of Blackie & Son 51% 51%
{Calcutta) Private Limited
7  Arch Papier-Mache Private India Subsidiary of Vikas Publishing Nil 100%
Limited*** House Private Limited
8  5Chand Edutech Private Limited India Subsidiary of Safari Digital 74% 745
Education Initiatives Private
Limited
9 D S Digital Private Limited India Subsidiary of $ Chand and 99.93% 99.939
Company Limited
10 New Saraswati House (india) India Subsidiary of § Chand and 100% 100%
Private Limited**** Company Limited
11 Chhaya Prakashani Private India Subsidiary of 5 Chand and 74% -
Limited®**** Company Limited
12 Indian Progressive Publishing India Subsidiary of 5 Chand and 74% -
Co. Private Limitad Company Limited
13 Publishing Services Private India Subsidiary of 5 Chand and 74% -
Limited Company Limited
14  EdutorTechnologies India India Associate of Safari Digital 44.66% 44.66%

Private Limited

Education Initiatives Private
Limited

*29% held by Nirja Publisher and Printers Private Limited

*£40.08% held by Nirja Publisher and Printers Private Limited
*** Subsidiary till 8" December 2016.

*=#*213.90% held by Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
+=*4#30.47% held by Eurasia Publishing Hause Private Limited

24Y
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

ta)

(b}

(c)

Change in accounting policy

Disclosure of EBITDA

Till the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had opted
not to disclose EBITDA. From the three months period
ended 30 June 2016 onwards, the Company has elected
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face
of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the company does not
include depreciation and amortization expense, finance
costs, interest Income and tax expense. The same has been
elected by the Company to enable better presentation of
financial statements and enhance decision making of top
management.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with Indian GAAFP requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment, except land and building
acquired in Vikas Publishing House Private Limited before
1 April 2008, are stated at cost, net of accurmnulated
depreciation and accumulated jmpairment losses, if any,
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalization criteria are rmet and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning,
restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property
plant and eguipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition

{d}

K45

criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets
are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
assetis derecognized.

Plant, property and equipment held for sale |s valued at
lower of their carrying amount and net realizable value.
Any write-down is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on injtial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over
the estimated useful economic life of 5 to 10 years. The
Group uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life
of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years from the
date when the asset is available for use. If the persuasive
evidence exists to the affect that useful life of an intangible
asset exceeds ten years, the Group amortizes the intangibie
asset over the best estimate of its useful life,

The amortization period and the amortization method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the assetis significantly different frorm previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingiy.

Gains or [osses arising from de recognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of profit and Joss when the
asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development

expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized

as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate

all the following:

- The technical feasibllity of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale

- Its intention to complete the asset.

- Its ability to use or sell the asset

- How the asset will genera
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- The availability of adequate resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during
development,

Following the initial recognition of the development
expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is
complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized
on a straight line basis over the period of expected future
benefit from the refated project. Amortization is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Goodwill recognized as difference between purchase
constderation and value of net assets taken over,

Group'sintangible assets are amortized over their estimated
useful lives as listed below using a straight line method;

Nature of assets Lives
Goodwill 5to 10 years
Copyright 5to 10 years
In-house product 10 season
development

Technical know-how 3-6 years
Content 10 years
License fees 5 years
Website development 10 years
Other intangible {(computer 3-10 years

software)

{e)

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is provided using the written down value
method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the
management except in (a} S Chand Edutech Private Limited
(b) D S Digital Private Limited, depreciation is provided on
straight fine basis.

The Group has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its fixed assets.

Nature of assets

Useful lives as per  Useful lives

schedulellof the  estimated by the
Companles Act management
Plant and 15 years 15-25 years
equipments
Officeequipments 5 years 5-15 years
Furniture & fixtures 10 years 10 years
Vehicles 8 years 8-10years
Others-Computers 3 years 3-6 years
Electrical 10 years 10 years
installation
Building {including 30 years 40-60 years

factory building)

{f}

Leasehold improvement is amortized over economic useful
life or unexpirad period of lease whichever is less.

Leasehold land is amortized on straight line basis over the
period of lease,

Based on the expected useful life of these assets for the
Group, the Group has considered below useful lives for
different classes of assets,

The useful lives of vehicles, certain plant and machinery,
computers and building are estimated as 10, 25, 6, 40 to
60 years respectively. These lives are higher than those
indicated in schedule Il.

Asset costing T 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the
year of purchase,

S5econd hand assets are depreciated over the estimated
remaining useful life.

The aggregate net block of (a) 5 Chand Edutech Private
Limited {b) D 5 Digital Private Limited is 9.29% (31 March
2016: 9.11%) of the total net block of the Group as on 31
March 2017.

Leases

Operating lease

Where the Group is lessee

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are
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recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially
all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating
leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income on an
operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs,
including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the
statemnent of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal
costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in
the staternent of profit and loss.

Finance lease

Where the Groupislessee

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the group
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the
inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and present value of minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constantrate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are
capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the group will obtain the ownership by the
end of the Jease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful
life of the asset or the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of
ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowlngs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready forits intended use
or sale are capitaiized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they occur.

{4F

(h}

)]

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended
to be held for not more than one year from the date on
which such investments are made, are classified as current
investnents. All ather investments are classified as long-
term investrments.

On initial recognition, alt investments are measured at cost.
The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributabie
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements
at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at
cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other than tempaorary in the value of the
investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its
carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at
lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials
and other items held for use inthe production of inventories
are not written down below cost if the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost. Cost of raw materlals, components and stores
and spares is determined on a First In First Qut {FIFO) basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on
a First In First out (FIFO) basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, Cost is determined on a First In First
out (FIFQ) basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

o G
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the
slgnificant risks and rewards of ownership of the goocds
have been passed to the buyer i.e at the time of handing
over goods to the carrier for transportation, The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been passed to the buyer i.e. at the time of handing
over goods to the carrier for transportation. Sales are net of
turnover discounts and sales returns.

Job work

Revenue from Job work is recognized when printing and
binding job is complete and accepted by the customer
and all significant risk and rewards relating to job work
are transferred to customer, Revenue is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

Service work

Revenue from service work is recognized when contents,
designs, creations has been dellvered to and is accepted by
the customer and all significant risk and rewards relating
to service work are transferred to customer. Revenue
is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will low to the group and the revenue
can be reliably measured.

Income from Customized Interactive Content

Income from Customized Interactive Content is recognized
on completion of Initial Training at the School premises in
case of Domestic Schools and on the basis of installation of
software in International Schools,

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under
the head “other income”in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the group’s right to
receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

{K)
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Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
{i) Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

{ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured
at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at
the date when such value was determined.

(iil} Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary itemns
at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the vear, or reported in previous financial
staternents, are recognized as income or as expenses in the
year in which they arise

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefitin the form of provident fund is a defined
contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, cther
than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The
Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as
an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Group operates defined benefit plan for its employees,
viz, gratuity. The cost of providing benefits under this
plan Is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at
each peripd-ens
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defined benefit plan is recognized in full in the period in
which they occur in the statement of profit and [oss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within
the next 12 months, is treated as short-term empioyee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried
forward beyond twelve months, as long-term empioyee
benefrt for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit ¢redit method
at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The company presents the leave as a current
liability n the balance sheet, to the extent it does not
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement far 12
months after the reporting date. Where company has the
uncaonditional legal and cantractual right to defer the
settlernent for a period beyond 12 manths, the same is
presented as nan-current liability.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Graup assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indicationthat an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s ar cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and
its value in use, The recoverable amaunt is determined for
anindividual asset, unless the assets daes not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those fram other
assets ar groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down ta its recaverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of maney and the risks specific ta the asset.
In determining net selling price, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units

{n}

to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets
and forecast calculations are generally covering a period
of five years. For longer perlods, a long term growth rate Is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the
fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously
revalued plant, property and equipment, where the
revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve, In this case,
the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve
up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining usefu! life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates
the asset’s or cash-generating unit's recaverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed aniy
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recaverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recaverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recagnized for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluatian increase.

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the tax autharities in accordance with the Income-tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the company operates,
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing
differences between taxable income anad accounting
incame ariginating during the current year and reversal
of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and theFaglan

substantively enacted at the reporgiy
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Deferred tax liabilities are rtecognized for all taxable
timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there
is reasonable certainty that sufficlent future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized.

In the situations where the Group is entitled to a tax hollday
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax
laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it
operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized
in respect of timing differences which reverse during the
tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total
income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the
year in which the timing differences orlginate. However,
the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets tothe
extent that It has become reasonably certain or virtually
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the
timing differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date. The Group writes-down the carrying
amount of deferred tax asset to the extent thatitis no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any
such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax labilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority., '

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year/period is
charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax,
The Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be
carried forward. In the year in which the group recognizes
MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance

abo

(o)

(p

L

v

*
$.CHAND

PUBLIEHING

Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of
Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961,
the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement” The
group reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

Employee Stock compensation cost

Employees (induding senior executives) of the Company
receive remuneration In the form of share based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments {equity-settled
transactions).

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-
based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is
measured using the intrinsic value method. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settied transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Company's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in
the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in
employee benefits expense.

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are
modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized
for any modification that increases the total intrinsic value
of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Eamings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares is adjusted for events
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the group has a present
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Contingent Jiabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there s a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does nat
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Group's operating businesses are organized and managed
separately according to the nature of preducts and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets. The analysis of geographical segments
is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of
the Group operate.

Inter-segment transfers
The Group generally accounts for intersegment sales and
transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment
according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.

{t)
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Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and
expense items which are not allecated to any business
segment.

Segment accounting policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole,

Amalgamation accounting
The Group treats an amalgamation in the nature of merger
if it satisfies all the following criteria:

(i)  Allthe assets and liabilities of the transferor company
become, after amalgamation, the assets and liabilities
of the transferee company.

{it  Shareholders holding not less than 90% of the
face value of the equity shares of the transferor
company (other than the equity shares already held
therein, immediately before the amalgamation, by
the transferee company or its subsidiaries or their
nominees) become equity shareholders of the
transferee company.

{i) The consideration for amalgamation receivable by
those equity shareholders of the transferor company
who agree to become shareholders of the transferee
company is discharged by the transferee company
wholly by the issue of equity shares, except that cash
may be paid in respect of any fractional shares.

(iv} The business of the transferor company is intended
to be carried on, after the amalgamation, by the
transferee company.

(v} The transferee company does not intend to make
any adjustment to the book values of the assets and
liakilities of the transferor company, except to ensure
uniformity of accounting policies.

Ali other amalgamations are in the nature of purchase.

The Group accounts for all amalgamations in the nature
of merger using the pooling of interest method. The
application of this method requires the Group to recognize
any non-cash element of the consideration at fair value. The
Group recognizes assets, liabilities and reserves, whether
capital orrevenue, of the transfege pany at theirexisting

Om}o

K

o

3
£
i
i

W

H
5
%




OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS *'

carrying amounts and in the same form as at the date of the
amalgamation. The balance in the statement of profit and
loss of the transferor company is transferred to the general
reserve, The difference between the amount recorded as
share capital issued, plus any additional consideration in
the form of cash or other assets, and the amount of share
capital of the transferor company is adjusted in reserves.

An amalgamation in the nature of purchase is accounted
for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition/
amalgamation is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, measured at fair value. Other
aspects of accounting are as below:

i) The assets and liabilities of the transferor company
are recognized at their fair values at the date of
amalgamation. The reserves, whether capital or
revenue, of the transferor company, except statutory
reserves, are not recognized.

il  Any excess consideration over the value of the
net assets of the transferor company acquired is
recognized as goodwill.

ifiy  If the amount of the consideration is lower than the
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is
treated as capital reserve,

iv) The goodwil arising on amalgamation is amortized to
the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis
over its useful life not exceeding five years.

{u) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guiddance Note on the Revised Schedule
Vi to the Companies Act, 1956, the company has elected
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization {EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face
of the statement of profit and loss. The company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the company does not
include depreciation and amortization expense, interest
income, finance costs and tax expense,

Dividend

The final dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the
date of approval by the shareholders, and interim dividends
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the
company’ Board of Directars.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months
or Jess.

3o
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3 Share capital

{Amountin®)
31 March 2016
Authorised shares* 200,000,000 22,100,000
40,000,000 (31 March 2016: 2,210,000 shares of T 10 each ) |
equity shares of ¥ 5 each
1ssued share capital* 149,222,480 2,016,520
29,844,496 (31 March 2016: 201,652 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
equity shares of ¥ 5 each
Subscribed and paid up share capital* 149,22?,480 - 2,016,520
29,844,496 (31 March 2016: 201,652 equity shares of T 10 each)
equity shares of ¥ 5 each
149,222,480 2,016,520
(a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
{Amount inT)
i 31 March 2016
No. of sharas Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 201,652 2,016,520 172,353 1,723,530
Issued during the year — Bonus issue* . 29,441,192 147,205,?6@_ - -
Issued during the year — Share split* 200,652 - - _
Issued during the year - - 29,299 292,990
Qutstanding at the end of the year 29,844,496 149,222,480 201,652 2,016,520

{(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 5 per share (31 March 2016: % 10 per share). Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the amount of per share interim dividend recognized as distributions to equity
shareholders at record date of 28 April 2016 is T 25 per share on 403,304 number of shares (before allotment of bonus
shares) {31 March 2016: Nil).

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

() Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date:

31 March 2016

No. of shares

No. of shares
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of securities premium 29,4%{3 Omh “
V4 2
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{d} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% eguity shares in the Company:

31 March 2016

No. of % of No. of % of
shares held holding shares held helding
Equity shares of T 5 ( 31 March 2016: T 10) each fully
paid-up*
Mr Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 4,064,820 13.62% 23,465 11.64%
Mr Himanshu Gupta 51 67‘,25_2_ _ 20.67% 36,674 18.19%
Mrs Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 3,553,036 11.91% 24,007 11.91%
Mrs Nirmala Gupta 720,168 241% 12,866 6.38%
Mrs Savita Gupta 1,312,316 4.40% 16,867 8.36%
Everstone Capital Partners Il LLC 9,629,472 32.27% 65,064 32.27%
International Finance Corporation 2,805,784 9.40% 18,958 9.40%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represenits both legal and benefictal ownerships of shares.

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock aption {ESOP) plan of the Company, please refer note 35,

{(f} Proposed dividend on equity shares:
(Amount in T)
31 March 20156

The board proposed dividend on equity shares after the balance sheet date:

Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31 March 2017:%1.25 per share 37,305,620 -
(31 March 2016: Nil)
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend 7,806,139 -

{g) The Company has filed Prospectus with the Registrar of the Companies, National Capital Territory of Dethi and Haryana on
2 May 2017 in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2009, as amended. Pursuant to the offer, the Company has allotted 4,850,746 equity
shares of T 5 each at an offer price of ¥ 670 per share including a share premium of ¥ 665 per share on 5 May 2017 under the
fresh issue portion of the Offer. Further, 6,023,236 equity shares offered under the offer for sale by the selling shareholders
are transferred at an offer price of T 670 per share including a share premium of T 665 per share. Allotment has been made
to applicants in various categories as below:

Particulars

Qualified Institutiona!l Bidders ) 2,174,756
Non-Institutional Investors 1,631,098
Retail Individual Investors 3,805,894
Anchor Investors o 3,262,194
Total 10,873,982

*During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had split the equity share of face value of T 10 each to face value of ¥ 5 each
and further issued bonus shares to the shareholders in the ratic of 73:1 as per the resolutiprpassed at extra ordinary general meeting
(EOGM) dated 20 April 2016. D O’%@




R AR

78

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far the year ended March 31, 2017 feontd.)

4. Reserve and surplus

{Amount in %)
31 March 2016

513,000

Capital reserves 63,300
Add : on cancellation of forfeited shares - 449,700
Closing balance A 513,000 513,000
Capital reserves on consolidation 26,461,060 108,383,557
Less: adjustment on account of amalgamation {refer note 40) . - (ﬁégzr@ﬂ.
Closing balance o B 26,401,060 26,401,060
Securities premium account
Balance as per last financial statements 3,638,930,203 1547,953,470
Add : premium on issue of equity shares - [ i,699,634,990
Less: utilization towards issue of fully paid bonus shares (147,205,960) (8.658,257)
Closing balance C 3,491,724,243 3,638,930,203
General reserve
7Balance as per |ast financial statements . 617,204,660 650,017,%7?
Add : adjustment an account of amalgamation (refer note 40) o - 35,581,966
Less : adjustment on account of amalgamation of RRPPL (refer note 40} . (68,394,981)
Closing balance D 617,204,660 617,204,660
Employee Stods Cptions Cutstanding *
Balance as per the last financial statements o 5,122,242 B -
_Add: compensation options granted during the year 12,330,405 5,122,242
Closing balance E 17,452,647 5,122,242
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss )
Balance as per last financial staternents 1,700,838,659 1,235,111,455
Add : profit for the year 582,060,984 | 465,727,204
2,2_@;,3_9’9,543 1,700,838,659
Less : Appropriations: - B
Interim equity dividend (10,082,600) )
“Taxon interim equity dividend - (2,052,920) s
Closing balance F 2,270,764,123 1,700,838,659

Total reserves and surplus {A+B+C+D+E+F)

Jos
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{(Amountin¥)
Non Current Current Non Current Current
nortion maturities portion maturities
4 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
Secured _
Term loans i .
From financial institution ({refer 250,624,034 1,878,924,220 442,338,400 36,007,909
notes 1 to 12 below)
From bank {refer nates 13 to 16) 50,337,192 62,640,426 142,090,572 54,188,638
Buyers credit (secured)
Buyers credit from bank {refer note - 61,677,706 61,677,706 -
17 below) —
Vehicle loans o
From banks {refer Notes 18 to 23) 10,821,383 6,337,198 12,068,683 7,998,907
“From others {refer Note 24 to 25) 1,578,824 1,318,326 - -
(Against hypothecation of vehicles) - i
313,361,433 2,010,897,876 658,175,361 98,195,454
Total A" 313,361,433 - 2,010,897,876 658,175,361 98,195,454
Loans & advances from related
parties (refer note 37)
From Directors - - 21,060,100 -
Total “g” - - 21,060,100 -
Total "A+B” 313,361,433 2,010,897,876 679,235,461 98,195,454
The above amount indudes: o . o
Amount disclosed under the head - (2,010,897,876) - {98,195,454)
“other current liabilities” (note 8)
Total 313,361,433 - 679,235,461 -

Note:-

1

In § Chand and Company Limlited, Term loan from
Siemens Financial Limited taken during the financial
year 2013-14, carrles interest @ 13.75%. The loan
is repayable in 36 equal monthly installments
beginning from June' 2013 onwards. The instaliment
amount ranges from T 182,542 to of ¥ 323,535. The
loan is secured by hypothecation of machine being
purchased, currently valued at T 14,455,375. Further
the loan has been guaranteed by Joint & several
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company &
demand promissory note issued in favor of lender. The
loan has been repaid during the current year.

In S Chand and Company Limited,Term loan from
Siemens Financial Limited taken during the financial
2014-15, carries interest @ 13.50% to 13.75%. The
Joan is repayable In 36 equal manthly instaliments
beginning from August’2014 onwards. The installment
amountrangesfrom¥ 336,009 to¥ 542,279.The loanis

I

306

secured by hypothecation of assets being purchased,
currently valued at T 14,455375, Further the loan
has been guaranteed by joint & several personal
guarantee of Directors of the Company & demand
promissory note issued in favor of lender.

In S Chand and Company Limited, Term loan from
Siemens Financial Limited taken during the financial
year 2015-16, carties interest @13.50% . The loan
is repayable in 36 equal monthly instaliments of
T 75,879 heginning from April’ 2015. The loan is
secured by hypothecatlon of assets being purchased,
currently valuing ¥ 14,455,375.

In S Chand and Company Limited,Term loan from
Indo Star Capital Finance has been taken during the
financial year 2014-15, carries interest @ 12.50% p.a.
to 12,.95% p.a. (31 March 2016: 12.85% p.a. to 13.00%
p.a.). The loan is repayable in 18 quarterly instaltments

- December” 2014 onwards. Till
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September 2015, installment amount ranging from
¥14,000,000 to T48,461,532 per quarter, On December
2015, Company had made early repayment of loan
facility amounting to T35 crore, consequent to that
repayment schedule has been revised. The remaining
loan amount is repayable in 7 quarterly installment
beginning from September 2017 onwards. The
installment amount is ranging from ¥3,230,773 to
¥48,461,535 per quarter. The loan is secured by {i}
First and exclusive charge on optionally convertible
redeemable debentures of New Saraswati House
{India) Private Limited by way of pledge (i} First and
exclusive charge on 98% equity of Vikas Publishing
House Private Limited by way of pledge {iii) Second
pari passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the
Company (iv) Second pari passu charge on all current
assets of the Company. Further the loan facility has
been secured demand promissory note issued in
favor of lender. The loan has been repaid subsequent
to balance sheet date on 12 May 2017 and hence has
been shown under current portion.

In S Chand and Company Limited, Term loan from
Axis Finance Limited has been taken during the year
and carries interest @ 11.25 % p.a. The facility has
been taken for a period of 5 years and is repayable
in 14 equal quarterly installments of ¥ 71,428,571
beginning from June 2018, The facility has been
secured against: (i) second parj passu charge on both
present and future current and fixed assets of the
Company, {ii) pledge on entire stake to be purchased
by the Company i.e, 4354% of Chhaya Prakashani
Private Limited, (iii) pledge on 20% equity shares
of the Company, (iv) pledge on 100% equity shares
of New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited,
subsidiary company (v] pledge on 100% equity
shares of Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited,
wholly owned subsidiary company (vi} charge over
publishing license/ IPRs as well as brand of New
Saraswati and {vii) PDCs for the interest and principal
amount. The above securities are to be shared pari-
passu with respect to both the facilities of Axis
Finance Limited in borrower i.e,, the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary company, Eurasia Publishing
House Private Limited. Furthermore, on acquisition of
balance shares of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited,
the balance shares and the publishing license as well
as the brand is to be charges to Axis Finance Limited.

Maoreover, the sanction [etter also contains
the mandatory prepayment terms as follows:
- Any change in ownership structure and / or
management control of borrower companies ie., the
Company and Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited
and securityprovidersi.e, New Saraswati House (India)
Private Limited and Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited;
- Proceeds from any third party by way of further
equity/debtinfusion into borrower companies i.e., the
Companyand EurasiaPublishing House PrivateLimited;
- Rating downgrade

- Merger events

-Interest reset event, in case borrower is not agreeable
with the revised interest rates,

As the Company has already completed Intial Public
Offering (*IPO”) on May 9, 2017 . The Company has
disclosed this borrowing as “"short term” under
current maturities of long term borrowings. The joan
has been repaid subsequent to balance sheet date on

12 May 20177

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Term
Loan from Indo Star Capital Finance has been taken
during the 2014-15 financial year, carries interest
@12.50% p.a to 13.00% p.a. The [oan is repayable in
6 quarterly instalments beginning from December
2014 onwards, On December 2015, Company had
made early repayment of loan facility amounting to
T15 crore. The remaining loan amount is repayable
in 7 quarterly installment beginning from September
2017 onwards.Theinstallment amount s ranging from
¥13,84,617 t0 ¥2,07,69,231 per quarter. The loan is co-
borrowed by the Holding Company and is secured by
corporate guarantee of the Holding Company,

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, the
company has taken three term loan from Siemens
Financial Services Private Limited for purchase of
machines, which carries interest ranging between
11.5% to 13% p.a. It is repayable in 33 to 36 Monthly
equated monthly instalments. it is secured by
hypothecation of respective machine. The company
has made interest free refundable security deposits of
2,725,255 to lender, included in non current security
depositin Note 13,

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Term loan
from Axis finance has been taken during the year ,
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carries interest @11.25% p.a. The loan is repayable
in 14 quarterly instalments after moratorium of 18
months beginning from June’ 2018 onwards. The
loan is secured by pledge of 4200 Equity 5hares held
by the Company in New Saraswati House (India)
Private Limited and corporate guarantee of Holding
Company.

entire stake t0 be purchased by the Holding Company
i.e., 43.54% of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited, (i)
pledge on 20% equity shares of the Company, (iv)
pledge on 100% equity shares of New Saraswati House
(India} Private Limied, {v) pledge on 100% equity
shares of Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited,
(vi} charge over publishing kicense/ IPRs as well as
brand of New Saraswati and (vii) POCs for the interest

g in DS Digital Private Limited, Term Loan from Siemens and principal amount, Furthermore, on acquisition of
Financial Limited taken during the financial year 2012- balance shares of Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited,
15, carries interest @13.5% p.a. The loan is repayable the halance shares and the publishing license as well
in 38 equal monthly installments beginning from as the brand is to be charges to Axis Finance Limited.
2014-15 onwards. The instaliment amount ranges The entire facility has been repaid subsequent to
from ¥ 120,406 to of ¥207,728. The loan Is secured by year end on 23 May 2017, hence accrodingly the loan
hypothecation of assets heing purchased. Further the facility has been considered as current,
loan has been guaranteed hy joint & several personal
guarantee of Directors of the company, corporate 12 In New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited,
guarantee of Holding Company &demand promissory Term loan from Axis Finance Limited has been taken
note issued in favor of lender. during the current financial year and carries interest

@ 11.25 % p.a. The facility has been taken for a period

10 In DS Digital Private Limited, Term Loan from Siemens of 5 years and is repayable in 14 equal quarterly
Financial Limited taken during the financial 2015- installments, beginning from June 2018. The facility
16, carries interest @13.5% p.a. The [oan is repayable has been secured against: (i) second pari passu charge
in 36 equal monthly installments beginning from on both present and future current and fixed assets of
20715-146 onwards. The installment amount ranges the company.
from ¥ 91,838 to of T §06,128. The loan is secured by
hypothecation of assets being purchased, Further the 13 InVikas Publishing House Private Limited, the Indian
lean has been guaranteed by joint & several personal rupee loan from State Bank of India which carries
guarantee of Directors of the company, corporate interest at Base rate plus 235% p.a. It is repayable
guarantee of Holding Company & demand promissory in 20 equal quaterly installments;Quaterly Principal
note issued in favor of lender. of ¥8,500,000 each plus interest on monthly basis,

starting from April 2015. It is secured by Pari Passu

11 In Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited, Term loan Charge on commercial property situated at E-28,
from Axis Finance Limited taken during the current Sector -8, Noida and Hypothecation of furniture and
year, carries interest @ 11,25% p.a. The facility has fixtures and Collateral of Leasehold industrial plot
been taken for a period five years and is repayable and building situated at 20/4, Sahibabad Site IV,
in 14 equal guarterly installments of 40,714,285 Industrial Area, Ghaziabad and Commercial property
beginning from June’ 2018 onwards, The loan is in basement floor bearing premises No. 16, Old No.
secured by (i) exclusive charge on all present and 1324,18/3 , 4" Main, 4" Cross, Ward 27, Gandhinagar
future current assets and all present fixed assets of , Bangalore and Plant and Machinery. The lpan s also
the Company (i} pledge on entire equity shares of secured by personal guarantee of directors and the
the target company to be acquired by the Company Holding Company
{ii) corporate guarantee of the Holding Company.

14 1n Vikas Publishing House Private Limited,The Indian

Further, the securities provided by the Holding
company are to be shared pari-passu with Axis
Finance Limited in respect ofabovefécility whichis (i)
second pari passu charge on both present and future
current and fixed assets of the Company, (i) pledge on

rupee loan from Yes Bank which carries interest
at Base rate plus 2.75% p.a. It is repayable in 16
equal quarterly installments; Quaterly Principal of
¥2,545,454 each plus interest on monthly basis,
starting from November 2013, It is secured hy Pari
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Passu Charge on commercial property situated at
E-28, Sector -8, Noida and Hypothecation of furniture
and fixtures and Collateral of Leasehold Industrial
plot and building situated at 20/4, Sahibabad Site IV,
Industrial Area, Ghaziabad and Commercial property
in basement floor bearing premises No. 16 , Old No.
1324, 18/3, 4™ Main, 4™ Cross, Ward 27, Gandhinagar
, Bangalore and Plant and Machinery. The loan is
also secured by personal guarantee of directors and
corporate guarantee of the Holding Company. This
loan has been repaid during the year

fn Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, The Indian
rupees loan from Indusind bank carries interest at
Base rate plus 1.25% p.a. The loan is tepayable in 18
equal quarterly instalments each after moratorium
period of sixmonths along with interest from the date
of loan. The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge
over the machinery purchased by the Company
from the proceeds of term loan. Further, the loan has
been guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Mr.
Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
and corporate guarantee of the Holding Company

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, the Indian
rupees loan from indusind bank carries interest at
12.25% p.a. The fean is repayable in 18 equal quarterly
instalments each after moratorium period of six
months along with interest from the date of lcan.
The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge over
the machinery purchased by the Company from the
proceeds of term loan. Further, the ioan has been
guaranteed by the personal guarantee of directors
of the Holding Company and corporate guarantee of
Holding Company.

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, buyer's
credit has been taken from Indusind bank for 3
different transactions, the maximum rate of interest
being 1022 % p.a and the buyer’s credit are repayable
in the year 2017, the maximum date for redemption
being 13* July 2017. The interest rate includes the
cost of hedging the buyer's credlt from Indusind bank.
The loan is secured by way of exclusive charge over
the machinery purchased by the Company from the
proceeds of buyer’s credit. Further, the buyer’s credit
has been guaranteed by the personal guaranwee of
directors of the Holding Company and corperate
guarantee of Holding Company.

19
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In 5 Chand and Company Limited, Vehicle loans have
been taken from HDFC Bank, ICIC) Bank and Vijaya
Bank and carry interest @ 10.00% to 12.00%. The loan
is repayable in 36 to 60 equal monthly installments
ranging from ¥ 4,348 10 ¥ 99,400.The loan is secured by
hypothecation of respective vehicles.

In BP1 (India} Private Limited, Vehicle Loan from HDFC
Bank Limited carries interest @ 9.70% p.a. The loan is
repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of 52,750
each including imerest, from the date of loan, viz, 5
September 2013.The loan is secured by hypothecation
of respective vehidle.

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, the company
has taken vehicle loan from HDFC 8ank which carries
interest at 10.50% p.a. It is repayable in 36 Monthly
equated monthly instalments, starting from QOctober
2013, It is secured by hypothecation of respective
vehicle. This loan has been repaid during the year.

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, the company
has taken vehide loan from HDFC Bank which carries
interest at 3.50% p.a. It is repayable in 60 Monthly equated
monthly instalments, starting from May 2016. It is secured
by hypothecation of respective vehlcle.

In New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited, Vehicle
loan from HOFC bank has taken during the year,secured
by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour
of the bank. It carries interest rate of 9.36% p.a.The loan
is repayable in 60 equal monthly instaiments inclusive
of interest T 41,860 each beginning from May 2016.

In Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited, the company
has taken vehicle loan from ICICi bank and the same is
secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle
in favor of the bank. it carried interest rate ranging
from 9.80% to 14.99% p.a. The loan was repayable in 36
equal monthly instalments,

In New Saraswati House {india) Private Limited, Vehicle
loan from Daimler Financial Services India Private
Limited has been taken during the year, secured by
way of hypothecation of respettive vehicle in favour of
the bank. It carries interest rate of9 80% p.a.The loanis

X055 ool
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25 In 5 Chand and Company Limited, Vehicle loan taken during the year from Daimier Financial Services India Private Limited
and carrles interest @ 9.81% p.a. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly installments of T 128,710. The loan is secured by

hypothecation of respective vehicle.

6. Short term borrowings

(Amountin®)
31 March 20148
Secured
Loans repayahle on demand
From banks - 3
Working capital demand loan (refer note 1 to 8 below} 945,000,000 370,000,000
Cash credit {refer note 9 to 18 below} 708,431,379 841,837,460
Buyers Credit (refer note 19 below) _ - 11,098,678
Sale inveice discounting - 10,296,473
Total “A® 1,653,431,379 1,233,232,611
Unsecured
Loans & advances from related parties {refer note 37}
_from Directors 8,688,444 17,300,000
From bank
Cash credit from banks {refer note 15 below} - 6,995,381
Total “B" 8,688,444 24,195,381
Total “A+B" 1.662,119,823 1,257,527,992
Note:- In 5 Chand and Company Limited, Working capital
1 in 5 Chand and Company Limited, Working capital demand loan from Standard Chartered Bank taken
demand loan from HDFC Bank Limited {under Multiple during the financial year 2015-16. The facility is
Banking Arrangement with Indusind Bank, Kotak secured by way of first pari passu charge on the entire
Mahindra Bank, Standard Chartered Bank ) is secured existing and future current assets and movable fixed
by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing assets {other than those exclusively charged to other
and future current assets and movable fixed assets of lender, if any} of the Company and personal guarantee
the Company and personal guarantee of Directors of Directors of the Company. This loan carries interest
of the Company & Corporate Guarantee of Nirja rate ranging from 9.15% p.a. to 10.75% p.a. (31 March
Publishers & Printers Private Limited. This loan carrles 2016: 10.25% p.a. to 10.50% p.a.).
interest rate ranging from 9.25% p.a. to 10.25% p.a. (31
March 2016:11.50% p.a. to 12.00% p.a.l). In 5 Chand and Company Limited, Working capital
demand loan from DBS Bank Limited (under Multiple
2 in § Chand and Company Limited, Working capital Banking Arrangement with Indusind Bank, Kotak

demand loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank taken during
the financial year 2015-16. The facility is secured by
way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing
and future current assets and movable fixed assets
(other than those exdusively charged to other lender,
if any} of the Company and personal guarantee of
Directors of the Company. This loan carries interest
rate ranging from 9.35% p.a. to 11.35% p.a. {31 March
2016:10.25% p.a. to 10.75% p.a.).

Jio

Mahindra Bank, Standard Chartered Bank and HDFC
Bank) taken during the current year is secured by way
of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and
future current assets and movable fixed assets (other
than those exdlusively charged to other lender, if any)
of the Company and personal guarantee of Directors
of the Company. This loan carries interest rate ranging

——
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In S Chand and Company Limited, Working capital
demand loan from DCB Bank Limited taken during
the year [s secured by way of first pari passu charge
on the entire existing and future current assets and
movable fixed assets {other than those exclusively
charged to other lender, if any} of the Company and
personal guarantee of Directors of the Company. This
loan carries interest rate of 9.35% p.a.

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Working
capital demand loan from banks (under Multiple
Banking Arrangement with HDFC Bank, State Bank
of India, Yes Bank, DBS Bank and Standard Chartered
Bank} carries interest at ranging from 9.50% pa. to
10.25% p.a which are repayable on maturity. Working
capital demand loan is secured by hypothecation of
stock-in-trade, book debts, immovable / movable
properties, corporate guarantee of Holding company
and personal guarantee of directors.

In New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited,
Working Capital Loan from HDFC bank (under
Multiple Banking Arrangement with DBS Bank) is
carrying an interest rate of 9.9% p.a. repayable after
90 days. The lgan is secured by way of (i} charge on
entlre existing and future current assets (li) exclusive
charges aver the entire existing and future fixed asset
of the company {iii) personal guarantee of director of
the Holding Company and (vi} Corporate Guarantee
by Holding company.

In New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited,
Working Capital Loan from DBS bank (under Multiple
Banking Arrangement with HDFC Bank) taken during
the year carrying an interest rate of 9.5% p.a. repayable
after 120 and 150 days, The loan is secured by way of {i}
charge on entire existing and future current assets (i}
exclusive charges over the entire ex/sting and future
fixed asset of the Company (iii) personal guarantee
of director of the Holding Company (iv} Corporate
Guarantee by Holding company.

In S Chand and Company Limited, cash cedit from
Indusind Bank Limited {under Multiple Banking
Arrangement with Kotak Mahindra Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank, HDFC Bank and DBS Bank) is secured
by way of first pari passu charge on the entire existing
and future current assets and movable fixed assets of
the Company and personal guarantee of Directors of

10

12

13
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the Company. it carries interest rate of 12.35% p.a. (31
March 2016: 12.35% p.a. to 12.75% p.a.).

In S Chand and Company Limited, cash ctedit from
Kotak Mahindra Bank {under Multlple Banking
Arrangement with [ndusind Bank, HDFC Bank,
Standard Chartered Bank and DBS Bank} is secured by
way of first parl passu charge on the entire existing
and future current assets and movabie fixed assets
{other than those exclusively charged to other lender,
If any) of the Company and personal guarantee of
Directors of the Company. This loan carries interest
rate of 11.22% pa. (31 March 2076: 11.22% pa. to
11.30% p.a.).

InS Chand and Company Limited, Cash creditfrom DBS
Bank Limited {under Multiple 8anking Arrangement
with Indusind Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank and HDFC Bank) taken during the year
is secured by way of first pari passu charge on the
entire existing and future current assets and movable
fixed assets (other than those exclusively charged to
other lender, if any) of the Company and personal
guarantee of Directors of the Company. This |oan
carries interest rate of 10.B5% p.a. (31 March 2016:
12.25%to 12.50% pa.).

In S Chand and Company Limited, cash credit from
Standard Chartered Bank {under Multiple Banking
Arrangement with Indusind Bank, Kotak Mahindra
Bank, HDFC Bank and DBS Bank) is secured by way
of first pari passu charge on the entire existing and
future current assets and movable fixed assets (other
than those exclusively charged to other lender, if any)
of the Company and personal guarantee of Directors
of the Company. This loan carries interest rate
10.72% p.a.

In BP1 (india} Private Limited, cash credit fadlity carry
interest rate of Base Rate plus 2.259% p.a. taken from
Indusind Bank on 12 February, 2015.Cash credit facility
are secured by exdusive charge on all current assets
and maovable fixed assets except vehicle specifically
charged to other lender of the Company (both
present and future), exclusive charge on property of
directors situated at DDA Flat No. D-7/7123, HIG First
Floor, Vasant Kunj, New Delhl, and property of Vikas
Publishing House Private Lip @ shaiary of Group
company} situated at 783738 Birment Nod,
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* Floor, 4™ Cross, Main Gandhi Nagar, Bangalore and
corporate guarantee of M/s Blackie and Son {Calcutta)
Private Limited & Holding Company and personal
guarantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Mr. Jai Saxena, Mrs
Vidya Saxena and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala.

14 In Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited, cash
credit is from HDFC Bank and carries interest ranging
from 11.30% p.a. The loan is repayable on demand.The
loan is secured by (i) hypothecation of current assets
(present and future) (i) hypothecation of fixed assets
(present and future, except financed by other bank
and financial institutions) {iii) Corporate guarantee
of Holding Company and (iv) personal guarantee of
directors of Holding Company

15 InVikas Publishing House Private Limited, cash credit
from HDFC Bank, Yes Bank, Standard Chartered Bank,
DBS Bank and State Bank of India carry interest at
base rate plus spread {ranging from 1.30% to 2.75
%) p.a which are repayable on demand. Cash credit
facility availed to the extent of sanction limit, is
secured by hypothecation of stock-in-trade, book
debts, immovable / movable propertles, corporate
guarantee of Holding Company and personal
guarantee of directors, and has been considered
as secured. Cash credit availed over and above the
sanction limit has been considered as unsecured and
carries same interest rate as secured facility and is
repayable on demand.

16 In New Saraswati (House) India Private Limited, cash
credit from HDFC bank (under Multiple Banking
Arrangement with DBS Bank) is carrying an interest
rate of 11.85% pa. {31 March 2016: 11.85% p.a)
repayable on demand.The loan is secured by way of (i)
charge on entire existing and future current assets {ii)

7. Trade payable

Long term

Trade payable

17

18

19
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exclusive charges over the entire existing and future
fixed asset of the company (jii) personal guarantee of
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala and Himanshu Gupta
and (vi) corporate guarantee by Holding Company.

In New Saraswati (House) india Private Limited,
cash credit from DBS bank (under Multiple Banking
Arrangement with HDFC Bank) taken durfng the year
and carrying an interest rate of 9.90% p.a. repayable
after 90 days. The loan is secured by way of (i) charge
on entire existing and future current assets {i)
exclusive charges over the entire existing and future
fixed asset of the company (i) personal guarantee
of directors of Holding Company and {vi) corporate
guarantee by Holding Company.

In D S Digital Private Limited, short term loan from
Standard Chartered Bank is secured by (i) exclusive
charge on all the current assets and movable fixed
assets of the borrower (both present and future except
assetswhich are exclusively charged underequipment
financing} (i) unconditional and irrevocable
personal guarantee of Himanshu Gupta and Dinesh
Jhunjhnuwala to remain valid during the tenor of the
facilities (iv) unconditional and irrevocable corporate
guarantee of Holding Company to remain valid during
the tenor of the facilities, The loan carries interest rate
of base rate plus 2% p.a.

In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, buyers
credit from Yes Bank carries interest at 1.72% p.a. is
secured by hypothecation of stock-in-trade, book
debts, immovable / movable properties, Corporate
Guarantee of 5 Chand and Company Limited and
Personat guarantee of directors. This loan has been
repaid in full during the year.

{Amountin ®
Long term Short term
31 March 2016 31 March 2016

Short term

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 61,758,487 - 23,699,927
and small enterprises (refer note 34 for details

of dues to micro and small enterprises) ]

-total outstanding dues of creditors other 14,269,287 1,7B7,724,458 9,389,074 1,486,112,478
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Trade payables to related entities 1,071,931 - B25,529
Total 14,265,287 1,850,554,876 e 5,389,074 1,510,637,934

I e
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8. Other liabilities

Provision for employee benefits

31 March 2016

(Amount in )
Long term Short er Long term Short term
¥ FAPIIPA 31 March2016 31 March 2016
Interest accrued but not due on barrowings - 8481,912 - 8,856,857
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 606,642 o - 1_,407,707
Interest on outstanding dues of micro - 11,519 - 8,298
enterprises and small enterprises
Intere st accrued on security deposits taken - 284,752 - o
from customer e
Current maturities oﬂo?g-term borrowing - 2,01 0,897,876 - 98,195,453
{refer note 5} )

;curity deposits/earnest money received - 20,820,000 ] 661377? - 620,000
Other payables . 10,369,799 - .
Advance from customers _ 52,295101 _— - 25,838,518
Unearned revenue o . 5,4:G 1,673 __ T 11,124,245
Technical know how and copyrights fee - 2,372,507 . 1,842,239
Statutory dues payable - 30,398,089 - 84,217,050

Total - 2,201,799,870 661,375 232,110,367

9. Provisions

(Amount in T
Long term Short term

31 March 2016

Provision for gratuity (refer note 29) 48,366,823 447,291 48,090,898 1,897,926

Provision for leave benefit 3,666,896 5,226,084 ] 1,981,269 977,926

Others -

Provision for sales return® - - - 45,601,053
7Provision for taxation {net of advance tax) - 522,631,004 - 123,882,533

Total 52,033,719 528,304,379 50,072,167 172,459,438

*represent provision for probable sales returns from its customers against their entitlement per their respective contracts, to the extent
goods not returned. The movernent in respect of such provision for sales returns is given below;

(Amountin¥)
Particulars 31 March 2016
At the beginning of the year 45,601,053 104,446,478
Add: created during the year B o - 45,601,053
Less: utilized during the year - B -__(45",501,053) {104,446,478)
At the end of the year L F C 0 25,601,053
Current portion @ 053

184 I Annual Report 2016 - 17
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11. Investment

(Amount in T}

31 March2016  Quoted/ [}
Unguoted [

Particulars

[ 'f No. of
Shares/Units Shares/Units

A. Non-current investments

I. Trade investments (value; at cost
unless stated otherwise)

a. Investmentsinassociates

(i} Equity shares of T 2 each fully paid 2,025,766 2,025,766 Ungquoted 176,571405 194,863,842
up in Edutor Technologies (India}
Private Limited (refer note below)*

Total ‘a’ 2,025,766 2,025,766 176,571,405 194,363,842

. Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

a. Investmentin equity instruments

1 Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up 40 40 Quoted 18,900 18,900
in Reliance Industries Limited
2 Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up 21,600 21,600 Quoted 161,352 161,352

inwinsorme Breweries Limited

(At cost less provision for other than
temporary diminutionin value T

54,648}

3 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 1,000 1,000 Quoted 10,000 10,000
in State Bank of India

4 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 400 400 Quoted 24,000 24,000
in Criental Bank of Commerce ~

5 Equity shares of T 10 each in Reliance 125 125 Quoted 55,239 55,239
Power Limited )

6  Equity shares of T 10 each in EIH 400 400 Quoted 78,975 78,975
Associated Hotel Limited

7  Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up 100 100 Quoted - -
in Mafatlal Finance Co. Limited

8  Equity shares of ¥ 10 each in Bharat 20,000 20,000 Unguoted 100,000 100,000
Glass Tubes Limited

9  Equityshares of T 10 each fully paid up 10,000 10,000 Unquoted . -

in Bharat Glass Tubes Limited

(At cost less provision for other than
temporary diminution in vatue T

100,000)

10 Equity share of ¥10 each in Smartivity - 50 1 Unguoted 518,137 1,334
Labs Private Limited ‘

11  Eguity share of 10 each in Gyankosh 100 100 Unquoted 7,550 7,550
Solutions Private Limited ' _ 5 om »

I
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{Amountind)
Particulars | 31 March2016  Quoted/ [ 31 March 2016
Unquoted
No. of No. of
Shares/Units Shares/Units
12  Equity share of 10 each in Testbook 100 100  Ungquoted 826,551 826,551
Edu 5olutions Private Limited
(Formerly Share Infotech Private
Limited)
Total "a' 53,915 53,866 1,800,704 1,283,901
b. Investments in preference shares
{i} Essar Gujrat Limited (sharesof ¥ 1,600 1,600 Unquoted - -
37.14 each) (At cost less provision
for other than temporary
diminution of ¥59,425)
(i) Zee Entertainment Enterprises 4,200 4,200 Unquoted - -
Limited 6% Preferance shares
{Bonus)
(i) Smartivity Labs Private Limited 5,064 4164 Unquoted . 15630741 6,138,441
{compulsory convertible o
cumulative preference share of 10
each) :
(iv} Gyankosh Solutions Private 319,200 319,900 Unquoted 24,152,450 24,152,450
Limited (compulsory convertible
cumulative preference share of 10
each)
(v} Testbook Edu Selutions Private 2,690 2,690 Unquoted 22,234,209 22,234,208
Limited {(Formerly Share infotech
Private Limited) (compulsory
convertible cumulative preference
share of 500 each)
{vi) Next Door Learning 5olutions 353 353  Unquoted 4,866,635 4,866,635
Private Limited (compulsory
convertible cumulative preference
share of 10 each)
Total b’ 333,807 332,907 66,884,035 57,391,735
c. Investmentsin debentures/bond/Mutual funds
(il MGF (12% Secured redeemable 100 100 Unquoted 6,000 6,000
non-convertible debentures of T
60 each fully paid-up)
(i} Debentures/bonds of T &0 each 50 50 Unquoted 2,000 - 2,000
of MGF Limited (At cost iess
provision for other than temporary
diminution in value ¥ 1,000)
{Hi} Power Finance Corporation 1,000 - Unquoted 2,136,000 -
Total'c' 1,150 150

188 | Annual Report 2016 - 17 W/////////////////////
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OVERVIEW / STATUTORY REFORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31-March 2017-

No. o
Shares/Units

31 March 2016

Quoted /
Unquoted

No. of
Shares/Units

{Amount in T)

BIFE 31 March 2016

d. Government and Trust securities {Unquoted)

Investment in government securities
(NSC)

Unquoted

30,000

30,000

30,000

30,000

Total non—current investments {I+1)

2,414,638

2,412,689

247,430,144

253,577,478

Aggregate amount of quoted
investments {Market Value T 585,249
{31 March 2016 ¥506,363))

348,466

348,466

Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments

247,081,678

253,229,012

Aggregate provision for diminution in
value of investments

215,073

220,223

*5hare of net assets of associate
company on date of acquisition

43,837,793

43,837,793

Add: Goodwill on acquisition of
associate company

191,990,200

191,990,200

Less : Share in post acquisition loss

(59,256,588)

(40,964,151)

Carrying amount of investment

176,571,405

194,863,852

B. Currentinvestment

. Currentinvestments (valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

a. Investments in Equity Instruments

() Quotedinvestment

1  Freshtop Fruits Limited (equity
shares of T10 each)

1,000

1,000

Quoted

26,500

16,800

2 Kitply Industries Limited {equity
shates of 10 each)

100

100

Quoted

3 Mahaan Foods Limited (equity
shares of ¥10 each}

42,564

42,564

Quoted

675,804

393,17

4 ORG Informatics Limited (equity
shares of T10 each)

100

100

Quoted

5 Pentamedia Graphics Limited
(equity shares of T1 each)

10,457

10,457

Quoted

6,274

5438

6 Vamdhman Concrete Limited
{equity shares of T10 each)

2,000

2,000

Quoted

22,800

25,000

7 Zee Entertainment Limited (equity
shares of T10 each)

100

100

Quoted

20,990

20,590

8 Zee Entertainment Limited (Bonus
shares)

100

Quoted
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(Amountin®)

Particulars 31 March 2016  Quoted / 31 March 2016
Unquoted
No. of No. of
Shares/Units  Shares/Units
9 Sistema Shyam Teleservices 15,880 15,880 Quoted 93,990 -
Limited (equity shares of T10
each)
10 DSQ Software Limited (equity 2,000 2,000 Quoted - -
shares of T10 each)
11 Nextgen Animation Media Limited 40 40 Quoted - -
(equity shares of T10 each})
12 Silverline Tech EQ (equity shares of 100 100 Quoted - “
10 each)
Total’a’ 74,441 74,441 850,358 461,945
(ii} Unquoted Investment .
1 Bharat Glass Tubes Limited (equity 1,000 1,000  Ungquoted - -
shares of T 10 each)
Investment in unquoted share 1,000 1,000 - -
Total 'a' 75,441 75,441 850,358 461,945
b. Investmentsin Mutual Funds
1 Principal Monthly Income Plan - 83,834 82,212 Quoted 865,364 847,648
Dividend Reinvestment Monthly
2 Templeton India Corporate 8ond 57,906 57,906 Quoted 600,000 600,000
Opportunities Fund
31 ICICI Prudential Regular Saving - 6,278 Quoted - 661,477
Fund (growth)
4 HDFC Liguid Fund Direct Plan - 40,359 Quoted - 120,000,000
Growth option
5 Birla Sun Life Cash Manager - 138,171 - Quoted 55,391,602 -
Growth - Direct Plan
6 Birla Sun Life Cash Manager - 76,753 - Quoted 30,000,000 s
Growth - Regular Plan _ \
7 Kotak Egquity Arbitrage Fund - 3,269,594 - Quoted 66,313,935 -
Dividend Plan ‘
Total'b’ 3,626,258 186,755 - 153,170,901 122,109,125
¢.  Investments in preference shares
(i Walldorf Integration Solutions 512,500 512,500 Unquoted 41,000,000 41,000,000
Lirited (Formerly Citixsys
Technologies Limited)
(redeemable preference shares of
T 10 each fully paid up) (refer note
41)
Total‘c’ 512,500 512,500 41,000,000 41,000,000
Total currentinvestments (a+b+c) 4,214,199 774,696

914
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{Amountin T
Particulars 31 March 2016 Quoted / 31 March 2016
Unquoted .
) No. of No. of
Shares/Units Shares/Units
Aggregate amount of quoted 154,021,259 122,571,070
investments {Market Value ¥ 123,919,
207 (31 March 2016 T123,279,195)}
Aggregate amount of unquoted 41,000,000 41,000,000
investments
12. Deferred tax assets (net)
{Amount in T}
Non Current
31 March 2016
Deferred tax assets™
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the 21,909,922 42,190,164
current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent years
Fixed Assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 3,846,964 1,637,895
amortization charged for the financial reporting _
Provision for doubtful debts 27,207,595 19,754,197
Carried forward business loss 55,667,627 55,667,627
Unabsorbed depreciation 66,522,682 66,522,682
Business loss for the year {refer note 42) 872,242 1,018,755
Total "B 176,027,032 186,791,320
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed Assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 66,065,726 62,947,200
amortization charged for the financial reporting
Total “g" 66,065,726 62,947,200
Net deferred tax assets “A-B” 109,961,306 123,844,120

"includes ¥ 1,745,476 (31 March 2016: Tnil) deferred tax assets recognized on account of acquisition of subsidiary.
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13. Loans and advances
(Amountin?)

Non Current Current
31March 2016 31 March 2016

Capital advances -
Unsecured, considered good ) 1,821,118 - 12,843,458 -
“A" 1,821,118 - 12,843,458 -
Security deposits .
Unsecured, considered good o 71,474,198 521 0,822- 52,229,877 7,643,049
"E" 71,474,198 5,210,822 52,229,877 7,543,049
Advancesrecoverable in ;ash and kind - o
Unsecured, considered good o R 2,000,000 190,728,558 o 2,000,000 87,982,779
Unsecured, considered doubtful - - 693,336 - 693,335
2,000,000 191,422,334 2000000 88,676,115
Less: Provision for doubtful advances _ - (653,336) . {693,336)
o - “cr 2,000,000 190,728,998 2,000,000 87,982,779
Loans & advances to related parties 7
Unsecured, considered good {refer note 37) 675,517 161,256  1,499999 815,096
" 675,517 161,256 1,499,999 819,096
Otherloans & advances B )
Unsecured, considered good 39,805,000 - - 39,805,000
Prepaid expenses 289,014 17,574,303 17 1,29—0 ‘_ﬁTGTWT,Q;
Loans to employees o i - 1,493,975 L 3},—@
Balance with statutory/government authorities - 14,268,232 76,025 @W
Mat credit available 62,836,834 4,855,313 64224201 7,096,610
Advance income-tax {net ofprovisi(;n for 41,105,051 350,693,310 46,587,335 o 15,115,301
taxation) B
“E" 144,039,899 388,885,133 111,058,851 87439,748
Total “A+8+C+D+E 220,010,732 584,986,209 179,635, 13% mss,au,an
T N>

P Pyl e
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14, Other assets

{Amount in T)

Non Current Current

Tz .z 7

farch 2017, {AFl 31 March2016 31 March 2016
Non- current bank balances (refer note 17} B,609,742 - 27,496,607 -

Unamortized expenditure .
_Ancillary cost for arranging the borrowings 359.244 3,483,160 3,842,404 1,910,120
.\ B,968;986 3,483,160 31,339,011 1,910,120

Others )

Inte@ccrued on fixed deposit o 322,629 2_03_2.3:50 1,714,441 -
“B” 322,629 2,032,350 1,714,441 .
Total “A+B" 9,291,615 5,515,510 33,053,452 1,910,120

15. Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

181,957,865

{Amount in )
31 March 2016

Raw material {refer note 20) 109,671,238
Raw material others 1,027,699 2,628,685
Stores and spares (refer note 22) j 4,354,092 3,581,ZST
Work-in-progress (refer note 22) 26,858,124 31,519,741
Finished goods (refer note 22} 1,323,535,?65 1,252,734,912
1,537,733,345  1,400,135,827
Less : Provision for slow & non moving raw materials (1,902,536)_ {1,902,536)
Total 1,535,830,809 1,398,233,291
16. Trade receivables
{Amountin %)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment

31 March 2016

Unsecured, considered good 383,968,415 319,185,620
Unsecured, considered doubtful 92,953,244 65,261,029
476,921,659 384,446,649
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (92,953,244) (65.261,029)
. 383,968,415 319,185,620

Other receivables_
Unsecured, considere& good 4,676,840,6B81 3,660,032,145
4,676,840,681 3,660,032,145
Total 3,979,217,765
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for the year ended March 31, 2017 fcontd.)

17 Cash and bank balance
(Amountin®

Non Current Current
31 March2016 31 March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

In current accounit - 321,563,753 - 223,226,441
Ceposits with original maturity of less than three - " - 42,108,460 - 1,894,325
months
“Cash on hand R 7,486,638 - 13,359,888
- - 371,158,851 - 238,480,654
Other bank balances N L
Deposlts with remaining maturity for more than 12 4,406,324 R 4,471,;16 .
months L
-Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 3 4,023,418 4,252,31% 22,844,691 - 5,770,261
months but less than 12 months
Margin money deposits® 180,000 - 180,000 :
8,609,742 4,252,319 27,496,607 5,770,261
Amount disclosed under other non- current assets (8,609,742) - (27.496,607) -
{refer note 14)
- 4,252,319 - 5,770,261
Total B - 375411170 - 244,250,915

*In Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, margin money deposit inciudes

a]  Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of ¥ 34,139,564 (37 March 2016: ¥18,275,453) has been earmarked for the
repayment of Buyer Credit taken from Indusind 8ank

b)  Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of ¥ 4,173,334 {31 March 2016:T4,025,143) are subject to first charges to secure
the company’s bank guarantees.

<)  Margin money deposits with carrying amount of ¥404,250 (31 March 2016: T 381,280} is subject to Registration of UP VAT & DVAT,

d) Margin money deposits with carrying amount of T Nil (31 March 2016:3 162,815) has been earmarked against the Buyer Credit
taken from Yes Bank.

e)  Margin money deposits with carrying amount of ¥ 25,68,878 (31 March 2016: ¥ Nil) has been earm
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S.CHAND

PUBLISHING

(Amountin®)
31 March 2016

Sale of products L
Finished goods 6,713,611,396 5,269,555,483
Traded goods 169,104,245 59,980,352
_ 6,882,715,611 5,329,536,835
Less: turnover discount (237,651,517} (169,504,445)
B 6,645,064,124 5,160,032,330
 sale of services 175,743,249 204,270,605
Other operating revenues
Scrap sales 14,256,306 11,128,386
Training income - 265:1?()—
Miscllaneous income 6,417,439 348,244
Revenue from operations (net} 6,841,481,118 5,376,044,775
 Details of products sold I
Finished goods sold o
5ale - Books [export) 28,104,788 31,909,702
Sale - Books 6,660,432,728 5,212,722,089
Sale - E-Books 4,854,281 2,091,345
Educational kits 20,219,599 22,833,347
N 6713,611,396  5,269,556,483
Traded goods sokd -
Sale - Books 37838087 14854512
Computer & peripherals 131,163,225 44,103,033
Go Maths (Kit} 102,933 1,022,407
a 169,104,245 59,980,352
Details of sale of services L
Joh work - - 2,358,598
Content development charges __ 15876,366 5,783,708
Royalty 1,637,341 8,980,784
Fcense fee - 229,500
Mobile app development support - 1,298,697 5,783,445
Customized interactive education services o 142,930,000 170,441,914
Income from pre school educational activity L 13,450,409 8,341,872
Sale of warranty o _-—__-__ 588,776
Eureka science labs-set up feas ______m_52,'lﬁ 262,008
Income from learning center N 496,22 ) -
Digital data management services - T e - 1,500,000
/ é\a}zi,n&us 204,270,605
gf nnual Report 2016 - 17 | 195
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19.1 Otherincome

(Amountin T)
31 March 2016

Insurance claim received 1,569,641
Exchange differences (net) - 2,693,182
Dividend income 1,404,383 156,241
Duty drawback 1,762,372 1,229,157
Miscellaneous incomes 3,367,757 5,943,775
Provision on diminution of investment written back 388,406 91,800
Net gain on sale of investments 6,129,255 17,268,502
Creditors written back _ 244,839 1,632,582
Total 13,297,012 30,584,880

19.2 Interest income
(AmountinT)

Imterest income

31 March 2016

From bank deposits 3,283,870 8,385,128
From others 2,970,790 903,756
Total 6,254,660 9,288,884

20. Cost of materials and components consumed
(Amountin®)

Raw material consumed

31 March 2016

Inventory at the beginning of the year 109,671,238 188,083,95;
Inventory acquired on acquisition of subsidiary 35,244,5'58 -
Add : Purchases of published gaods 189,561,190 256,543,996
Add : Purchases of CD and tablets 48,059,265 -
Add : Purchases of traded goods 161,425,151 14,818,012
Add : Purchases of raw material . 1,586,746,583 o 1,405,295,683
2,130,707,985 1,864,741,646
Less: [nventory at the end of the year 181,957,865 109,671,238
Cost of materials consumed 1,948,750,120 1,755,070,408

Details of raw material purchased

Paper & glue 1,100,727.957 1,010,850,852
Printing and binding material 486,018,626 394,444,831
Books 189,561,190 256,543,996
CD & tablet 48,059,265 -
Traded goods 161,425,151 14,818,012

1,676,657,691

Jis

1,985,792,189
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20.1 Purchase and implementation cost

{Amount in3)
/4 31March 2016
Traded imported stationery 2,555,2& 7,457,293
Computer & peripherals 116,763,181 43,937,697
Science & English labs {kit) 618,626 627,751
E-Books 124,983 -
120,062,070 49,022,741
21. Publication expenses
(Amountin¥)
. 31 March 2016
Royalty ‘iO_Et,BZ'I,B"_M_ 393,962,558
Editing charges 1,329,770 43,007
Processing charges 40,418 2,BB6,659
Block and composing __ 149848 463,268
Freight anﬁarrage expenses . 1 1,506,3£ 8,203,956
Power and fuel* 50,499,793 48,133,901
Repalrs and maintenance - machinery* 29,675,808 13,921,236
as_umption of storas and spares*® 6,566,063 5,213,547
Other publication expenses 58,784,085 - 30,507,846
- 565,379,985 503,335,978
*Directly attributable to printing of books
22, (Increase) / decrease in inventories
{Amountin®)

31 March 2016

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 1,323,535,565 1,252,734,912
Work-in-progress 26,858,124 31,519,741
Otheritems 4,354,092 3,581,251

1,354,747,781 1,287,835,904

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 1,252,734,912 979,527,671
Inventory acquired on acquisition of subsidiary . 121,613,571 -
Work-in-progress 31,519,741 5_6,.082,1 58
Qther [tems 3,581,251 3,242,840

________ . 1,409,449,475 1,008,852,669
s 54,701,694 (278,983,235}

S
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for the year ended March 31, 2017 feontd.}

(Amountin®)
31 March 2016

Details of inventory:

Finished goods
—Manufactured goods L

Books - 1,272,383,195 1,192,217,415
Educational kits - 11,566,226 19,722,307
Traded goods . ~

Books and E Books ) 33,036,525 30,517,349
Stationery import 6,549,619 7,515,855
Computer & peripherais - - ' - 1,796,055
Go-Math Kit B - 965,931

1,323,535,565 1,252,734,912

Work-in-progress

Printed material for books _ 23,552,726 28,171,103
Educational kits - - 3,305,398 3,348,638
26,858,124 31,519,741

23. Employee benefits expense

(Amount in %)
31 March 2016
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,022,722,458 822,652,883
Contribution to provident and other funds 59,991,338 52,946,306
Gratulty expense (refer note 29) 18953186 13,310,147
Employee stock option expense (refer note 35) L 12,3_30,405 5,122,242
Staff welfare expenses 50,852,152 48,011,692
B 1,164,849,539 942,043,270
24. Selling and distribution expenses
{Amountin¥)
o3 31 March 2016
Advertisement, publicity and exhibl'tici 170,864,923 115,086,917
Freight and cartage outward 161,541,973 132,894,102
_Packlng and dispatch expenses 45,770,114 49,644,584
Vehicle running & maintenance o 21,441,320 20,539,583
Travelling & conveyance 173,724,289 142,764,773
Leases rent-vehicles . 4,721,630 2,293,77;
Books workshop expenses _ ' 10,013,188_ 3,891,119
Rebate and discount . 50,867,382 58,339,636
638,944,819 525,454,486
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25. Other expenses

(Amountin T}
31 March 2016
Rent 181,843,422 161,629,947
Repairs & maintenance
-Plant & machinery 444,301 631,754
-Building 3,410,296 6,567,780
-Others __ 53,869,659 42,291,703
Insurance 14,649,432 1 1,470,78?
Rates and taxes 5,758,0T4 5,016,554
" Communication cost 39,423,782 33,870,726
Printing and stationery 9,433,878 6,858,105
Legal and professional fee 59,529,300 99,142,501
Donations 5,433 93,400
Director sitting fees 645,478 -
Water and electricity charges ) ;_M19,109,425 IQ,QZQ,F
_Provision for doubtful debts and advances 4@51,548 45,878,182
Provision for sales return ) - 45,601,053
Provision for slow & non moving raw materials T - 1,902,536
Loss on sale and discard of fixed assets {net} 1,104,574 1,600,606
Diwali expenses 101,769 93,427
(Office expenses 27,526,377 16,616,912
Security charges 24,05%_(12 19,685,604
“Bad debt written off 8,234,793 5,721,703
Membership and subscriptions 248,270 352,699
Wabsite design charges 365,432 606,208
Recruitment charges _1 459,330 2,783,928
Loss of stock due to flood 270,371 -
Merger & demerger expenses written off 497,566 -
Vehide running & maintenance 1,966,577 1,814,965
Outsource services 52,097,139 41,138,963
Commission and brokerage ) L - 164,051
Cash discount 54,307 A65 30,556,394
Lease charges- operating 609,345 1,526,474
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 44) 11,613,785 6,993,685
A—dvances written-off - 95,368
Amount written-off due to recongciliation adjustment - 2,261,023
Provision for employee advance 639,678 -
Warranty expenses on tablets B - 520,000
Exchange difference 101,525 -
Miscellaneous expenses 18,387,891 16,387,199
639,957,927 629,803,346
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 fcontd.)

26. Finance cost

(Amountin¥)
31 March 2016

Interest expense

-Onterm loan 108,668,442 80,832,379
~Onothers | 221453988 212,490,770
Processing fees - bank loan ) i8,21 4,534 280,5:5
Foreclosure charges 38,586 B -
Amortization of ancillary borrowing cost 337,080 6,215,219
Bank charges 6,996,246 6,009,100
355,708,876 305,832,020

27. Depreciation and amortization expenses

{AmountinT)
l 31 March 2016
Depreciation of property, plant & equipement ' 166,530,636 173,469,655
Amortization of ntangible assets 115,274,530 85,597,387
281,805,566 259,067,042
28. Earning per share (EPS)*

The following reflects the Profit and share data used in the basjc and diluted EPS computations

{Amountin )

31 March 2016

Total operations for the year

Profit after tax, minority interest and share of associate company 582,060,984 _ 465,727,204
Net Profit for calculation of Basic L.PS B 582,060,984 465,727,204
Net Profit as above 582,060,984 465,727,204
Net Profit for calculation of D_ilul:ed L.PS 582,060,984 465,727,204
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS 29,844,496 27,273,549
Effect of dilution: o

?tock option granted under ESOP 50,395 53,872
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS 29,894,891 27,327.421
Profit per equity share (EPS} [nominal value of share ¥5]
(a) Basic 19.50 17.08
{b} Diluted 15.47 17.05

*During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had split the equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each to face value of ¥ 5 each
and further issued bonus shares to the shareholders in the ratio of 73:1 as per the resolution passed at extra.cgdinary general meeting
(EOGM) dated 20 April 2015.
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The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity
on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of sefvice or part thereof in excess of six months. The
scheme s funded with an insurance company for S Chand and Company Private Limited, Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

and New saraswati House (India} Private Limited.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the

funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost

{Amount in
31 March 2016

18216921

Current service cost 1 6,026,82£
Interest cost on benefit obligation 5,722,768 6,138,687
Expected return on plan assets (2,746,319} B (3,198,413)
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture 1,471,127 31_9;!,680
Net actuarial (gain} / loss recognized in the year (3,711,31 H {6,054,633)
' Net benefit expense 18,953,186 13,310,147
Actual return on plan assets
Expected Return on plan assets 2467127 3,798,413
Actuarial gain/(loss} on plan assets 903,314 (1,895,947}
_{Amountin T 3,370,441 1,302,466
Balance sheet _ - - S
Benefit asset/ liability e o
Present value of defined benefit obligation 123,449,865 m 995,177
Fair value of plan assets 74,635,751 61,906,353
Plan assets/{liability) (48,814,114} (50,088,5824)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation {D80) o
Epening defined benefit obligation 111,995,177 111,682,348
Interest cost 5,722,788 6,138,687
Current service cost B 18216921 16026826
Acquisition/business combination/divestiture 270,494 1,642,138
Benefits paid (9,864,426) (15,544,242)
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation {2,891,089) {7,950,580)
Closing defined benefit obligation 123,449,865 111,995,177
- Changes in fair value of plan assets B )
Opening falr value of plan assets ' 61,906,353 . ?231,754 ]
Expected Return 2746319 3198413
Contributions by employer 18,123,070 9,926,375
Benefit paid ___ _[B766421) (15,544,242)
Actuarial gain/{loss) 626,430 (1,895,947)
Closing fair value of plan assets e, 74,635,751 61,906,353
The Group expects to contribute T 1,308,532 to gratuity in the next year (31 March 20 3 3:})

M
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for the year ended March 31, 2017 feontd.}

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
{31 March2016
100%

100%

Kotak Life Insurance and LIC

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown helow:

31 March 2016

6.95% t0.7.75%

Discount rate 7.80% to 7.85%
Rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 7.50% to 9.00%
Salary Escalation 6:00% to 8.00% 6.00% to 8.00%
Employee turnover 1% to 5% 1% to 5%
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality LIC.{2006-08) LiC (2006-08)

Ultimate Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period

over which the obligation is to be settled.

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

{Amountin®)
31 March 2013

Pefined benefit obligation 123,449,865 111,995,177 111,682,349 58,641,105 48,613,182
Plan assets 74635751 61,906,353 66,221,754 38,147,715 32,456,000
(Surplus)/ Deficit 48,814,114 50,088,824 45,460,595 20,493,390 16,157,182

30. Capital and other commitments
’ {AmountinX)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for {net of

31 March 2016

advances):

a Capital commitments 541,693 26,811,270

h Export commitments pertaining to export promotion 77,893,802 77,893,802

¢ Other commitments 366,667 243,998
78,802,162 104,949,070

d  The Holding Company has entered Into a share purchased agreement as on 14 November 2016 to acquire 74% stake
(including stake acquired through its 100% subsidiary, Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited} in ‘Chhaya Prakashani
Private Limited” based in Kolkata, West Bengal for a total consideration of INR 170 Crore and has been acquired on 5
December 2016. The remaining tranche of 269 will be acquired by 31 March 2019.

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited is engaged in the business of printing and publishing of school books, college and
engineering and children’s hooks.
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31, Contingent liabilities

{Amountin %)
larch 201 31 March 2016
Income Tax demand {refer note ‘a’ below)* ) 67,583,454 67,480,280
VAT claim by U. P VAT Act (refer note ‘b’ below) 1,650,000 1,650,000
Stamp duty {refer note 'c’ below) 85,013,220 85,013,220
Registration fee {refer note‘'c’ below) 9,154,800 -
Notes: c.  During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
a. [ In S Chand and Company Private limited, for received notice under Indian Stamp Act, 1899
Assessment  Year 2006-2007, demand was for non-payment of stamp duty on transfer of
raised due to disallowance of certain expenses property on amalgamation and demerger held
under section 14A of the Income Tax Act and in the financial year 2011-12, The district registrar
also certain penalty proceedings on the above contented that order of Homble High Court for
issue, The matter is pending with the Assessing amaigamation and demerger does not grants
officer. The amount involved is ¥ 568483. exemption in respect of payment of stamp duty,
In respect of Assessment Year 2014-2015, During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
demand was raised due to disallowance of certain has also received a demand notice from the Sub-
expenses under section 36(1){va) of the Income Registrar under section BOA of the Registrations Act,
Tax Act. The matter is pending with CIT(A). The 1908 wherein the authority has directed the Company
amount involved is T 103,174 (31 March 2016: Nil). to pay additional registration fee of T 9,154,800.
{in In Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited, As per the legal opinion obtained, management
income tax demand pertaining to assessment is of the view that no liability would accrue on the
year 201213 and 2011-12 amounting to Company on account of such case. Accordingly, no
735438380 and 31,473,417 respectively. provision has been made in the books of account for
the same.
The above demand is net of tax deposited
by the company amounting to Y8,000000 32 Lazses
) Operating lease: Group as lessee
The group is contesting the demands and the P g P .
) Lo, ) ’ a.  The Group has taken premises for office use under
management, including its tax advisors, believe .
, o . ) cancellable operating lease agreements, The total
that its position will likely be upheld in the : : .
ease rentals recognized as an expense during the
appelate process. No tax expense has been .
accrued in the financial statements for the tax period under the above tease agreements aggregates
) m : to T 172,576,105 (31 March 2016: ¥125,778,445).
demand raised. The management believes that ) _ .
. - - ; These lease have average life of between one to nine
the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not e
- j years. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease
have a material adverse effect on the company’s
) O . agreements, There are no sub leases,
financial position and results of operations.
b.  The Group has taken certain machinery f
b,  InDS Digital Private Limited, 21,100,000 has been pald P inery for office use

for levy of penalty U/S 54(1) of U P. VAT Act, Appeal
filed by DS Digital Private Limited is pending.

By,

under cancellable operating lease agreements. The
total lease rentals recognized as an expense during the
period under the above lease agreements aggregates
to ¥337,500 (31 March 2016:8,309,735). There are no
restrictions imposed by the lease agreements. There
are no sub leases.
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c.  The Group has taken premises for factory use under operating lease agreements. The total lease rentals recognized as an
expense during the period under the above lease agreements aggregates to ¥ 2,485,780 (31 March 2016:%3,101,707}. There
ara no restrictions imposed by the lease agreements, There are no sub leases,

d.  The Group has taken vehicle for office use under cancellable operating lease agreernents, The total lease rentals recognized
as an expense during the period under the above lease agreements aggregates to ¥ 1,821,996 (31 March 2016: TNil). There

are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreements. There are nosub leases,

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows :

{Amountin )

i 3 1.1} 31 March 2016

Within one year 53,172,293 58,857,422
After one year but not more than five years ) 1"86,327,276 __m

More than five years 3;2',479,095 84,148,726

271,978,664 315,536,639

33. Unhedge foreign currency exposure
Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date
(Amountin®

31 March 2016

Trade receivable

UsD 517,209 696,765

INR 33533248 46213524

BHD e 23,400

INR - 4,076,970

Trade Payable _

GBP _ - 205,264

INR _ - 15,540,436

Buyer Credit

GBP - 116,312

INR - 11,098,678

Cash on hand

usp AT 1,133

INR 11,671 75,152
_EURO 100 300

INR L 22,536
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34. Due to micro, small and medium enterprise as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Amount due to Micro and small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2017 are as under:

{Amountin¥®)

Particulars 31 March 2016

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 61,758,487 23,699,927
interest due on above 11,519 8298
61,770,006 23,708,225

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 - -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which . - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year 11,519 : 8,298

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - .
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act 2006

35 Employee stock option plans

The Company provides share-based payment schemnes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an employee
stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On 30 June 2012, the board of directors approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2012 {Scheme 2012} for issue of stock options
to the eligible employees. According to the Scheme 2012, two types of options are granted by the Company to the eligible
employees viz Growth and Thankyou option and will be entitled to 2,194 and 292 options respectively. The options are subject
to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz, continuing employment with the company. However in case of growth
options, in addition to this the board may also specify the certain corporate, individual or a combination performance parameters
subject to which the option would vest. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:
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6rantl  Grant)l Grantlll(a) Grantlli(b} GrantIV¥(a} GrantI¥(b} GrantI¥(c) GrantIW(d) Grant¥  GramtVl Grant V1l

Date of grant %12 912 2Beub-14 30-Sep-14 27-Aug-15 7-Aug-1S J0-Sep-15 28-Mar-16 S-Aug-16  16-Aug-16  30-Nov-16
Date of oard approval Hun12 3012 28-ul-14 0 30-Sep-14 Z-AuglS 27-Aug-1s 27-Augr1S 28-Mar-16 S-Aug-16 S-Aug-1§ 19-Sep-164&
. 30-Nov-16
Date of Sharehotder’s appoval IHun-12 30um12 28-ub-14 0 30-Sep-14 30-5ep-15 30-Sep-15 30-5ep-15 28-Mar-16 S-Aug-16  S-Aug-ls 10-Nov-16
Number of options granted 2,194 92 180 75 M 185 243 40 93388 51,060 12,506
Method of settlement [(ash/Equity) Equity Equity Equity fquity Equity Equity Equity Equity  Equity Equity Equity
Yesting Period Year 1-10% 100% Year1-28% Year1-28% Year1-50% Year1-25% Year1-25% Year1-25%  Year)- Year1-25%  Year1-50%
Year2-15% Immediale Year2-32% Year2-32% Year2-50% Year2-35% Year2-15% VYear2-35%  100% Year2-25%  Year2-50%
Year 3-20% vesting  Year3-40%  Year3-40% Year3-40% Year3-409  Year3-40% Year 3-25%
Year 4-25% Year 4- 25%
Year 5-30%
Exercise Period Exercise on listing but not later than two years from the listing/on sale
Exercise price 5,110 9110 36,870 36870 36,870 45000 45000 45000 304 304 392

Intrinsic value of shares at the 9,110 9,110 36870 36,870 55785 55785 55785 55785 376 376 376
time of grant

Equity shares of T 10 each were subdivided into 2 equity shares of ¥ 5 each as per resolution passed by shareholders at extraordinary
general meeting dated 20 April 2016. Further, bonus shares were issued to the shareholdersin the ratio 0f 73:1 as per resolution passed
at extraordinary general meeting (EGM) dated 20 April 2016. The effect of share split and bonus [ssue on exercise price, fair value at the
time of grant and weighted average exercise price on options granted till March 31, 2016 is as below:

Exercise Period Exercise on listing but not [ater than two years from the listing/on sale
Exercise price 62 62 249 249 ; 249 304 304 304 304 304 392
Intrinsic value of shares at the 62 62 249 249 377 377 377 377 376 376 376

time of grant

The details of activities under Growth option (Grant I) are summarized below:

31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP(Z}  No.of options WAEP (3)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 322 - 9,110 1,003 9,110
Granted during the year o - - - .
Forfeited during the year - - 681 -
Exercised during the year s - - -
Effect of share split 322 - - .
Effect of bonus issue 47,012 - - -
atstanding at the end of the year 47,656 62 9,110

Exercisable at the end of the year 33,152 -
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The details of activities under Thankyou option {Grant If} are summarized below:

31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP (3) Mo. of options WAEP (3)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ‘ 21 9,110 290 9110
Granted during the year CT . } - - -
Forfelted during the year - ~ 269 .
Exercised during the year - - - -
Effect of share split vX| B } - ) - -
Effect of bonus issue 3,066 o . - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,108 62 21 9,1 10
Exercisable at the end of the year o 3,108 - 2 e

The welghted average remaining contractual life for Growth and Thankyou option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.97 years.

The details of activities under Grant Il a and i}l b are summarized below

31 March 2016

o.oop__tlons 184 No. of options WAEP (T)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 253 36,870 255 36,870
Granted during the year ' - o - - . N
Forfeited during the year 10,804 - 2 -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Effect of share split _ 253 . - .
Effect of bonus issue 36,938 - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 26,640 249 - 253 o 36,870
Exercisable at the end of the year 16,280 | - 68 N

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years,

The Company had granted 441 option during the financial year ended 31 March 2016. The detalls of activities under Grant IV a are
summarized below:

31 March 2016

No, of options WAEP [£4] No. of options WAEP (T)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 41 36,870 - -
Granted during the year - - 441 36,870
Forfeited during the year o N - _ _: - -
Exercised during the year " ._- - - -
Effect of share split 441 - - -
Effect of bonus issue 64,386 - - “
Outstanding at the end of the year 65,268 249 441 T 36,870
Exercisable at the end of the year ' - . Praralin - _

N

4

3374



empowering

YOUNG MINDS

NCTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 {contd.)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years.

The Company had granted 473 option during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.The details of activities under Grant ivb, IVc and
Ivd are summarized below:

31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP (%) No. of options WAEP (3)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 473 45,000 - -
Granted during the year - - 473 45,000
Forfeited during the year B 1{791 - - .
Exercised during the year e B - - -
Effect of share split 473 - - -
Effect of bonus issue 69,058 - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 68,302 304.05 473 45000
Exercisable at the end of the year 15910 - - -

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years,

The Company had granted 93,388 option during the year ended 31 March 2077, The details of activities under Grant V are summarized
below:

31 March 2016
No, of options

No. of options

WAEP (3) WAEP (%)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - - N N
Granted during the year 93,388 304 - -
Forfeited during the year - - _ -

Exercised during the year - - . N
QOutstanding at the end of the year 93,388 304 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - .

The Company had grarited 51,060 option during the year ended 31 March 2017, The details of activities under Grant Vl are summarized
belows:

317 March 2016
No. of options

WAEP ) WAEP )
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - - - R
Granted during the year 51,060 304 - -

No. of options

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

51,060 304

Exercisable at the end of the year
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The Company had granted 12,506 option during the year ended 31 March 2017.The details of activities under Grant Vi are summarized

below:

31 March 2016

No. of options WAEP ﬂ No. of options

WAEP (T)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year

12,506 392 -

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

12,506

Exercisable at the end of the year

The weighted average remaining contractual life for option outstanding under GrantV, Vi and VIl as at 31 March 2017 is 2.91 years.

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

Grant{Va GrantlVb GrantlVc GrantlVd GrantV
31 March 31March 31March 31 March 31 March ]

Grant VI
March

Grant Vil

2016 2016 2016 2016 _ d
Dividend yield (%) 000%  000%  000% _ 000%  000%  000%  0.00%
Expected volatility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 000%  0.00% 0.00%
_Risk-free interest rate 7.67% 7.71% 7.46% 763%  673% 6.86% 5.99%
Eighted average share price (¥} 377 377 377 3n7 376 376 -376
Exercise price (T) 249 304 304 304 304 304 392
Expected life of options granted in years 243 3.22 3.20 315 200 350 2,50
Weighted average fair value of option at 168.74 137.24 135.03 133.56 109.08 11794 3697

the time of grant (%)

Fach vast has been considered as a separate grant with weights assigned to each vesting as per the vesting schedule. The minimum
life of a stock option is the mintmum period before which the options cannot be exercised and the maximum life is the period after
which the options cannot be exercised. The expected life has been calculated as an average of minimum and maximum life. Since the
Company is unlisted, the volatility has been considered to be zero.

The Company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the Company used the fair value model to determine
compensation, its loss after tax and earnings per share as reported would have changed to the amounts indicated below:

31 March 2016

Profit after tax as reported 582,060,983 465,772,282
Impact in the statement of profit of loss as per fair valuation method (6,535,385} (1,794,809)
Proforma profit after tax 575,525,598 463,977,473
7Earr||ngs per share '

Basic

- Asreported 19.50 17.08
- Proforma _ 19.28 17.01
Diluted

- As reported w ol 1947 17.05
- Proforma 19.25 16.98

T

Lo TR
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36. As per requirement of Companies Act, 2013, following additional disclosure needs to be given in the Notes to Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2017 along with comparative numbers for 31 March 2016,

Name of the entity

As at 31 March 2017

Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus

Share in profit or loss*

total liabilities

As % of Amount in¥ As % of Amountin®
consolidated consolidated
net assets profit or loss
Parent
S Chand and Company Limited 49% _ 3,260485717 43% 271,394,678
Subsidiaries o o
_indian o - N _ )
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited 2% 144,650,482 -1% (9,432,878}
BPI {india) Private Limited _ 1% 85,926,447 0% 2,863,239
Safari Digital Education Initiative Private Limited 3% 217,692,404 -5% 32,394,561}
Blackie & Son {Calcutta) Private Limited o 0% 18,033,950 0% 1,154,219
Arch Papier-Mache Private Limited . 0% - _ 1% _ 7,853,996
Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited 1% 69,491,611 6% 38,120,394
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited o B% 559,741,864 23% 145,816,511
5 Chand Edutech Private Limited . 0% 5,976,753_ 0% (299,775)
D 5 Digital Private Limited 5% 330,980,457 -10%  (65,921,967)
New Saraswati House {india} Private Limited N 21%  1404,951,176 12% 77,948,349
Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Etd. 4% _ 298,779947 26% 163,251,217
_Minority interests in all subsidiaries 2% 130,540822 9% 54,561,640
Associates {indian) -
Investment as per Equity Method o 3% 176,571,405 -3% {18,252,437)
100% 6,703,823,036 100% 636,622,625
Name of the entity B As at 31 March 2016
Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus Share in profit or loss*
total liabilities
As % of Amountin¥ As % of Amountin¥
consolidated consolidated
net assets profitor loss
_Parent - N _
5 Chand and Company Limited 55.61% 3,348,931,109 34.63% 161,296,174
Subsidiarigs ~
Indian o o o
Eurasia Publishing House Private Limited o -0.02% {1,258,125) 2.31% 10,767,377
BPI (india) Private Limited - 1.59% 95,760,997 -0,02% (30,044)
Safari Digital Education nitiative Private Limited 232% 139,699,222 -4.27% (19,869,923}
Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited A 0.25% 15,133,032 234% 10,894,155
Arch Papler-Mache Private Limited 0.79% 47,630,517 2.98% 13,860,657
Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited -004%  (2696,193) 27.09% _ 126,144,510
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 9.66% 582,048,255 2347% 109,318,287
S Chand Fdutech Private Limited 0.03% 2,073,878 1.58% 7,348,691
“ B S Digital Private Limited 5.87% 353,494,546 -7.10% {33,071,214)
_New Saraswati House {india) Private Limited 20.18% 1,215,345,262 22.85% 106,415,534
_Minority interests in all subsidiaries _ 0.52% 31475592 -0.01% {45,076)
_Associates {Indian) _ —
Investment as per Equity Method 3.24% 194,863,842
100.00% 6,022,501,934

* Management has elected to present these number on post-elimination basis.
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37. Related party disclosure
Related parties and their relationship

Related parties under AS 18 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Associates

Edutor Technologies India Private Limited

Investing party in subsidiary company

Ventureskies, FZE (Deregistered)

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel or
their relatives exercise significant influence

1 M/s Hotel Tourist (Partnership Firm}

: M/s Raasha Entertainment & Leisure LLP

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited

Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited

S.Chand Properties Private Limited

i 3hyam Lal Charitable Trust

Shyam Lal Nursing Home & Medical Research Centre Private Limited

RKG Hospitalities Private Limited

Amenity Public School

Smartivity Labs Private Limited

Key Management Personnel & their relatives

- Mrs. Nirmala Gupta

Director (till 20 May 2016)

- Mrs. Savita Gupta

Whaole time Director (till 20 May 2016)

Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 20 May 2016)

- Mr. Himanshu Gupta

Joint Managing Director (till 20 May 2016}

Managing Director {w.e.f. 20 May 2016)

- Mrs. Ankita Gupta

Director {till 20 May 2016}

~ Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

: Vice Chairman & Director Finance {till 20 May 2016)

Whole time Director {(w.e.f. 20 May 2016}

- Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala

Whole time Director (till 20 May 2016)

- Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

Whole time Director

- Mr. Saurabh Mittal : Chief Finance Officer
- Mr. Jagdeep Singh _ _Cornpany Secretary
- Mr. Jai Saxena Director

- Mrs. Vidya Saxena B Director

- Mr. Sumit Biswas

. Director {w.ef 5 December 2016)

- Mr. Ravindra Kumar Gupta

. Relative of Director .o

-,
n oy L
.}
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{Amountin¥)
Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Key Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
Sale of Books/ Paper/Services
Edutor Technologies India Private 31 March 2017 - 303,223 - 303,223
Limited
31 March 2016 - (3,431,094} ~ (3,431,094
M{s Hotel Tourist (Partnership Firm) 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
Amenity Pubiic School 31 March 2017 -
31 March 2016 - -
SC Hotel Tourist Deiuxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 . - - -
31 March 2076 (41,260} - A (41,260)
Sale of fixed assets
Motif 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 {141,400) - - (141,400
Purchases
Prolific Papers Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
M/s Hotel Tourist (Partnership Firm) 31 March 2017 4,809,799 - - 4,809,799
31 March 2016 (5,051,098) - - (5,051,008)
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 1,190,347 - - 1,190,347
31 March 2016 (1,303,400} - - {1,303,400)
Edutor Technologies India Pvt Ltd 31 March 2017 - 3,740,783 - 3,740,783
31 March 2016 - - - -
Smartivity Labs Private Limited 31 March 2017 384,670 - - 384,670
31 March 2016 - - - -
S. Chand Hotels Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 (1,176,234) - - {1,176,234)
Staff welfare expenses
M/s Hotel Tourist (Partnership Firm) 31 March 2017 1,678,816 - - 1,678,816
31 March 2016 (1,674,532) - - (1,674,532)

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

F41




GVERVIEW / STATUTCRY REPORTS / FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amountin I)
Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Key Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
Interest expenses
Mr. Atul Gupta 31 Mareh 2017 ) s - R )
31 March 2016 - - . )
Other Expenses paid
{reimbursement)
Shyam Lal Charitatrle Trust 31 March 2017 24,205 - - 24,205
31 March 2016 (6,035) - . (6,035)
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 (355,526) . - (355.526)
5. Chand Properties Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - .
31 March 2016 (15,545} - - (15,545)
Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - “
31 March 2016 - . - _
S. Chand Hotels Private Limited 31 March 2017 “ - - -
31 March 2016 {614) - - (614)
M/s Raasha Entertainment & 31 March 2017 - - . -
Leisure LLP
31 March 2016 - - - -
M/s Hotel Tourist (Partnership Firm} 31 March 2017 8,472 - - 8,472
31 March 2016 (62,046) - - (62,046}
Mrs. Ankita Gupta 31 March 2017 547,768 - . 547,768
31 March 2016 - - - -
Edutor Technologies fndia Private 31 March 2017 - 109,39? . 109,390
Limited
31 March 2016 - (69,792) - (69,792)
Rentals paid -
5. Chand Properties Private Limited 31 March 2017 28,836,802 - - 28,836,802
31 March 2016 (28,596,136) - - (28,596,136}
Shyam Lal Nursing Home & Medical 31 March 2017 598,000 - - 598,000
Research Centre Private Limited
31 March 2016 - - - -
Ravindra Kumar Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 1,189-_,35 1,189,392
(1,178,794) {1,178,794)

31 March 2016,
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{AmountinT)
Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Kay Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 9,618,000 - B 9,618,000
31 March 2016 (9,567,040) - - (9,567,040)
Orange Education Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 (13,483) - - (13,483)
Mrs, Savita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 3,140,176 3,140,176
31 March 2016 - - (2188,772)  (2,188,772)
Mrs.Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 2,284,660 2,284,660
31 March 2016 - - (2,266,426)  (2,266,426)
Mrs. Ankita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 369,900 369,900
31 March 2016 - - (392,175) {(392,175)
Mr. Atul Gupta 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
Mr. Ankur Gupta 31 March 2017 - - . .
31 March 2016 - - - -
Mr. Sumit Biswas 31 March 2017 - - 150,000 150,000
a 31March 2016 - - - -
Orange Associates Private Limited ?I March 2017 o 8,957,000 - - 3,95m
31 March 2016 - (8,139,430) - - (8,13%,430)
Corporate social responsibility ’
Shyamn Lal Charitable Trust 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 (1,500,000} - - {1,500,000)
Remuneration
Mrs. Nirmala Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 964,516 964,516
31 March 2016 - - (6,000,000} (6,000,000}
Mrs. Savita Gupta L March 2017 - - 6,058,065 6,058,065
31 March 2016 - - {7,200,000)  (7,200,000)
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 11,050,145 11,050,145
31 March 2016 - - (5,015,000)  (9,015,000)
Mrs. Ankita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 3,164,516 3,164,516
31 March 2016 - - (3,150,000}  (3,150,000)
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 10,902,958 10,902,968
31 March 2016 - - f9,}€:5;®;0£\63%§§,000)
A) Y"p X
iy
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(Amountin¥)
Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Key Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 3,164,516 3,164,516
31 March 2016 - - (3,795,000} (3,795,000
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 5,400,000 5,400,000
31 March 2016 - - (3,300,000) (3,300,000
Mr. Jai Saxena 31 March 2017 B - 3,750,000 3,750,000
31 March 2016 - - (3,750,000} (3,750,000)
Mrs. Vidya Saxena 31 March 2017 - - 3,750,000 3,750,000
31 March 2016 - - {3,750,000) (3,750,000)
Mr. 5aurabh Mittal 31 March 2017 - - 9,432,428 9,432,428
31 March 2016 - - (7.950,620) {7.950,620)
Mr. Jagdeep 5ingh 31 March 2017 - - 7,413,641 7,413,641
31 March 2016 - - (956,468} {356,468)
Mr. Sumit Biswas 31 March2017 - - 2,860,274 o 2,860,274
31 March 2016 - - - ;
Expenditure capitalised during
construction period
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
Purchase of fixed asstes
Edutor Technologies Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
Balances outstanding
as at 31 March 2017
Trade payables
M/s Hotel Tourist 31 March 2017 1,689,934 _ - - 1,689,934
31 March 2016 {510,588) - - (510,588)
?Hote! Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 4,02 - - 4,000
- 31 March 2016 {117,629) - - (117,629)
Shyam Lal Nursing Home & Medical 31 March 2017 159,545 - - 159,545
Research Centre Private Limited
31 March 2016 (95,575} - - {95,575)
Venture Skies FZE 31 March 2017 ez~ 1,455,085 - 1,455,085
31 March 2016 / ﬁ/k"-iﬁﬁ 1334,907) < 1,234507)

Sl
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 {contd.)

{Amountin®)
Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Key Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
Smartivity Labs Private Limited 31 March 2077 35,343 - - - 35343
31 March 2016__ - - - .
Edutor Technologies India Private 31 March 2017 - 1,501,881 - 1,501,331
Limited
31 March 2016 - (101,732} - {101,732
Loans and advances to related -
parties
Smartivity Labs Private Limited 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 {1,500,000) - - (1.500,000)
RKG Hospitalities Private Limited 31 March 2017 342,139 s - - 342,139
31 March 2016 (342,139) - - {342,139
Shyam Lal Nursing Home & Medical 31 March 2017 110,768 - - 1 10,75
Research Centre Private Limited
. 31 March 2016 (110,768) - - (110,768}
Shaara Hospitalities Private Limited £ Marcﬁ201 7 13,804 - o . 13,804
31 March E(E - (13,8_04) - - (13,804)
Shyam Lal Charitable Trust 31 March 2017 - - - -
- 31 March 2016 - - A )
S. Chand Propertles Private Limited 31 March 2017 _ - N - -
31 March 2016 - - - -
5. Chand Hotels Private Limited 31March2017 - - ; ;
o 31 March 2016 - - . N
Orange Associates Private Limited 31 March Z(E 14,549 o - - 14,549
31 March 2016 - - - _
Raasha Entertainment & Leisure LLP o 3 Marcﬁ 2017 224389 - - 224,389
31 March 2016 (224389) - - (224389)
rﬁ/s Hotel Tourist ;fMarch 2017 - - - ,
7 31 March 2016 - - . T
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 142,590 - - 142,590
31 March 2016 (127,995) - - (127,995)

Short term borrowings

e S o
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(Amountin®)

Nature of Transactions Year Enterprises Associates Key Total
over which Key Managerial
Management Personnel &
Personnel or their their relatives
relatives exercise
significant
influence
Mr. Sumit Biswas 31 March 2017 - - 492,170 492,170
31 March 2016 - - - -
Mr. Jai Saxena 31 March 2017 - - 8,678,444 48—,678,444
"31 March 2016 - - (12,495,000) (12,495,000}
m, Vidya Saxena 31 March 2017 - - 10,000 10,000
31 March 2016 - - (5050000 {505,000)
Long term borrowings
Mrs. Nirmala Gupta 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 L - - (21,060,100} (21,060,100)
Security deposits receivable
S Chand Properties Private Limited 31 March 2017 12,546,828 - - 12,546,828
31 March 2016 (12,546,828) - - (12,546,828}
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2017 4200000 o - 4,300,000
31 March 2016 {4,200,000} - e 7-(4,200,000)
Mrs.Savita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 535,080 535,080
31 March 2016 - - (390,0000 (390,000}
Mrs.Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 118,422 118,422
31 March 2016 - - (118,422) (118,422}
Ravindra Kumar Gupta 31 March2017 - - - 408,750 408,750
31 March 2016 - - (408,750} (408,750
Orange Associates Private Limited 31 March 2017 1,950,000 - - 1,950,000
31 March 2016 . - - )
Ankita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 189,000 185,000
31 March 2016 - - {189,000} (189,000
Investments made during the year
Smartivity Labs Private Limited 31 March 2017 9,492,300 - - %,492,300
(Preference shares} .
‘31 March 2016 (6,138,441) - - (6138447
Smartivity Labs Private Limited (Equity 31 March 2017 516,803 - - 516,803
shares}
31 March 2016 (1,330) - ] - (1,339)

Edutor Technologies India Private
Limited

31 March 2017
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 feontd.}

Nature of Transactions

Year

Enterprises
over which Key
Management

Personnel or their
relatives exercise

Associates

Key
Managerial
Personnel &
their relatives

(Amount inT)
Total

significant
influence
31 March 2016 - - - -
Trade Receivables _
Hotel Tourist 31 March 2017 - - . .
31 March 2016 {31,259) - - (31,259)
Edutor Technologies India Private 31 March 2017 - 580,011 - 580,017
Limited
31 March 2016 R (272,810) ) . E72810)
5C Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2007 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - - .
Amenity Public School 31 March 2017 227,000 - - 227,000
31 March 2016 (227,000) - - (227,000)
Remuneration payable
Mrs. Nirmaia Gupta 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - . (500,000  (500,000)
Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - {200,000) {200,000)
Mrs. Savita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - - -
31 March 2016 - - (200,000) (200,000
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 B - 443040 443,040
31 March 2016 - - (300,000} {300,000)
Mr. Himanshu Gupta 31 March 2017 - - 420,284 420,284
31 March 2016 - B {425,000} {425,000)
Mrs. Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 31 March 2017 - - 300,000 300,000
31 March 2016 - - (100,000} {100,000}
Mrs. Ankita Gupta 31 March 2017 - - - -
] 31 March 2016 - - {100,000) {100,000}
Mr. Sumnit Biswas 31 March 2017 - - 492,170 492,170
31 March 2016 - - - -
Mr. Saurabh Mittal 31 March 2017 - - 474,852 474,852
31 March 2016 - - (973,270Q)
Mr. Jagdeep Singh 31 March 2017 - - 1,007,959

31 March 2016

5\ (432,626)

D
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38. BPi {India) Private Limited had entered into a contract with a foreign party for supply of certain children books, As per the
contract material was to be supplied in lots. After receiving certain |ots, BP! {India} Private Limited had requested the vendor to
terminate the contract as there were no demands for such books. But the party had continued to supply books, The party has
filed case against BPI (India) Private Limited for recovery of amount with interest. The case is currently lying with Delhi High court,

BPI {India) Private Limited will discuss with AD / Reserve Bank of India {RBl} for remitting / regularizing the payment due once
the case is finally settled. Also, based on the discussions with the solicitor/expert, the management feels that BPI {India) Private
Limited has a strong chance of success in above mentioned case and hence no provision for Interest has been booked in the
financial statements,

Safari Digital Education Initiative Private Limited is created for promotion of digital business carried on by other group companies.
Managerment of Safari Digitat Education Initiative Private Limited believes that an investrnent is made in the group companies so
it is notan NBFC and the relevant rules & regulations of RBI are not applicable,

39

Merger of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited and Rajendra Ravindra Printers Private Limited

The Shareholders of Vikas Publishing (transferee} and Rajendra Ravindra Printer Pvt. Ltd (transferor) (RRPL), a subsidiary
S Chand and Company Private Limited {Holding Company), had approved a scheme of amalgamation (the scheme) u/s
391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 (to the extent applicable). In
accordance with the scheme RRPL merges with the company w.e.f. 1°* April, 2014. The Hon'ble Delhi High Court has given
its approval to the Scherne on February 18, 2016 and order was received by the company on April 7, 2016. The approved
scheme was filed with the Registrar of Companies on April 27, 2016 and the Scheme became effective from such date.
Assets and liabilities, rights and obligation of the RRPL were transferred into the Company {as provided in the Scheme).

40

The amalgamation has been given effect to in financiai statement of the Company as at 31 March 2016 by using the “Pooling
of Interests Method” as per Scheme. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of RRPL as at 01 April 2014 have been taken
over at cost. The following effects have been given in financial staterments of the Vikas Publishing House Private Limited,

-Total of 100 equity shares of 100 each has been issued to the members of RRPL namely 5 Chand and Company Private Limited,
-Vikas Publishing House Prlvate Limited recorded the assets and liabllities of the RRPL vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the

respective book values thereof, as appearing in the books of RRPL on the day immediately preceding the Appointed Date {i.e. 31
March 2014). The details of RRPL net assets are as follows:

{Amountin )

Particulars |
Fixed Assets { Including Capital work in progress} 78597112
Receivables (Including Loans and Advances & Other assets}) T 146,641,372
Inventory 1,230,670
Investments (current & non-current) . 14,886,300
Cash and bank balances 2,232949
Total {A) 243,588,403
Borrowings (Secured & unsecured) 1,264,601
Deferred Tax Liability 3,440,534
Long Term Provision ' P 4,818,688
Current Liabilities and Provisions® 1 4 G GmA 55,777,085
Total (B) < 2 65,300,308
Net Assets (A -B) A e T 178,288,095

AN

\

I
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended Mareh 31, 2017 fcontd.)

The provision for tax for the current year has been computed after adjusting the carried forward business loss of 7 68,358,538 of the RRPL.

*During FY 2012-13, ARPL had sold its certain land and building {acquired in 1972) to Arch Papier-Mache, and claimed income tax
exemption under section 47(iv) of Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”), as transfer to its wholly owned subsidiary. However, by virtue of merger
of parent company RRPL into Vikas, the subsidiary company ceases 10 be wholly owned subsidiary of RRPL. before expiry of 8 years from
the date of transfer, accordingly, capital gains claimed as exempt under section 47(iv}, would now be taxable In the year of transfer due
to trigger of section 47A. Considering this, tax liability for ¥33,509,015 has been recognized and corresponding adjustment has been
made to Reserve & Surplus taken over from RRPL as on 01 Aprit 2014,

General Reserve taken over on account of Amalgamation as on 01 April 2014

(Amount in )
Particulars chiifd.i
General Reserve 01 April 2014 :68,3981
Adjustment during the year as per the scheme of amaigamation {Difference of net assets and Consi_deration paid)* (32,813,015)
General Reserve taken over B 35,58‘i,966

*Adjustment during the year as per the scheme of amalgamation (Difference of net assets and
consideration paid)

Net assets taken over 178,288,095
Less:-Profit and Laoss as on 01 April 2014 _ ‘—712,696,129
Less:- General Reserve taken 01 April 2014 68,'5_94,981
Less:- Purchase consideration - 10,000

(32,813,015}

Since the Scheme received all the requisite approvals in the current year, operation of the transferor company from 01 Apri} 2014 to 31
March 2015, as detailed below, have been accounted for in the current year's statement of Profit and as a separate line itemn.

{Amount in¥)
Particulars
Income
_Revenue from operations 71,296,608
Other income - 2,074,304
Total Revenue 73,370,912
Expenses )
Cost of raw materials and components consumed ) T 9,332,211
Employee benefit expenses 54,668,370
Depreciation and amaortization expenses 24,637,597
_Finance cost 13,517,079
Other expenses 29,909,3BS
132,064,642
Loss before tax _ 3 (58,693,730)
Tax expense
Current tax -
Deferred tax {credit) (3,440,534)
Total tax Expense T (3,440,534)
Loss for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (55,253,196)

3499
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41. The Company had made an investment in 410 optionally convertible redeemable debentures of 100,000 each fully paid in
Walldorf Integration Solutions Limited (Formerly Cityxys Technologies Limited) during the financial year 2007-08 as per the
debenture subscription agreement dated 14 May 2007. The debentures were converted into 512,500 optionally convertible or
redeemable preference shares during the financial year 2008-09 as per the debenture conversion agreement dated 03 March
2009. These preference shares were redeemable or convertible at the option of the shareholder as per the debenture conversion
agreement. The preference shares were due for redemption or conversion during the financial year 2011-12 and the Company
opted for redemption of preference shares which Walldorf Integration Solutions Limited (Formerly Cityxys Technelogies Limited)
failed and defaulted in redeeming the preference shares.

The Company had filed a case against Walldorf Integration Solutions Limited (Formerly Cityxys Technologies Limited) demanding
redemption of the preference shares held by the Company during the finandal year 2014-15, and the rnatter is pending before
the Arbitral Tribunal for adjudication.
The Company after taking appropriate legal advice is reasonably confident w.rt. outcome of the matter in Company’s favor,

42. Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange

(Amount in )

Period of remittance (ending on} 1 April 21 6to
- 31 March 2017
Number of non-resident shareholders 1
Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due - o ‘ 130,128
Amount rernitted {in USD) . o f48,.;.1_9
Armount remitted (in INR) 3,;353,200

43. Effect of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries
The effect of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2017 are given below;
Particulars Acquisition Disposal*
- 3T march2017} . 31 March 31 March 2016

Balance sheet

Equity ) 385971885 - 38,513,409
_Non-current liabilities 241,295 - 30,338,583
Current liabilities 472,098,701 - 11,424,658
Total _ 858,311.881 - 80,276,650
Assets _ A o
Non-current assets B 24128772 - 76,278,449
Current assets B34,183,109 - 3,998,201
Total 858,311,881 - 80,276,650
Income o —
Revenue from operation _3,009,982,3B6 - _ -
Otherincome 7,292,949 12,225,644 18,260,453
1,017,275,335 12,225,644 18,360,453
;ETpensu N

Cost of material consurned
Publication expenses
Change in inventories
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended March 31, 2017 {contd.)

Particulars Acquisition Disposal*
March2017F 314 31 March 2016

Employee benefit expenses . 101,630,476 - -
Finance costs . 79818 - -
Depreciation and amortization cost 7,717,001 ' 368,868 30,298
Selling and distribution expenses 66,533,018 - _
Other expenses 32,637,949 705,555 104,836

683,570,844 1,574,423 135,134
Profit before tax 333,704,491 10,651,221 18,225,319

* Disposed off on 8 December 2016

44, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

a. In case of the Holding Company, CSR committee has been formed by the company to monitor CSR related activites. The
Company has contributed 2,719,186 out of the total contributable amount of 33,440,000 (31 March 2016; 72,510,667 ) as
of 31 March 2017 in accordance with section 135 read with schedule Vi to the Companies Act, 2013 through various trusts
and denation of books. Management has not spent the remaining amount of ¥ 720,814 as CSR committee is yet to identify
the activity. Unspent amount has not been provided in the books.,

b.  IncaseofNitja Publishers and Printers Private Limited, the company has contributed ¥1,000,000 out of the total contributable
amount of 2,689,329 (31 March 2016:¥2,185,436) as of 31 March 2017 in accordance with section 135 read with schedule
VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 to a society involved in promoting education, including special education and employment
enhacement vocational skill specially amoung children and students. Unspent amount has net been provided in books.

¢.  Incase of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, CSR committee has been formed by the company to monitor CSR related
activites. The company has contributed T 6,883,263 for the year end 31 March 2017 { 31 March 2016 : T 3,339,964) on
corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities under section 135 read with schedule Vi to the Companies Act, 2013.

d. In case of New Saraswati House, CSR committee has been formed by the Company to menitor CSR related activities. The
Company has contributed 1,011,335 out of the total contributable amount of 33,291,207 as of 31 March 2017 in accordance
with section 135 read with schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 through Read india . Management has not spent the
remaining amount of T 2,279,872 as CSR committee is yet to identify the activity. Unspent amou er provided in
books.

g5t
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45, Details of Specified Bank Notes {(SBN) held and transacted during the period 08 November 2016
to 30 December 2016 is as provided in the table helow:

{(Amount in T)
Particulars 5BNs Other Total
Closing balance ag at B November 2016 48,496,000 734,738 49,230,738
Transactions between 9 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
Add: withdrawal from bank accounts - 2,622,500 2,622,50F
Add: receipts for permitted transactions 10,000 - 6,485,945 6,499,945
Less: paid for permitted transactions (340,000 (3,025,790) (3,365,790}
Less: deposited in bank accounts (48,1 GG,OE (4,599,888) ‘"_(52,765,888]
Closing balance as at 30 December 2016 - 1,055,885 1,055,885

46. Previous year figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this period’s classification,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consclidated interim financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S R Batliboi & Associates LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm reglstration number :101049W/E300004 S Chand and Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

sd/- sd/-
per Yogesh Midha Himanshu Gupta Savita Gupta
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership no: 094941 DIN: 00054015 DIN: 00053988

sd/- sd/-
Place: New Delhi Saurabh Mittal Jagdeep Singh
Date: 12 June 1017 Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
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NOTICE

S Chand And Company Limited
{CIN L22219DL1970PLC005400)
Registered Office: Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New Delhi-110055
Email: investors@schandgroup.com Website: www.schandgroup,com
Tel: +91 11 66672000 Fax: +91 11 23677446

NOTICE is hereby given that 46™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM”}
of members of S Chand And Company Limited (*Company”) will be
held on Monday, September 25,2017 at 11.30 am at Executive Qub
Resort, 439, Village Sahacorpur, Post office Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi
110074 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements (both standalone and consolidated financial
statements) of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017 and the Reports of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To confirm the payment of interim dividend and to dedare
final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended
March 31,2017.

3, To appoint a Director in place of Ms, Savita Gupta (DIN
00053988), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers
herself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution;

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act”) read with the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as may be applicable, M/s
5. R. 8atliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 101049W}, be and is hereby reappointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of this 46™ AGM until the conclusion of the
51*AGM to be held in the year 2022 (subject to ratification
of their appointment at every AGM, if so reguired by the
Act) at such remuneration, as may be mutually agreed upon
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Statutory Auditors”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Revision in remuneration of Mr. Himanshu Gupta,
Managing Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

224 | Annual Report 2016 - 17 W//////////////
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
197 read with Part | and Section | of Part Il of Schedule V
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Aet”) (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof), applicable clauses of the Articles
of Association of the Company and subject to such other
approvals as may be required, approval of the members, be
and is hereby accorded for revision of remuneration of Mr.
Himanshu Gupta (DIN: 0005401 5), Managing Director of the
Company with effect from April 1, 2017 on the terms and
conditions including remuneration as mentioned below:

Partl: Salary
a)  Basic Salary ¥ 9,35,000/- per month on the scale of
9,35,000-93500-10,28,500

Part II: Following Perquisites-upto 10% of the basic salary
a}  Water and Electricity;

b)  Club Membership Fees; and

¢)  Medical Expenses

Part lll: Other Terms and Conditions:

The terms and conditions of appointment of Managing
Director may be altered and varied fram time to time by the
Board in such manner as may be mutually agreed, subject to
such approvals as may be required under the Act and such
alterations/variations shall always be within the overall limits
of remuneration provided in this resolution.

No sitting fees will be paid to the Managing Director for
attending meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee
thereof.

In addition to above basic salary and perquisites, Mr.
Himanshu Gupta shall aiso be entitled to remuneration by
way of commission upto 1% of the net profit of the Company
in a particular year (calculated as per the provisions of section
198 of the Act).

Annual Increment in the remuneration (within the limits
provided in this resolution) of Managing Director shall
be effective after approval of the Board based on the
recommendation of MNomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company-{™

7
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Total remuneration to Mr. Himanshu Gupta in any financial
year shall not exceed 5% of the net profit (calculated as per
the pravisions of section 198 the Act) of the Company during
that year.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT in the event of loss orinadequacy
of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period,
the above remuneration and perquisites of Mr. Himanshu
Gupta will be within the overall ceiling |aid downin Schedule
V to the Act”

Revision in remuneration of Mr. Dinesh Kumar
Jhunjhnuwala, Whole Time Director

To cansider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
197 read with Part [ and Section | of Part Il of Schedule V
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification or
re-enactrment thereof), applicable clauses of the Articles
of Association of the Company and subject to such other
approvals as may be required, approval of the members be
and is hereby accorded for revision of remuneration of Mr.
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala (DIN: 002B2988), Whole Time
Director of the Company with effect from April 1,2017 onthe
terms and conditions including remuneration as mentioned
below:

Part|: Salary
a) Basic Salary ¥ 9,35,000/- per month on the scale of
9,35,000-93500-10,28,500

Part li: Following Perquisites-upto 10% of the basic salary
a)  Water and Electricity;

b)  Club Membership Fees; and

o  Medical Expenses

Part ll: Other Terms and Conditions:

The terms and conditions of appointment of Whole Time
Director may be altered and varied from time to time by the
Board in such manner as may be mutually agreed, subject to
such approvals as may be required under the Act and such
alterations/vartations shall aiways be within the overall [imits
of remuneration provided in this resolution.

Mo sitting fees will be paid to the Whole Time Director
for attending meeting of the Board of Directors or any
committee thereof,

.

In addition to above basic salary and perquisites, Mr. Dinesh
Kumar Jhunjhnuwala shall also be entitled to remuneration
by way of commission upto 1% of the net profit of the
Company in a particular year (calculated under the provisions
of section 19B of the Act).

Annual Increment in the remuneration {within the limits
provided in this resolution) of Whole Time Director shall
be effective after approval of the Board based on the
recommendation of Nomijnation and Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Total remuneration to Mr. Dinesh Kumar fhunjhnuwala in any
financial year shall not exceed 5% of the net profit (calculated
as per the provisions of section 198 the Act) of the Company
during that year.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHATin the event of loss orinadequacy
of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period,
the above remuneration and perquisites of Mr. Dinesh Kurmnar
Jhunfhnuwala will be within the overall ceiling laid down in
Schedule V to the Act”

Amendment and Ratification of Employee Stock Option
Scheme, 2012

To considerand, ifthought fit, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Reselution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”) read with rules framed
thereunder and Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Share Based Emnployee Benefits Regulations 2014 (“SEBI
ESOP Regulations”), as amended from time to time and
subject to any other approvals as may be required, Employee
Stock Option Scheme 2012 (“"ESOP Scheme 20127) of the
Company be and is hereby adopted and ratified with the
fallowing amendments:

()  The existing Definition of “Applicable Laws” shall he
replaced with the following:

“Applicable Laws" means every lawrelating to Employee
Stock Options, including, without limitation to, the
Companies Act, 2013, Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,

ereugnt tax, securities, exchange control
or corpd @ieqé%b
from fifeAo time™Npeluding any reenactment or any

subs:@teﬁ%ﬂ@éﬁﬁ “
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NOTICE (eontd.)

(i) The name of the Company wherever appearing in the
ESCP Scheme 2012 of the Company be replaced with’S
Chand And Company Limited:

(i) The word '‘Compensation Committee’ wherever
appearing in the ESOP Scheme 2012 he replaced with
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’

{iv) The existing definition of ‘Employee’ shall be replaced
with the following:

“Employee’ means ()} a permanent employee of the
Company working in India or out of India; or (ii} 2 director
of the Company, whether whole time or not, but excluding
an independent director; o (iii} an employee, as defined in
sub-clauses (i) or (i) in this Clause 2.1. (ix) of a Subsidiary
Company in india or out of India or of a Holding Company of
the Company but excludes:

a.  An employee who is a promoter or belongs to the
Promoter Group;

b.  ADirector who either by himself/herself or through his/
her refatives or theough any body corporate directly
or indirectly holds more than 109 of the outstanding
equity shares of the Company;

(v The existing definition of ‘Subsidlary Company'shall be
replaced with the following:

*Subsidiary Company” means any subsidiary company
of the Company, as defined in the Companies Act,
2013,

{vi} Reference of Assaciate Company wherever appearing
in ESOP Scheme 2012 shall stand deleted.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT for the purpose of giving effect to
the above resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company
including the Nomination and Remuneration Committee be
and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be considered necessary or expedient in
this regard".

Approval for grant of stock options to the employees of
subsidiaries of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

9,
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuantto all applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (induding any statutory modification
or reenactment thereof) (“Act”) read with rules framed
thereunder, and subject to the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (“The SEBI ESOP Regulations”), as amended, and
subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby
accorded 1o grant stock options (“Options”}, in cne or more
tranches, exercisable into equivalent nurmber of equity shares
of the Company (or such other adjusted figure for any bonus,
stock splits or consolidations or other reorganization of the
capital structure of the Company as may be applicable from
time to time}, under the Employee Stock Option Scheme
2012 (*ESOP Scheme 2012"), as approved by the Board
of Directors (which term for the purpose of this resolution
shall deemed to include Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of Board ), to the present and future, permanent
employees of the subsidiary company(ies) of the Company
(whetherin india or out of India) and their director(s) whether
whole time or not but excluding independent directors, if
any, from time to time, at an exercise price and on such terms
and conditions to be determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect
to the above resolution, Board of Directors of the Company
be and is hereby authorized to do ali such acts, deeds and
things as may be considered necessary or expedient in this
regard’

Amendment in Articles of Association

To consider and, If thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as 2 Special Resolutjon:

“RESOLVED THAT subject to Section 14 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 {"Act”} and rules
framed thereunder and in partial modification of the approval
of members granted by way of passing Special Resolution in
the general meeting held on August 31, 2016, consent of
members be and is hereby granted to amend the Articles of
Association of the Company in the following manner:

()  Part B from Articles of Association of the Company be
deleted;

(it Post deietion of Part B, Articles of Association shall

deleted; and

'



10.

11.

7/

(i Preamble of Articles given in the beginning just after
name of the Company be substituted by the following:

The regulations contained in table *F” of Schedule § to the
Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to the Company only in so
far as the same are not provided for or are not inconsistent
with these Articles. The regulations contained in these
Articles are for the management of the Company and for the
observance ofthe members thereof and their representatives
subject however to the exercise of the statutory powers of
the Company in respect of repeal, additions, alterations,
substitutions, modifications and variations thereto by special
resolution as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013

Approval and ratification of Article 40 giving right to
appoint director on the Board and Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures Governance Committee of the Company

To consider and, if thoughtfit, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder
and in compliance of an undertaking given by the Company
fn its Prospectus following existing Article 40 of Articles of
Association of the Company be and is hereby approved and
ratified:

Article 40

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in these Articles, any Shareholder whose shareholding
in the Company is seven and a haif per cent (7.5%) or
more of the total gutstanding Equity Shares on a fully
diluted basis, shall have the right to nominate one
Director on the Board.

(b} Motwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in these Articles, any Shareholder whase shareholding
in the Company is ten per cent (109} or more of the
total outstanding Equity Shares (on a fully diluted
basis), shall have the right to nominate its respective
nominee Director as a member on the ‘Subsidiaries and
Joint Ventures Governance Committee’ of the Board of
Directors of the Company!

Approval of profit sharing arrangement between the
Management Shareholders, International Finance
Corporation and Everstone Capital Partner Il LLC

Date; August 9, 2017
Place: New Delhi

=
v
S.CHAND

PUBLIBHING

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT consent of the members of the Company
be and ts hereby granted for the profit sharing arrangements
entered into (by virtue of investment agreements dated
QOctober 7, 2015 entered into between the shareholders
and Company before listing of the Company) between Mr.
Himanshu Gupta, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Ms. Neerja
Jhunjhnuwala, Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Ms. Nirmala
Gupta, Ms. Savita Gupta, Ms. Anika Gupta { Collectively
referred as “Management Shareholders”), International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”} and Everstone Capital Partners
IILLC (“Everstone™) whereby Management Shareholders are
entitled to receive 20% of the net consideration received by
each of IFCand Everstone from the sale of their shares in the
Company over and above a minimum realizable gain, being
an Internal Rate of Return (“[RR") on 26% on their respective
investment in the Company!”

By Order of the Board
5 Chand And Company Limited

sd/-

Jagdeep Singh
Company Secretary
Membership No. A15028

Notes:

1.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of
the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out detalls relating
to Special Business at the Meeting, is annexed hereto.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM s
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll,
instead of himself/ herself and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. A person can act a3 proxy on
behalf of Members upto and not exceeding fifty and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital af the Company carrying voting
rights. Further, a Member holding more than ten percent
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights, may appoint a single person as proxy and such
person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
Member. The instrument appointing proxy in order to be
valid and effective must be deposited at the Registered
Office/Corporate office of the Company not later than
forty-eight hours before the commencement of the
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NOTICE feontd./

(a}

(b)

11,

Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending
the Meeting.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are
requested to write their DP ID and Client |D number(s) and
those who hold share(s) in physical form are requested
to write their Folio Number(s) in the attendance slip
for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of
membership at the Meeting.

Corparate Members are requested to send a duly certified
copy of the board resolnlion/authority authorizing their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

The register of Members and share transfer books of the
Company shall remain closed from -Tuesday, September 19,
2017 to Monday, September 25, 2017 (both days inclusive).

Interim dividend at the rate of T 25 per equity share was
dedlared on April 29, 2016 for the year 2016-17 and had
already been paid.

Final Dividend on equity shares as recommended by the
Board of Directors for the year ended March 31,2017, if
approved at the Meeting, will be payable to those eligible
Members who hold shares:

In dematerialized mode, based on the beneficial ownership
details 10 be recelved from Natignal Securities Depaository
Limited and Central Depository Services {India) Limited as on
Monday, September 18, 2017.

In physical mode, if their names appear In the Company’s
Register of Members after giving effect to all valid transfers in
physical form lodged with the Company and/or its Registrar
and Transfer Agents on or before Monday, September 18,
2017,

Members may avail nomination facility as provided under
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3} of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the information about the
Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is given In
the Annexure | to the Notice,

The Company hereby request Members who have not
updated their email IDs to update the same with their

13.
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respective Depository Participant(s) or with M/s Link Intime
India Private Limited, Registrar and Transfer Agent (R&T) of
the Company. Further, Members holding shares in electronic
mode are also requested to ensure to keep their email
addresses updated with the Depository Participants / R&T of
the Company.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to immediately notify change in their address, If any, to
the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s Link Intime
India Private Limited or at the Registered Office of the
Company, quoting their Folio number(s). Members holding
shares in dematerialised mode are requested to intimate
all changes pertaining to their Bank details, ECS mandates,
email addresses, nominations, power of attorney, change
of address/name etc, to their Depository Participant (DP)
only and not to the Company or its Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents. Any such changes effected by the DPs will
be automatically reflected in the records of the Company
subsequently.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for financial year
ending March 31, 2017 is being sent to all the members
whose email 1Ds are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants{s} for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the
same. For members who have not registered their email
address, physical copies of the Annual Report for finandial
year ending March 31, 2017 are being sent in the permitted
mode. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 46% AGM of the
Company inter alia indlcating the process and manner
of electronic voting ('e-voting’) along with Attendance
Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map is being sent to all the
members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants{s} for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the
same. For members who have not registered their email
address, physical copies of the Notice of the 46™ AGM of the
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of
e-voting along with Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route
Map are being sent in the permitted mode. Members may
also note that the Notice of the 46" AGM, Attendance Slip,
Proxy Form, Route Map, Ballot Paper and the Annual Report
for financial year ending March 31, 2017 will also be available
an the Company’s website www.schandgroup.com for their
download. The physical coples of the aforesaid documents
will also be avallable at the Company's Registered Office/
Corporate Office at New Delhi for inspection without any
fee during normal business hours op-working days. Even

Lare




to receive such communication in physical form, upon
making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication, the members may send requests to the
Company's investor email id: investors@schandgroup.com.

14, Voting through electronic means:

l. The Company, in compliance of provisions of Section
108 of the Companies Act 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies {Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 and Regulation 44 of SEB! {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended, is pleased to provide Members the facility to
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to
be considered at the 46™ AGM by electronic means.

. The facility of casting votes by Members using an
electronic voting system from a place other than the
venue of the AGM (remote e-voting) will be provided
by Central Depository Services (Indfa) Limited (“CDSL").

() Thevoting pericd begins on Thursday, September
21,2017 (9.00am) and ends on Sunday, September
24, 2017 {5.00 pm). During this pericd members
of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or In dematerialized form, as on the cut-off
date (Record Date) of September 18, 2017, may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter,

{iiy The shareholders should log on to the e-voting
website www.evotingindia.com.

(i) Click on Shareholders,
{iv) Now Enter your User ID

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID foliowed by B Digits
Client D,

. Members holding shares in Physical Form should
enter Folic Number registered with the Company.

T

{v) Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and
Click on Login.

{vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingfndia.com and voted
on an earlier voting of any company, then your
existing password is to be used.

T 70070
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{vii) 1f you are a first time user follow the steps given
below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued

by Jncome Tax Department (Applicable for

both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

+ Members who have not updated their PAN
with the Company/Depository Participant
are requested to use the sequence number
whichis printed on Attendance Slipindicated
in the PAN field.

Dividend

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth

Bank Details  {in dd/mm/yyyy format} as recorded in your
Cr Date of demat account or in the company records in
Birth (DCB)  order tologin.

- If both the details are not recorded with the
Depository or Company please enter the
member id/folic number in the Dividend
Bank details field as mentioned in instruction

iv)

{viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on
"SUBMIT" tab,

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will
then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password s to be also used by the
demat holders for voting for resclutions of any
other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e~voting through
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not
to share your password with any other person
and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(X} For Members holding shares in physical form,
the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

{d) Click on the EVSN of § Chand And Company
Limited.
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NOTICE fcontd.)

{xii)

{xiii}

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

On the voting page, you will see “RESCLUTION
DESCRIPTICN” and against the same the opticn
“YES/MNO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO
as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO Implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Ciick on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish
to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided
to vote on, click ¢n “SUBMIT", A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on “OK’ else to change your vote, dlick on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM® your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by
you by dicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

{xevii} If Demat account holder has forgotten the same

password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification ccde and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviilMembers can also cast their vote using CDSL's

{xix)

mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple
and Windows phone users can download the
app from the App Store and the Windows
Phone Store respectively. Piease follow the
Instructions as prompted by the mobile app
while voting on your mobile.

Note for NMon - Individual Shareholders and
Custodians

Non-ndividual shareholders f{i.e. cther than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc) and Custodian are
required 1o log on 1o www.evotingindla.com and
register themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing
the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

VL.

VI

Vil

. After receiving the login details a compliance
user should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance user would be able to
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on,

«  The list of accounts linked in the login should be
mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.
{xx} In case you have any queries or issues regarding
e-voting, you may refer the frequently Asked
Questions {"FAQs"} and e-voting manua! available
at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made
available at the AGM and the members attending the
meeting whe have not cast their vote by e-voting shall be
able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot
paper.

The members who have cast their vote by e-voting prier to
the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled
to cast their vote again,

Cnice the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the
member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should
treat this Notice for information purpose only,

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and
beccmes Member of the Company after dispatch of the notice
and hclding shares as on the cut-off date i.e, September 18,
2017 may obtain the login 1D and password by sending a
request at delhi@linkintime.cc.in or investors@schandgroup.
com.

Mr. R. 5. Bhatia, Company Secretar

in Practice has been



The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM,
will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of
the Company ard shall make, not later than forty eight hours
of the condusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

X. The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report shall
be displayed at the Registered Office as well as the Corporate
Office of the Company and uploaded on the Company's
website www.schandgroup.com as well as on the website of
CDSL after the same is dedared by the Chairman/authorised
person, The Results shall also be simuitaneously forwarded
10 the stock exchanges.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.5 &6

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 9, 2017,
subject to approval of members of the Company, has accorded its
approval for revision in the remuneration of Mr. Himanshu Gupta,
Managing Director and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Whole

Time Director (collectively referred as “Ewecutive Directors”}
for remainder of their respective tenures. The said revision in
remuneration was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee {"Committee”) at its meeting held on August B, 2017
and was recommended to Board for its approval.

While approving revision in remuneration of Executive Directors,
the Committee considered Remuneration Policy and various
parameters such as performance of the Company, growth in
revenue and profits, expansion of business, expansion of product
portfolio, acquisitions made during the year, listing of the
Company, enhancing brand value and image of the Company and
also considered individual role and performance of each executive
director.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 197 read with Part | and Section
I of Part Il of Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 {including any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof) and applicable ¢clauses of the Articles
of Association of the Company, the above said revision in
remuneration requires approval of members of the Company in a
general meeting by way of an ordinary resolution. Accordingly, the
resolutions set out at item nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice are placed
before the members, for approval.

The details of Executive Director(s) whose remuneration is
proposed to be revised, are provided below:

Name of Director Mr. Himanshu Gupta Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Age 38 years 56 years
Date of First Appointment 21.04.2000 11.12.2004

Functional Area
and seryices industry

15 years of experience in knowledge products

11 years of experience in knowledge products
and services Industry

Qualification Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from University Basic education
of Delhi

Remuneration in 2016-17 10,192,000 10,192,000

Remuneration in 2015-16 3,600,000 3,600,000

5. Chand Edutech Pvt. Ltd.;

Nirja Publishers & Printets Pvt, Ltd.;
DS Digital Pvt. Ltd,;

Arch Papier- Mache Pvt. Ltd.;
Shaara Hospitalities Pvt. Ltd.;
S.Chand Hotels Pvt. Ltd;
Parampara Constructions Pvt. Ltd.;
Vikas publishing House Pvt. Ltd,;
Amenity Sports Academy Pvt. Ltd.

List of outside
directorship held
excluding alternate
directorship

New Saraswati House {India) Pvt. Ltd,; and

Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Ltd.

Nirja Publishers & Printers Pvt. Ltd,;

DS Digital Pvt. Ltd;

5. Chand Edutech Pvt. Ltd,;

Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.;

S Chand Properties Pvt. Ltd.;

Arch Papier-Mache Pvt, Ltd.;

New Saraswati House {India) Pvt. Ltd, and
Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Ltd.

////////////////////////////////////////////////////////
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NOTICE (contd.)

Name of Director Mr. Himanshu Gupta

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

Chairman/Member of CSR Committee-Member
the Committee of the
Board of Directors of

the Company

CSR Committee-Member

Stakeholders Relationship Committee-Member

Chairman/member NIL
of the committee of

the Board of Directors

of other companies

in which he/sheis a

director

NIL

Number of Equity 5,727,154
Shares held in the

~ Company.

3,750,229

Number of Board 9
Meetings attended

during Financial year

201617

Relatianship with other Mother-Ms. Savita Gupta
Directors, Manager

and other Key

Managerial Personnel

of the Company

Son-ir. Gaarav Kumar Jhu njhnuwalai

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persannel and/ or their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the Resolutions at Item Nos. 5 and & of the
accompanying Notice except Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr.
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala since the remuneration of each of
these directors Is proposed to be revised and Ms. Savita Gupta
whao is relative of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Gaurav Kumar
Jhunjhnuwala who is relative of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala,

Remuneration paid/payable to Executive Directors, is
commensurate with industry standards and Board level positions
held in similar sized domestic companies. Accordingly, Board
recommends the resolutions set forth in Item nos. S and 6 for the
approval of members,

Rem No. 7

As per Regulation 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of india
{Share Based Employee Benehts) Regulations, 2014 {“The SEBI
ESQP Regulations”), no company shalimake any fresh grantwhich
involves allotment or transfer of shares to its employees under any
scheme formulated prior to the listing of its equity shares unless
such scheme is in conformity with The SEBI ESOP Regulations and
such scheme is ratified by its members subsequent to Initial public
offer.

Jéi

The Company, to attract, motivate, retain and reward employees
for high levels of individual performance has implemented
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2012 (*ESQP 2012”). ESOP
2012 was approved by the Board and shareholders on May 31,
2012 and june 30, 2012 (prior to the listing) respectively and was
implemented with effect from July 5, 2012,

Post listing, the Company has not granted any further options
under ESOP 2012 and 37103 stock options still remains to be
granted. Therefore, ESOP 2012 shall continue to be in operation
for grant of un-granted stock options, vesting and exercise of stock
options already granted/to be granted subject the terms of vesting
and exercise mentioned in ESOP 2012,

As per The 5EBI ESOP Regulations, ESOP 2012 needs to be ratified
by the sharehalders after the listing of the shares. Accordingly,
the Company places ESOP 2012 for ratification of members, with
certain amendments as included in resolution forming part of this
Notice, to align it with The SEBI ESOP Regulations.

Further, as per The 5E8I ESOP Regulations it is requirad to obtain
shareholders’ approval for exact quantum of g t@u@ 750
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2012 in one or more tranches, exercisable into equal number of equity shares of face value of ¥5/- each fully paid-up together with
the stock options already granted, vested, and exercised under the above referred scheme for which in-principle listing approval has
been granted by stock exchanges, shall be within the previously approved limit of 367,928 options. Disclosures relating to ESOP 2012 as
required under the SEBI Regulations are as under:

Particulars

Description

Brief Description of ESOP 2012

The Company, to attract, motivate, retain and reward employees for high levels of
individual performance has implemented ESOP 2012, ESOP 2012 was approved by
the Board and shareholders on May 31, 2012 and June 30, 2012 (prior to the listing)
respectively and was implemented with effect from July 9, 2012,

ESOP 2012 originally approved contemplated not exceeding 2486 options exercisable
into not exceeding 2486 equity shares of the Company of face value of T 10 each
fully paid up. However, post stock split from ¥ 10 per share to 5 per share on April
20, 2016 and bonus shares issued by the Company on April 29, 2016 in the ratio of
73:1 the amended ESOP 2012 contemplates 357,328 equity shares of the Company
exercisable into not exceeding into 367,928 equity shares of the Company of face
value of T 5 each fully paid up.

Through ESOP 2012 the Company intends to offer opportunity of sharing the value
created with those employees who have contributed to the growth of the Company
and are expected to contribute in future also.

Whether ESOP 2012 to be implemented and
administered directly by the Company or
through a trust

ESOP 2012 will be implemented directly by the Company

Whether ESOP 2012 involves new issue of
shares or transfer of existing shares

New issue of shares by the Company

Total number of Options to be granted

3,67,928 stock options exercisable into 3,67,928 equity shares of T 5/-each

Details of Stock Options

Options Granted: 364,825
Optlons Vested: 251,970
Options Exercised: 143,930

\dentification of employees eligible for grant
of stock Options

Present and future permanent employees and directors (excluding Independent
directors, employees who belongs to promoter group and director who is directly
or indirectly holding more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the
Company} of the Company and its subsidiaries as determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee or Board of Directors of the Company.

Requirements of vesting and period vesting

All the options granted on any date shall vest not earlier than one year and not |ater
than seven years from the date of grant of options as may be determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Options would vest on passage of time
and in addition to passage of time, Nomination and Remuneration Committee if feals
necessary may specify performance parameters subject to which options would vest.

Exercise price or pricing formula

Exercise price per option shall be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in relation to each grant. -5 G Oma
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Particulars Description

Exercise period and process of exercise - Anemployee whilein employment can exercise his vested options within a period
and under certain circumstances in which  of two years from the date of vesting.

options may lapse « In case of resignation/termination (cther than due to misconduct} an employee
can exercise all the vested options as on the date of submission of resignation /
date of termination before his last working day with the Company or before the
expiry of the exercise periad, whichever is earfier and unvested aptions shall stand
cancelled.

+ In case of termination due to misconduct all vested and unvested options which
were not exercised at the time of such termination shall stand cancelled with effect
from the date of such termination.

+ In case of retirement or early retlrement approved by the Company, all vested
options can be exercised by the employee immediately after, but in no event later
than six months from the date of retirement and unvested options shall stand
cancelled.

+ In case of termination due to permanent disabllity all vested options as on the
date of termination may be exercised by the employee, in case of his demise, the
nominee or tegal heirs, immediately after, but in no event later than six months
from the date of termination of the employee, or before the expiry of the exercise
period, whichever islater can exercise the options. In such case all urvested options
shall vest immediately and would be exercised by the employee or his legal heir
immediately but not later than six months form the date of retirement.

« In case of death of employee all vested options as on the date of death may be
exercised by the nominee or legal heirs of employee, immediately after, but in
no event later than six months from the date of death or before the expiry of the
exercise period, whichever is later. In such case all unvested options shall vest
immediately and would be exercised by the nominee or legal helr immediately but
not later than six months form the date of death.

- In case of separation due to reasons cther those mentioned above, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee will decide whether the vested options on the date
of separation can be exercised by the employee or not, and such decision shall be
final. All unvested options shall stand cancelled.

Adjustment of Options in  case of incase of consolidation, split or issue of bonus shares number of options shall stand
consolidation, spilt and bonus adjusted so as to ensure that the cumulative paid up value (No of shares X face value
per share} of the total shares arising out of exercise of Options that can be issued

remain unchanged. .

Maximum number of Options to be granted The aggregate number of options to be granted under ESOP 2012 shali not exceed

per Employee and in aggregate 3,67,928 options. For grant of options equal to 1% or more of issued share capital of
the Company to an individual employee during any one year approval of sharehclders
will be taken.

Method of Valuation Valuation of stock option is done as per applicable Indian Accounting standards

Members may take note that none of the proposed amendment adversely effects the interest of the employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

A draft copy of the amended ESOP Scheme of the Company wlll be available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office and

Corporate Office of the Company in physical and electronic form between 11:00 AM. to 5:00 PM. on warking days and the same will also
be available at the AGM.

relative who are employees of the Company or its subsidiaries, if any, under ESOP Scheme 2012.
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The Board of Directors recommends this resolution for the
approval of members.

Htem No. 8

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder and The 5EBI ESOP Regulations, as amended, the
Company, subject to approval of members by way of passing
special resolution, may grant stock options to the employees of its
subsidiary(s) whether in India or out of India, ESOP 2012 also has
provisions for giving stock options to the employees of subsidiaries.
Therefore the Company, considering that in future, stock options
may be granted to eligible employees of subsidiaries, is seeking
approval of members by way of passing Special Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends this resolution for approval
of members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerlal Personnel of the Company
including their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution(s) except to the
extent of the stock options that may be granted to them or to their
relative who are employees of the Company or its subsidiaries, if
any, under ESOP Scherne 2012.

Item No. $

The Company had by way of passing a Special Resolution in the
meeting of members heldon August 31,2016 arnended its Articles
of Association (“Articles™) and divided its Articles into two parts
i.e. Part A and Part B, Post listing of the Company Part B of Articles
stand terminated automatically with effect from the date of listing
of securities of the Company on stock exchanges. Accordingly,
presently only Part A of Articles is effective,

Considering this automatic termination of Part B, it is desirable to
amend the Articles to remove the references of Part A and Part B
wherever appearing in Articles and to make consequent changes
in preamble of Articles.

A draft copy of the Amended Articles of Association of the
Company will be available for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office and Corporate Office of the Company in physical
and electronic form between 11:00 AM. to 5:00 FM. on working
days and the same will also be available at the AGM.

The Board of Directors recommends this resolution for the
approval of members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
including their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested
financially or otherwise, in the matter.
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Item No. 10

As per Article 40 of Articles of Association of the Company, any
shareholder who is holding seven and a half per cent (7.5%) or
more of the total outstanding Equity Shares (on a fully diluted
basis}) of the Company shall have the right to nominate one
Director on the Board of the Company. Further any Shareholder
who is holding ten per cent (10%) or more of the total outstanding
Equity Shares {on a fully diluted basis) of the Company, shall have
the right to nominate its respective nominee Director as a member
on the ‘Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures Governance Committee’ of
the Board.

The Company has given an undertakingto Securities and Exchange
Board of India ("SEBI") and also undertaken in its Prospectus that
upon listing of the equity shares pursuant to the initial public
offer, Company will seek approval of members through a special
resolution regarding the rights available to the shareholders under
Article 40 of Articles of Association. Accordingly, your Board places
this Article 40 for approval of shareholders by way of passing
Special Resolution.,

The Board of Directors recommends this resolution for the
approval of members.

Noneofthe Directors or Key Managerial Personne! of the Company
including their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested
in the matter except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company and resuitant right to appoint a director in accordance
with Article 40.

Item No. 11

Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Ms. Neerja
Jhunfhnuwala, Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Ms. Nirmala
Gupta, Ms, Savita Gupta and Ms, Anita Gupta {collectively referred
as; “Management Shareholders”) havea pre listing profit sharing
arrangernent with Everstone Capital Partners [1 LLC {*Everstone”)
and International Finance Corporation {*IFC") by virtue of
investment agreement entered into between the Management
Shareholders, Everstone, IFC and Company dated October 7,
2015. Under this arrangement, the Management Shareholders are
entitled to receive {a) 20% of the net consideration received by IFC
over a minimum realizable gain on transfer of all jts egquity shares
in the Company, such minimum realizable gain being an amount
that gives [FC an IRR of 26% on its total investment in the shares
of the Company; and (b) 20% of the net consideration received by
Everstone over a minimum realizable gain on transfer of all or any
ofits equity shares in the Company, such minimumn realizable gain
being an amount t Ve
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The Company has given an undertaking to SEB and also undertaken in its Prospectus that upon the listing of the equity shares pursuant
to the initfal public offer, Cormpany will seek an approval of the Board of Directors and its Shareholders through an ordinary resolution in
relation to this profit sharing arrangement. Accordingly, your Board seeks approval of shareholders for this profit sharing arrangement by
way of an Ordinary Resclution.

The Board of Directors recommends this resolution for the approval of members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in
the matter except that Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Mr. Dinesh Kurmar Jhunjhnuwala, Ms. Savita Gupta and Mr. Gaurav Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, to
the extent of their shareholding in the Cornpany and in the resultant sharing of profits, if any, by IFC and Everstone, are interested in this
resolution, Further Mr. Deep Mishra being nominee of Everstone is interest in this resolution.

By Order of the Board

sd/-
Registered Office: Jagdeep Singh
Ravindra Mansion Company Secretary
Ramnagar, New Delhi-110055 Membership No. A 15028
Tel: +91 11 66672000 New Delhi, August 9, 2017

Fax: +91 11 23677446
Wehsite: www.schandgroup.com
E-mall; investors@schandgroup.com

Annexure | to Notice
Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars Ms. Savita Gupta

Date of 8irth Qctoher 27, 1549

Date of Appointment October 20, 1589

Qualifications Degree in bachelor's of arts and a degree in masters of arts in English
literature, both from Chaudhary Charan Singh University, Meerut,
Uttar Pradesh

Expertise in specific functional area 25 years of experience in the knowledge products and services
industry

Disclosure of relationships between directors Inter-se She is the Mother of Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Managing Director of the
Company

No. of shares held in the Company 1,218,634 equity shares

Directorships in other Companies {excluding private S Chand And Company Limited
Companies, Section 8 companies and foreign companies) Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.
Nirja Publishers & Printers Pvt, Ltd.

Memberships/Directorships of Committees of other 5 Chand And Company Limited

Companies including 5 Chand Chairpersan-Stakeholders Relationshlp Committee
Save and except Ms, Savita Gupta and her relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, y, none of the other
Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their re]atwes are, in any way, concerned or ly or otherwise, in
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S Chand And Company Limited
Corporate Identification Number-L22219DL1570PLC 005400

Registered Office: Ravindra Mansion, Ram Magar, New Delhi - 110055
Tel.: + 91 11 666 72000 ; Fax: +91 91 11 23677446

Corporate Office A-27, 5econd Floor, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate, New Delhi 110044
Tel:+91 1149731800 ; Fax: +91 91 11 4973 1601
Websiterwww schandgroup.com

Forty Sixth Annual Genera! Meeting to be held on Monday, September 25, 2017
at 11.30 A.M.at Executive Club Resort, 439, Village Sahaoorpur,
Post office Fatehpur Berj, New Delhi 110074

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN:1.22219DL1970PLCO05400

Name of the Company: SChand Ancd Company Limited,
Registered office; Ravindra Mansion, Ram Nagar, New Dethi - 110055

Name of the Member: |
Registered Address: \
E-mall ld:

Folio No./Client ld:
DP Id:

'
H
]
]
'
1
'
3
]
1
'
'
'
'
.
'
1
1
a
£
+
:

I/We, beingthe member(s)of ________ shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address: B
E-mail Id: Signature: or failing him/her

2. Name;

Address: _
E-mail Id: Signature: or failing him/her

3.Name:
Address:
E-mail Id: Signature;
. As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on

Monday, 25™ day of September, 2077 at 11:30 A.M. at Executive Club Resort, 439 Village Sahaoorpur, Post office Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi 110074
: and at any adjournment thereol in respect of such resolutions as is indicated below:

S. No. ’Resolu‘tion Vote .
For*® Against*

[Drdinary Business
1 ladoption of Audited Financial Statements (both standalone and consolidated financial

ctatements) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 and the Reports of

Directors and Auditors thereon

2 [Confirmation of payment of Interim dividend and to dectare final dividend on equity shares for

the financial year ended March 31, 2017,

‘3 Appointment of a Director In place of Mrs. Savita Gupta {DIN 00053988), who retires by

otation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

|4 Reappointtment of M/s 5. R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP, Chartered Accountants as statutory

‘ uditors of the Company for a period of 5 years.

L
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Speciai Business

5 IRevision in remuneration of Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Managing Director of the Company

6 Revision in remuneration of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Whole Time Director of the
Company

7 IAmendment and Ratification of Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2012

8 IApproval for grant of stock options to the employees of subsidiaries of the Company

9 IAmendment in Articles of Association

10 Approval and ratification of Article 40 giving right to appoint director on the Board and

Subsidiaries and Jolnt Venture Governance Committee of the Company
11 |Approval of profit sharing arrangement between the Managernent Shareholders,
Internationat Finance Corporation and Everstone Capital Partner Il LEC

Signed this day of M7
Signature of shareholder
Signature of proxy helder(s) Ao e
1 revenue
Stamp

Notes:
1. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen slgnature registeted with the Company

2. The Companies Act, 2013 lays down that the Instrument appointing a proxy, in order to be effective, shall be deposited at the Reglstered office/Corporate office
of the Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy need not be a member ofthe Company.

3. AMember may vote for' of "against’ each resolutlon, Please put a [ in tha Box in the appropriate column elther ‘for or 'agalnst the respective resolutions, If you
leave the 'For or ‘Against’ cofumn blank In respect of any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitied to vote in the mannar as he/she thinks appropriate,
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S Chand And Company Limited
Corporate |dentification Number-L222190L1970PLC005400

Registered Office: Ravindra Mansion, Ram MNagar, New Delhi - 110055
Tel: +91 11 666 72000 ; Fax: +91 91 11 23677446

Corporate Office A-27, 5econd Floor, Mohan Ca-operative Industrial Estate, New Delhi 110044
Tel:+91 11 4973 1800; Fax: +91 91 11 4973 1801
Website:www.schandgroup.com

Forty 5ixth Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, September 25, 2017
at 11.30 AM.at Executive Club Resort, 439, Village 5ahacorpur,
Post office Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi 110074

ATTENDANCE SLIP

DPID-CLID /Folio No. -
Name of Shareholder (s) -~
Address -

1/ We certify that | am / we are Member{(s) / Proxy of the Member{(s} of the Company holding shares,

| hereby record my presence at the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, September 25,
2017 at 11,30 AM. at Executive Club Resort, 439, Village Sahacorpur, Post office Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi 110074,

Signature of Member / Proxy
Notes:

1. Amember or his duly appointed Proxy wishing to attend the meeting must complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over
at the entrance.
. Name of the Proxy in Block letters (in case the Proxy attends the meeting)
3. Those who hold shares in Demat form to quote their Demat Account No. and Depository Participant (D.P) ID. No.
Shareholders/proxy holders desiring to attend the meeting may bring his/her copy of Annual Report for reference at meeting

Electronic Voting Sequence No, (EVSN) User[D Sequence Number
170817004

Note: Please read the instructions printed under the Note No. 14 to the Notice dated August 9, 2017 of the Forty Sixth Annual
General Meeting. The voting period starts from 9,00 a.m, (IST} on Thursday, Septe 2017 and ends at 05:00 p.m. (IST} on

- i@g%
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Limited Review Report

Review Report to
The Board of Direetors
S Chand and Company Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying statemcnt of wnaudited standalone financial results of § Chand
and Company Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter ended Septernber 30, 2017 and year to date from
Apri! 01, 2017 to September 30, 2017 (the “Statement™) attached hercwith, being submitted by the
Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, rcad with SEBI Cireular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016

dated July 5, 2016.

The preparation of the Statement in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, [nterim Financial Reporting (Ind AS 34) preseribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 rcad with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 35, 2016 is the
responsibility of the Company's management and has been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review.

We conducted our review in aceordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410,
Review of Interim Financial Informaticn Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by
the Institutc of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain mioderate assurance as to whether the Statement is frec of material misstatement, A
review is limited primarily (o inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to
financial data and Lhus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothicg has come to our anention that causes us to believe
that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordanee with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the applicable [ndian Aecounting Standards (‘Ind AS*) specificd under Section
133 of the Companics Act, 2013, read with rclevant rules issucd thereunder and other recogniscd
accounting practices and polieies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in (erms of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read
with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016, including the manner in whieh it
is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstalement.

We havc neither audiled not reviewed the accompanying standalone unaudited financial results and
other financial information for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 and year to date from April 01,
2016 to September 3(}, 2016 and for the year ended March 31, 2017, which have been presented solely

based on the information comphed by management.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAI Firm rcgistration number: 101045W/E300004

Chartered Accountants
/

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 194941

Plaee: New Dethi
Date: November |7, 2017
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S CHAND AND COMPANY LIMITED
CIN:L22215DLI970P LCO05400

STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED STANDALONE ASSETS AND LIABILYTIES

{Tin miliions)

September 30, 2017

March 31, 2017

Particulars Unnudited Unaudited
__ {Refernote2) (Refer aate 2

Assets

Nop-current asscts

Property, plant and equipinent 81.02 L7
Capiial work-in-progress 118

Intangible assels [40.54 (45,73
imangible assets under development 13151

Financial assets

- [nvestments 4,70%.12 4,704.06
- Logns 1,159.1% L153.07
- Other financial assels 58.81 4.76
Olher ngn-current 235815 82.44 27.44
Deferred tax assets (net) 167.20 6511
Total son-current asscts (A) 6,415.61 5.215.87
Current assets

Inventories 565 76 577.09
Financial assers

- lnvesiments 198 1.94
- Lodns 90.36 26.68
- Trade receivables 1,368.43 2,128.58
- Cash and cush cquivalents 685 02 143 85
- Qiher financial assets #60 46} ‘
| Other current assets 57.18 135.00 |
Total current assets (B} 2,777.33 3,017.75
Total assets (A+B) 9,192.94 8,233.62
Equity and liabililies ]
Equity -
Equity share capilal 174.2G 149.22
Cther equity

- Rarained carnings 1,120.9) 135341
- Other resesves 6,623 16 3.5t7.4
Tetal equity (C} 7.920.27 5.019.97
Non-current liabilities )

Financia! ligbililics

- Bprrowings 578 ROS
Net employee defincd benehit hiabilines 1018 846
Other nen-cument labilitics 5.69 4.92
Total non current lisbitities (D) 21.82 21.43
Currenl liabilities

Financial labilities

- Barowings 509.43 798.83
- Trude payables 553.03 900,56
- Other financial Ligbilities 30.75 1,322.31
Other current hatilites B88.86 60.2%
Gther provisians 68.78 110.23
‘Fotal currcot tinbilities (1) 1,250,835 3,192.22
Total equity and linhilities (C+D+E) 9,192.94 8,233.62
See accampanying notcs Lo inancial results,

5.R_ Batibol & Associates

{or Identification

LLP, New Dettl

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY




S CHAND AND COMPANY LIMITED

CRNGLI1YRLITOPLO 003900

STATEMENT QF UNAUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF ¥FAR ENDED SEFTEMUFH 30,1017

{¥ (o millions)

Quarter snded LIl yeur enved Year ended
Soptetnber I0, Sepiember 10, | Seplerober 30, | Sepremb
! Pariicutars 1017 t | dune 30,2007 1016 ' " m]:r ’ P ;";I;rn' Merch 31,2017
Enandized Unsudited Lnaudited UYnaudited Unandited Unandited
_ {Befer pote 2} | (Refer note2) | (Reler nate2} | (Refer potr 2) [Heler npie 27| jRefer note 2)
[ |Revesue (o0l cperatons 17359 283351 28078 46710 418 57 2,826 02
11 |Qther incaue se o0 600 2183 10811 43.38 8 1%
UT | Toralincome (Ixf1) 23268 335,53 30261 | 592.2) 4R350 102241
v Expenses
Cos! of putihshed goad: marenals consurmed £9.01 6717 1B516 156,20 283 3% 935 B8
Publicxhon s piesits 2821 47 50 2B.5s 7601 5031 117.00
Purchases of nadzd goads 2.67 1341 857 1401 6530 Npus
Chaniges in venionzs af fin:aned goids and iraded goods 3.02 3al (71.81) 1807 191 92) 13.28
Selling and disinbunan expenses 1627 4613 3244 142 L1 206,19
Emy loyee benct 5 expensza 12317 12927 11797 244 dd 21178 ME
Fanarce costs 17.10 4013 .66 12 48 ¢ 149,05
Deprecaton and e ., ZE(0N EXpense 3381 11.35 14.81 1718 819 5373
Other ¢rpenses 75,31 .79 b6 72 194 16 146,21 2764
[Tatal expenses (1V) 39262 459.08 465,17 ss;_vo( 80565 155469 |
¥ | Profit{loes) befare exceptioan! iteme and fax {111-1¥) {159.94) my.ssj {162.56% (119,49)‘ (32175} 43172
I
¥l |Kxcepnoenal norw - .
Vi [Profitflass) belore 1t (V- V1) (159.94) (115,55}, (i62.56)|  (278.49) (321.78) FEL )
Y1 [Tax expenses:
1} Cument max - . . . . 172 50
23 Defered ex {3407) (a0 57) (483 .) (98 54} (9% 90) (6 59)
[X |Profiti{loss) for the periodiyear rem continuing operatioos (YII-YTID) {101.92) (79 03) (L14.11) (180.85) {222.85) 27121
X |Profii/{loss) From discenbirard optrorions _ B
X1 |Tax expense of divconrinued operanons . .
XIL |Profitiless) front discontianed speraniens {aller 1ax) (X-KT) . L
XU |Proliv{less) for the perist/year {afler tnx) [IX+X11} (101.22) {9y (114.22) (180.95) {211.85) 17221
i X1V | Othar comprehtensive incume
A. {i) Item7 that wr ani be reclassti=d 1o profid or lass.
Re-msnsuronent (gaz sk uwssct on defined bensfit plam 043 {1.74) [0.59) {131 (1m (0.42)
{a) Incomae 12+ reled io tlems traat we't agr be reclassified Lo profis or loss (0.15) 0.60 D3 D45 038 o015
B, i) Irema thae wai be feuiss. ot i prafil af loss
[w) tne ymee vax faisted 10 tems thal will be reclasz.fied ta profitor loss - . .
X¥ |Totsl cocnprehsnsive income for the perioddyesr (K11+XTY) {102.29) {1789 {1135 (180.09) IL1%) 27148
(comprising profilass) and nther comprelengive income for the neriod/vesr
XV | Pad-up equity share capatal {fage vaioe of 3 5 each) 14 20 1T 14912 174.20 14912 149 22
AV |Reserves (exchdi Juation reserves) of previons i yrar - - - - - 4870 73
|
XYill |Earpinpsi(loss) per equity stave (in ¥) {for continuing aperations)
1} Busie (295 {2.60) a8y (5.35) 747 917
7} Dilveed | ¢ 95)1 (2 403 (383 (5.15) (747 910
|
XIX |Earninps/{oss) per eqinty share (in 1) {for divcontinued gperationa) | t
1} Dasic C . . .
2} Dluted - . .
XX |Esrmings/{loss) per equity share (in ¥) {Tor discontineed nnd torillnulng apsranans)
1) Basic [~ 95} (240} (383} (5.35) (4N 92
2) Thluted {2 95} {2.40) (3 83} [335) (747} 910
|Be< accomp g notes 1o fnanoad resuts

S.A Dalibol & Associates LLP, New Delhl

for Idenlificalicn

CERT
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S CHAND AKD COMPANY LIMITED
CIM;L22219DL1970PL COS4 00
STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL KESULTS FOR THE QUAKTEN AND HALF YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER M, 1017

Mofus:

(i

The Corpany has completed the [ansa! Public Offer (IPO) of 10,873,282 cquity ahores of € 3 cach al pn isguc pncr of T 670 per shure consisting of fresh bsue of 4,830,746 equity shares and o ofer
for ke of 6,023,236 cquily shana by selluig skarehaiders, The squiy sharcs of the Conmpany wvere lmted on BSE Luvited {'BSE') and Naciena) Stock Exchange of lrdix Linited ('NSE7) w.e f. Mey
2017, Accoidingly, e ynapdiled siandalone Grancisl resuls for 1he quanor and Wadf yoar ended Sepremiber 0, 2017 is baing grepared i wirh Ux Repylation 33 of te SER! [Lirring'
Qpligatons and Dt bsture Requirerients) Regulationy, 2015 (the “Lisuing Regubticns™)

The alave pmavdued seadadooe fimencial reseils = wviewcd by the Audit Conwmitize have bear approved by Board of Tweciora a1 s meering Yeld on Novomber 17, 2017, A limitod review of te
resulls for the quaner ard hall vear ended Septembxt J0. 2017 have been eaumicd oul by puy scatulory audifor, The andaions Roancil resuks and olluer fnscial infomation for the quarter and haif
your ended Soplember 30, 2016 and for the year ended March 31, 2007 have na) been audiled or reviowsd by cur siatutory auditer Howevor, the Managenwnt has cxziciged nvsessany: die diligance
1o shanre tlat tho vraudied siandalone Fhancial resulls provde atmue pnd [ view of the Cainpany’s affirs,

The Company ar adapted fadian Accowniing Standants (ind ASI proseribed under svetion 133 of the Comparses Ad, 2017 read with selevant Ml inmyed (ersunder. The dite of rrangition in fo b
AS s Aprl |, 1016 and dingly, There dited doiona Angncicl resulty b been preparcd in accondance wilh the meognition and MCAWrETRent prnciples i Ind AS 34 - *Interim Fisaweial

Roporting* and other ing inciple genernsly sccepted i ladia, Tha impact of tmnsition las beoh cecownted For i the opening vossrves ond (e somyamtive period flgures hayt beca rensiatcd

accondingly.

There b4 posstuny that these half yeady ant quarery resulls may nequire aduscnent befose ennttitutung, the fnal Ind AS financml satements 28 of and for the year cvded Marels 11, 2018 duc to
changes in firancial neporting roquiremeals ansiog Aol acw of revisd slandards or intemretalions rssucd by MCA or changex o the wse of owe of Inare oplianal excmgiions Bom full fetraxpective
npglicatian as commuitod under [ad AS 101,

‘The dawils of wiilization ol [PC procegds ~ 1 3,04).00 millien (set oF PO ntlated oxpensas) are a3 follows:

——— {1 in milliony)
Partirulary As per Wikised upta Baytilised amaun! m st
‘ _ _ Brosperius Segtember 20, 2017 Sepiember 10, 2617
Pra-payment gf tenm Joans avaled by the Company and 24 subsudiarics 235000 3,550.00 M
Genzral somparat purpascs 451.00 403 136,05
Tl 14100 2,624,058 d16.95

Unuiitised anonnts of the [P0 proceats as o Scptember 39, 2017 have Lees smporanly paked i fxed doposis witls bank

The Coropany /24 ertinsued 445 A7 millkoo {inclusive of Service LGS T) a1 PO rebted expenses. Of soch 1RO relatcd exponacy, cortaim experses (such a8 Inwng Sos #1o.) aggregaling 10 ¥ 19.93
eniltion and X 081 nulkian aro direcaly ansibutabit 10 e Compamy and seliing slarcholdess repeztivel; Remaining 1P0 rehied cxpiascy agpregsng to £ 424.1 mitfion, have been aliscated breweon
e Company {1 18947 snilhen) an! (he sclling shareholder (T 235,20 million) @ propanion 1o the cquuy slures alkricd 1o the public 3 Beah isess by rhe Company and under oBar for slo by =lling
worchoMen. Till September X, 2017, an ameum of T 13098 millian has been paw against JPO rolaied sxpenucs sl the remainieg areount of T | L4 49 million will be poid io dur course. Ag
Seprember 30, 2017, the 1oLl arributallc sound 10 the Compamy: {ampunt already incimcd) has been odjueied lowards soeumniios premism.

A neeonnikaton of the finoneis! resuln o those repancd under previous Ooncrally Accepted Acoounting Principles ICAAP) ars svtimarised as folomvy:
{2 in millions)

K . T Quarier ended Hilf year ended ¥

Pa L[ year en tar ended
rriculans Nau Septembex 30, 2018 | Semtennber 30, 2015 March 31, 2017

Yrofit { {loss) after tax ¢ repested under previous CAAF 157,59} {219.26) 21059
Impact of measuring investments a1 Bir value itough profil and loss {FVTPL) 8 (i) 2.59 £ 79 (o.48},
Impact of it valuation of smgloyes staick aptions plans 8 gy (1.75) {1 57) (L7
Impct of fmancial assels J gt mornised cost XD Q.00 0.1 {0.32)
Ipact of reversal of amortisation of goodwill 8 (v) 189 1.76 149
limipact of expecind eredic orig on Roancsd axsets § (v . {9.61 .
Rethssificarion of ashuanal gana / lossas, ansing in rospet! of cmployee benefic schemes 1ol 0.99) {1109 (1t 42}
other comprebenshve incame

Fax admsmenis o abave 172 0.34 (2.28Y]
Prahl afler {ax as reparied undey Ind AS [ 114.22) (212.55} LT
Other comprehensive income (ret of fax) 0.65 .72 0.27 ]
[Total romgscheasive income as reported unilsr Ing AS (1133h (222,13} 7148 |

A rcenneiiahon of 1ne cquuy 10 Uiose teparted under previous Goneruly Aeccpled Accountiag Principlo (GAAP) we summarksed g Wollows:
(2 in millions}

Pariculdrs Nores |I; As 3t Asat
March 33, 2017 April 1, 1014

|Equity a8 repucied undes previous GAAR 4,963.97 441796
Impuct of measuring sivestorsnts at fai value thiough profic and loss (FYT#L) 3 {n) 022 070
lmgml. olemployge siwek eglions plans gronted Lo subsidiary i A6y 361 117
Imprzet of Raancial assls d a1 wnortised GOsL E (v {2.30) (1.99)
tmpact of eversal of smontiswion of goodswitl B V) 749 N

Impact of sxaected credd loys on Bnancial asista Efvi) {149 14) (39 )4)]
Tax adi on shove 8.9 3137
Equity es mporied uader Ind AS €870.75 | 4,740.07

Excripiion apphed 2 (ransitmn

frd AS 101 (Firsi-tinie Aduplion of Indin Accounting Standands) provides a susiabie surting paist far sczopnling in aceorance wid fud AS and 1t repuired to ba wandatonily Folawed by st rime
adaprcr Ind A3 10 albows Sy ywme adoplen exemplions from the reLrosptane apgiication of cesain under 1ng AS. The Company has applicd the exemption @ #5 finanehd waully 2

Brlow;

Property, pluat and cquipiical wure cautied 87 cumving amount wche saterment of Anancial pesition un
amcum as docined cost at the dale ol ransion i.e., Apdl 1, 2018 CE
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(i}

(iii).

&)

)

(vi)

.
5 CHAND AND COMPANY LIMITED

CIN:L22219D1.1970FLC005400
STATERENT OF LSAUDITED STANDALONE PINANCIAL RESULTS FOR TOE QUANTER AND HALF YEAR EXDED SEPTEMUER 30, 1017

In respect of share beyed paymicms (ransaclions. all prerty of equicy insirument s thay vested befbre the dare ol inandition has not buen considesed for fuir valiaunn,

Tn respect of Businers Cobinaliony, the Comprny has elecied not to apply ind AS 103 rerrospeciively 1o past bus. g5 combiralions ie o {husiness combinations (hel oeeumed befose the date of’
uarsition Lo Ind ASs)
Gruler previous GAAP, tument quoled rquily investments and mutusl funds were valued at lower of ¢osi and fhir yalue Under Ind AS, these fnantial assers have been clagsifivd as FYTPL on the date ol

transition and fdr velue chery:es af e the date ol tranution hes been recognised in the stalemont of prafil and loss,

Under previous GAAF, 1h¢ CAmpany was accounling eoiployee siock oplion plans as per intrinsic value method Lnder Ind AS, 1ete have been accoumied for at tar velye ol oplion as per fnd AS 107
Further, crinpensat-2:: cost ol options gramed 10 employees of subsidiary companies have been capitaliscd with ihe cost of nvestments in such subzidiary companiex ander Ind AS 102

Under reviaus GAAR, securily depesits given by the Compiasy apaingl lease agreements for office prauses ar various locaiions were mearured at transaction vidue ignonng the fime valus of money
Upder ind AS, these deposiss were cersidererd a5 Enancing avsets and has hzen vakied af amertsed cost =

Unider previous GAAP, govdwi was amiurtsed un stisight e basis over @ penod af 10 years Under Tnd AS, Goodwil i required 10 by teated fur imp airment a1 each reporiing date |lence, amounl oF

amprrisation madc fur goodwall under IGAAP lias been reversed in the stalemew of profil aud hoss

Linder Frevious (JAAP, provinen was being made on firancial assers nn mouried Toss model Under Ind AS, provision ov financial assets is 1equired 1o be made as par expeeted credit loss modet

con.idering the expectz! c2ch shartfels from such firancikl aixels and delay in expecred resdizavuon fivm such Anancial assis

Bated ox the information regioried 1€ the Chief Operating Dectelon Maker (CODM) lur the purpese ol resource allocation aid assestment of perfosmance, there are no reportable JCEMENDL tn Accurdence
with the requirements of ind AS 104 - "Operating Scement Reporting”. noufied under ths Companies {Indwsn Acconufing Stendard) Rules, 2015

“The Company’s Fpaaci2l resuis have, hiatancally, been subject 10 seasooal Irendy berwaten the Ingl quencr aud Tast financial year

Traditjunally, the s adeiws sexsino beginning from April comribules 16 lugher revenue in the lasi quarter of the fineacial year The Compary sees 2 higher volume uf baok amles during the moubs of
iy wa revemue generally jower dunog ofher quarters, which

Sanuary, February and Ilarch becauac acgdemic sessions siws from zhe month of Apnl Qngeing revenue also d are 1igns of

are pul cloke 1p the bey s & of 2cadessic session
These irends are hikely to ciatmue in the feture

Figurcs for the previous quenen f penods have been regrouped [ melagsified, wherever pecessary, 16 ¢onforn o corment quaniets / periads

cpmTeEn T
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